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1 DECLARATION OF OPENING
On establishing there is a quorum, the Mayor will declare the meeting open.
Recognition of the Traditional Owners

Council acknowledges the Quandamooka people who are the traditional custodians of the land on
which we meet. Council also pays respect to their elders, past and present, and extend that
respect to other indigenous Australians who are present.

2 RECORD OF ATTENDANCE AND LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Motion is required to approve leave of absence for any Councillor absent from today’s meeting.

3 DEVOTIONAL SEGMENT

Member of the Ministers’ Fellowship will lead Council in a brief devotional segment.

4 RECOGNITION OF ACHIEVEMENT

Mayor to present any recognition of achievement items.

5 RECEIPT AND CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
General Meeting - 6 November 2019

6 MATTERS OUTSTANDING

6.1 OPPORTUNITY TO PARTICIPATE IN A JOINT LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACTIVITY — REGIONAL
APPROACH TO WASTE AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

At the General Meeting 12 December 2018 (Item 19.8 refers), Council resolved as follows:
That Council resolves as follows:

1. In accordance with section 228 2(b) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 to invite
Expressions of Interest for the provision of waste disposal services, including the use of
alternative waste disposal and recycling technologies, to service the needs of the Redland City
Council (Council) Local Government Area, or as part of a regional arrangement, joint
government entity or joint local government with other Councils in South East Queensland.

2. Torecord its reasons for making the resolution, as detailed in Clause 1 above, as follows:

a) A regional waste management solution may make alternative waste technologies feasible
and economical where those technologies would not otherwise be viable options for
Council due to the relatively small volume of waste disposed of by Council each year;

b) A regional waste management solution may enable Council to implement an advanced
solution to waste disposal not seen before in Queensland or Australia and be at the
forefront of advanced alternative waste technology in Australia;

¢) Redland City Council and the SEQ-West region of councils are each involved in the
management of recyclables and residual waste in their respective local government area;

d) Redland City Council recognises that some existing methods of waste treatment and
disposal including landfill disposal may not be sustainable in the long term;

e) Redland City Council wishes to understand and compare all available options for long term
treatment and/or disposal solution(s) for residual waste under their management;
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f) Redland City Council wishes to be positioned to benefit from and respond to developments
in Queensland’s new Waste Strategy and associated regulatory frameworks and local
industry developments. Notably, the recently announced landfill levy (to be introduced in
July 2019) may provide direct or indirect incentives for resource recovery projects; and

g) Redland City Council believes that it is in its interests and its community’s interests to
investigate a regional approach to waste treatment and disposal, consider alternative
waste treatment technologies and solutions, including energy from waste solutions, and
derive the benefits from greater waste volumes. Noting that this investigation opportunity
does not preclude RCC from pursuing or participating in other market based waste
collection and disposal service delivery options and/or maintaining an active engagement
with BCC, to understand future waste disposal contract opportunities and costs that may
be offered by BCC.

3. Todelegate to the Chief Executive Officer under s.257 (1)(b) of the Local Government Act 2009,

the authority to prepare and adopt a Tender Consideration Plan in accordance with section
230 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 outlining how Redland City Council can proceed
to implement a local solution if required following the EOI process;

To delegate to the Chief Executive Officer under s.257 (1)(b) of the Local Government Act 2009,
the authority to execute any agreements between councils participating in the Expression of
Interest process, as detailed in Clauses 1 and 3 above; and

The Group Manager Water and Waste Infrastructure be requested to submit a report to a
future meeting detailing the outcomes of the Expressions of Interest, as detailed in Clause 1
and 3 above.

A report will be presented to Council at the end of the year.

6.2

SOUTHERN MORETON BAY ISLANDS (SMBI) PASSENGER FERRY TERMINAL UPGRADE

At the General Meeting 19 June 2019 (ltem 19.3 refers), Council resolved as follows:

That Council resolves as follows:

1

To accept the Queensland State Government’s (the State’s) Southern Moreton Bay Islands
passenger ferry terminal upgrade funding offer and future ownership proposal, made by letter
dated 28 March 2019, by the State Minister for Transport and Main Roads to the Mayor of
Redland City Council.

To request the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer to write to the State Minister for Transport
and Main Roads and the Director General Department of Transport and Main Roads
respectively, confirming Council’s acceptance of the State’s offer.

To bring back to Council for approval, a Deed of Agreement between the Department of
Transport and Main Roads and Council, for the upgrade of the Southern Moreton Bay Islands
passenger ferry terminals, which may include, but not be limited to, passenger ferry terminal
upgrade funding arrangements, post upgrade ownership and tenure arrangements and post
upgrade commercial and development opportunities.

That this report and attachments remain confidential until a Deed of Agreement for the
upgrade of the Southern Moreton Bay Islands passenger ferry terminals between the State and
Council has been executed, subject to maintaining the confidentiality of legally privileged,
private and commercial in confidence information.

A report will be brought to a future meeting of Council.
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6.3 PETITION REGARDING MORETON BAY RAMSAR SITE
At the General Meeting 14 August 2019 (Item 9.1 refers), Council resolved as follows:

That the Petition be received and referred to the Chief Executive officer for consideration and a
report to the local government.

A report will be presented in this agenda.

6.4 NOTICE OF MOTION FROM CR EDWARDS REGARDING SMBI ROAD SEALING
At the General Meeting 9 October 2019 (ltem 17.1 refers), Council resolved as follows:
That Council resolve as follows:

1. That officers prepare a report analysing the unsealed roads on the Southern Moreton Bay Islands,
and that the report includes:

a) Cost to seal all the island roads that have residential properties.

b) The current operational costs to maintain the unsealed roads.

c) The projected operational cost savings to Council if the roads were sealed.

d) The current health and social impacts to residents currently living on unsealed roads.

e) The environmental benefits in sealing the roads including the surrounding water ways due to
reduced sediment outflows.

f) A map indicating the Road Seal Program.
2. To deliver a workshop with the above information to Councillors within 60 days of this motion.
3. That the report is made available to the public.
A report will be brought to a future meeting of Council.
6.5 MAYORAL MINUTE REPORT REVIEWING THE FUTURE OPERATIONS OF REDLAND
INVESTMENT CORPORATION PTY LTD (RIC)
At the General Meeting 23 October 2019 (Item 7.1 refers), Council resolved as follows:
That Council resolve as follows:

That the Chief Executive Officer prepare a report to Council reviewing the options for the future
operations of the Redland Investment Corporation (RIC) for the consideration of a Council after the
next quadrennial election in 2020 and prior to the Special Budget meeting of 2020.

A report will be brought to a future meeting of Council.

6.6 PETITION REGARDING TOONDAH HARBOUR PDA
At the General Meeting 6 November 2019 (Item 9.1 refers), Council resolved as follows:

That the Petition be received and referred to the Chief Executive officer for consideration and a
report to the local government;

A report will be presented in this agenda.
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7 MAYORAL MINUTE

In accordance with s.6.9 of POL-3127 Council Meeting Standing Orders, the Mayor may put to the
meeting a written motion called a ‘Mayoral Minute’, on any matter. Such motion may be put to
the meeting without being seconded, may be put at that stage in the meeting considered
appropriate by the Mayor and once passed becomes a resolution of Council.

8 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
In accordance with 5.6.10 of POL-3127 Council Meeting Standing Orders:

1. In each meeting (other than special meetings), a period of 15 minutes may be made available
by resolution to permit members of the public to address the local government on matters of
public interest relating to the local government. This period may be extended by resolution.

2. Priority will be given to members of the public who make written application to the CEO no
later than 4.30pm two days before the meeting. A request may also be made to the
chairperson, when invited to do so, at the commencement of the public participation period
of the meeting.

3. The time allocated to each speaker shall be a maximum of five minutes. The chairperson, at
his/her discretion, has authority to withdraw the approval to address Council before the time
period has elapsed.

4. The chairperson will consider each application on its merits and may consider any relevant
matter in his/her decision to allow or disallow a person to address the local government, e.g.

a) Whether the matter is of public interest;
b) The number of people who wish to address the meeting about the same subject

c) The number of times that a person, or anyone else, has addressed the local government
previously about the matter;

d) The person’s behaviour at that or a previous meeting’ and
e) If the person has made a written application to address the meeting.
5. Any person invited to address the meeting must:

a) State their name and suburb, or organisation they represent and the subject they wish to
speak about;

b) Stand (unless unable to do so);

c) Act and speak with decorum;

d) Be respectful and courteous; and

e) Make no comments directed at any individual Council employee, Councillor or member of
the public, ensuring that all comments relate to Council as a whole.

9 PETITIONS AND PRESENTATIONS

Councillors may present petitions or make presentations under this section.
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10 MOTION TO ALTER THE ORDER OF BUSINESS

The order of business may be altered for a particular meeting where the Councillors at that
meeting pass a motion to that effect. Any motion to alter the order of business may be moved
without notice.

11 DECLARATION OF MATERIAL PERSONAL INTEREST OR CONFLICT OF
INTEREST ON ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS

Councillors are reminded of their responsibilities in relation to a councillor’'s material personal
interest and conflict of interest at a meeting (for full details see Division 5A of the Local
Government Act 2009).

In summary:

If a councillor has a material personal interest, in a matter before the meeting:

Under s.175C Local Government Act 2009, the councillor must inform the meeting of the
councillor’s material personal interest in the matter, including the following particulars:

e The name of the person or other entity who stands to gain benefit or suffer a loss from the
outcome of the consideration of the matter at the meeting;

e How the person or other entity stands to gain the benefit or suffer the loss;

e If the person or other entity who stands to gain the benefit or suffer the loss is not the
councillor, the nature of the councillor’s relationship to the person or entity.

If the councillor has a material personal interest they must leave the meeting, including any area
set aside for the public while the matter is discussed and voted on, unless the councillor has
approval from the Minister to be present while the matter is discussed and voted on pursuant to
section 175F.

Record of material personal interest

Under s.175J of the Local Government Act 2009, if a councillor has a material personal interest
under section 175C of the Local Government Act 2009, the following information must be recorded
in the minutes of the meeting, and published on the local government’s website —

(a) the name of the councillor who has the material personal interest in the matter;

(b) the material personal interest including the particulars mentioned in section 175C(2)(a) as
described by the councillor;

(c) whether the councillor participated in the meeting, or was present during the meeting, under an
approval given by the Minister under section 175F.

If a councillor has a conflict of interest (a real conflict of interest), or could reasonably be taken

to have a conflict of interest (a perceived conflict of interest) in a matter before the meeting:

The councillor must, under s.175E of the Local Government Act 2009, inform the meeting about the
councillor’s personal interests in the matter, including the following particulars:

e The nature of the interest;

e |If the personal interest arises because of the councillor’s relationship with, receipt of a gift
from, another person-

- The name of the other person;
- The nature of the relationship or the value and date of the receipt of gift; and

Page 5



GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

- The nature of the other person’s interest in the matter.

If the other councillors in the meeting are informed about a councillor’s personal interests in a
matter and the councillor has not voluntarily left the meeting while the matter is discussed and
voted on, the other councillors must decide:

e  Whether there is a real or perceived conflict; and
e Ifthe councillors decide that there is a real or perceived conflict, whether the councillor-

- Must leave the meeting including any area set aside for the public, while the matter is
voted on and discussed; or
- May participate in the meeting in relation to the matter, including voting on the matter.

Record of conflict of interest

Under s.175J of the Local Government Act 2009, if a councillor has a conflict of interest under
section 175E, the following information must be recorded in the minutes of the meeting, and
published on the local government’s website—

(a) the name of the councillor who has a real conflict of interest or perceived conflict of interest in
the matter;

(b) the councillor’s personal interests in the matter, including the particulars mentioned in section
175E(2) as described by the councillor;

(c) the decisions made by the other councillors in relation to the existence and nature of the conflict
and whether the councillor was permitted to participate in the meeting in relation to the matter,
and the reasons for the decisions;

(d) whether the councillor participated in the meeting, or was present during the meeting, under
an approval under section 175F;

(e) if the councillor voted on the matter—how the councillor voted on the matter;

(f) how the majority of councillors who were entitled to vote at the meeting voted on the matter.

Duty to report another councillor’s material personal interest or conflict of interest

Section 175G of the Local Government Act 2009 imposes an obligation on councillors to report
undisclosed material personal interests and conflicts of interest at a meeting relating to other
councillors.

If a councillor at a meeting reasonably believes, or reasonably suspects:

e That another councillor at a meeting has a material personal interest or a real or perceived
conflict in a matter; and

e The other councillor has not informed the meeting about the interest under section 175C(2) or
175E(2);

The councillor who has the belief or suspicion, must as soon as practicable, inform the person who
is presiding at the meeting about the facts and circumstances that form the basis of the belief or
suspicion.

Note: Section 175H makes it an offence for a person to prejudice, intimidate or harass a councillor or another person

take action that is likely to be detrimental to a councillor because a councillor has complied with their disclosure
obligation under s.175G
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12 REPORTS FROM THE OFFICE OF THE CEO

Nil
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13 REPORTS FROM ORGANISATIONAL SERVICES

13.1 OCTOBER 2019 MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT

Objective Reference:

Authorising Officer: Deborah Corbett-Hall, Chief Financial Officer
Responsible Officer: Deborah Corbett-Hall, Chief Financial Officer

Report Author: Udaya Panambala Arachchilage, Corporate Financial Reporting Manager
Attachments: 1.  October 2019 Monthly Financial Report [
PURPOSE

To note the year to date financial results as at 31 October 2019.

BACKGROUND

Council adopts an annual budget and then reports on performance against the budget on a
monthly basis. This is not only a legislative requirement but enables the organisation to
periodically review its financial performance and position and respond to changes in community
requirements, market forces or other outside influences.

ISSUES
End of Year Accounts Finalisation

The 2018-2019 annual financial statements were audited by the Queensland Audit Office (QAOQ)
during August and September 2019. The closing asset and liability balances per the financial
statements flow through to the opening balances of 2019-20 as presented in the October monthly
financial report.

The audit has not resulted in any adjustments to the opening balances for the 2019-20 financial
year. The financial statements were signed off and certified by the QAO on 8 October 2019.

Capital carryover budget 2018-19

Council adopted a carryover budget on 28 August 2019 to accommodate capital works straddling
two financial years. The attached monthly financial report for October includes the carryover
budget adopted by Council. The differences between the carryover budget figures and those
published are due to the actual opening balances on 1 July 2019. The final audited opening
balances, together with other revisions to the budget, will be adopted as part of the revised
budget in early 2020, and will reconcile to the financial management system and end of year
accounts finalisation process.

2019-20 Budget review

Council officers are currently compiling submissions for a budget review. The monthly analysis will
be consolidated to update Council’s budget for the 2019-20 financial year. Officers are planning to
table a revised budget for Council’s consideration in February 2020.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

Council has either achieved or favourably exceeded the following key financial stability and
sustainability ratios as at the end of October 2019.

e Operating surplus ratio
e Net financial liabilities
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e Ability to pay our bills — current ratio

e Ability to repay our debt — debt servicing ratio

e Cash balance

e Cash balances — cash capacity in months

e Longer term financial stability — debt to asset ratio
e Operating performance

e Interest coverage ratio

The following ratios did not meet the target at the end of October 2019:

e Asset sustainability ratio
e Level of dependence on general rate revenue

The asset sustainability ratio did not meet the target at the end of October 2019 and continues to
be a stretch target for Council with renewal spends of $3.24M and depreciation expense of
$18.64M year to date on infrastructure assets. This ratio is an indication of how Council currently
maintains, replaces and renews its existing infrastructure assets as they reach the end of their
useful life. Capital spend on non-renewal projects increases the asset base and therefore increases
depreciation expense, resulting in a lower asset sustainability ratio.

Council’s Capital Works Prioritisation Policy (POL-3131) demonstrates its commitment to
maintaining existing infrastructure and the adoption of a renewal strategy for its existing assets
ahead of ‘upgrade’ and/or ‘new’ works.

The level of dependence on general rate revenue ratio moves in line with the rating cycle and for
October 2019 it is 42.88% which is outside the target range of less than 40%. Increases in this ratio
are expected to be cyclical and will occur in the months where the quarterly rates are levied.

Legislative Requirements

The October 2019 financial reports are presented in accordance with the legislative requirement
of section 204(2) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, requiring the Chief Executive Officer
to present the financial report to a monthly Council meeting.

Risk Management

The October 2019 financial reports have been noted by the Executive Leadership Team and
relevant officers who can provide further clarification and advice around actual to budget
variances.

Financial

There is no direct financial impact to Council as a result of this report; however it provides an
indication of financial outcomes at the end of October 2019.

People

Nil impact expected as the purpose of the attached report is to provide financial information to
Council based upon actual versus budgeted financial activity.

Environmental

Nil impact expected as the purpose of the attached report is to provide financial information to
Council based upon actual versus budgeted financial activity.

Social

Nil impact expected as the purpose of the attached report is to provide financial information to
Council based upon actual versus budgeted financial activity.
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Alignment with Council's Policy and Plans
This report has a relationship with the following items of Council’s 2018-2023 Corporate Plan:
8. Inclusive and ethical governance

Deep engagement, quality leadership at all levels, transparent and accountable democratic
processes and a spirit of partnership between the community and Council will enrich
residents’ participation in local decision-making to achieve the community’s Redlands 2030
vision and goals.

8.2 Council produces and delivers against sustainable financial forecasts as a result of best
practice Capital and Asset Management Plans that guide project planning and service
delivery across the city.

CONSULTATION
Consulted Date Comment
Council departmental officers Year to i%tleQOctober Consulted on financial results and outcomes
Y t t t

Financial Services Group officers earto (;a(n)leQOc ober Consulted on financial results and outcomes

Executive Leadership Team and Senior Year to date October Recipients of variance analysis between actual

Leadership Team 2019 and budget. Consulted as required
OPTIONS
Option One

That Council resolves to note the financial position, results and ratios for October 2019 as
presented in the attached Monthly Financial Report.

Option Two
That Council resolves to request additional information.
OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

That Council resolves to note the financial position, results and ratios for October 2019 as
presented in the attached Monthly Financial Report.
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1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This monthly report illustrates the financial performance and position of Redland City Council compared to its adopted budget at an organisational
level for the period ended 31 October 2019. Council's 2018/2019 financial statements were signed off and certified by the Queensland Audit Office
on 8 October 2019,

The year to date and annual revised budget referred fo in this report incorporates the changes from budget capital carryovers adopted by Council on
28 August 2019,

Key Financial Highlights and Overview

LULTE] ¥TD Status

Key Financial Results ($000) Revised Revised U YTD Y i Favourable
Actual Variance Variance %

Budget Budget Unfavourable
Operating Surplus 195 22,649 25,008 2 359 10%
Recurren; Revenue 297,572 119,832 118,381 (1,451) -1% ®
Recurrent Expendiure 297,377 97,183 93,373 (3,810) -4% v
Capital Works Expend-ilme 81,285 28,103 14,572 (13,531) -48% v
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents 167,928 158,289 163,581 5,292 3% v

Council reported a year to date operating surplus of $25.01M which is favourable to the revised budget by $2.36M due to less than budget recurrent
expenditure. Bulk water consumption is lower than expected, resulting in lower than expected revenue. Also, grants, subsidies and contributions are
behind budget mainly due to timing of grant revenue recognition. Of note, interest income is lower than budget due to lower than expected interest
rates on investments. The favourable variance in recurrent expenditure is mainly due to underspend in bulk water costs and contractor costs. The
second quarter rate notices were issued in October 2019.

Capital grants, subsidies and contributions are above budgel due to timing of developer cash contributions.
Council's capital works expenditure is below budget by $13.53M due to timing of works for a number of infrastructure projects and assets acquisition

Constrained cash reserves represent 68% of the cash balance.

The annual revised budgeted balances for 2019/2020 include the changes from the budget carryovers adopted by Council on 28 August 2019, However, until the first
budget review is adopted by Council, the balances will reconcile to the financial management system and may be different to the published carryover budget,

Page 2 of 14
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2. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

| Target met [l Target exceeded [l Target not met

Operating Surplus Ratio (%) Asset Sustainability Ratio (%) Net Financial Liabilities (%)
Between 0% and 10% Greater than 80% Less than 60%
Annual Revised Budget 0.07% Annual Revised Budget 69.86% Annual Revised Budget -31.82%

-114.62%

Level of Dependence on General Rate Revenue (%) Ability to Pay Qur Bills - Current Ratic Ability te Repay Our Debt - Debt Servicing Ratio (%)
Leas than 40% Between 1.1 and 4.1 Leas than or equal to 15%
Annual Revised Budget 34.30% Annual Revised Budget 3.61 Annual Revised Budget 3.13%

Cash Balance $M Cash Balances - Cash Capacity in Months Lenger Term Financial Stability - Debt to Asset Ratio (%)
Greater or equal to $50M ‘Greater than 3 Months Less than or equal to 10%
Annual Revised Budget $167.928 Annual Revised Budget 839 Annual Revised Budget 1.77%

$163.581
Operating Performance (%) Interest Coverage Ratio (%)™
Greater than or equal to 10% Leaa than 5%
Annual Revised Budget 18.44% Annual Revised Budget -0.97%

-0.33%

* The net financial liabilities ratio exceeds the target range when current assets are greater than total liabilities (and the rafio is negative)

** The inferest coverage ratio exceeds the target range when interest revenue is greater than interest expense (and the ratio is negative)

The annual revised budgeted targets for 2019/2020 include the changes from the budget camyovers adopted by Council on 28 August 2019. Until the first budget
review is adopted by Council, the targets have been calculated in accordance with financial management system, therefore may be different to the published camryover
budget.

LT Radiand
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

3. STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the period ending 31 October 2019

Annual Annual YTD
Original Revised Revised )
Bugget Budget Budget A:;::' Va;(';';’e
$000 $000 $000
Recurrent revenue
104,953 104,953 52,015 52,192 177
152,328 152,328 51,829 51,371 (458)
(3,333) (3,333) (1,573) (1,576) (3)
14,632 14,632 4,943 4,864 (79)
925 925 297 355 58
5,231 523 1616 1,186 (430)
3,856 3,856 1,201 1,351 150
525 526 310 632 322
18,456 18,456 9,194 8,006 (1,188)

Total recurrent revenue

Recurrent expenses

2 118,381

90,372 90,372 30,797 30,399 (398)
140,138 140,138 44,152 41,527 (2,625)
2,809 2,809 925 892 (33)
65,279 65279 21,760 20,918 (842)
514 514 127 94 (33)
{1.735) (1,735) (578) (457) 121

Total recurrent expenses

Capital revenue

(3,810)

24,492 25,436 8,180 9,270 1,090

3,480 3,480 1,156 - (1,156)

112 112 22| 290 268

o capitalexpenses |2l gl a0l o)

romaLincome T ] onsase|  tzsdss] iz (1e17)

foTALEXPENsES | ooraes]  zorass|  oraos|  saseal (354

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to a net result
- R | R | - -
Page 4 of 14 ki
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

3. STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - CONTINUED
LEVIES AND UTILITY CHARGES ANALYSIS

For the period ending 31 October 2019

Annual Annual YTD
Original Revised Revised
Budget Budget Budget smutuo“ : V;':,TJ':'“
5000 3000 5000
Levies and utility charges
26,968 26,968_ 8,908 8.698_ (210)_
487 487_ 243 242_ (1)_
8,721 8,721 4,338 4,334 (4)
2,896 2,896 960 959 (1)
46,347 46,347 15,284 15,064 (220)
19,105 19,105_ 5,320 6,318_ (2)_
47,804 4?,804_ 15,776 15.756_ (20}_
MATERIALS AND SERVICES ANALYSIS
For the period ending 31 October 2019
Annual Annual YTD
Original Revised Revised
Actual
Budget Budget Budget e V;':,%';‘”
5000 5000 000
Materials and services ) )
41,225 40,857_ 12,148 10,715_ (1,431)_
3,291 3414 764 37 (427,
17,527 17,604 5,572 5,493 (79)
50,161 50,249 16,628 15,7607 (868)
11,357 11,298_ 3,609 3,813_ 204_
6,138 6,138_ 2,050 1.83?_ (213}_
3,873 3,873 1,165 1,366 201
3,080 3,140 1,009 958 (51)
1,195 1,195_ 394 384_ [10}_
1,649 1729 555 616 61
642 641 | 260 248_ (12)_

* Other Council outsourcing cosls are vanous oulsourced costs including refuse collection and disposal, waste disposal, legal services, Iraffic control, external training,
valuafion fees, efc.

** Community assistance costs represent community refated costs including community grants, exhibitions and awards, donations and sponsorships.

Actuals - Total Revenue and Expenses (5000)

550,000
545,000
540,000
535,000
530,000
525,000
520,000
515,000
510,000
55,000
50
Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Dct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

mmmmm Rates charges | evies and utility charges Note: Total revenue ﬂ'ﬂdwfﬂ

in line with the rating cycle.

mmmmm Operating grants, subsidies, contributions and donations —— Fees General rates are levied

m— |nterest, investment and other revenue e Tt £XPENSES quarterly in July, October,

January and April.

P Redtang
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA

20 NOVEMBER 2019

4. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 October 2019

Annual

Qriginal Revised Revised et
Budget Budget Budget 000
$000 $000 $000
CURRENT ASSETS
170,027 167,928 158,289 163,581
30,532 34,609 65,368 67,868
936 923 950 913
- - 11,113 11,113
1,765 2,340 2,340 5,720
Total current assets 203,260 205,800 238,050 249,195
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
1,041 1,091 1,081 1,091
2,555,393 2,562,000 2,549,607 2,535,348
968 712 1,346 1,639
8,278 8,278 9.087 9,099
73 73 73 73
25904 24214 13.101 13,101

Total non-current assets 2,591,706

TOTAL ASSETS

2,794,966

CURRENT LIABILITIES

2,596,368

2,802,168

2,574,305 2,560,351

2,812,355

23,817 30,981 28,481 28,735
7,728 7,845 7,845 7,845
1,039 1,039 1,039 1,037
7816 10,351 13,765 14,618
2,940 5,803 23,581 16,894

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Total non-current liabilities

33,400 33,283 22121 22177
7.412 7.412 8,105 8118
14,752 13,409 13,409 14,087

TOTAL LIABILITIES 98,904 111,123 118,346 113,511

NET COMMUNITY ASSETS 2,696,062 2,691,045 2,694,009 2,696,035
COMMUNITY EQUITY

1,003,168 1,008,120 1,008,120 1,008,120

1,575,901 1,576,278 1,581,144 1,576,419

116,992 106,647 104,743 111,496

TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY 2,696,062 2,691,045 2,694,009 2,696,035

*From 1 July 2019, Australian Accounting Standard 16 Leases applies.

The annual revised budgeted balances for 2019/2020 include the changes from the budget carryovers adopted by Council on 28 August 2019,
However, until the first budget review is adopted by Council, the balances will reconcile to the financial management system and may be different to

the published carryover budget.

Page 6 of 14
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

4. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - CONTINUED

Trade and Other Receivables (actual YTD) PPE Written Down Value (actual YTD)
W Rates - water 5000 SM
311,274 W Rates - unlevied B Stormwater
water drainage = Water
511,748 3427 5285
B Wastewater
5499
= Parks
" Rates- B Roads 382
sewerage 5617
W Rates - general 57,983
[net of
impairment] W Rates - other Other
$22,438 ™ Other 57,565 ® Plant and infrastructure
31,678 o infr ) » Waste 5249
® Infrastructure W Sundry debtor (net of 523  Buildings S14
G5T recoverable Charges (P&R) impairment) <78  Land WP
51,183 52,667 3223 51,109 5259 531

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

For the period ending 31 October 2019

Annual Annual
Original Revised Revised Actual
Budget Budget Budget Balance
$000 5000 5000 $000
Right of Use Asset
3,491 3,491 3,904 3,904
4372 4372 4,737 4,737
415 415 446 458
Closing balance 8,278 8,278 9,087 9,099

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE) MOVEMENT*
For the period ending 31 October 2019

LULTEL Annual
Qriginal Revised Revised Actual
Budget Budget Budget Balance
$000 $000 $000 $000
PPE movement
2,558,126 2,541,881 2,541,881 2,541,881
61,912 84,764 29,259 14,308
(63.114) (63,114) (21,038) (20,226)
(1,531) (1,531) (495) (708)
- 1 - 1 - 93
Closing balance 2,555,393 2,562,000 2,549,607 2,535,348

* This table includes movement relating to property, plant and eguipment only and is exclusive of intangible assets.
* Other adjustments include transfers between asset classes, revaluation adjustments, prior period adjustments and depreciation thereon

Page 7 of 14 S
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

5. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the period ending 31 October 2019

Annual Annual

Orniginal Revised Revised

Budget Budget Budget “n"‘n:'
$000 $000 $000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

272,371 272,371 92,786 |

_ 87,618
(237,536) (237 536)

(81,531) (78,072)

5,231 5,231

1616

925 925 297 | 355

16,097 16,007 8,215 2,434
(2.480) (2.480) (2.463) (2:416)

[266) (266) (89)

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(58,432) (78,599) (25.418)| (13,960)|
. - - (264)

1419 1419 473 419
24,492 25,436 8,180 10,240
2| ad 0| =

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities (32,521) (51,744)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

9,800 9.800| - -
(5,527) (5,527) (5,627) (5,531)
(1,039) {1.039)| ' (348)|
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held 25,055 5,832 (3,807) 1,485
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year / period 170,027 167,928 158,289 163,581
Cash Inflow (actual YTD) Cash Outflow (actual YTD)
Utility charges

45%

Materials and
services

48%

Fees

6%
Rates charges
32% Employee costs
Opqr::::lrlnts i,
Capital grants, contributions Payments for Borrawing coste
Other cash subsidies and Intarest recelvad 2% Repayment of praperty, plant 3%
receipts contributions 1% barrawings and equipment
3% 10% E% 14%
Total Cash Funding (Actual YTD) 102,252| |Total Cash Expenditure {Actual YTD) 100,767
Total Cash Funding (Annual Revised Budget) 331,279| |Total Cash Expenditure (Annual Revised Budget) 325,447
% of Budget Achieved YTD 31%| |% of Budget Achieved YTD 31%

* Reclassified amounts in original budget fo align with Annual Financial Statements and permitted by Australian Accounting Standard AASB 107
Statement of Cash Flows.

Page 8 of 14
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA

6. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

90,000 - Capital Works Expenditure - Goods and Services & Employee Costs
' 81,285
80,000 - - =
I cumulative Actual Expenditure 67,188 71,473 73,193
70,000 61,572
i Cumulative Revised Budget
60,000
S s0,000 A
=1
“r 40,000
30,000 -
18,957
20,000 4 12,765
10,000
Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 lan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20

Annual YTD
YTD YTD
Revised Revised Actual Variance
Budget Budget $000 $000
$000 $000

73,901 25,765 12,324 (13,441)|
7,384 2,338 2,248 (90)
7. PROGRAM AND PROJECT UPDATE

Favourable Meeting expectations Within tolerance (either budget Unfavourable (budget and Other
[budget under/schedule on track] [budgetand schedule an track] and schedule noten track] schedule nat on track) [Schedule to be tracked)
Progress Evaluation
70,000 100%
. 8% S0
£0.000 Programs and projects are what Council
0% uses to infroduce change to achieve
50000 - corporate outcomes. They allow new
§ infrastructure, products, systems,
- o5 2 procedures and services fo be delivered
8 d )
- w § Projects may be undertaken on a
2 : 5 standalone basis or as part of a program.
7w W% 7 Programs and projects may span multiple
H financial years.
20000 5
- Council is currently progressing more than
10000 " 100 programs and projects.
) = S
. ——— — |
Favaurable Meeting Expectation Within Telerance Unfavourable Other

Notable Projects

The status of two notable projects are as follows

Project description Progress
RPAC Audio System (Concert Hall) - renewal of the Redland Performing Arts Centre audio system, currently in final Meeting
stage of equipment installation Expectations
Relocation of Visitor Information Centre - the information centre is now open and fully accredited by both Visit Meeting
Queensland and Tourism and Events Queensland. Expectations

R_f: Redtand
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

8. INVESTMENT & BORROWINGS REPORT

For the period ending 31 Octob 01

INVESTMENT RETURNS - QUEENSLAND TREASURY CORPORATION (QTC)

5% 330
o [ 320 Nt Interest sM Closing Investrment Balances
r Received 175
4% 300 15000}
20 165
3% ] e QTG Ariniusl 155
250 & Effective Rate
29 24p & Ex-Fees 145
[ 220 135
1% [ 390 e P25z rve Bank
190
0% r 180 115
Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19

Total Investment at End of Month was $162.31M

All Council investments are currently held in the Capital Guaranteed Cash Fund, which is a fund operated by the Queensland Treasury Corporation
(QTC).

The movement in interest earned Is indicative of both the interest rate and the surplus cash balances held, the Iatter of which is affected by business
cash flow requirements on a monthly basis as well as the rating cycle.

Note: the Reserve Bank reduced the cash rate down to 0.75% in the October 2013 silting.

On a daily basis, cash surplus to requirements is deposited with QTC to earn higher interest as QTC is offering a higher rate than what is achieved
from Council's transactional bank accounts. The current annual effective interest rate paid by QTC s 1.52%. Term deposit rates are being monitored
to identify investment opportunities to ensure Council maximises its interest eamings.

- Counclladopted s revised Investment Policy (POL-3013) in June 2019 for the 2019/2020 financial year
BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS (QTC)

38.0

e Actual
Debt Balance $M

355

33.0

305

Debt Balance SM

Interest Expense S000

Interest expense $000

28.0

Oct-18  Mow-13 Dec-1&  Jan-1%  Peb-1% Marad  Aprel$ May-l§ Jund® Jul-19 Augely Sepls  Octdd

The existing loan accounts were converted to fixed rate loans on 1 April 2016 following a QTC restructure of loans and policies. In line with Council's
debt policy, debt repayment of $7.95M, being $5.53M principal and $2.42M interest has been made annually for 2019/2020 which will result in the
loans being repaid approximately one year earlier.

The debt balance shows a decrease as the Annual Debt Service Payment (ADSP) was made during July 2019. Interest will accrue menthly on a daily
balance until next ADSP in July 2020 which is reflected in the increasing debt balance.

Total Borrowings at End of Month were $30.02M
General pool allocated to capital works is 99.67% and 0.33% is attributable to Red\Waste.

Page 10 of 14
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

10. REDLAND WATER STATEMENTS

REDLAND WATER SUMMARY OPERATING STATEMENT
For the period ending 31 October 2019
Annual Annual YTD YTD YTD

QCriginal Revised Revised .
Budget Budget Budget “sm'“:' Vaa;"ﬂce
$000 $000 $000
otal revenue 116,436 116,436 38,444 38,373 (71)
otal expenses _ 66,474, 66,473 21,752 20,790 (962)
Earnings before interest, tax and depreciation (EBITD) 49,963 49,963 16,692 17,583 891
External interes expense 136 136 45 45
Internal interest expense 14,867 14,867 4,956 4,956 -
Depreciation 23,823 23,823 7,941 8,025 84

Operating surplus | (defici IR T ] I Y
REDLAND WATER CAPITAL FUNDING STATEMENT
For the period ending 31 October 2019

Annual

Annual YTD

Qriginal Revised Revised )
Buggel Budget Budget m' Vaa;"ﬂce
$000 $000 $000

Capital contributions, donations, grants and subsidies 2,537 2,537 846 1,710 864
Net transfer (to) / from constrained capital reserves. : (1,982) 295 (586) (1,668) (1,082)
Non-cash contributions 3,399 3,399 1,133 - (1,133)
Funding from utility revenue 4172 7,576 1,648 450 (1,198)
13807 30410 492]  (2549)]
Contributed assets _ 3,399 3,399 1,133 - | (1,133)
Capitalised expenditure 4179 9,859 1,725 372 (1,353)
Loan redemption ' 549 549 183 120 (63)
Total application of capital funds

11. REDWASTE STATEMENTS
REDWASTE OPERATING STATEMENT

For the period ending 31 October 2019

Annual Annual YTD
Sug  Bupa  buget  Am verame
$000 5000 $000

Total revenue 33,701 33,701 14,160 14,109 (51)
Tolal expenses | 26,197 26,197 8,821 8,475 (346)
Earnings before interest, tax and depreciation (EBITD) | 7,504 | 7,504 5,339 5,634 295
External interest expense | 31 31 10 9 (1)
Depreciation 278 278 93 99 6|
Operating surplus / (deficit) 7,195 7,195 5,236

REDWASTE CAPITAL FUNDING STATEMENT
For the period ending 31 October 2019

Annual Annual YTD

Qriginal Revised Revised

Budget Budget Budget

$000 $000 $000

Non-cash contributions ' } ; : . )
Funding from utility revenue 746 746 415 254 (161)

Total sources of capital funding

Capitalised expenditure | 608 | 608 304 144 | (160)
Loan redemption 138 138 111 110 (1)

Total application of capital funds

Actual Variance
$000 $000

¥ % Redland
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

12. APPENDIX: ADDITIONAL AND NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Workforce Reporting

Full Time Equivalent Employees 2019/2020
2
§ 1000 945 944 935 %49
2 soo 772 776 767 775
£
& 600
o
E 200
= 173 168 168 173
z 200
-
4 [i]
2 Jul Aug Sep Oct Nowv Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
mmmm Administration & Indoor staff Outdoor staff e T2l

October 2019: Headcount Employee Type

Department Level Casual Full Time Part Time Total

Office of CEO 5 35 7 A7
Organisational Senices 5 211 17 233
Community and Customer Services 27 270 a3 390
Infrastructure and Operations 14 3415 18 377
Total &1 861 125 1,047

Note: Full Time Equivalent Employees includes all full ime employees at a value of 1 and all other employees, at a value less than 1. The table above
demonstrates the headcount by department. Following Ourspace, the table includes contract of service and temporary personnel |t includes casual staff in
their non-substantive roles as af the end of the period where relevant.

Overdue Rates Debtors

Days % %
Erenrs Oct-19 s Oct-18 armre || YeETes % Varance Comment
0-30 51,506 0.0% 475 0.0% $1,031 0.0% |Revenue Collection team continues to monitor and work
31-60 §72.290 0.0% $1.054 0.0% $1.236 0.0% [With ratepayers who are unable to promplly meet their
61 - 90| $2,779,503 2.0%| 52,697,931 20%|  $81572 ATy [P e eI M E L
91 - 180| $1,491,920 1.0%| $1,431,646 1.0% $60,274 0.0%
=180| $3,183,740 2.2%)| $3,130,648 2.3% $53,092 -0.1%
Total $7,458,959 5.2% $7,261,754 5.3%| $197,205 -0.1%|
Page 13 of 14 1.3 Redland
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA

20 NOVEMBER 2019

13. GLOSSARY
Key Terms

Written Down Value:

Work In Progress:

Definition of Ratios

Operating Surplus Ratio”™:

Net Operating Surplus

Asset Sustainability Ratio*:

Capital Expenditure on Replacement of

Total Operating Revenue

ture Assets (R

Net Financial Liabilities*:

Depreciation Expenditure on Infrastructure Assets

Total Liabilities - Current Assets

Level of Dependence on General Rate Revenue:

Total Operating Revenue

General Rates - Pensioner Remissions

Current Ratio:

Total Operating Revenue - Gain on Sale of Developed Land

Current Assets

Debt Servicing Ratio:

Current Liabilities

It -Fr ** 4+ Loan Red .‘n

Cash Balance - $M:

Cash Capacity in Months:

Total Operating Revenue - Gain on Sale of Developed Land

Cash Held at Period End

Cash Held at Period End

Longer Term Financial Stability - Debt to Asset Ratio:

|]-Cash Operating Costs + Interest Expense] / Period in Year]

Current and Non-current Debt™

Operating Performance:

Total Assets

Net Cash from Operations + Interest Revenue and Expense

Interest Coverage Ratio:

Cash Operating R

+ Int R

Net Interest Expense on Debt Service™*

he longer term and therefo

** Debt includ

Total Operating Revenue

*** Interest expense includes interest on |
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

13.2 NATIONAL COMPETITION POLICY REQUIREMENTS FOR SIGNIFICANT AND OTHER
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 2019-2020

Objective Reference:
Authorising Officer: Deborah Corbett-Hall, Chief Financial Officer
Responsible Officer: Deborah Corbett-Hall, Chief Financial Officer

Report Author: Melanie Knight, Business Support Officer
Attachments: Nil
PURPOSE

To identify business activities for 2019-2020, following the certification of Council’s 2018-2019
Annual Financial Statements by the Queensland Audit Office (QAQ). The report also identifies
which business activities Council will apply the Code of Competitive Conduct to in 2019-2020.

BACKGROUND

Under Schedule 4, of the Local Government Act 2009, a business activity of a local government
means trading in goods and services by the local government.

Section 43(4) of the Local Government Act 2009 states that a significant business activity is a
business activity of a local government that:

a) is conducted in competition, or potential competition, with the private sector; and
b) meets the threshold requirement prescribed under a regulation.

Section 19(2) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 prescribes threshold expenditure of at
least the following for the previous financial year for a significant business activity for the current
financial year:

a) If a business activity is the provision of combined water and sewerage services, the threshold is
10,000 or more premises being connected to a water service as at 30 June of the financial year
ending immediately before the current financial year.

b) For another business activity, $9.7M.

Section 47(7) of the Local Government Act 2009 states a local government must decide each
financial year, by resolution, whether or not to apply the Code of Competitive Conduct to a
business activity prescribed under a regulation.

Section 39 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 says that a business activity is prescribed for
a financial year for section 47(7) of the Act if the amount of current expenditure for the business
activity for the previous financial year is $340,000 or more.

The amount of current expenditure is the total of the following amounts spent in conducting the
activity for the year:

a) operational costs;

b) administrative and overhead costs;
c) cost of resources; and

d) depreciation.

Item 13.2 Page 25



GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

ISSUES

The Business Partnering Unit in Financial Services has reviewed Council’s business activities
following the QAO certification of Council’s 2018-2019 Annual Financial Statements. It is
proposed that Redland Water and RedWaste be the only activities subject to the Code of
Competitive Conduct in the 2019-2020 financial year. These are also the only activities
considered to give rise to any material competition with the private sector.

In relation to other activities conducted by Council, which do meet the relevant financial
thresholds but which have nonetheless been reviewed in preparing this report, the following is
noted:

e Council conducts no “roads activities” as defined in section 47(5) of the Local Government
Act 2009;

e Fleet activity does not provide any services external to Council;

e Council’s building certification functions are no longer a business activity, as Council now
only carries out its regulatory responsibilities under the Building Act 1975;

e Marine services provides very little commercial revenue and does not compete with any
commercial businesses in Redlands Coast;

e Redlands Performing Arts Centre typically operates at a loss which is contrary to standard
commercial principles; and

e Indigiscapes café is typically not profit making with the café being unique in its focus on
natural product, promoting sustainable living and the use of indigenous sources (bush

tucker).
Business Activity Classification Comments
Redland Water Significant business activity that is commercialised No change from 2019-2020
RedWaste Significant business activity that is commercialised No change from 2019-2020

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS
Legislative Requirements

The annual review of Council’s business activities is for Redland City Council as a Local
Government. Council’s wholly owned subsidiary Redland Investment Corporation Pty Ltd reviews
its business model separately to Council.

Council has in place a number of policies to provide a framework to ensure long-term financial
and infrastructure sustainability for the community. These policies include Application of
Dividends and Tax Equivalent Payments (POL-3117), Constrained Cash Reserves (POL-3010),
Capital Works Prioritisation (POL-3131), Revenue (POL-1837), Debt (POL-1838), Investment (POL-
3013), Enterprise Asset and Service Management (POL-3118) and Corporate Procurement (POL-
3034)

Section 47(7) of the Local Government Act 2009 states a local government must decide each
financial year, by resolution, whether or not to apply the Code of Competitive Conduct to a
business activity prescribed under a regulation. If Council resolves not to apply the Code of
Competitive Conduct to a business activity, section 47(8) of the Local Government Act 2009
requires that the resolution must state the reasons for not doing so.
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Risk Management

Risks and opportunities for business activities are discussed as part of both the annual review of
the Long-Term Financial Strategy and also the annual budget workshops.

Financial
There are no financial implications impacting Council as a result of this report.
People

Nil impact expected as the purpose of this document is to identify Council’s business activities for
the 2019-2020 financial year and determine whether to apply the Code of Competitive Conduct to
these business activities in accordance with the legislative requirements.

Environmental

Nil impact expected as the purpose of this document is to identify Council’s business activities for
the 2019-2020 financial year and determine whether to apply the Code of Competitive Conduct to
these business activities in accordance with the legislative requirements.

Social

Nil impact expected as the purpose of this document is to identify Council’s business activities for
the 2019-2020 financial year and determine whether to apply the Code of Competitive Conduct to
these business activities in accordance with the legislative requirements.

Alignment with Council's Policy and Plans
This report has a relationship with the following items of Council’s 2018-2023 Corporate Plan:

8. Inclusive and ethical governance: Deep engagement, quality leadership at all levels,
transparent and accountable democratic processes and a spirit of partnership between the
community and Council will enrich residents’ participation in local decision-making to
achieve the community’s Redlands 2030 vision and goals.

8.2 Council produces and delivers against sustainable financial forecasts as a result of best
practice Capital and Asset Management Plans that guide project planning and service
delivery across the city.

CONSULTATION
Consulted Consultation Date Comments/Actions
Business Partnering Unit Officers 28/10/2019 No changes or new conflicts to the National
Competition Policy advised by BPU officers.
Business Partnering Service Manager 29/10/2019 Reviewed in accordance with the Local
Government Act 2009 and the Local
Government Regulation 2012.
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OPTIONS
Option One
That Council resolves as follows:

1. That Redland Water and RedWaste are business activities for the 2019-2020 financial year

based on the nature of their functions and the 2018-2019 Annual Financial Statements of
Council.

2. That pursuant to section 47(7) of the Local Government Act 2009, the code of
competitive conduct be applied to Redland Water and RedWaste.

3. There are no other business activities of Council that are expected to be business activities as
defined in section 43(4) of the Local Government Act 2009, and business activities prescribed
for the purposes of section 47(7) of the Local Government Act 2009.

Option Two

That Council resolves to request further information.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

That Council resolves as follows:

1. That Redland Water and RedWaste are business activities for the 2019-2020 financial

year based on the nature of their functions and the 2018-2019 Annual Financial
Statements of Council.

2. That pursuant to section 47(7) of the Local Government Act 2009, the code of
competitive conduct be applied to Redland Water and RedWaste.

3. There are no other business activities of Council that are expected to be business
activities as defined in section 43(4) of the Local Government Act 2009, and business
activities prescribed for the purposes of section 47(7) of the Local Government Act 2009.
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13.3 STRATEGIC CONTRACTING PROCEDURES
Objective Reference:
Authorising Officer: Andrew Ross, General Counsel

Responsible Officer: Andrew Ross, General Counsel

Report Author: Trish Thomson, Procurement Transform Manager
Attachments: Nil
PURPOSE

To outline the costs and benefits of adopting the ‘Strategic Contracting Procedures’ (SCP) and have
Council publish a notice about adopting those procedures.

BACKGROUND

The spending of Council funds for goods, services and work is regulated by the Local Government
Act 2009 (LGA) and Local Government Regulation 2012 (LGR) under procedures described as the
‘Default Contracting Procedures’ (DCP) and the ‘Strategic Contracting Procedures’ (SCP).

The DCP is the framework by which Council currently conducts procurement and contracting. This
framework provides a prescribed method for conducting procurement and contracting for every
Council in Queensland, regardless of size, complexity, strategy or consideration of the risk profile
of the individual Council. The DCP is a default framework aligned principally to individual
contracting processes and transactions. Council has used the DCP to their maximum capability,
however, the prescriptive nature is no longer the most advantageous mechanism for a Council
intent on a more dynamic and strategic approach to contracting.

This report recommends a transition from using the current DCP to using the SCP to strengthen
internal efficiencies, external savings and long term sustainability to deliver the Corporate Plan’s
(2018-2023) quadruple bottom line.

The transition is proposed to start from approximately 1 July 2020 and is aligned to Council’s
integrated planning framework and budget prioritisation. The transition is part of the Procurement
Transformation Program identified and reported quarterly in Council’s 2019/20 Operational Plan.

The key elements of the SCP were reviewed in 2017 by the Queensland Government Inquiry into
Local Government Procurement. The Inquiry acknowledged the SCP as a flexible framework for
tendering and contracting for the supply of goods and services and also for the disposal of assets,
whilst managing risks and probity. The SCP governance framework will be supported by an
amended version of the current Procurement Policy, Contract Manual, Contract Plan and where
applicable significant contract plans. The transition is overseen by a Procurement Steering
Committee, reported quarterly as part of the Operational Plan whilst noting procurement
activities are audited by the Audit Committee.

The governance framework will be updated as part of the transition involving three key phases:

Phase 1: Public Notice regarding the proposed SCP resolution to occur at the Council General
Meeting on 29 January 2020.

Phase 2: Resolution to implement the SCP as part of the 2020/21 Budget from 1 July 2020.
Phase 3: Review the SCP as part of the ongoing 2020/21 Operational Plan.
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ISSUES

Benchmarking:

There are several South East Queensland (SEQ) Councils that have adopted the SCP procedures
including Brisbane City Council, Gold Coast City Council and Sunshine Coast Regional Council; and
other Council’s actively pursuing a strategic model as discussed at the regular South East
Queensland Procurement Network meetings. A strategic model will allow Council to best leverage
the flexibility of its smaller scale but immediate proximity to these larger SEQ markets.

Existing Contract Arrangements and Suppliers:

The transition from the current DCP to SCP will not change the existing contract terms or
arrangements or procurement processes established or started prior to 1 July 2020. The SCP is in
broad terms a more flexible process to procure those arrangements into the future, by using the
standard processes, like quotes and tenders for individual service contracts, but specifically
aligning them to a more strategic approach for multiyear contracting to leverage better prices and
market certainty, whilst also using a broader category approach, so that individual contracts can
be bundled together into geographical precincts or broad categories of similar goods and services.

Procurement Policy and Activities:

The transition from the current DCP to the SCP will modernise Council’s existing procurement
policy position as supported by Procurement Transformation Program initiatives and procurement
dashboard which provides greater transparency of the cost and delivery of goods and services;
and forward procurement planning of contracting activities into the future. The spend data
together with the forward procurement plans will assist to inform not only the price of services,
but the terms they can be provided to strengthen opportunities for local industry and suppliers
and direct social, sustainable, community and market led innovative outcomes.

Procurement Systems and Governance:

The transition is supported by a number of key systems that centralise key data sets that provide
greater transparency and forensic probity on procurement activities including sourcing and buying,
contract monitoring, supplier licensing and spend data. The spend data is consolidated into a
Procurement Dashboard as per the samples in the following pages. The process is aligned to the
broader integrated planning framework and budget prioritisation, coordinated through Council’s
Financial services, Portfolio Management Office and Project Delivery Group in consultation with
Council’s Procurement and Contract’s team.

Procurement Dashboard:

The Procurement Dashboard identifies council spend for at least four years across 23 recognised
procurement activities established by the National Procurement Network, that can be further
broken down into multiple spend subcategories and supplier details to better identify overall costs
and quadruple bottom outcomes.
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This dashboard is generally indicative of the 4 year spend trends and forecasted spend on goods,
services and work, including a breakdown of trends across financial quarters and major categories
for roads, construction, waste management, parks and gardens and plant and equipment.
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This dashboard is generally indicative of the 4 year spend trends over the 23 spend categories of
similar goods, services and work established by the National Procurement Network to assist in
consolidating contracting arrangements.
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This dashboard is generally indicative of the local and geographical location of suppliers
contracted to supply the goods, services and work.

A new roadmap: Our Procurement Transformation Progra

The 3-year roadmap involves shifting focus and activities from individual transactional purchasing to a
strategic procurement multi-year contracting model based on a broader category management approach to
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This display shows at a high level the Procurement Transformation Program timeline.
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Procurement SCP Benefits and Efficiencies:

Council currently spends approximately $150 million per year in procuring contracts for goods and
services, from maintaining roads, collecting rubbish and treating water and waste to providing
library’s, cultural centres, community parks, conservation areas and sporting centres.

A strategic approach to procurement across such a significant spend, allows contracts to be
formed through a framework developed to deliver value for the community and will provide
significant opportunities to obtain better contracting outcomes. The costs of taking the strategic
approach would be no more, and likely less than the costs associated with maintaining the existing
framework under the Default Contracting Procedures. The resulting benefits are:

e Reducing contracting expenditure

e Reducing internal costs

e Reduction in newspaper advertising costs

e Improved delivery timeframes, without sacrificing the benefits of competition
e Greater community engagement on contracting costs

The Procurement and Contracts Team has developed and will continue to develop strategies that
will realise value to Council. Currently, identified strategies include:

e Aggregation of spend in specific circumstances
e Improved local engagement
e Direct negotiations / Partnering Arrangements in certain controlled circumstances

eImproved specification development and contract management to ensure full potential is
realised in the contracts formed and social and sustainable outcomes monitored

e Strategic sourcing

e Better leverage for Whole-of-Government Supplier Arrangements

e Benefits realisation through monitoring contract planning and related savings and efficiencies as
key performance outcomes

Adoption of the SCP will provide a significant opportunity for Council to take a strategic approach

to its contracting that ultimately provides better engagement and value to the community.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

Legislative Requirements

The Local Government Act 2009 (LGA) and the Local Government Regulation 2012 (LGR) outlines
frameworks through which Councils may conduct procurement of goods and services, and disposal
of non-current assets as per the current Default Contracting Procedures (DCP) and proposed
Strategic Contracting Procedures SCP. Council can choose to adopt the DCP or SCP provided its
first provided public notification of its proposed resolution to adopt an SCP.

Regardless of the DCP or SCP framework adopted by Council, they must conduct the activities
consistent with the Local Government principles and contracting principles under section 4 of and
section 104 of the Local Government Act 2009 in a manner consistent with:
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e transparent and effective processes, and decision-making in the public interest;

e sustainable development and management of assets and infrastructure, and delivery of
effective services;

e democratic representation, social inclusion and meaningful community engagement;
e good governance of, and by, local government;

e ethical and legal behaviour and fair dealing;

e value for money;

e open and effective competition;

e the development of competitive local business and industry;
e environmental protection

To adopt this SCP framework, Council must:

Phase 1: at 20 November 2019 General Meeting

e Continue to comply with any requirements of the LGA

e Consider the costs and benefits of complying with the SCP

e Give public notice, by newspaper advertisement, of the proposed resolution to adopt the SCP
and details of the meeting where the matter will be considered

Phase 2: at 29 January 2020 General Meeting

Decide by resolution to apply the SCP and identify when it will be applied
Make and adopt a Contracting Plan

Make and adopt Significant Contracting Plans

Make and adopt a Contract Manual

The majority of these requirements are prepared and or will be prepared prior to 1 July 2020;
noting the first phase, if agreed, is to provide public notice of the SCP.

Risk Management

The Strategic Contracting Procedures is an approach that identifies potential opportunities, while
managing adverse risks as per section 217(2) of the LGR.

Financial
The delivery of the SCP is consistent with the existing Budget.
People

Internal resourcing of the SCP is part of the Procurement Transformation Program reported
through Council’s Portfolio Management office and related steering committee and part of the
Operational Plan 2019/20 quarterly reports.

Environmental
There are no direct environmental issues from adopting the SCP.
Social

There are no direct social issues from adopting the SCP, noting Council has released a supplier
newsletter in October 2019 to better engage council suppliers on its procurement transformation
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program, and related activities. If the recommendation is accepted a public notice about the SCP
will be issued together with notice via email in the supplier newsletter.

Alignment with Council's Policy and Plans

This report has a relationship with Council’s 2018-2023 Corporate Plan Vision Outcome 8.
‘Inclusive and ethical governance’.

This report has a relationship with Council’s 2019-2020 Operational Plan clause 8.3.6 to ‘Deliver
the Procurement Transformation Program’.

CONSULTATION
Consulted Consultation Date Comments/Actions
Procurement Transformation Steering Monthly
Committee
Audit Committee 26 Sept 2019
OPTIONS
Option One

That Council resolves as follows:
1. To note the report titled “Strategic Contracting Procedures”.

2. To publish a public notice, by newspaper advert, of the proposed resolution to adopt the SCP
and details of the meeting on 29 January 2020 where the matter will be considered.

Option Two

The Council resolves not to publish a notice about the Strategic Contracting Procedures.
OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

That Council resolve as follows:

1. To note the report titled “Strategic Contracting Procedures”.

2. To publish a public notice, by newspaper advert, of the proposed resolution to adopt the SCP
and details of the meeting on 29 January 2020 where the matter will be considered.
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13.4 ADOPTION OF AMENDED ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019
Objective Reference:
Authorising Officer:  John Oberhardt, General Manager Organisational Services

Responsible Officer: Tony Beynon, Group Manager Corporate Governance

Report Author: Kristene Viller, Policy and Local Laws Coordinator
Attachments: 1. Annual Report 2018-2019 1
PURPOSE

The purpose of this report is to adopt Redland City Council’s Annual Report as amended in
accordance with Section 182 of the Local Government Regulation 2012.

BACKGROUND

Each year, Council adopts an annual report as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012.
The annual report must contain information on Council’s financial position, an assessment of its
performance in implementing its corporate and operational plans as well as a number of other
issues of public interest which are specified in the legislation. One of these areas of public interest
is Mayor and Councillor Conduct which are reported in accordance with section 186(1) of the Local
Government Regulation 2012.

The Annual Report 2018-2019 was adopted by Council at the General Meeting held 6 November
2019 and published on Council’s website as required under section 182 of the Local Government
Regulation 2012.

ISSUES

An administrative error has been identified which resulted in incorrect figures being supplied for
Mayor and Councillor Conduct in the report adopted at the meeting on 6 November 2019. These
changes can be found on Pages 132 -133.

In addition to its annual reporting requirements Council is required under section 150DX of the
Local Government Act 2009 to publish and maintain an up-to-date register relating to councillor
conduct, complaints, decisions and orders from the tribunal or independent assessor on its
website. Councils register has been kept up-to-date and reflected the correct information in
regards to Councillor Conduct.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

Legislative Requirements

Under section 182 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, Redland City Council is required to
adopt its annual report within one month after the day the Auditor-General gives the audit report
regarding Council’s financial statements for the financial year to the local government.

Risk Management

The Annual Report 2018-2019 includes details of Council’s risk management arrangements. There
are no direct risk management issues arising from this amended report.
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Financial

Costs relating to the preparation of the amended annual report have been met from Council’s
existing budgets.

People

The Annual Report 2018-2019 includes details of Council’s organisational structure as well as
information about our employees and Council’s People Strategy. There are no direct implications
to Council employees resulting from this amended report.

Environmental

The Annual Report 2018-2019 includes performance indicators about environmental issues,
particularly relating to the Healthy Natural Environment and Green Living Outcomes within
Council’s Corporate Plan. The amended report will be published online, so there will be no
environmental impact.

Social

A number of social issues are captured within the Annual Report, including performance indicators
relating to the Strong and Connected Communities outcome in the Corporate Plan.

Publication of the Annual Report is a statutory requirement, which provides the community with a
range of information about Council’s activities throughout the 2018-2019 financial year. There are
no direct social implications resulting from the adoption of the amended Annual Report 2018-
2019.

Alignment with Council's Policy and Plans

The Annual Report aligns with Outcome 8 in the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 — Inclusive and Ethical
Governance. Deep engagement, quality leadership at all levels, transparent and accountable
democratic processes and a spirit of partnership between the community and Council will enrich
residents’ participation in local decision-making to achieve the community’s Redlands 2030 vision
and goals.

CONSULTATION
Consulted Consultation Date Comments/Actions
Group Manager Corporate Governance 12-13 November 2019 Provision of information in relation to the
amendment required.
OPTIONS
Option One

That Council resolves as follows:
1. To adopt the amended Redland City Council Annual Report 2018-2019.

2. To replace the current Redland City Council Annual Report 2018-2019 on Council’'s website
with the amended report.

3. To insert the Healthy Waterways report card rating on page 74 in the adopted Annual Report
2018-2019 when it is released publically in November 2019.
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Option Two
That Council resolves as follows:

1. To adopt and publish the amended Redland City Council Annual Report 2018-2019 with
additional amendments agreed at the General Meeting.

2. To insert the Healthy Waterways report card rating on page 74 in the adopted Annual Report
2018-2019 when it is released publically in November 2019.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION
That Council resolves as follows:
1. To adopt the amended Redland City Council Annual Report 2018-2019.

2. To replace the current Redland City Council Annual Report 2018-2019 on Council’s website
with the amended report.

3. Toinsert the Healthy Waterways report card rating on page 74 in the adopted Annual Report
2018-2019 when it is released publically in November 2019.
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CONTACTS

Council website
redland.qld.gov.au

Telephone

3829 8999

Monday-Friday, 8am-5pm

— excluding public holidays
Qutside business hours you will
be connected to our emergency
messaging service

Email
rec@redland.gld.gov.au

Social media
facebook.com/RedlandCouncil
twitter.com/RedlandCouncil
instagram.com/redlandcity

Customer Service Centres
Cleveland

Corner Middle and Bloomfield Streets,
Cleveland QLD 4163

Monday-Friday, 8.30am=4.30pm

- excluding public holidays

Capalaba

Noeleen Street (adjacent to Capalaba bus
station and library), Capalaba QLD 4157
Monday-Friday, 8.30am-4.30pm

— excluding public holidays

Victoria Point

7-15 Bunker Rd (inside the library
building at Victoria Point Lakeside,
entrance via High Street),

Victoria Point QLD 4165
Monday-Friday, 9am-5pm

- excluding public holidays

Assisted services

Interpreter service

Call the National Translating and
Interpreting Service (TIS) on 131 450
to speak to a Council officer. Free
service for Council-related business

National Relay Service
Teletypewriter

Phone 133 677 then enter the Redland
City Council number 3829 8999

Speak and Listen
(speech-to-speech relay) users
Phone 1300 555 727 then ask for
Redland City Council on 3829 8999

Internet Relay users

Log on to Internet Relay and then
enter the Redland City Council
number 3829 8999

While care has been taken to ensure all content is complete and accurate, Redland City Council cannat guarantee this report is without errar,
) 2019 Redland City Council. None of the material in this publication may be rapraduced without the permission of the Chief Executive Officer, Redland City Council.

Brogwn fake (Bummieta), Nokth Stradbroke Island (Minjerribah)
Front tover: Deadmans Beach, Nofth Stradbroke Island (Minjerribah)
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HOW TO READ THIS REPORT

In accordance with the Local Government Act 2009, Council must publish an annual report, which provides an update to our
community about Council's finances, performance and how we have delivered against our plans.

The Annuol Report 2018-2019 reports against our Corporate Plan 2018-2023. This report also includes a summary of our
performance against Council’s Operational Plan 2018-2019. The annual report gives our ratepayers and key stakeholders insight
into how we invest revenue to provide essential services and infrastructure and promote social, environmental and economic
advancements across Redlands Coast.

It is also a chance to share the opportunities and challenges faced during the financial year, and some of the noteworthy

achievements during 2018-2019, in our efforts to serve those living and working in, or visiting, Redlands Coast.

The report is divided into sections:

« Anintroduction to Redlands Coast and our organisation - Redlands Coast statistics; our vision, mission and values; messages
from the Mayor and CEOQ; performance overview; Community Financial Report and 2018-2019 challenges (pages 6-25)

+ Our Council - elected representatives, our leadership, our people, our processes and community engagement (pages 26-57)

- Progress and Performance — Vision Qutcome scorecards and highlights (pages 58-107)

« Statements of Operations — Redland Investment Corporation (RIC), RedWaste and Redland Water (pages 108-125)

« Governance and Disclosures — (pages 126-139)

+ Annual Financial Statements - (pages 140-181)

Legislation also requires particular information be included in a local government’s annual report. An index of this statutory

information — and where to find it in this report — is on pages 182-185.

Redland City is our Local Government area. Throughout this report Redlands Coast is also used to describe this city. It is the name
used in the destination marketing of our area.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TRADITIONAL OWNERS AND COUNTRY

Redland City Council is committed to working with Traditi Quandamooka Country Statement of Recognition
Owners, supporting their role as custo ko People are a society
lands and helping ensure the future prosperity and cultural |

nowledgement and
enrichment of the community. .

Council recognises that the Quandamooka People are the
Traditional Owners of much of Redlands Co Council also
extends its acknowledgement of Traditional Owners to the
Danggan Balun (Five Rivers) People who are currently in the

of Native Title determination for an area that crosses
into southern Redlands Coast.

0
Goenpul clans. Nunukul and Goenpul belong to the Jandai
langu ‘oup. The Ngugi £

Native Title on Redlands Coast

The Quandamooka People’s 2011 Native Title consent
determinations delivered on 4 July 2011, cover North
Stradbroke, Peel, Goat, Bird, Stingaree and Crab islands
as well as the surrounding waters of Moreton Bay.

On 4 July 2011, Redland City Council and the Quandamooka
People signed an Indigenous Land Use Agreement (ILUA),
settir t broad principles and mechanisms for how the
parties w ilities for ame i nership with the
mutual benefits, ple’ , who are the knowledge holders,
The Quandamooka Coast Native Title Claim, currently before € C oundation ommunity, and with young
the Federa
[ tinues
rs most of mainland Redl L d to live and prosper on Quandamooka Country.’

, as well as Lamb, Macleay, Karragarra,
sim, Sandy, Garden (Tindappah), Green The above statement comes from the Quandamooka Country

warpa), h'mé (Erobin), St Helena (Noongoon) and Mud Statement of Recognition, two sculptural panels unveiled at
(Bungumba) islands. the front of Council's Cleveland Customer Service Centre during
National Reconciliation Week 2015. It was designed by local
artist Sandra Delaney, a Quandamooka woman from North
Stradbroke Island (Minjerribah).

The Danggan Balun (Five Rivers) People (Q

currently before the Federal Court, was e

of Native Title clai n June 2017. It

determination crosses several lo

It covers an area of approximately 33 k

Redlands Coast, bordering the thern boundaries of the
Quandamooka Coast claim. to achieve in the spirit onciliation and mutual r
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OUR VISION, MISSION AND VALUES

Forward thinking, engaged 5 CORE VALUES

and focused on enriching
community lifestyles Customer Service

We deliver on our commitments and
provide excellent customer service.

One Team

We cooperate and collaborate within
and across teams.

We support our people to perform at

MISSION ¢

Accountability

Make 3 diﬁ:erence . We take ownership of our responsibilities.
»
make ]t count We are professional and ethical in all we do.

Growth

We challenge ourselves to deliver better
value for money.

We will be better tomorrow than we are
today.

Communication
We are open, honest and constructive

VALUES : ;D) Yegreoren tons

5 Core Values
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HIERARCHY OF COUNCIL PLANS

Community Plan

The Redlands 2030 Community Plan, adopted by Council in 2010,
was developed with extensive input from our community. The
Redlands 2030 Community Plon sets out a vision for 2030.

REDLANDS
20130
COMMUNITY
PLAN

Corporate Plan

The Corporate Plan 2018-2023 includes Council's strategic priorities and sets
out how it will deliver the Redlands 2030 Community Plan through delivery of
the 2023 outcomes, which are structured around the eight outcomes in the
Community Plan.

Operational Plan

Each year, Council develops and adopts an Operational Plan, which sets out
what we plan to do during the financial year to deliver the Corporate Plan.
Operational planning is closely linked to budget development.

The significant activities in the Operational Plan contribute to the
implementation of the Corporate Plan.

A summary of Council's performance against the Operational Plan 2018-2
is outlined in Vision Outcome scorecards on pages 58-1C

Russell Island (Canaipa)
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MESSAGE FROM OUR MAYOR

Two initiatives that took shape during the last financial year have the potential to
deliver great benefits for Redlands Coast and our residents.

Redlands Coast features strongly in a potential South
East Queensland (SEQ) bid to host the 2032 Olympic and
Paralympic Games and we will be front and centre of a
new tourism strategy aimed at putting Moreton Bay on
the world tourism map.

[ was able during a meeting with Tourism Minister Kate
Jones to convince her of the value of a Moreton Bay
tourism strategy, and she has taken up the challenge with
gusto. The wheels are already turning with meetings of
mayors and Councils organised and [ predict big things
in the future.

The Narth Stradbroke Island Econamic Transition Strategy
(NSI ETS) is closely linked to the larger strategy and [
have been meeting regularly with Minister Jones, who
has ministerial responsibility for delivery of the NSTETS.

Far too long the magnificent Moreton Bay and all it has to
offer has been a poor second cousin to the Great Barrier
Reef and other popular tourist destinations. In many
ways it has been taken for granted by too many peaple.

We want that to change. Redlands Coast has so much

to offer in eco and Indigenous tourism experiences as
part of the new strategy and [ am excited about the
opportunities and jobs that marketing of our naturally
wonderful assets, and those of ather Councils situated on
the bay, will bring.

This is not about turning Moreton Bay into a Gold Coast-
type destination, but rather delivering a world-class
eco-tourism and Indigenous tourism experience for
higher-yield visitors.

The success of the strategy will hinge on collaboration
between Councils, the government, the Quandamooka
Yoolooburrabee Abariginal Corparation (QYAC), tourism
operators such as Sealink and the industry. [ know that
cooperation will come.

Councils across the region are collaborating in planning
for our future and seeking new opportunities for SEQ,
and this approach is producing results.

There is renewed hope and a new-found confidence
that we are finally making progress after years of
playing catch-up in terms of planning and infrastructure
pravision. While there has for years been little focus on
our city, [ am confident we are now on the right track.

The prospect of SEQ being selected to host the

2032 Olympic and Paralympic Games provides an
unprecedented opportunity far long overdue investment
ininfrastructure across the region.

While Redland and other Councils have for years been
collectively lobbying Federal and State Governments to
fund infrastructure, a successful Games bid is seen as
the best way to accelerate the delivery of infrastructure,
which is so badly needed to keep pace with growth
across Redlands Coast and the region.

A poll commissioned by the Council of Mayors (SEQ)
showed strong support for the concept of a SEQ fast rail
network, and widespread agreement that the current
delivery of transport infrastructure was not keeping up
with the growth of the region. They believed a regional
fast rail network would significantly reduce travel times for
commuters and tourists and 72% said they would support
a SEQ Games if it delivered major transport upgrades.

Being able to move between our cities in under

45 minutes, even in peak times, would make SEQ a
mare liveable region and Redlands Coast even better
for residents and a more attractive destination

for tourists. The economic uplift generated by the
introduction of a SEQ fast rail network would be
considerable.

The network would be wonderful news for Redlands
Coast. There is a desperale need to duplicate Lhe
Cleveland rail line, dubbed the ‘misery line' by
commuters because of the time it takes to get from here
inta Brisbane. [nvestment is needed to upgrade major
access roads and to improve public transport options.

The Council of Mayors (SEQ) poll results came off the back
of the SEQ People Mass Movement Study, released by the
Council of Mayors earlier this year, which showed that all
major road corridors in SEQ would be over capacity by
2041 - even if every currently planned and funded project
was delivered.

The past financial year was one of consolidation

for Council. We were able to maintain our strong
financial and low debt position, to keep rates rises to a
minimum, to seek further efficiencies in our operations
and deliver on our No 1 priority - serving the people
of Redlands Coast. We have also invested wisely in our
future with strategic land purchases that will provide
conservation and other community options for future
generations.

Council advocated strongly on a broad front to state
and federal politicians in seeking a better deal for our
residents, and we will continue to do so. This advocacy
is finally paying dividends with belated, but welcome,
new interest in Redlands Coast.

Council employees once again displayed exceptional
professionalism and commitment during the year and |
thank CEQ Andrew Chesterman and his executive team
for their leadership.

I'would also like to acknowledge the work of my fellow
Councillors and the residents and volunteers who have
helped shape the future and make Redlands Coast the
best place to live, work and do business,

Councillor Karen Williams
Mayor of Redland City
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MESSAGE FROM OUR CEO

This past year has been characterised by our efforts to get better at what we do, be more
responsive to our community and more efficient in the way we manage our resources. It
has also seen us look beyond our boundaries and connect with new ideas and technologies.

Since our new city brand was rolled out in mid-2018,
Redlands Coast — ‘Naturally Wonderful' is giving Redland
City a strong identity as a region in its own right. The
establishment of the brand is giving us the opportunity
to tell our story to the world and position us as a unigue
and special place in south-east Queensland. Importantly,
it also embraces the opportunities brought about by our
location on Quandamooka Country.

Council also began the development of our first internal
Reconciliation Action Plan, Kanara Molara - One People.
This document formalises a vision and set of principles
to guide the way we work, along with a set of practical
actions that will help us advance reconciliation in our
organisation. The plan will be a stepping stone to future
actions and establishing a framewaork for our broader
external reconciliation activities.

Our improvements over the year have included a strategy
to provide greater upfront investment in design to ensure
projects are ready for implementation. Qur [nfrastructure
and Operations teams have worked hard towards early
completion of the capital design program to ensure we
are well placed to seek external grant funding for shovel-
ready projects and position us to complete our yearly
program of works. More than 95% of the infrastructure
capital program was designed befare the start of financial
year 2019-2020 and it is our intention to maintain this
focus of completing the design program well in advance.

Council delivered tangible benefits through its continued
strong focus on innovation and continuous improvement.
Through smarter ways of warking and contracting,

we delivered mare than $2 million of additional
infrastructure to the community by way of bus stops

and roads.

Internally, almost $90,000 of efficiency savings were
reinvested to deliver benefits such as enhancing the
digitised customer forms, energy monitoring to identify
sustainability solutions at Council’s depot and Capalaba
wastewater treatment plant and using smart meters

to monitor water quality for public and environmental
health and mosguito management.

Improvements in strategic procurement have also
delivered savings. Our procurement analysis now
allows Council to more closely monitor its categories
and location of spend. In 2018-2019, approximately
27% of our annual procurement expenditure was with
businesses with a postcode within the city.

Sound financial management has been a hallmark of the
period. Our strong balance sheet and low-debt status
has allowed the organisation to use its horrowing power
to spread the load of spending on major infrastructure,
easing the pressure on current ratepayers.

Our quest for improved service delivery also focused
on core services — waste and waler. During the period,
the Queensland Government delivered significant waste
reform and Council resolved to participate in a regional
Expression of Interest process for new waste and
resOUTCE FECOVETY SEMVICes,

The servicing of Council public utilities remains amang
the single largest spends acrass Council. Over the past
four years — and particularly the last 12 months - Council
has responded strategically. The operational spend

on water and sewerage services has reduced from
approximately $4.5 million in 2016 to approximately
$3.2 million in 2019 based on leveraging supplier prices
and contract arrangements with new smart technology
to lower maintenance overheads.

Council also continued its implementation of the

56 recommendations from the Redland City Council -

Fire Management Review Report 2017, with actions
including a significant increase in Council's fire mitigation
program through building more fire trails, slashing more
blocks and conducting more hazard reduction burns,

as well as initiating a proactive compliance program to
encourage land owners to reduce the fire risk on their
properties.

Over the year, Council continued to invest in its leaders
to ensure contemporary thinking and approaches drive
perfarmance improvement and efficiencies. Customer
service remains our priority focus and we reviewed our
key metrics and processes to ensure a professional,
consistent and efficient approach is made with each
customer contacl.

We remain as committed to meeting our employees’
needs as we are to those of our community and
positioning ourselves as an inclusive and diverse
employer and one that attracts and retains the very
best employees.

[ extend my sincere thanks to Mayar Karen Williams

and all Councillors for their leadership and vision for
Redlands Coast, as well the Executive Leadership Team
for its support and commitment. [ would especially like
to commend all Redland City Council employees wha
continue to dedicate themselves to providing exceptional
service. | am proud to lead an organisation that serves
our community so well.

Andrew Chesterman
CEO of Redland City Council
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PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW
VISION OUTCOME SUMMARY 2018-2019

Operational This means all
Plan 2018-2019 70 signiﬁ cant

100% activities
delivered outlined in the plan were

successfully completed

Significant
activities
completed

VISION OUTCOMES

1. HEALTHY NATURAL ENVIRONMENT 10/10
2. GREEN LIVING i
3. EMBRACING THE BAY 5/5
4. QUANDAMOOKA COUNTRY

5. WISE PLANNING AND DESIGN

6. SUPPORTIVE AND VIBRANT ECONOMY

°)
=
@

8. INCLUSIVE AND ETHICAL GOVERNANCE

For detailed Vision Outcome scorecards and highlights, see pages 58-107.
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COMMUNITY FINANCIAL REPORT

This report aims to simplify the consolidated financial statements of Redland City Council (Council)
and its controlled entities.

Council and its controlled entities form the economic entity referred to in this report as the Group. The report provides graphical
representations of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows, as well as changes in community equity, to provide
a simple, comprehensive view of the Group's financial results for the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019,

Report outline

Financial
Measures of overview Community
financial stability « revenue and expenditure future vision

and sustainability - asset, liability and and summary
community equity

+ cashin and cash out

Measures of sustainability

Sustainability measures provide evidence of Council’s ability to continue operating and to provide an acceptable level of service to the
community both currently and in the longer term.

Group Grou| W)
Ratio Description Target 2018-2019 | 2017-2018 g% Status
Actual Actual
This is an indicator of the extent to Bet
! i i i etween
Operating surplus which revenues raised cover operational 3.68% 6.06% | 39.27% .

ratio expenses only or are available for capital 0% and 10%
funding purposes or other purposes.

This is an indicator of the extent to which
the net financial liabilities of Council can Below 60% -30.83% | -34.62%  15.05% .
be serviced by its operating revenues,

Net financial
lighilities ratio*

This is an approximation of the extent to

Asset sustainability | which the infrastructure assets managed Greater than
ratio hy Council are being replaced as they 90%

reach the end of their useful lives.

42.35% 53.84% -2134% @

= This is colculated using net financial liabilities (total liabilities minus current assets) divided by total operating revenue. The negative number indicates that Council’s
current assets exceed the total liobilities. Therefore, Council has exceeded this targel.

The operating surplus ratio, net financial liabilities ratio and asset sustainability ratios have targets to be achieved on average over the
long-term (a period of at least 10 years), and are not necessarily expected to be met on a monthly or annual basis. When compared to
the 2017-2018 financial year, the operating surplus ratio has improved by 39.27%. This is mainly driven by an increase of operating
revenue. Achieving the target for the asset sustainability ratio continues to be a focus area. Council is continuing with its comprehensive
Asset Management Project, which will consider the broader principles of asset management and the renewal program and support the
capital works prioritisation policy. Council continuously improves asset and service management planning and evidence-based asset
consumption assessment. The reduction in the sustainahility ratio is due to significant carry over projects mainly in 2018-2019 and the
ratio will improve with evidence-based asset consumption.

. Torget achieved . Target not ochieved but improved from lost financial year . Torget nof ochieved
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Annual Report 2018-2019 | REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
Summary of key financial stability measures (Council)
. qrc 2018-2019 |2017-2018 = Change
Ratio Description Target e Actual o% Status
sl iR RE G This ratio measures Council's reliance on Less than
general rate revenue operating revenue from general rates (excludes 375% 35.50% 3391%  469% @ @
utility revenues).
- " This measures the extent to which
Ability to =R Er bills Council has liguid assets available to Between 1.1 3.23 3.44 | -6.10% .
- current ratio P and 4.1
meet short-term financial obligations.
Ability to repay our debt  This indicates Council's ability to meet current | Less than or ;
- debt servicing ratio debt instalments with recurrent revenue. equal to 10% 2.86% 297% 3.70%
Cash balance includes cash on hand, cash Greater than or
Cash balances at bank and other short-term investments. equal to $50m 162.096 138.562 | 16.98%
This provides an indication of the number
Cash balances - cash . Greater than
= of months of cash held at period end 8.81 T43 | 1857% .
Capaelivlinimatiis able to cover operating cash outflows. 3 manths
Longer-term financial This is total debt as a percentage of tatal Less than or
stability - debt to asset  assets, i.e. to what extent will our long- eaual to 10% 1.34% L46% | -8.22% .
ratio term debt be covered by total assets. q
. This ratio provides an indication of Greater than or
Operating performance Council’s cash flow capabilities. equal to 15% 2L87% 15.76% | 38.77% .
This ratio demaonstrates the extent to
Interest coverage ratio*  which operating revenues are being Less than 5% -0.87% -0.63% | 38.10% .
used to meet the financing charges.

* This is calculated using net interest expense, i.e. interest expense minus interest revenue. The negative number indicates that Council has earned more interest than it

has spent on borrowings. Therefore, Council has exceeded this farget.

Council includes the above elective Key Performance Indicators in the budget and reports on these on a monthly basis, as they do not

feature in the Annual Financial Statements, Council chooses to retain these indicators to provide more information to the community on

how Council is managing community assets, liabilities and cash balances

. Target achieved . Target not achieved but impraved from last financial year . Target not achieved

Financial overview

Overview of consoli

dated financial results

Below are the Group’s key financial performance highlights:

See Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for more information - refer page 142

2018-2019 2017-2018
Information ot o glance Actual Actual Change %
£ millions § millions
Operating income $281.67m $271.63m 3.70%
Capital grants, subsidies and contributions $23.19m £34.88m (33.51%)
Operating expenses $(292.04)m $(288.10)m 137%
Other capital income/(expenditura) $(3.80)m $(2.20)m 72.73%
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Financial overview (continued)

Income - where did the money come from?
(Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income)

Expense - where was the money spent?
{Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income)

2%
9%

Total

Income
$304.86m

[ Rates, levies and charges $239.77m
[ fees and charges $13.80m

B [nterest received $4.81m

. Sales revenue $10.10m

Other income $2.34m

[ Grants, subsidies and contributions $26.67m

B ton-cash contributions $7.37m

The Group's total income decreased by
$1.65m or 0.54% from 2017-2018.

Movements in income were mainly driven by:

« growth in rates, levies and charges due
to an increase in the number of rated

properties and bulk water charges increase;

and

+ property developments moderating
resulting in a significant reduction in both

developer cash and non-cash contributions.

1%

Total

Expenses
$295.84m

47%
. Employee benefits $89.14m
I Materials and services $136.94m
B Finance costs $3.13m

. Depreciation and amortisation $62.83m

I Loss on disposal of non-current assets $3.80m

The Group incurred $295.84m in expenses
during the financial year, which is an
increase of $5.54m or 1.91% higher than
last year.

This increase was primarily driven by:

- increase in materials and services
expenditure mainly due to an increase in
bulk water charges; and

- increase in employee benefits resulting
from increased salary and wages and
leave entitlements. This increase is due in
part to Council signing a new enterprise
bargaining agreement during the year.

16
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What is the value of the net community assets
in our care?

(Consolidated Statement of Financial Position)

2018-2019 2017-2018
Actual Actual
£ millions $ millions

Information Change

ot o glance

Total assets $2,771.49m | $2,750.11m 0.78%

Total

liability $(120.47)m | $(103.06)m 7.19%

$2,661.02m  $2,647.05m  0.53%

See Consolidated Statement of Financial Position for more information
- refer page 143

Community equity (Sm)

3000
2500 -
E 2000
fess
E 1500 (=
°
a 1000 -
500 |-
o — —
2018-2019 2017-2018
500 -

B Total Assets
B Total Liability

. Equity

Total community equity includes cash reserves which
represent funding that Council has restricted for current or
future expenditure. Council's view is to ensure funds held in
reserves are restricted to deliverables consistent with the
long-term financial strategy, long-term asset management
plan, corporate plan, annual operational plan and budget.

Caouncil is committed to achieving this goal by:

+ reporting on constrained cash reserves on a monthly
basis as part of the monthly financial reports to Council as
well as a subset of cash balances in the annual financial
statements for accountability and transparency; and

+ conducting an annual review of all constrained cash
reserves for relevance and future requirements; and

« reviewing forecast reserve movements as an integral part
of the annual budget development process.

Property, plant and equipment 2018-2019
- what do we own?

$1,051.03m @ Roads and stormwater

$792.40m @ Water and wastewater

$258.86m © Land

$251.02m @ Other infrastructure

$79.60m & Buildings

$53.88m @ Parks

$23.22m © Plant and equipment

Capital works

$17.94m @ in progress

$13.96m © Waste

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

$2,542m @

The total value of all assets at 30 June 2019 was $2,771.49m,
of which $2,542m (91.72%) relates to property, plant and
equipment. The value of total assets increased by $21.38m
during the year.

During 2018-2019, a comprehensive valuation of the ather

infrastructure assets (marine infrastructure) was completed
and the remaining one third of the sewerage pump stations

were condition assessed. An increase of $4.95m in net asset
value resulted from the revaluation.

A desktop valuation was applied to land assets.
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Financial overview (continued)

Liabilities - why did we borrow when we have cash in the bank?

Total QTC Loan: $37.27m

The annual investment by Council in infrastructure is
substantial and is a major component of capital expenditure.

The bulk of Council's liabilities are in the form of loans,
which represent 34% of Council's total liabilities. Certain
projects are financed through loan borrowing in order to
ensure intergenerational equity in the allocation of cost.
This concept flows through to Council's long-term financing
strategy, where barrowed funds are used to partially finance
infrastructure renewals that will benefit current and future
communities.

Council's long-term financial strategy includes an
assessment of Council's ability to borrow funds and

gain access to grants, subsidies and future development
contributions, which are used to finance the infrastructure
required to support development in the city.

Payable in
later years:

Payable within $29.42m

12 months:
$7.85m

What were the major sources of cash in and cash out?
(Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows)

The table below compares the main sources of cash receipts and cash payments during the financial years enced 30 June 2018 and

18

30 June 2019,
Main sources of cash in and out 2?5;;&2 2?;&&? Change %
E:e?clf':dsr r|;eicni]:reedstf,r;E-Ir?ofir:é]son:ts and waste levy) $59.80m $43.53m 37.38%
Cash received for 2019-2020 waste levy $4.62m $0m 100%

| Purchases and construction of Council assets $(59.13)m $(70.17)m . (15.73%)
Asset purchases of subsidiary $(0.05)m t0m 100%
Payment for investment property $0m $4.47)m (100%)

. Proceeds from sale of assets $2.79m $1.15m . 142.61% .
Capital grants, subsidies and contributions $17.14m §17.48m (1.95%)

. New borrowings £2.50m $0m . 100% .

. Repayment of debt $(5.04)m §(4.66)m . 8.15%

See Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for more information - refer page 145
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Annual Report 2018-2019 | REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
Major cash flow sources are explained below:
et T, N Net cash received from operations:
o° .. Includes receipts of rates, fees and charges and operating grants, offset by
L oL payments for employee costs and materials and services.
[ -
M . Cash received for 2019-2020 waste levy:
. : . The State Government paid $4.62m in advance to mitigate the direct impacts on
L]
. Ma]or cash : househalds of the State Waste Levy.
5 flow sources . )
. N Purchases and construction of Council assets:
L . Includes payments for the purchase and construction of property, plant and equipment.
o, o The major purchases are for land, roads, park assets and other infrastructure assets.
- LTt e, " ©
I g . Asset purchases of subsidiary:
.. o, Payments made by subsidiary for purchase of assets.
» *
. B Payment for investment property:
N Th h .
N Qmse_%nlt;pﬁs;:rntgda |t)r:ar M Includes payments for the purchase of investment property by Redland
. with $141.52m cash in : Investment Corporation (RIC).
. the bank and ended the
]

year with $166.15m. . Proceeds from sale of assets:
Includes proceeds from sale of praperty, plant and equipment.

- . Capital grants, subsidies and contributions:
Includes cash contributions fram developers to pay for infrastructure
Council needs to build to provide services to new developments,

New borrowings:
Additional loan drawdown with Queensland Treasury Corparation to fund
Council’s Capital Works Plan.

Repayment of debt:
Repayments of principal on Council's loans with Queensland Treasury Corporation.

Community future vision and summary

In May 2018, Council adopted its revised Corporate Plan for the five-year period 2018-2023. The Corporate Plan contains the themes
or "vision outcomes’ as communicated by our community in the Redlands 2030 Community Plan.

_f/g | 5. Wise planning and design

‘a". 1. Healthy natural environment

¥ o
"6 ) 2. Green living

.

‘-M-*-‘) 3. Embracing the bay 7. Strong and connected communities

@ﬁ) 6. Supportive and vibrant economy

4. Quandamooka Country

@I 8. Inclusive and ethical governance

Other than the day-to-day operational needs to keep Council's services running, there have been improvements to help expand services,

bringing Council closer to the 'vision outcome’ goals outlined in the Redlands 2030 Community Plan, such as:

« Koala conservation program which aims to retain and sustain a viable koala population

= Traffic safety improvement program which aims to increase safety for all traffic across the Redlands

+ Road resurfacing program continues resurfacing of roads to avoid pavement failure and to prolong the overall pavement life

+ Additional borrowing with Queensland Treasury Corporation to fund Council's Capital Works Plon and ensure intergenerational works
and initiatives are funded by both current and future generations

19
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Strategic priorities
Council has six strategic priorities that form the guiding principles to shape and achieve the strategic vision for the
current local government term. These priorities are integrated with the Corporate Plan.

The following strategic priorities are considered the main drivers of Redlands Coast growth and development:

2. SPORT, EDUCATION
AND THE ARTS
Creating active, healthy lifestyle

and learning opportunities

1. TRANSPORT

Creating more travel options
and continuing to tackle
urban congestion

3. ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT
Building a strong, connected
economy while creating

more jobs

4. CITY PLANNING
Planning for future growth and
change to improve liveability

6. A SMART CITY
Positioning Redlands Coast
as a smart innovative city

5. BRANDING
IDENTITY
Creating a shared identity
for the city

Cleveland Point, Cleveland (Nandeebie/Indilli
_._..J:;-r_- vey
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Summary

Maintaining Council's financial position to support long-term financial sustainability remains a priority for Council. We are embracing
innovation and collaboration to continue to deliver projects and services while maintaining community assets and financial capital. Our
current position provides the stability that our long-term financial strategy provides for and allows Council to meet its future obligations
and demands of our community in the foreseeable future.

Key 2018-2019 highlights

Council undertook a Procurement Transformation Project with the aim to understand Council’s procurement capability and
where improvement can be made to ensure the best value for the community is provided as part of procurement practices.

Council delivered a capital program during the year amounting to $59.13m.

The Asset Management Project continued during 2018-2019 to ensure Council is an Asset Smart organisation that uses best
practice asset management in managing and maintaining community assets with a replacement cost of more than $3.7h.
Council engaged Redland Investment Corporation (RIC) to undertake development of Weinam Creek Development Area

to transfarm the waterfront of Redland Bay, improve usability of the transport hub, attract visitors, create jobs and drive
economic development in the area.

More than 55 parks having renewals or upgrades and 25 bus stops/shelters/seats renewed or upgraded.

Community Infrastructure Program delivered maore than $1.1m in community initiatives.

Resurfacing/rehabilitation of the equivalent of more than 35 km of road network length, rehabilitation of four highly trafficked
|'nlerseclinnsﬂmundabnuls.

Sealing of more than 6 km of roads across Southern Moreton Bay Islands, including 15 individual roads at both Macleay Island
and Russell Island (30 roads in total).

Acquisition and fitout of a new mobile library vehicle enabling decommissioning of the alder vehicle.

Renovation of the Station Master's Cottage now located at Little Shore Street, Cleveland.

Introduction of a new library management system with associated refurbishment of library spaces throughout the mainland
city libraries.

Business process improvement projects continued to be initiated across Council to encourage effective use of available
resources and cut out non-value adding activity.

Council acquired a strategic parcel of prime waterfront land adjacent to one of the city's most popular landmarks, Cleveland
Point Recreation Reserve, which includes the historic Cleveland lighthouse built in 1865. Council purchased the freehold
undeveloped land to improve access to the bay and coastline, providing residents with the chance to enjoy what they love
most about Redlands Coast.

Looking ahead

Council will be required to account for some revenues and leases differently from 1 July 2019, to comply with the Australian
Accounting Standard Board's Accounting Standards. Details are contained in the notes to the Financial Statements but changes
will be seen on most statements moving forward in future years.

The 2019-2020 budget development process will see a continued focus on prioritisation guidelines to approve new
operational and capital expenditure.
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2018-2019 CHALLENGES

This section highlights some of the social, environmental, economic, planning and governance
opportunities and challenges from the 2018-2019 financial year. More detailed information on
significant activities and project highlights can be found in the Vision Qutcome scorecards on

pages 58-107.

Challenge

Reducing the risk and
preparing the community
for potential fire and
disaster

Challenge

Planning for ageing
population of
Redlands Coast

- “*‘ Challenge
ﬁ# Managing community
4 assets to prioritise

» ‘_" projects/programs
1

Redlands Coast’s naturally wonderful coastal and hinterland setting and lifestyle brings with
it substantial challenges - among them the need to be prepared for potential fire and other
disasters.

Council has taken significant steps in educating the community on the need to be prepared for the
unexpected, at the same time reducing the risk of fire across Redlands Coast.

Council continued to implement recommendations from the initial Redlond City Council - Fire
Management Review Report received in June 2017, which was commissioned following fires on Macleay
and Russell islands in late 2016. The report identified parts of Redlands Coast as being among the
highest fire risks in south-east Queensland.

During 2018-2019 Council officers conducted an assessment of mainland fuel load and fire risk
in Redland Bay, Maunt Cotton, Birkdale, Alexandra Hills, Cleveland and Sheldan. Controlled burns
and other management practices were undertaken to reduce fuel load and fire risk across all of
Redlands Coast.

In May 2019 Council commissioned an independent review of the fire risk for Redlands Coast.
Engagement of the consultant followed Council undertaking significant fire risk mapping and planning
on the Southern Moreton Bay [slands as part of the Russell Island Fire Review.

Most older Queenslanders live in south-east Queensland, and like many other localities,
Redlands Coast has an increasing ageing population. This highlights the need to plan for the
future of our older residents.

Council moved a step closer to having an Age-Friendly City Strategy in August 2018 with the completion
of a survey of seniors that sought to understand their experience of living and ageing in Redlands Coast

The survey, conducted by Redland District Committee on the Ageing (RDCOTA) on behalf of Council,
helped to identify the city's strengths and any barriers to healthy and active ageing. This information
will help shape development of Council's Age-Friendly City Strategy.

Governance challenges

Council’s Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) provides a clear process for determining

the future of Council assets.

The current level of asset management practice, as determined from recent independent and internal
assessments of practice maturity, shows that there are apportunities for improvement. The current level
of practice is considered operational. Council's aspiration is to optimise its asset management practices
and ensure compliance with the International Standard 150 55000 through an organisationally
integrated Asset Management System.

The SAMP is a tool that establishes clear alignment between Council's Asset Management System (AMS)
and organisatianal objectives. It details the portfolio-wide asset planning and investment process that
considers performance, risk and cost, to assist the business in the paradigm shift required in the Asset
Management space,

A dedicated Asset Management Unit has been established and tasked with asset management
impravement at a corporate strategic level.
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Environmental challenges

Challenge

Working with the
community to provide
a safer environment for
Redlands Coast wildlife

Challenge

Future planning and
regional collaboration
on waste management

Challenge

Conservation of
Redlands Coast koalas

Enhancing bush habitats across Council reserves to create strategic corridors and safe spaces
for wildlife is a priority.

Council undertakes programs in partnership with the community to plant native plants and trees to
enhance existing, and create new, wildlife corridors for koalas and other native species

A Council initiative to plant one million native plants across Redlands Coast by 2026 reached an
important project milestone, its 250,000 mark, in April 2019,

The 250,000 + plants planted to date are providing shelter for wildlife, helping reduce erosion along
local waterways and providing a greener city for residents to enjoy.

Waste management is an essential service for our community, and one of our biggest social,
environmental and economic challenges.

With the State Gavernment introducing a waste levy from 1 July 2019 the focus on recycling and
reduction of waste going to landfill has strengthened.

A key policy objective of Council is responding to the challenges that lie ahead in managing waste
in a way that strongly aligns with the principles of environmental sustainability and sound financial
planning.

Community invalvement in both reducing waste generation and correctly using the various services
available is critical for success, as is regional collaboration.

Council continued to work collaboratively with other local governments to find better methods of
resource recovery and waste disposal and to reduce costs of waste management.

Redland, Ipswich and Logan City Councils and Lockyer Valley and Somerset regional Councils have
sought expressions of interest for the delivery of services that benefit residents and the environment
by maximising the diversion of waste from landfll.

Redlands Coast’s native wildlife is a major attraction for local residents and visitors and
Council places a high priority on protecting its fauna and flora.

Council rolled out a raft of programs during the year under its Koolo Conservation Action Plan
2016-2021, including a koala safe neighbourhood precinct.

The five-year Action Plan is being implemented in partnership with research agencies to deliver a multi-
layered approach to koala conservation. It includes habitat and conservation planning, koala threat
mitigation activities, koala monitoring, a koala education campaign and science-based road signage
trial to study the most effective signage to increase driver vigilance and increase awareness of koalas.

In addition to the Action Plan, Council continues koala conservation programs such as koala habitat
and native plantings, surveys and Redlands Wildlife Ambulance.

.
30}

Mount Cofton (]L|néalpin;‘Tungipin]
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Economic challenges

Challenge

Delivering for the local
community during times
of fiscal restraint

Challenge

Creating local jobs
for the future: supporting
local business

Challenge

Growing the tourism
sector and attracting more
visitors to Redlands Coast

Challenge
Revitalising Capalaba CBD

Challenge

Impacts on the North
Stradbroke Island
economy and community
from end of sandmining

Council remains committed to putting our people first and continuing to deliver the services
expected by the community.

This has necessitated doing more with less as funding from other government sources continues to
shrink and local government is asked to shoulder more responsibility. Another challenge is Redlands
Coast's small rates base in comparison to neighbouring local government areas. By adopting financially
responsible policies, Council has been able to continue to deliver responsive and responsible budgets,
while keeping rate rises to a minimum and without adversely impacting on service delivery. Investment
in capital programs across Redlands Coast has continued, despite the unigue challenges and extra costs
of delivering island projects.

Council is committed to providing an environment that encourages business prosperity

and jobs growth.

Council's economic development team worked closely with local businesses to build innovative ideas
that will help grow their businesses and benefit the broader Redlands Coast community by creating
local jobs for the future. Council's commitment included supporting a group to attend Australasia’s
leading global forum for innovation and technology.

Council gave the next wave of innovative entrepreneurs a flying start through a series of start-up
and innavation initiatives.

In collaboration with Council, Startup Redlands opens its doors monthly to start-ups for them to pitch
services or products to entrepreneurial enthusiasts and local angel investors.

Tourism has been identified as a key industry sector under Redland City Economic Development
Framework 2014-2041 and one with the potential for significant growth,

Council continues to implement the Redland City Tourism Strategy and Action Plan 2015-2020, which
includes Redlands Coast rebranding. The new Redlands Coast tourism website visitredlandscoast.com.au
promaotes Redlands Coast to visitors and an accompanying information website tells the story behind
the brand and provides brand information for locals, businesses and visitors.

The hidden treasures and little adventures of Redlands Coast have been charted to provide adventure
seekers, nature lovers and those who just want to relax with a detailed map of one of Queensland’s
most diverse and exciting regions. The site also incorporates dual naming to celebrate and promote
Quandamooka Country and cultural tourism opportunities.

Capalaba has long been recognised as a key commercial and retail centre of Redland City.
It has also been recognised as needing a major facelift.

In December 2018 Council unveiled its vision to breathe new life into Capalaba’s town centre,

The project is to improve public transport access, provide new library and community facilities
and transform the precinct into a new town square environment that is safe, activated, innovative
and environmentally sustainable.

Council launched an Expression of Interest campaign seeking a development partner to deliver
a landmark development and is currently assessing the respondents.

In late 2019 sandmining on North Stradbroke Island (Minjerribah) will cease. Sandmining has
been a key source of employment and economic activity on the island. An economic transition
strategy funded by the State Government has been developed to aid the community and local
economy through the transition process.

Council continued to wark with State Government, Quandamooka Yoolooburrabee Aboriginal
Corporation (QYAC) and other key stakeholders on collaborative projects under the North Strodbroke
Island Economic Transition Strategy (NSI ETS), such as Project 13 Place Markers Project.

| Council has continued to advocate for increased funding from the Queensland and Australian
| governments as the island community prepares for the end of mining in late 2019,

Item 13.4- Attachment 1

Page 62



GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

Planning for tomorrow

Challenge To preserve Redlands Coast’s lifestyle, Council is planning well into the future by ensuring it has

Acquisition of strategically access to land for community use.

important land for future During the year Council secured two strategically important parcels of land. In April 2019 Council

community use signed a heads of agreement with the Australian Government to pay $4.1 million for 61.78 hectares of
Commonwealth land at Birkdale.

In May 2019 Council acguired prime waterfront land at Cleveland Point for $3.6 million. The three
adjoining blocks, covering 1859m?* and with panoramic views across Moreton Bay, were considered of
real historical and community value.

Council will consult the community about the preferred future use of both parcels of land.

Challenge Population growth on Redlands Coast highlights the urgent need for significant investment
Increasing pressure on by all levels of government in transport and other infrastructure.

transport infrastructure Council during the year continued to lobby strenuously for fast-tracking of much-needed transport
with population growth infrastructure.

A regional blueprint for transport in south-east Queensland released in January 2019 identified

the Cleveland rail duplication and Eastern Busway extension as critical for the future of Redlands
Coast. The Council of Mayors (SEQ) Peaple Moss Movement Study showed state and federal government
investment in transport needed to be increased to accommodate growth in SEQ and Redlands Coast.

In February 2019 Council called on the State Government to prioritise major projects such as the
busway and rail duplication. In its farmal submission Council asked for a commitment to delivering
the crucial projects and others of importance to Redlands Coast, including upgrading state-owned
roads such as Cleveland-Redland Bay Road, and providing better island transport. Council has lobbied
consistently in recent years for the state to invest in transport infrastructure.

Challenge Population growth on Redlands Coast highlights the need for planning around community

Creating new sporting and open spaces and amenities such as sporting fields.

recreational opportunities | [nJune 2019 Council commenced master planning for Redlands Coast Regional Sport and Recreation
Precinct at Mount Cotton. The site, acquired by Council in 2017, will provide the city with more sporting
fields and community amenities to enjoy, while also protecting a significant area of natural habitat close
to existing Council-owned conservation land. Master planning will ensure a unique parcel of land will
complement existing sports and recreation facilities and provide more opportunity for locals to enjoy
the great outdoors.

Challenge The Southern Moreton Bay Islands (SMBI) - Macleay, Russell, Karragarra and Lamb islands -
Southern Moreton Bay have a complex history in regard to urban infrastructure and their geographic isolation.
Islands isolation and When responsibility for the islands was transferred from the State Government to the then Redland < _,._: =
infrastructure Shire in 1973, existing infrastructure on the islands was inadeguate. Wt g |
Since then, successive Councils have worked, from a relatively small, city-wide rates base, to improve o 9-‘4
infrastructure on SMBI. Council continues to advacate to state and federal governments to have the 5 =
regional challenges of SMBI acknowledged and for the islands to be eligible for regional funding, ’:’
due to their unique needs, r e
As part of its commitment to progressing infrastructure, in 2018-2019 Council appointed a dedicated r ﬁ'
" ; » ; : : P e
coordinator for works on SMBI. Council also continued its ongoing green seal road sealing program, -
which in the last five years has invested $12.3 million in sealing 45 km of island roads. 5 -~

Council also undertook work with the State Government to plan the multi-million-dollar upgrade of the ‘:
ferry terminals at the four islands. "’

Recognising the unigue logistical access issues that come with the geographic isolation of the islands,

Council continued its program of disaster preparedness for SMBI through actions including community

education, fire management planning and its SMBI Community Champions Program (see page 36).
- ) -

JAre| Iyt i
Raby Bay, Cleveldnd (Nafideebie/Lnditkie)
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Redland City Council is the elected hody responsible
for the good governance of Redlands Coast.

Comprising the Mayor and 10 Councillors, the elected body has legal
obligations requiring members to represent the current and future interests
of Redlands Coast residents.

: ; sion 4 Cr Lance Hewlett
The Mayor and Councillors are democratically elected and accountable to

their communities for the decisions they make and the services they provide.
Their role also includes other responsibilities such as providing high-quality
y n@ﬂ leadership to the community, participating in Council meetings, developing
il © b o 9 o K
i policy and making decisions that are in the interests of the whole community.

Cr Julie Talty

‘ The Mayor and Councillors are bound by a Code of Conduct, which is their
B public commitment to open, accountable and ethical standards of behaviour.
O The community also plays an important role in contributing to good democratic

' dodrin governance by participating in Council elections, being actively involved in AT .
ik community engagement programs and providing feedback on current issues F—
L& : and the services provided.

28 ANl o ) g =%
© il : i Llbie 4 R 3
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8-2019 | REDLAND CITY COUNCIL

MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS

Mayor of
Redland City
Councillor
Karen Williams

Elected: 2004
Mayor since 2012

Karen was born in Redlands
Coast, raised her family here and
has lived in the city for most of
her life. She was elected Mayor
in April 2012 after serving as the
Divisional Councillor for Division
9 (Capalaba) from 2004. Before
joining Council, Karen worked
for 10 years in the domestic
maoney market in Sydney and
Brisbane and also owned and
operated two successful retail
floral studios in Brisbane.

Karen is invelved with a

large number of community
organisations and local
government bodies. She is
Director Treasurer of the

Council of Mayors (SEQ), board
member of the Australian Local
Government Association [ALGA),
Local Government Association
of Queensland Policy Executive
Committee, Healthy Land and
Water, Local Government Mutual
Services and the Economic
Development Advisory Board.
Karen is a member of South East
Queensland Regional Planning
Committee and Council of Mayors
(SEQ) Resilient Rivers Taskforce,
a Trustee of the Committee

for Economic Development for
Australia (CEDA), Chair of the
Local Disaster Management
Group, Deputy Chair of the
Council of Mayars (SEQ) Waste
Waorking Group and a member of
the Australian Government Local
Government Domestic, Family
and Sexual Violence Prevention
Project Reference Committee.

Karen is a graduate of and holds
a Diploma with the Australian
Institute of Company Directors,
Phone: (07) 3829 8623

Mobile: 0416 123 588

Email: mayor@redland.qld.gov.au

Division 1
Councillor
Wendy Boglary
Wellington Paint (part)
and Ormiston

Elected: 2008

Deputy Mayor:

April 2016 - April 2018
Enrolled voters as at
January 2019: 10,590

Wendy's initial career path
in banking was followed

by two decades of small
business success on Redlands
Coast, where she ran with
her family two successful
businesses, including the
Ormiston Foodstore. First
elected in 2008, Wendy

held the position of Deputy
Mayor from April 2016 to
April 2018 and has held
avariety of committee
positions. Currently Wendy
is Deputy Chair of the Local
Disaster Management Group.

Wendy has raised her family
in the division she now
represents and continues to
beinvolved in a large number
of schoaol, sporting and
community organisations. She
is a graduate of and holds a
Diploma with the Australian
Institute of Company
Directors, a Certificate IV

in Workplace Health and
Safety, a Certificate IV in
Train the Trainer, a Diploma
aof Project Management and

is currently completing a
Diploma in Local Government.

Wendy has a strong
commitment to Council
policies reflecting community
expectations and has

worked to ensure both
economic development and
safety policies have been
implemented this term.

Phone: (07) 3829 8619
Mobile: 0408 543 583

Email: wendy.boglary@
redland.qgld.gov.au

Division 2
Councillor
Peter Mitchell
Cleveland and North
Stradbroke Island
Elected: 2016

Envrolled voters as at
Jonuary 2019: 10,408

Peter is a married father
and grandfather of two.
He has called Redlands
Coast home since 1990,

He abtained a Bachelor

of Physiotherapy at the
University of Queensland
in 1985 and a Master in
Sports Physiotherapy at
Griffith University in 1999.
He was the owner of a
physiotherapy practice in
Cleveland for 25 years.

He understands small
business and grass
roots involvement,
having employed local
staff, sponsoring events
and helping many
thousands of people.

Peter is a keen local
triathlete, active volunteer
and leads by example with
an optimism and enthusiasm
for life. His grass roots
experience has shaped a
strong work ethic and great
appreciation for cooperation,
tolerance and teamwaork.

Peter is currently Council's
representative on the Donald
Simpson Community Centre
Board of Management and
the North Stradbroke Tsland
Historical Museum Inc.
Phone: (07) 3829 8607
Mobile: 0412 638 368

Email: peter.mitchell@
redland.qgld.gov.au
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Division 3
Councillor
Paul Gollé

Cleveland South
and Thornlands
Elected: 2016

Enrolled voters as ot
Januory 2019: 12,098

Paul is a professional with
tertiary education and

a proven track record in
management and customer
service spanning more than
30 years. With a strong
strategic focus, Paul values
efficiency and offers combined
experience from the private
business sector, specialist
international government
project management and the
Australian Defence Force,

Paul’s academic credentials
include a Diploma in
Security Risk Management,
Diplama of Legal Services,
Graduate Diploma of
Strategic Leadership,
Diploma of Security and Risk
Management, Certificate [11
in Government, Certificate in
Human and Physical Resource
Supervision and Certificate
[1T'in Resource Operations.

Paul is currently Chair of

the Regional Mosquito
Management group which
encompasses key regional
stakeholders. Other
community positions include
Redland City Museum
Advisory Committee. One of
Paul’s priorities in Division 3
is construction of a multi-
use destination park worth
mare than $7 million.
Phone: (07) 3829 8618

Email: paul.golle@
redland.qld.gov.au

Councillor

Lance Hewlett
Victoria Point, Coochiemudlo
Island and Redland Bay (part)
Elected: 2012, Deputy
Mayor: April 2018 - current
Enrolled voters os at

fonuary 2019: 10,793

Lance has experience

across a range of sectors,
including the Queensland
Government, where he was
the Procurement Officer/
Manager of the then State
Stores Board. He then moved
into sales and marketing

in the private sector, with
positions including National
Sales Manager of one of
Australia’s leading paper
merchants/impaorters and
Queensland State Manager
of a major distributor in the
graphic and signage industry.

Lance is actively involved
with and supports many of
Redlands Coast's community
organisations. Lance is Patron
of Meals On Wheels Victoria
Point, Coochiemudlo Surf Life
Saving Club, Victoria Peint
Volunteer Marine Rescue,
Victoria Point Seniors, Koala
Action Group and Redlands
Netball Association. He is
also a member of Redland
Bay and Victoria Point Lions
Club, Coochiemudlo Island
Coastcare and honorary
member of Rotary Club of
Redland Sunrise, Thornlands.

Lance was appointed
Deputy Mayor in April 2018
and is currently appointed
to Council's Regional

Arts Development Fund
Committee (RADF).

Phone: (07) 3829 8603
Mobile: 0421 880 371

Email: lance.hewlett@
redland.qld.gov.au

Councillor
Mark Edwards
Redland Bay (part) and
Southern Moreton Bay
Islands

Elected: 2012

Enrolled voters as ot
January 2019: 11,164

Mark has an association with
Redlands Coast spanning
more than 40 years. He
started his working life

at a bank in Cleveland, a
career which spanned 20
years and saw him climb
the ranks through various
accountancy and manager
positions, culminating in

a regional management
position in Brishane. He is
also engaged in a number
of small business activities
outside banking, on the
islands and the mainland.

With his work history and
experience providing an
understanding of financial
management and the needs
of business, Mark has a focus
on delivering value-driven
outcomes for the community
and local industry. Mark

is determined to enhance
the value of Council for

the residents of Division 5
and the whale of the city.

Mark has a deep
understanding of the needs
and aspirations of his
community and is focused on
achieving tangible outcomes
for residents on the Southern
Maoreton Bay Islands and

all those living and working
on Redlands Coast.

Phone: (07) 3829 8604
Mobile: 0407 695 667

Email: mark.edwards@
redland.qld.gov.au

Division 6
Councillor

Julie Talty

Mount Cotton, Sheldon,
Thornlands (part),
Victoria Point (part)
and Redland Bay (part)
Elected: 2012

Enrolled voters os ot
Jonugry 2019: 12,371

Councillor Julie Talty is a
fifth- generation Redlander,
she has completed

three higher education
qualifications and was a
teacher at a local school
before being elected

to serve at Council.

She has also owned and
operated small businesses
and worked for large
corporate entities in
publishing and the beauty
industry. Julie lives in
Division & with her family
and is invalved in many local
community organisations.

Having grown up on
Redlands Coast, Julie is
dedicated to ensuring

a continuance of those
qualities of lifestyle and
community that have made
the region such a desirable
place to live and raise a
family. In her role as local
Councillor for Division 6,
Julie takes every opportunity
to support and further local
community initiatives while
enjoying the oppartunity to
continue a family legacy of
service to the community.
Phone: (07) 3829 8606
Mobile: 0418 218 847
Email: julie.talty@
redland.gld.gov.au
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Division 7
Councillor
Murray Elliott
Alexandra Hills (part),
Capalaba (part)

and Thornlands (part)
Elected: 1997

Enralled voters as at
January 2019: 10,336

Murray was elected to
Council in 1997 and is the
longest-serving Councillor of
the current Council. Murray
has lived in Alexandra Hills
for 31 years. During his

time in Council he has held
many chair of committee
positions, was Deputy Mayor,
2010-2012 and continues
to represent his community
and support numerous
community and sporting
groups. He is the longest-
serving member of three
lacal school P&C groups.

Murray is passionate about
Redlands Coast younger
residents and the year under
review saw the development
of the O'Gorman Street
Alexandra Hills Park, of which
he is particularly proud. The
concept of the redevelopment
was to provide a colourful,
imaginative and interactive
area designed to engage
children’s minds and bodies
by providing a space where
children can experience a
sense of freedom and the
park has been recognised

as one of Queensland’s best
following the makeover,
Phone: (07) 3829 8732
Mobile: 0418 780 824

Email: murray.elliott@
redland.qld.gov.au

Division 8
Councillor

Tracey Huges
Birkdale (part), Alexandra
Hills (part), Ormiston
(part), Wellington Point
(part) and Cleveland (part)
Elected: 2016

Enrolled voters as at
Januory 2019: 10,313

Tracey is a long-term resident
of Redlands Coast and lived
in Victoria Point for nine
years before moving to
Wellington Point in 1999.
Tracey has always been a
committed volunteer within
Redlands Coast community,
being involved in many
church, school, sporting
and community groups

and events. She thrives

on helping others and
supporting and promoting
our city. This dedication,
combined with her strong
organisational skills and
empathy, drives her ongoing
passion as a Councillor,

Recognising the most
vulnerable in the community
are our aged residents,
Tracey’s continued priorities
include her interest and
focus on engaging with

the frail and aged support
networks and supporting
these organisations.

Since being elected as
Councillor for Division 8,
Tracey has also dedicated
herself to helping
strengthen and protect
community values.
Phone: (07) 3829 8600
Mobile: 0427 734 214
Email: tracey.huges@
redland.qgld.gov.au

Division 9
Councillor
Paul Gleeson
Capalaba (part)
and Birkdale (part)
Elected: 2012

Enrolled voters as at
January 2019: 10,102

A Redlands Coast resident for
27 years, Paul has held senior
retail management positions
and successfully ran his awn
small-medium business for 15
years, emplaying many locals.
A single father, Paul has two
children at local schools.

With a focus on revitalising
Capalaba, he has successfully
achieved positive outcomes
far his community. Paul
Supports many community
and sporting groups. He
created the Bayside Blues
Festival and remains on the
management committee, with
the Rotary Club of Capalaba.
Paul was elected chairman

of Redland City Council's
Audit Committee in 2016 and
continues in this position.

He instigated the
improvement works on
Moreton Bay Road, including
the entrance statement,

and also supported an
accelerated roads (reseal)
program throughout Redlands
Coast. Paul has overseen
many playground upgrades
acrass Capalaba's parks. He
continues to lobby the State
Government and fight for the
best outcomes far Division
9 and Redlands Coast.

Phone: (07) 3829 8620
Mobile: 0488 714 030
Email: paul.gleeson@
redland.qld.gov.au

Division 10
Councillor
Paul Bishop
Birkdale North
and Thorneside
Elected: 2012

Enrolled voters as at
Jonuary 2019: 10,232

Paul Bishop is company
director of Arts Evolution Pty
Ltd and an award-winning
actor, having performed

on stage, television

and in feature films.

A husband and father of four,
Paul has served residents of
Division 10 and Redland City
Council since 2012, He is a
facilitator and advocate for
community engagement, social
cohesion, economic resilience,
ecological sustainability and
cultural capacity building. He
was involved in consultation
processes for Our City Our
Culture, Redland City's

Cultural Plan 2008-2018 and
remains aligned with values
expressed in Council’s Rediand
2030 Community Plan.

Paulis currently Council's
delegate on SEQ Council

of Mayors Economic
Development Working Group,
Chair of Redlands Regional
Arts Development Fund
(RADF) and Patron of Wynnum
Redlands Canoe Club and
MATES Theatre Genesis.

Paul regularly attends

local school, community
organisation and sporting
group meetings and advocates
on behalf of local residents.

Paul is pleased Council

has secured the heritage-
listed Willard Farm and
helieves it will become a
city-defining legacy project.
Phone: (07) 3829 8605
Mobile: 0478 836 286
Email: paul.bishop@
redland.qgld.gov.au
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EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM (ELT)

Chief Executive Officer
Andrew

Chesterman

+ Bachelor of Agplied Science
(Environmental Assessment
& Lond Use Palicy):

- Graduate Diploma of Education;

+ Groduate Australion Insfitute
of Company Directars (GAICD);

« Certificate of Organisational
Coaching (Level 1 1ECL);

+ Member Local Gavernment
Managers Australia (MLGMA).

Andrew joined Redland City
Council in April 2017. He has
an extensive background

in strategic leadership

and public administration,
bringing a wealth of state and
lacal government experience
to his role as Chief Executive
Officer and head of Council's
Executive Leadership Team.
Andrew has held various
senior executive and CEQ
positions within the public
sector, including Chief
Executive of the Queensland
Public Service Commission,
Director-General of the
Department of Environment
and Heritage Protection,

and Divisional Manager, City
Planning and Sustainability
with Brisbane City Council.

Andrew’s wide-ranging
background also includes
lacal government experience
in the United Kingdom

and a number of Victorian
lacal Councils, He has also
waorked in management
consulting and secondary
school teaching. Until April
2019, Andrew was also a
member and Chairperson of
the CSIRO Land and Water
Advisory Committee,

General Manager
Organisational Services
John Oberhardt
+ Bochelor of Commerce;
=« Master of Public Administration;
« Certified Practising
Accountant (CPA);
« Queensland Local Government
Clerk's Certificote;

- Fellow of Lecal Gavernment
Managers Australia (LGMA);

= LGMA Queensland past presidant

« Local Gavernment Professionals
Austratio National Avdit
Committee Chair;

« Fellow and Graduate Member of the
Australion Institute of Company
Directors (GAICD):

« Justice of the Peace (Qualified);

- Member Internationol City/County
Management Assaciation.

John joined Redland City

Council in April 2017 after

working as a senior executive

in local government for more
than 30 years. During that
time, he has worked in all
areas of local government,
particularly specialising

in finance, governance,

strategic planning, human

resource management,
corporate services and
general administration.

He has also participated

in and worked with many
industry and community
groups, intergovernmental
working parties and local
communities. John has held
various public and private
board and director positions

Prior to commencing his
local government career he
worked in the Commonwealth
Bank. He is committed to the
outstanding performance

and reputation of Council,

its employees, the lacal
government industry

and our communities.

General Manager
Infrastructure & Operations

Peter Best

* Bochelar of Mechanical
Engineering:
« Groduate Austratian Instifute of
Campany Directors (GAICD):
+ Member Australion Institute
of Profect Management;
+ Member Institution of Engineers
Austraiia.
Peter joined Council in
January 2017. He is an
experienced executive
who, during his career,
has led and managed
large multidisciplinary
project management,
operations, maintenance,
engineering and service
delivery teams across a
range of industry sectors.

He is a former General
Manager Infrastructure
Maintenance at Queensland
Urban Utilities, Executive
Director Infrastructure
Programs with the
Queensland State
Government, Group Program
Director with Bosing
Australia Limited and has
held command and senior
leadership rales in the
Royal Australian Air Force.

A Redlander, Peter has
broad experience in project
management, operations,
asset maintenance,
engineering and service
delivery in both the private
and public sectors, in
Australia and overseas.

General Manager

Community

& Customer Services

Louise Rusan

= Bachelor of Business;

- Groduate Australion Institute
of Company Directors (GAICD);

+ Member of Locol Government
Managers Austrolio (MLGMA):

- Certificate of Grgomsational
Coaching (Level 1 IECL);

Louise joined Redland City

Council in January 2011. She

brings to Council mare than

20 years' experience in a

diverse range of private and

public sector industries,

warking in partnership

with stakeholders to

deliver guality outcomes.

Prior to joining Council,
Louise was the Chief
Operating Officer far
Queensland Matorways,
responsible for customer
services, engineering
services and tolling
operations for the Gateway
and Logan Moterways and
the Sir Len Hielscher Bridges.

Louise has previously worked
in executive-level roles at
WaorkCover Queensland, has
been an Associate Director
for a leading Queensland
engineering consultancy

and has worked in a not-
for-profit organisation and

in corporate consultancy.
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Head of People & Culture
Amanda Daly

+ Bachelor of Commerce;

+ Groduate Australian Institute of
Compony Directors (GAICD);

« Certified Member of
Australian Human Resources
Institute (CAHRI);

+ Life Styles Inventory TM (LSI)
Accredited Practitioner;

» Myers-Ariggs Type Indicatar
(MBTI) Certified Practitioner;

* DISC Accredited Proctitioner;

- Certificate of Organisational
Cooching (Level 1TECL);

» Change Style Inventary (CSI)
Certified Proctitioner.

Amanda has been with

Council for more than

20 years holding various

leadership positions.

Amanda manages Workplace
Health, Safety and Wellbeing,
People Development (which
includes talent acquisition
and engagement, onboarding,
learning and development,
recruitment and selection
and organisational
development) and People
Solutions (which includes
payroll and data analytics
and industrial relations),
across a diverse workforce,

Amanda has experience

in the development and
delivery of People Strategies
and the delivery of complex
payroll and contemporary
HR system implementation.

Amanda has previously
held lzadership positions in
customer and community
service delivery.

Chief Financial Officer
Dehorah
Corbett-Hall

« Master of Mathematics (Honowrs);
» Master of Business
(Professional Accounting):

+ Feltow of Certified Practising
Accountants (FCPA) Austrolio;
« Certificate of Organisational
Coaching (Level 1 IECL).
Debaorah joined Redland
City Council in 2006. As
Chief Financial Officer,
Debarah is responsible for
providing leadership and
influence across internal and
external customer-facing
finance functions. Deborah
leads a diverse finance
function and provides
Council with support to
manage in excess of 32.5
billion of community assets
within an annual budget
of $300 million. Deborah
is the Project Sponsor for
Council's transformational
Asset Management Project.

Deborah has held leadership
positions at Council since
2009, including overseeing
the Corporate Finance
portfolio and leading Council
through the annual budget,
long-term forecasting and
strategy development in
financial planning. Deborah
has also led the Commercial
Business portfolio and
Business Partnering

service delivery within the
Financial Services Group.
Prior to joining Redland
City Council, Deborah held
several leadership positions
in the United Kingdom
within Jobcentre Plus, after
serving in the Armed Farces.

General Counsel
Andrew Ross
+ Bochelor of Low;

+ Bochelor of Theology:
+ Master’s in Health Science.

Andrew has been with
Redland City Council

for over 15 years as city
solicitor, Chairperson

aof the Operational Risk
Management Committee,
ligison to the Crime and
Corruption Commission
and member of the
Queensland Environmental
Law Association.

Andrew has an extensive
background in social services
and public health and worked
in private legal practices in
Brisbane, Byron Bay and

the Commonwealth Law
Reform Commission.

Andrew continues to lead
multi-year projects including
the enhancement of Council's
Enterprise Risk Management
Framework aligned to
international standards for
managing risk in existing
Council operations and
future strategic plans. He
sponsors the Procurement
Transformation Program

to deliver better value,
sustainability and efficiency
across public spending on
goods and services. Andrew
chairs a multi-disciplinary
team to review and plan
Council's strategic response to
fire mitigation across the city
and is proud to call Redlands
Coast home with his family,
friends and colleagues.
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Annual Report 2018-2019 | REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
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DEPARTMENT OVERVIEWS

Department Highlights in 2018-2019

Organisational Community Champions help Queensland communities

Servil:es In 2018-2019 Council continued to roll-out its highly successful Community Champions Program.
In February 2019, Redlands Coast community champions were deployed to assist at evacuation

Groups centres as part of the Townsville floading response.

» Financial Services

« General Counsel

» Communication, Engagement
and Tourism

+ Corporate Services

- Corporate Governance

» Corparate Strategy and
Performance

Services delivered

+ Offices of Mayar and
Councillors' operations

- Asset accounting

+ Budgeting, financial planning

and financial modelling

Investment, borrowings and

tax returns

Financial reporting

Payments to suppliers

Rating, water meter reading

and billing

Legal services

Contracts and procurement

Risk and liability services -

including Work Cover

Media and communications

* [ssues management

Community engagement

Marketing, digital media

and design services

Tourism and events

Fleet, small plant and

equipment

Information and

communication technology

service and support

Data management

Business innovation and

technical development

Business transformation

Indigenous partnerships and

programs

Corporate Meetings, Registers

and Complaints Management

Strategy and governance -

including Right to Information

requests

» Internal audit

» Disaster Management

» Corparate planning and
performance management

+ External funding coordination

= Portfolio management

» Strategic Asset Management

» Strategies management

The Southern Moretan Bay [slands (SMBI) Community Champions program began as a joint
initiative with SMBI community volunteers in partnership with Red Cross, Queensland Fire and
Emergency Services and Volunteering Queensland. It has developed into a remarkable example
of Council helping communities to care for themselves.

The first of its kind in Queensland, it involves residents in the planning, preparation, response
and recavery within their own communities during times of emergency. Community Champions
become registered volunteers and received training including psychological first aid and
evacuation, volunteer management and Queensland Disaster Management Arrangements.

Managing community assets

Council is the proud custodian of assets with a replacement value of $3.7 billion and a written-
down value of $2.5 billion, which we manage and maintain on behalf of the community governed
by our Asset Management Framework.

In 2018-2019 Council developed its Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP), which supports

the organisation in the journey of Asset Management maturity, towards compliance with the
international standard [50 55001. Council's SAMP aligns the organisational objectives to Asset
Management objectives; the approach to developing our Asset and Service Management Plans and
the role of the Asset Management System.

Council is committed to delivering reliable services to facilitate sustainable growth through
inspired leadership, community engagement and sound financial management, to meet the needs
and values of our community. This means the right systems and processes, working with the right
people to ensure the right decisions,

An Asset Management Team Steering Committee (AMTSC) has been established to lead the
maturity journey of our Asset Management practice and via this leadership group an initial review
of the internal asset custodianship has been completed to ensure there are clearly defined roles
and responsibilities for all assets across the city.

Redlands Coast brought to life

Redlands Coast, Redland City's unigue destination brand, was endorsed in June 2018 and rolled
out in 2018-2019. The new place brand is designed to support business, attract trade and
investment, open up tourism opportunities and build on the region's already strong community
pride. It does not replace the Redland City Council logo or change the official name of the city.

The brand has adopted significant integration with Quandamooka culture through partnerships
with Elders, Quandamooka artists and dual naming on all communications with local Aboriginal
Quandamooka language Jandai.

Redlands Coast roll-out
- Two new websites to support Redlands Coast
- redlandscoast.com.au: the educational site and portal for locals and businesses
- visitredlandscoast.com.au: the tourism destination marketing website
+ Integrated marketing campaigns including anline, billboards, bus backs and bus shelters,

Achievements

+ 55% awareness of the new brand within four months of the first marketing campaign, which is a
significant achievement as brands take years to develop

- Tourism operators reporting increases in numbers of people using their services due to the new
brand and campaign

+ Mare than 45,000 page views on Redlands Coast tourism website

+ Mare than 1,800 Facebook followers and 1,590 Instagram followers

+ Digital advertisements viewed by around 20,000 people

+ Mare than 12,900 posts on [nstagram using the hashtag #RedlandsCoast

+ Redlands Coast on the Channel 7 weather map and promoting the area through the media
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Key projects for the next 12-18 months

+ Reconciliation Action Plan Kanara Malaro — One People launch and organisational roll-out

+ Way-finding Strategy for Redland City

+ Disaster Management Plan update

+ Continued roll-out of Community Champions program

+ Roll-out of OURspace system for human resource management

+ Implementing Asset Management software — including migration of data and end user training
+ Delivering Procurement Transformation Plan

+ Developing a long-term enterprise portfolio pipeline

+ Delivering Council's Enterprise Risk Management Framework

+ Continued roll-out of Council’s strategic planning and advocacy to fire mitigation across the city
- New city entry signs

+ Policy on Quandamooka place names for city locations

+ Customer service program for city's tourism operators

+ Volunteers/greeters program to assist at the new Visitar Information Centre

+ Quandamooka-designed public art place markers completed at Pulan (Amity Point) and Mulumba (Point Lookout)
+ Redlands Coast digital app to promote local business deals

+ Partnering with other tourism organisations to jointly promote Mareton Bay

- Integrated marketing campaign with Brisbane Marketing to promote Redlands Coast to visitors
+ Supporting SEQ 2032 Olympic bid

+ Oversight of 2020 Redland City Local Government Elections

Southern Moreton Baﬁ Island Community Lhampiaﬁitﬁﬁnﬁgen(y Services re_prr-_-senj:ql_ives
e . b e 5 _‘, ™ 37
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Department Highlights in 2018-2019

Infrastructure Recycling bonus

and 0pe|‘ations Council’s National Recycling Week free bin swap offer in late 2018 was a resounding
Groups success, with more than 1,100 households signing up for a larger recycling bin, well

- Project Delivery Group

« City Operations

+ Water and Waste Infrastructure
« Water and Waste Operations

= City Infrastructure

Services delivered

« Tenders and contracts for Council
projects

= Survey services for Council

- Projects and contractor management

- Council construction projects

= Distribution of potable water supply

- Collection, treatment and disposal of

wastewater

Water guality monitoring and

environmental compliance and

reporting

Waste collection services and

operation of waste transfer stations

Closed landfill management

Long-term planning, design and

construction of new water and

wastewater infrastructure

Asset management and maintenance

for all water and wastewater network

assets

= Sport and recreation
- Aguatic centres

» Halls and venue hire
- Community leasing
= Cemetery services

= Permits

« Secure parking

» Natural areas

» Built assets open space
- Vegetation

- Streetscapes

« Mowing

+ Road maintenance

» Signage

= Car parks

- Footpaths

« Bus shelters

= Marine maintenance
- Boat ramps

* Jetties and pontoons
* Swimming enclosures
« Drainage

- Footbridges

beyond expectations.

Residents were invited to upgrade their regular 240 litre recycling bin to a 340 litre
recycling bin with no upfront establishment fee, with the result allowing Council to
potentially collect an extra 110,000 litres of material for recycling.

The promotion followed waste audits which showed that, by weight, an average of
15.7% of what went into household waste bins was in fact recyclable and belonged
in yellow-top bins.

Road upgrade - S5chool of Arts Road and Collins Street
Work began on the major upgrade of the existing sections of School of Arts Road and
Collins Street, Redland Bay, to meet traffic growth for the area.

The completion of this substantial project, which continues into 2019-2020, will allow
Council to achieve the level of services expected from the community including improved
traffic flow, amenity and accessibility following the significant grawth in new housing in
the area.

The first stage of construction, which began in early 2018-2019, included upgrading
drainage and sewerage infrastructure, relocation of services as well as the construction

of the retaining wall for the proposed road corridor. The second stage will include the
widening of the northern side of School of Arts Road and Collins Street, between Penzance
Drive and Queen Street, Redland Bay.

Reusing roads

Council started a new program to utilise the old asphalt profiled off the surface of sealed
roads when they are resealed. This material has previously been stockpiled and used
periadically as fill or to provide all-weather access to construction sites.

From |uly 2018, this material was stockpiled in the German Church Road Quarry with
the intention of putting it through screening plant and trialling it as a substitute for
normal crushed rock product. The trial showed the material (referred to as profilings)
had a strength approaching that of our standard crushed rock road base and that its
use in road maintenance was actually superior and produced significantly less dust
on unsealed roads.

Approximately 18,000 tonnes of screened profilings were produced in December
2018. The production cost of profilings is approximately $3.70/tonne compared
with $12.90/tonne using traditional rock materials. The savings for 2018-2019
were $165,600. The new product has become the first choice for most applications.

Council is building up a stockpile in readiness for screening plant in late 2019 to
produce another 20,000 tonnes. Council anticipates savings in 2019-2020 in line
with those of 2018-20189, with these savings built into the 2019-2020 budget.

0'Gorman Street Park high commendation

Upgrades to O'Gorman Street Park, Alexandra Hills, achieved a high commendation at the
2019 Queensland Parks and Leisure Awards of Excellence, which showcase outstanding
and innovative efforts in the parks and leisure industry. The park facelift involved
upgrading existing facilities as well as installing new features such as a multi-purpose
court, 5 mjelly fish slide, multi-spinner carousel, embankment slide, forest house and
funky play xylophone. The design also incorporated pathways, plants, sandstone blocks
and boulders, natural timber features, turf and soft-fall areas, new seating, shelter and

a BBQ. 0'Gorman Street Park was recognised for its inclusiveness, imagination and the
opportunities it created for interaction with the natural wonders of Redlands Coast.
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Key priorities for the next 12-18 months

+ Point Lookout Sewerage Extension Project

+ Supporting Seqwater's drought management program as part of Council's membership of the south-east Queensland water service
providers network

+ Option planning for the management of wastewater in the Capalaba catchment

+ Regional collaboration and progression of the Expressions of Interest process for the delivery of resource recovery and waste
disposal services

+ Ongoing education program — preventing wastewater blockages

+ Moreton Bay Cycleway Victoria Point stages 1and 2

+ William Street breakwater extension (100 m of Rock Wall to protect William Street boat ramp users entering and leaving Moreton Bay)

+ Repairs to rock groynes at Raby Bay

+ Stage 2A of Thornlands Community Park, Thornlands - establishing an all-abilities playground to complement the initial works
completed in 2018-2019

+ Continued upgrade and renewal of bus shelters, seats and boarding points

+ Transport connectivity Southern Moreton Bay Islands (SMBI) - negotiate an agreement with the State Government on design of
four ferry terminal pontoons at Karragarra, Lamb, Russell and Macleay islands

+ Finalisation of revetment wall upgrades to 21-25 Mainroyal Court and Binnacle Court

+ Revetment wall stabilisation at Seacrest Court

+ Collins Street and School of Arts Road upgrade Stage 2, Redland Bay

+ Online Venue Management System (Datascape) deployment

+ Tracks and Trails - linkages, fire access and recreational use

+ Comprehensive maintenance and inspection program covering all footbridges across Redlands Coast

+ Aguatic Paradise canal trench blocks, Birkdale

+ Weinam Creek parking and development project, Redland Bay

0’Gorman Street Park, Alexandra Hills (Nandeehie/Indillie)
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Department

Community and
Customer Services

Groups

» City Planning and Assessment

« Community and Economic Development
+ Customer and Cultural Services

= Environment and Regulation

Services delivered

» Strategic planning

« Infrastructure planning and charging

* Transport planning

» Planning assessment

« Engineering and environmental
assessment

- Planning and development searches

+ Regulatory functions associated with
private building certification services
and administering the Building Act

» Social infrastructure planning

= Community safety

» Community development planning

« Grants and sponsorship

» Screen industry liaison

» Lead Council’s involvement in the
State Government’s North Stradbroke
Istand Econamic Transition Strategy

+ Implementation of the Redlond City
Economic Development Framework
2014-2041

+ Strategic framework for Redlands
Ecanomic Development Advisory
Board

» Economic development and
investment attraction

+ Economic analysis

« International relations

= Advancing Regional Innovation Program

+ Smart Cities

* Integrated Customer Contact Centre

» Library Services

* Creative arts

+ Redland Performing Arts Centre (RPAC)

+ Redland Art Gallery (RAG)

» Redland Animal Shelter

= Animal management

+ Local laws

« Regulated parking

+ Development control

= Plumbing and drainage assessment

+ Erosion and sediment control

» Environmental health

+ Environmental compliance

* Pest management

» IndigiScapes Centre

+ Environmental policy and planning

» Environmental delivery and
partnerships

» Environmental education

» Property services

+ Advertising signs regulation

Highlights in 2018-2019

New library technology

During 2018-2019 Council installed Radio Frequency Identification (RFID) technology in
Council’s three largest library branches - Cleveland, Capalaba and Victoria Point. Unlike
barcodes that have to be scanned individually, the new RFID tags on all library items allow
five to eight books to be scanned at once.

New check-in bookshelves were installed that allow customers to return books as they enter
the library, with the books being immediately available for others to borrow. Aside from
easier checkouts and returns, the removal of barrowing counters has created more public
space for community use. The technology has allowed these libraries to improve workflows

Library employees continue to help customers with their needs, along with new reference
pods to assist with enguiries. The technology is a key step towards delivering our Library
Services Strategy 2017-2022.

Delivering the Koala Conservation Action Plan

In August 2018 Ormiston was announced as Redlands Coast's first koala safe
neighbourhood precinct. The initiative, run in conjunction with a number of research
institutions, including Grifth University and University of the Sunshine Coast, was
created to aid koala conservation

The Ormiston koala safe neighbourhood precinct project includes a community koala
monitaring pragram as well as a science-based road signage trial, conducted by Griffith
University, that would study the most effective signage to increase driver vigilance.

A raft of programs have been rolled out under Council's Kool Conservation Action Plan
2016-2021 with activities including habitat and conservation planning, koala threat
mitigation initiatives and a multi-faceted koala education campaign.

Council's environment and education team have developed education campaigns to raise
community awareness of the importance of restraining dogs at night, being aware of koalas
roaming during their breeding season from July to November and being vigilant when
driving.

In addition to the new work being undertaken, Council also continued facilitating koala
conservation programs such as koala habitat plantings, Redlands Wildlife Ambulance, the
One Million Native Plants initiative and the annual Morth Stradbroke Island Koala Survey.

Film-friendly Redlands Coast continues to gain international recognition
The ‘naturally wonderful locations of film-friencly Redlands Coast were showcased to
audiences in more than 190 countries when Tidelands — the first Netflix original drama
series to be commissioned and made completely in Australia - streamed globally on

14 December 2018.

Tidelands filmed throughout Redlands Coast for more than 20 days between April and July
2018, providing an economic boost for our local accommodation providers, restaurants,
cafés, boating companies and community groups. This included 11 nights spent an North
Stradbroke Island. Redlands Coast locations featured in Tidelonds include Cleveland,
Victoria Point and Redland Bay on the mainland; Dunwich, Amity, Home Beach and Adder
Rock on North Stradbroke Island and the spectacular southern Moreton Bay.

December 2018 also saw the international release of box-office-breaking Warner Bros.
blockbuster Aquaman, topping more than US$1.14b in ticket sales. Redlands Coast
locations featured include South Gorge, North Stradbroke Island and southern Mareton Bay.

In January 2019 production company Hoodlum Entertainment returned to Redlands Coast
to film Harrow Season 2. Cast members as well as 55 crew were on location filming for a day.
Redlands Coast community groups that benefited from the filming included the Australian
Volunteer Coast Guard Association Redland Bay and Redland Bay Amateur Fishing Club.

In February and March 2019, Disney television crime drama Reef Break filmed on location in
southern Moreton Bay. The series, featuring Poppy Montgomery (Unfargettable, Without
A Trace), premiered on ABC USA an 20 June 2019,

In April 2019, Redlands Coast welcomed more than 150 cast and crew of Hollywood feature
film Monster Problems from Paramount Players, a division of Paramount Pictures. A tourism
operator from Mount Cotton and a home owner from Alexandra Hills benefited from filming.
Manster Problems stars Dylan O'Brien (Bumblebee, Maze Runner), essica Henwick (Jron Fist,
Game of Thrones), Michael Rooker (The Walking Dead, Guardians of the Galaxy) and Ariana
Greenblatt (Avengers: Infinity War, Stuck in the Middle).
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Key projects for the next 12-18 months

+ Make amendments to Redland City Plan as required

+ Progress the local Eurapean Heritage City Plan amendment package

» Finalise the Redlands Coast Transport Strategy for implementation

- Implement an autonomous vehicle trial on Karragarra Island

+ Implement the Cleveland Centre Traffic and Transport Action Plan 2019-2020

+ Deliver the interactive planning scheme project with funding approved by the State Government

+ Develop an Age-Friendly City Strategy

+ Review the Redland Youth Strotegy 2015-2020

+ Ongoing delivery of grants and sponsorship program

+ Delivery of Education and Training Industry Sector Plan 2018-2023, Health Care and Social Assistance Industry Sectar Plan
2018-2023 and Rural Enterprises Industry Sector Plon 2019-2024

+ Develop a Manufacturing Industry Sector Plan

+ Develop an [nvestment Attraction Plan including a concierge model

+ Development of a Smart and Cannected City Strategy

- Ongoing delivery of Advancing Regional Innavation Program

+ Ongoing delivery of the Library Services Strategy 2017-2022

+ Delivery of Customer Experience Business Improvement Project

+ Deliver climate control project for Redland Art Gallery (RAG) collection storage

+ Ongoping delivery of environmental and land management strategies

+ Development of Redlonds Coast Bay and Creeks Plan

+ Completion of Redlands IndigiScapes centre expansion project (stages 2 and 3) redevelopment

+ Delivery of the fire risk reduction compliance program

+ Pilot in-ground sensors for regulated parking management

+ Development of Strategic Property Framework

+ Plan for future use of strategic and operational land parcels including Birkdale and Cleveland Point

+ Ongoing delivery of Koolo Conservation Action Plan 2016-2021

+ Providing a performing and visual arts program
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OUR PEOPLE

People and Culture (P&C)

Groups

« Safety and Wellbeing

+ People Development

= HRIS (OURspace) Program
+ People Solutions

Services delivered

+ Recruitment

+ Onboarding

+ Pay and benefits management

+ Learning and development

+ Leadership and culture management
» Change management

- Industrial and employee relations

« Safety and wellbeing

People Strategy 2017-2020

The purpose of the People Strategy is to drive significantly better
outcomes for our Redlands Coast community by supparting and
investing in our people. We are a people-focused organisation that
understands it is through our people that we produce great results
and an ability to altract, retain and grow our capability to achieve
what our Corparate Plan sets out to do.

The People Strategy 2017-2020 was supported by an annual action

plan, which in 2018-2019 focused on:

« Negotiating a new Officers’ Certified Agreement and Employees’
Certified Agreement

« Introducing a new People and Culture business people
partnering model to better support the arganisation on people
management matters

+ Preparing for implementation of Council’s new Human Resource
Information System OURspace that delivers anline timesheeting,

dashboard reporting and cascading performance goals -

all available for the first time on both PC and mobile phone
Delivering leadership development on topics of change
management sponsorship, innovation and diversity and inclusion
Continuing to deliver mentoring and coaching programs to assist
career development

Implementing actions from the May 2018 MySay employee
engagement survey relating to team effectiveness, leadership
visibility, career progression and cross-Council communication

Driving a safety and wellbeing culture through delivery of
continued and new programs

Piloting a new talent management identification process and
assessment

Teams

As the internal service provider for and about people,

Council's People and Culture cycle - recruiting, onboarding,
developing, retaining and offboarding — focuses on creating
customised solutions that fit the needs of the organisation. This is
underpinned by a safe and healthy workplace and environment.
The P&C structure and service delivery model aligns with the
People Strategy 2017-2020 and is reflective of this approach.

Office of People and Culture

Led by the Head of Peaple and Culture, this group's focus is driving
the delivery of the People Strategy and key strategic projects and
initiatives,

People Solutions

The People Solutions group's focus is on delivering tactical

and strategic advice and assistance in the areas of industrial

and employee relations; payroll and workforce data analytics;
individual and collective case management; grievance and
dispute resolution; people performance and policy and procedure
development.
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People Development

The Peaple Development team’s focus is talent engagement and
organisational development encompassing recruitment and
selection, learning and development, reward and recognition,
talent and succession management, leadership and culture

and change management,

Safety and Wellbeing

Council's Safety First Redland agenda continued to grow and
develop in 2018-2019 with a major focus on mental heallh and
wellbeing of officers and addressing the challenges of an ageing
waorkforce. Our Safety Management Plan continued to provide
direction for Council to work towards its vision of preventing all
work-related injuries and illnesses.

Council undertook a series of Self Assurance Audits to determine
compliance with IS0 45001 Occupational Health and Safety
management systems within business units. The audits were to
assess the management system for compliance to the standard
and the effectiveness of their implementation in operational areas.
Positive results were received in the annual external audit of our
Safety Management System.

Respirable dust risk controls were developed to a level seen
as best practice by Workplace Health and Safety Queensland
(WHSQ).

Council's Wellbeing program was showcased by WHSQ at the
launch of its Health and Wellbeing Toolkit.

Our focus on the health and wellbeing of our people increased

and we delivered improved services including:

» A program of risk controls being developed to address the
hazards that Q fever brings to our workplace

» Highlighting health and fitness levels and developing supports
for our workers who have to enter confined spaces

= Introducing the Redland City Council Fitness Passport

» Introducing Mental Health Training for all managers, supervisors
and workers

+ Continuing to prepare its workforce to better deal with situations
of occupational violence

Council has led the re-establishment of the quarterly meeting
of Workplace Health and Safety professionals from all local
governments in south-east Queensland. This network allows the
sharing of learnings and collaboration on issues,

We continued work on a Hazards of Work project, involving hazard
identification and risk control development for workers across
Council.

Council continued to approach Health and Safety by aligning
to Safety Differently principles. Qur frontline leaders continued
to work to embed safety culture, refine safety systems and
demanstrate safety leadership.

Recruitment and Selection

Council introduced a centralised approach to the management

of its temporary agency warkers, by appainting Comensura, a
sole, vendor-neutral, managed service provider in July 2018. The
Recruitment and Selection Team managed the process of engaging
temporary agency workers, with Comensura providing a single
online system for managing and extending tempaorary agency

worker contracts and timesheets and negotiating best value
agreements with agencies and suppliers.

The Recruitment and Selection Team also managed the Casual
Administration Resource Pool, which was established in 2014,
There are approximately 30 employees currently in the pool.

They are in high demand across the organisation due to the
diverse range of Council-specific skills they possess. These workers
provided assistance across all Council departments during periods
of high workload and/or relieving employees on leave.

During 2018-2019, Council participated in three careers
exhibitions hosted by Cleveland District State High School, QUT
University and Redlands College. QUT students were particularly
interested in learning about Council’s information management,
engineering, environmental science, business, construction and
water and waste, while Redlands College year 11 students learned
about the diverse range of career options that Council has to offer,
in addition to our work experience and traineeship programs.
Council is scheduled to attend further career expos in 2019-2020
to continue to engage and educate the community about careers
available at Council.

Diversity and Inclusion

Council partnered with Emberin to launch our new Inclusion
Story, helping our leaders to think bigger about inclusion and
develop new leadership habits, This CEOQ-led program was
rolled out to Council's 60-strong Operational Leadership Group
(OLG) and involved workshops, intensive e-learning modules
and peer learning groups. Participants learned that inclusive
leadership increases employee productivity and performance,
generates greater engagement and loyalty, improves innavation
and creativity and promotes greater collaboration. The program
concludes in 2019-2020 and our leaders will be supported in
their continued journey to embed these new behaviours in their
everyday jobs.

Leadership and corporate
employee development

During 2018-2019 Council's LEAP (Lead, Engage, Adapt, Perform)
program continued to be offered to all employees to help build
capability at three levels - foundational, practice and mastery.
The program, which is directly aligned to Council’s values, also
linked content across modules (e.g. innovation courses aligned
with change management courses) and provided opportunities for
collaboration of our internal and external trainers

The Mate to Manager Program, founded in 2017 for employees
who step into team leader roles on a regular basis, continued
to help build capability to lead and manage teams. Since its
introduction, 68 emerging leaders have graduated from the
program with another 34 currently engaged.

The mentoring program continued inta its third year with 13
trained mentors assisting their respective mentees to navigate
through industry and speciality-based knowledge and be a
sounding board for their many guestions. This program continued
to grow and flourish as mentees became more confident and
mentors enhanced their own leadership skills.

The inaugural Outdoor Mentoring Program was rolled out to
support our outdoor workforce. Seven mentors and mentees
participated in the pilat program.
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The internal Coaching Bench continued to be a centrepiece far
individuals seeking to develop, grow or stretch into current or future
roles. The coaching provided an oppartunity for individuals to gain
deeper insights, resolve challenges and progress professional goals.

Employees were invited to nominate for a fully-funded Diploma of
Local Government Administration, with 16 placemenls being filled
by a diverse group of participants. The program was delivered

by PEAK Services (a business arm of the Local Government
Assaciation of Queensland) over an eight-month period with
participants graduating with a qualification aligned to work
required as part of their role with Council, such as budgeting and
policy develapment.

Trainee and apprenticeship program

Council had seven trainees and apprentices across business
administration, sport and recreation, waste management, pest
management and automotive mechanics work areas. Maxima was
relained as the Group Training Organisation to ensure we offered a
sustainable and improved experience for trainees, apprentices and
supervisors. Council's program supported school-leavers, youth at
risk, [ndigenous and mature-aged people looking to re-enter the
warkforce and other applicants whao faced barriers to employment.
The placement of trainees and apprentices within Council is
instrumental in our succession planning for a changing and

ageing workforce.

Employee capability programs 2019

The CEQ's Global Coastal Cities program continued to develop
emerging leaders and bring a global view to their thinking.

This program was an internal forum to explore global trends,
innovation and best practice to local government. It brought
together a group of employees from across Council - each
passionate and excited by the way they work, interact and care
about their communities - to investigate and share thoughts and
ideas from other cities with the CEO and like-minded colleagues.

Participants developed new concepts for sharing in an informal
and collegiate manner, creating virtual new teams and building
stronger alliances across Council,

The Strong Teams program was introduced to extend team
performance, as indicated by team results in the May 2018 MySay
employee engagement survey. The program was rolled out to four
teams, assisting with building accountability, trust, communication
skills and higher performance and was supported by a team
diagnostic survey, individual and team coaching, a masterclass

on team effectiveness and action interventions. The program will
continue to build and strengthen in 2019-2020.

Cultural awareness information is included in all employee
inductions and monthly Quandamooka Cultural Day training
sessions at North Stradbroke Island (Minjerribah) were
attended by 125 employees during the year. The Quandamooka
Yoolooburrabee Aboriginal Corporation (QYAC) continued to
offer Aboriginal cultural heritage training to Council employees
throughout the year.

Change Management Capability 2019

Change Management Capability was further developed through
Executive training on project sponsorship, development of new
Leading Change and Change Fitness courses and training for
Project Managers.

An organisational view of change was created using a Change
Impact Heat Map. Significant projects overseen by the change
portfolio included the new HRIS development and implementation,
Asset Management System implementation, Procurement
Transformation, Windows 10 roll-out, Libraries RFID technology
roll-out and the Redlands IndigiScapes centre expansion project.

Developing capable leaders

Council's Learning and Development Programs were nominated
for an LGMA Queensland Award for Excellence in 2018 for

the People Development group's work in developing new and
innovative programs for managers and employees, drawing

on internal and external talent.

The Mate to Manager Program has seen 68 emerging leaders
graduate since its introduction in 2017, with outcomes for
some participants including internal promaotions, taking an
mentoring roles and becoming formal influencers on corporate-
wide projects.

Key priorities/projects for next

12-18 months

+ Embed OURspace

+ Implementing actions from the 2019 MySay employee
engagement survey

« Implementing new Talent Management Framework

» Develop Diversity and Inclusion Action plans and deliver on
those commitments

» Develop Employee Value Proposition (EVP) and undertake
Employer Branding (EB)

iy
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Annual Report 2018-2019 | REDLAND CITY COUNCIL

E M P I_OY E ES Employees (total number of employees)
AT A GLANCE st gt
Permanent part-time 19

97 Casual
Employees recruited 81

Temporary contract of
service full-time Elected members

105 11

Temporary contract of Total employees

service part-time 1.0
18 ? 79

The corporate profile captures positions and varies from
employee figures for a number of reasons such as vacancies, job
c 0 r p 0 ra te p I'Oﬁ le shares, flexible working arrangements and partial filling of roles.

Full-time equivalent (FTE)

employees 958.60

Absenteeism

A 30% Full-time permanent positions 880
Part-time permanent positions 39
Full-time temporary positions 71
vi Employee- g .
E initiated Part-time temporary positions 10
E turnover rate R t oasit 16
ew full-time permanent positions
s | 10.14%
% Employer- New part-time permanent positions 1
O | initiated
3 turnover rate New full-time temporary positions 36
=N o,
2 0'65 A’ New part-time temporary positions 5
=3 Employees
IE made redundant New casual positions 3‘[
2
Employees Gender balance
re-deployed/retrained -
due to redundancy Female : Male
0 Executive Leadership Team (ELT) 43% 57%
Senior Management Team 0,
(including ELT 30 A) i 70%
Total employees 53.48% 46.43%
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

Mayor Employee Excellence Award (internal)

The Mayor Award is the highest formal recognition an employee at Redland
City Council can receive. This prestigious award recognises an individual's
outstanding commitment to enriching community lifestyles through the
promotion and delivery of the Corporate Plan 2 . The winner of the
2018 Mayor Award was Melissa Brooks.

Melissa Brooks
Communication, Engagement and Tourism Group

Melissa went above and beyond to roll-out the new city brand Redlands Coast
= *Naturally Wonderful’. The brand was built by community, business and
visitors through a consultation process managed by Melissa that is one of the
largest undertaken by a local government, engaging more than 5,000 locals,
businesses and visitors for their views.

Melissa also led the development of two new websites as part of the

branding project.

The new brand promotes what is wonderful about our Redlands Coast and
why people come and stay here — the coast, the water, nature and the people.

The brand is squarely aimed at developing economic opportunities

through promotion of what is the essence of our city and then using that

to attract investment, business and visitors into the area.

CEO Employee Excellence Awards

Formally recognising individuals and teams who have demonstrated an above and beyond commitment to Council's five core

organisational values: Customer Service, One Team, Account

Award cotegory Winner

Customer Service
(three winners)

Byron Shreeve
Strengthening Communities Team

Deborah May
Facilities Services Team

John Dujmovic
Communication, Engagement
and Tourism Group

One Team
(three winners)

Pippa Donaldson
Environment and Education Unit

Janelle Arcon
Integrated Customer Contact Centre Unit
(iccc)

Tracy Carrick
City Operations Team

Tim Mitchell
City Planning and Assessment Group for
Transport Planning

Accountability

Dale Watson
Environment and Education Unit

ity, Growth and Communication.

Achievement acknowledged

Helping to make Redlands Coast a safer place

Prompt and efficient customer service

His calm and empathic manner in which he impressively
deals with the community

Improving team collaboration

Always exceeding fellow employees’ expectations with her
assistance

Taking on board tasks across teams with a positive approach

His autstanding delivery of the new transport strategy for the
city

Consistently delivering better outcomes for Council,
employees and the community
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Award category

Communication
(two winners)

Team Award

Winner

Crystal Byth
Corporate Strategy and
Perfarmance Group

Janelle Piscopo
Workplace Relations Team

Bushfire Volunteers from various
Council areas - Adom Pearce, Angelo
Ritchie, Bo McIlwain, Col Rackham,
Dane Green, Daniel Potent, Daryl
Jack, Glen Turner, Glenn McCarthy,
Greg Whiles, lan Heath, Joshua
Nothling, Justin Schreiweis, Laksen
Bandaranayake, Liom Redman,

Luke Duncomb, Luke James, Michuel
Goode, Neal Hewson, Robert Cowan,
Robert McGimpsey, Rory House, Sam
Heath, Shane Stevenson, Stevo Rudez
and Wayne Bailey

Employee Safety Awards

Safety First Award

Dean Rousell
Water and Waste Operations Group

Safety First Team Award Conservation Services Team

Winner - MAGNA (Museum:
fo Jrochur :

s Australia Publication Design Aw
€ X n

2019 Australasian
uncil Annual

High Commendation — B

L laniy

est Play Space under 55

of rmar

rs Austr;

Centre

Achievement acknowledged

Providing an exceptional level of internal communication

Communicating in a manner that peaple clearly understand

During extreme conditions each member volunteers to be part
of an after-hours response standby team which is often called
out at night and weekends

The team members choose to volunteer to protect their
community and Council's assets which includes large areas of
Council conservation land

Awarded for his solution for @ workplace hazard for
wastewater treatment plant operators

Awarded for their contribution to improving health and safety

Mayor and CEO Employee Excellencé Award winners
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BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION

Council’s Business Transformation Program has been developed and delivered to support the
organisation in undertaking strategic transformation, cross-functional service improvements
and continuous improvement.

Tier1

» Transformation Strategy and tactical plan

+ Onetransformation at a time

= Business Transformation Lead takes lead and works with ELT/
SLT to define and implement initiatives

Strategic

Strategy driven

Tier 2

. + Accountable manager takes lead and works with

Cross-functional and relevant stakeholders

service improvement + Business Transformation Lead supports planning/
facilitation of larger cross-functional improve-

ments

Tier 3

* Respansible officer takes lead and
Continuous imprnvemgnt works with relevant stakeholders
+ Supported thiough Corporate

and Business Transformation
training program

Business/customer driven

Community benefits delivered

* Cafch pits in kerbsides are used to minimise debris reaching woterways. A trial to use o modified street sweeper to vacuum clegn pits led to the fncreose in productivity.

BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION IN ACTION -
INNOVATION IN TECHNOLOGY

Use of innovative and emerging technologies is one way Council's Business Transformation Program is changing its operations Lo provide
streamlining and time-saving opportunities and new capabilities.

The Internet of Things (IoT) is a rapidly growing and expanding technology arena with a large array of sensors and devices that can be
used to accurately and efficiently gather data for analytics.

Taking advantage of innovations greatly enhances the ability for Council to provide a real-time digital link to vital community services,
such as vehicle parking, rubbish collection, water quality and more. Sensors communicate wirelessly with their gateways anywhere up to
within a 10 km radius.

In 2018-2019 Council has been working with the QUT Capstone program to deliver a small-scale smart parking solution, with 10 sensors being
installed in the Cleveland area to gather park utilisation data, as well as displaying current parking availability using a map-overlay interface.

Another example is the important, yet often labour intensive, parameter of water guality monitoring, Council now has sensors available

to monitor temperature, dissolved oxygen levels, pH and particulate levels and much more. Sensors have the ability to be quickly deployed
in hoth salt and fresh waters, are solar powered and require infrequent calibration - meaning employees spend less time calibrating
equipment and more time collecting and analysing data.

Other sensors in use, or being trialled, include a Netvox sensor which contains the ability to monitor air quality, humidity and temperature
changes in areas where it is placed and bin sensors, which wirelessly monitor the level or density of a rubbish bin's contents, ensuring
bins are emptied only when needed.

Use of these sensors has become a staple of Council's ‘smart city’ capabilities to the benefit of all of Redlands Coast.
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2018-2019 Achievements Reinvesting for future benefits and driving future
innovation within Redland City Council

Continued roll-out of strategic projects « Pilot energy monitoring to identify sustainability solutions

- Asset Management + Smart meters monitoring water guality for public and

- Procurement Transformation environmental health

+ Stralegic Service Planning - Investigation of oppartunities to digitise forms

+ Customer Experience and Business Improvement o
Process efficiencies

Cross-functional service improvements + Digitised record requast time reduced by 2.5 business days
» Two new training courses being rolled out, reaching 51 attendees
» Eight business transformation warkshops to foster innovation
and business improvement were held, reaching 116 participants .
Business
Continuous improvement Transformation
+ A comprehensive business transformation toolkit delivered more than
supporting innovation and business improvement was 1114
developed, released and further refined $2 m] l'h On
« A process was implemented for capturing and reporting of additional infrastructure
benefits via a monthly organisational scorecard and a quarterly to the community
report to the Chiel Executive Officer

Sensofs in use i Road improvements
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COUNCIL'S COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Council believes that effective community engagement delivers genuine benefits by ensuring
our residents are properly informed and their views, needs and concerns are understood when

decisions are made.

Council engages with stakeholders on a wide range of works and
community issues and projects.

This contact with our community is part of our business as usual
and is part of our everyday efforts to serve those on Redlands
Coast.

At times, we will conduct specific engagements. These vary in size
and scale, from localised engagements on projects such as water
main repairs to city-wide engagements on strategies and plans,

Council's community engagement is guided by the International
Assaciation for Public Participations (1AP2) Code of Ethics, an
independent membership-based peak body. Broadly, the [AP2
defines different levels of community engagement - Inform,
Consult, Involve, Collaborate and Empower — and provides Council
with a blueprint for determining which is most appropriate for
specific issues.

Residents are advised of community engagements through a range
of ways, depending on the size and scope of engagement.

Consultation could include digital platforms, community reference
groups, local meetings, media and advertising, social media,
pop-ups at community events, flyers, posters and direct mail.

People are also able to subscribe to Council's social media
services to be informed, or visit yoursay.redland.gld.gov.au,
where they can find information about Council’s latest
engagements, as well as project updates.

P gt ed

Major stakeholder
groups

Businesses

Cammunity groups,
special interest
groups and resident
and ratepayer
associations

Custamers,
ratepayers
and residents

Emergency services
and support
agencies

Who we engage with and how

Ways we engage

« Business e-newsletters

« Business forums and breakfasts
- Business training events

« Industry round tables

« Tourism sub-commitlee

- Meetings

- Joint projects

* Forums

- Committees

« Joint Projects

« Meetings

+ Website

« Community reference groups

+ Customer service

+ Community forums and meetings

< ‘Open House' community

engagement days

Council's "Your Say" interactive

website page

+ Pop-up community engagement

booths at events, shopping centres

and parks

Focus groups

Direct mail

Council general meetings

Publications and newsletters

including:

- Council’s Our Redlands Coast
magazine to all residents and
ratepayers

- e-newsletters

- Councillor newsletters

Social media

Display and public notice

advertising

Rates notice inserts

Website

Surveys (telephone, online and

hard copy)

Media

Annual report

Annual budget

Financial reporting

Local Disaster Management Group
membership

= Joint training

+ Meetings

« Email updates

- Website

« Social media
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Major stakeholder Ways we engage
groups

+» Committee memberships
Government - Formal meetings
agencies — federal « Stakeholder briefings
and state « Correspandence

- Events

- Media releases
- Briefings

« [nterviews

« Familiarisations

Media

+ Direct mail
Meighbours affected | » Stakeholder notices
by Council projects + Meetings

+ Forums

+ Stakeholder groups
Partners and + Forums
collaboratars + Meetings

+ Joint projects

» Scheduled business days with

Quandamooka Yooloohurrabee

Quandamooka Aboriginal Corporation (QYAC)
People, Traditional - Partnership projects
Owners of much » Tourism Subcommittee
of Redlands Coast - Meetings

- Cultural training for Council

employees

« Tourism sub-committee

« Specialist training sessions

+ Annual tourism and events forum
Tourism and + Meetings with community event
event specialists organisers

= Tourism and Events newsletters

- Redlands Coast website

+ Social media

« Familiarisations

« Visitor Information Centre
+ Events
Visitors and » e-newsletlers

tourists + Redlands Coast destination website

+ Social media
- Media

+ Stakeholder Committees

+ Joint programs and events

+ Annual volunteer thank you event

+ Redland Art Gallery Volunteers'
Volunteers meetings and training

» Newsletters

- Website

= Social media

= Familiarisations

Some 2018-2019

engagements

+ Biennial Customer
Satisfaction Survey

+ Draft Redlands Coast
Transport Strategy

+ Disaster preparedness

+ Amity Paoint Shoreline Erosion
Management Planning

+ Animal Management
Local Law Amendments

+ Canoe and kayak launch

pontoon

+ Cascades Gardens Playground
and Water Feature Makeovers

+ Community Gardens

+ Cleveland Markets -
Animal management
+ Local Law amendments for safe

use of kayak and canoe pontoons

» Proposed Community Garden
at Fielding Park, Redland Bay

Proposed Local Law amendments
for Wellington Paint Bathing
Reserve

Proposed New Waste
Management Local Law

- Raby Esplanade Park Upgrade

+ Redland IndigiScapes Centre
Expansion project

« Redlands Coast Regional
Sport and Recreation Precinct

School of Arts Road and
Collins Street Roadworks

Snapper Street Pedestrian Link

Station Master's Cottage
relocation and use

+ Temporary Parklet Trial

51
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COUNCIL EVENTS ON REDLANDS COAST

In 2018-2019 Council delivered more than 80 community and corporate events from charity fundraisers
to citizenship ceremonies and industry forums to Christmas concerts.

Highlights from Council’s calendar of events are featured below.
For more information on Council’s events see pages 96-99.

Redland City Australian Citizenship Ceremonies

- July 2018 to June 2019

In 2018-2019 Council conducted five Citizenship Ceremonies to
formally welcome new citizens as full members of the Australian
and Redlands Coast community. At these ceremonies Redlands
Coast welcomed 634 citizens from 55 countries of birth.

Australian Citizenship is an important common bond for all
Australians (whether Australians by birth or by choice) and lies
at the heart of a unified, cohesive and inclusive Australia.

Redland City Mayoral Prayer Breakfast - August 2018
The annual Mayoral Prayer Breakfast held in August 2018 raised
maore than $20,000 for state school chaplaincy programs across
Redlands Coast. 280 people, including school chaplains, church
and school leaders, government representatives, business people
and community members attended the breakfast, which was held
at the Alexandra Hills Hotel Conference Centre. School chaplaincy
programs deliver vital support and guidance for Redlands Coast
students with programs run by chaplains making a positive
contribution to our state schools and the funds at this event
helped that work continue.

Lighting of the Christmas Tree - November 2018

The festive season was welcomed in style on Friday 30 November
2018 with Lightup Your Christmas - the annual lighting of
Redlands Coast's Christmas tree in Cleveland’s Library Sguare.
The free event, attended by 3,000 people, included free stage and
roaming entertainment, children’s craft activities and writing a
letter to Santa in the Redland Libraries, Christmas Markets with
local traders and restaurants spreading the Christmas spirit.

Diner en Rouge 2019

Christmas by Starlight - December 2018

Christmas by Starlight, Council's largest free community event
was held on 15 December 2018 at Norm Price Park, Redland
Showgrounds and attended by more than 10,000 people.

The star-studded lineup included Casey Donovan, Carmen
Monarcha, Luke Antony, Emma Pask, Ellen Reed, Renae Suttie,
Skye Parker and local talent including Redlands Coast's

Alexa Curtis, Leah Lever, Scott Muller, Craig Martin,
Jacqueline Duckwaorth, Redland Dance, ROCKIT productions,
Vocal Manoeuvres Academy, Redland City Bands and the
Yulu-Burri-Ba Dancers. Christmas by Starlight has the reputation
as one of the best free family Christmas event in south-east
Queensland.

Volunteers’ Thank You Function - December 2018
Council recognised and thanked more than 150 community
members at its annual volunteers’ brunch on Saturday

2 December. Volunteers from community programs including
the arts, sports, cultural and environmental groups, as well
as emergency services, were acknowledged at the event

held at the Myharizon Function Centre, Runnymede Road,
Capalaba.

Redlands Coast Australia Day Awards - January 2019
Each year, Redland City Council recognises outstanding residents
and community organisations through our annual Australia

Day Awards.

On 22 January 2019, Council named the recipients of the
Redlands Coast Australia Day Awards 2019. These included
Citizen of the Year - Maryann Talia Pau, Young Citizen of the
Year - Madina Mohmood and Senior Citizen of the Year -
Rita Marris.

Mayoral Prayer
Breakfast 2018
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Candle Lighting Vigil - May 2019

To marlk the start of Domestic and Family Vielence Prevention
Month on 1 May, Council - in partnership with Centre for Women
& Co and the Red Rose Foundation - hosted a special Candle
Lighting Vigil at Raby Bay Harbour Park. The Candle Lighting
Vigil was an opportunity for Redlanders to gather to reflect
on the lives lost each year as a result of domestic and family
violence. The community event was attended by more than
80 people including elected members, community leaders,
Domestic Violence Support Services, Emergency Service
persannel and community members

Diner en Rouge - May 2019

Diner en Rouge gala banguet, held during Domestic and Family
Violence prevention manth in May 2019, was attended by

mare than 250 people at the Redland Showgrounds Plaza. The
location was again kept secret until the night to reflect the often
secretive nature of domestic and family violence starting at
Redland Museum and then on to The Redlands Showgrounds
Plaza. The event, run by Council in conjunction with Zonta Clubs,
Soroptimist International, Rotary Club of Cleveland, the Redland
Foundation and domestic and family violence support service
has raised more than $300,000 since its inception in 2014 with
another generous donation of $50,000 provided by Redlands
Coast resident Dan Holzapfel. Redland’s Coast's Maybanke
Accommodation and Crisis Support service was presented

with a cheque for $250,000 to suppart the much-needed crisis
accommodation. This was in addition to the $10,000 donated

in 2017.

Tourism and Events Forum 2019

Redlands Coast Tourism and Events Forum, run by Council, is
an annual industry event that provides invaluable networking
oppartunities and professional development training for local
Redlands Coast tourism and event operators on current trends,
best practice and innovations across the local, state and
national tourism and event industry. The forum was attended by
mare than 170 industry representatives from Redlands Coast.

Christmas by Starlight 2018
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WORKING TOGETHER ON

QUANDAMOOKA COUNTRY
2018-2019 PROJECTS AND INITIATIVES

As part of its business as usual, Council continues to work with the Quandamooka People, Traditional
Owners of much of Redlands Coast, to advance projects relating to cultural tourism, cultural heritage
protection, land management, wildlife and animal management, economic development, disaster
management, arts and community education. Council also recognises that Redlands Coast is the home,

or the place of work, for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Peoples from other areas of Australia and
undertakes initiatives to advance reconciliation within Redland City Council and across the local community.
See pages 78-83 for more Quandamooka Country reporting.

2018-2019 HIGHLIGHTS

Redlands Coast on
Quandamooka Country

With the launch of Redland City's destination brand Redlands Coast
- “Naturally Wonderful' in mid-2018, work continued integrating
Quandamooka culture into collateral and campaigns.

Mgugi Elder of Quandamooka Or Robert Anderson OAM “Uncle
Bob', is a brand ambassador and added his voice to the first official
Redlands Coast video.

Dual naming including Jandai, a primary dialect of the
Quandamoaoka People, has been integrated into media campaigns,
postcards, websites and social media to bring use of traditional
language into the everyday.

Campaigns included a winter warmers campaign, encouraging
residents and visitors to experience Quandamooka cultural tours
and experiences including the Quandamoaka Festival and the new
Yalingbila whale watching tour.

Cultural Tourism

During 2018-2019 a key focus was promoting cultural tourism on
Redlands Coast in the lead-up to the end of sandmining on North
Stradbroke [sland (Minjerribah) in late 2019.

Council partnered with Channel Seven to film the Welcome the
Whales event an Morth Stradbroke [sland (Minjerribah) as part of
the Quandamooka Festival and included interviews with Traditional
Owners, as well as supporting Brishane Marketing to host a Channel

= K )
Dr Robert Anderson 0AM Sunrise on location

Seven Sunrise live weather cross on North Stradbroke Island
(Minjerribah).

Council assisted with the printed boat wrap design that
incorporates Redlands Coast brand on the new Yalingbila whale
watching cruise boat run by Quandamooka Yoolooburrabee
Abariginal Corporation (QYAC).

Christmas 2018 on Redlands Coast also had a new Quandamooka
touch, with banners acrass the city using stunning artwork by artist
Delvene Cockatoo-Collins. Digital Christmas card versians of the
artwork also promoted awareness and encouraged visitation to
Redlands Coast.

Community exhibitions

Council continued to observe Acknowledgement of Country at its
events, as well as engaging Quandamooka Elders to share Welcome
to Country at public and community celebrations such as the
Christmas by Starlight concert.

Redland Art Gallery (RAG) featured art exhibitions featuring
Aboriginal artists including Godal Gajal Bujongjo Quandamaokajen:
Salt Water Murris Quandamoaka Inc (July 2018), #LUVREDLANDS
{July 2018) and Tida! (June 2019).

In honour of the 2018 NAIDOC theme ‘Because of Her, We Can'
RAG and Redland Performing Arts Centre (RPAC) also combined
to display ‘Because of Her: Works by Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander Women from the Redland Art Gollery Collection on RPAC's
Community Art Wall.

Yalinghila whale watching vessel
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Josh Walker with Mayor

Place markers

RPAC and RAG also combined with Quandamooka Festival to
promote Already Occupied: Libby Harward, through a series of public
art banners at RAG Cleveland, RPAC and Harold Walker Jetty,
Dunwich (Goompi) installed in May 2019,

RPAC events

Redland Performing Arts Centre (RPAC) also continued its program
on Aboriginal and Torres Strait [slander cultural events. RPAC
again held its annual NAIDOC Showcase, a free day of cultural
entertainment and activities that in 2018 featured Isaiah Firebrace.
During 2018-2019, RPAC also featured Balka Bitni (August 2018)
and Dan Sultan (April 2019).

Library events

Our libraries also held events to share culture. Examples included
a lalk with Quandamooka author and language researcher Sandra
Delaney (March 2019), children's ‘Clapping Sticks’ musical marnings
and a cultural talk during National Reconciliation Week (May 2019),

The libraries also promoted Indigenous literacy through their
Deadly Digital workshop series and also donated proceeds of their
Big Book sale to the Indigenous Literacy Foundation.

Recognising a leader in reconciliation

Council continued recognising significant community achievements
in reconciliation. Quandamooka cultural tourism ambassador, story-
teller and dancer Joshua Walker received the Reconciliation Award
and was also a finalist in the Cultural Award category at Council's
Australia Day Awards 2019.

Strategic Planning

Council continued to work with Quandamooka Yoolooburrabee
Abaoriginal Corporation (QYAC) and the Queensland Government to
progress the North Stradbroke Islond Economic Transition Strategy
Project 13, which will see the installation of two Quandamooka-
inspired Place Markers at Paint Lookout and Amity Point an North
Stradbroke Island (Minjerribah).

Designed by two Quandamaooka artists, Belinda Close and Delvene
Cockatoo-Collins the project is due for completion in late 2019.

Council contributed to the Gudjundabu Marumba Gudiyiyana
Tourism for o Glod Tomorrow, a five-year strategy for sustainable

=
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Intrust Super Cup

tourism on Quandamooka Country, developed by QYAC in
consultation with the Queensland Government.

Sponsorship and supporting
community goals

Through the Community Grants, Regional Arts Development
Fund and Sponsorship Programs and ongoing partnerships,
Council supported a number of community-led initiatives to
bring Quandamoaka culture to the wider community.

Council again partnered with Quandamooka Yoolooburrabee
Aboriginal Corporation (QYAC) to bring the Quandamooka Festival
to the community. QYAC and Council also worked on extension
programs of the festival, such as a Queensland Rail Train carriage
featuring artwork designed by local Quandamooka artist Elisa
Carmichael with Redlands Coast co-branding.

Intrust Super Cup Indigenous Recognition match held on Ron
Stark Oval, Dunwich (Goompi) also received spansorship and
in-kind support from Council. The match was broadcast live on
Channel Nine and included Redlands Coast promotion, Welcome
ta Country, dance and a smoking ceremany as well as promoting
North Stradbroke Island (Minjerribah) as an eco-cultural tourism
destination.

Council also provided funding to community groups to include
Quandamooka culture into their events through Welcome to
Country or dance. See page 134.

In addition, Council provided in-kind support for community-
organised events such as Goompi NAIDOC 2018 Community Day.

Land management and Cultural Heritage

Council continued to work in partnership with landholders

on North Stradbroke Island (Minjerribah) to progress cultural
heritage, animal management, fire and vegetation management,
land tenure and ather Native Title initiatives. Quandamooka
cultural heritage advisors continue to be engaged to provide
expertise on infrastructure, environmental and disaster
management programs.
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INTERNAL PROGRAMS

Council also continues progress with internal reconciliation
efforts.

In late 2018 Council announced its first Reconciliation Action Plan
Steering Committee, an internal group tasked with developing our
first Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP). The RAP will be endorsed
in the second half of 2019,

As part of this process, during National Reconciliation
Week 2019, Council unveiled Kanara Malara - One People,
an artwork created by Quandamooka man Joshua Walker
which then became the visual centrepiece of Council's
first RAP.

July 2018 and June 2019 saw 26 employees named Mational
Aborigines and Islanders Day Observance Committee (NAIDOC)
ambassadors as part of the Council’s internal reconciliation
programs. Recognised for bringing reconciliation to their working
lives, 127 Council employees have been named as NAIDOC
Ambassadors in the past five years.

Regular Quandamooka Cultural Days and Cultural Heritage
Training are now part of Council's ongoing employee learning
opportunities to build knowledge within our organisation.

In partnership with the community, Council continued

to manage the [ndigenous Land Use Agreement (ILUA)
sub-committees and their meetings and monitor progress
on [LUA activities.

Reconciliation Action Plan Steeringi.Committee
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Kanara Malara — One People, o reconciliation artwork created by Quandamooka ortist foshua Walker, was unveiled in May 2019 and
tells o story of coming together, shared empathy, open discussion, commitment and moving forward. It is the centrepiece of Council’s
inaugural Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP), being released in late 2019.

ARTIST JOSH WALKER

Creator of the reconciliation artwork,
Kanara Malora - One People,
Quandamooka Traditional Owner
and recipient of 2019 Redlands Coast
Australia Day Reconciliation Award.

Unveiled during National Reconciliation Week in May 2019,
Kanara Malara is a specially commissioned artwork, created

to symbolise Council's reconciliation journey with Traditional
Owners who live and work in Redlands Coast on Quandamooka
Country and the wider local community.

Kanara Malara story - supplied by artist

‘The red triangle line work on the outside of the canvas represents
the red earth, while the yellow circle patterns represent the sand
and waters.

The serpents in the middle of the emu and kangaroo tracks
represent wisdom.

The emu and kangaroo tracks represent the Australian Coat of
Arms that Indigenous and non-Indigenous brothers-in-arms fought
under, not forgetting the women who served also in the defence of
our nation.

Item 13.4- Attachment 1

The emu and kangaroo also represent the Indigenous marriage
system, Emu People marry Kangaroo People and create a socred
relationship and ore forbidden to fight or swear at one another and
can't say no to one another, keeping in mind that this relationship
is reciprocal.

The concentric circles on either side of the canvas that are
surrounded by the “U” shapes represent the Indigenous and non-
Indigenous people sitting in their camps discussing reconciliation,
and sending three delegates from each side to sit in the middle
and talk about reconciliotion and how they can move forword
together in harmony like the Emu and Kangaroo families that
marry into one another.

The red “U” shapes represent the Indigenous peaple of Australia.
The yellow “U” shapes represent the non-Indigenous people

of Australia.

The large semi-circle shapes on either side of the canvas, one
yellow, the other red, represent the people having empathy for
the other side while discussing reconciliation and moving
forward for a better future for all.”
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King Island (Erobin), Wellington Point (Cullen-cullen)
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HEALTHY NATURAL ENVIRONMENT

A diverse and healthy natural environment, with an abundance of native flora and fauna and rich
ecosystems, will thrive through our awareness, commitment and action in caring for the environment.

Corporate Plan 2018-2023 scorecard

Council’s Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets five-year Performance Indicators for each Vision Outcome, Progress against these is measured

annually, as below.

Performance Indicators and progress scorecard

2018-2023 Performance Indicator

Redlands Coast Waterways
Recovery Report

Numbers of volunteers and hours
spent caring for natural assets

Participation in fauna
maonitoring, protection, rescue
and recovery programs

Number of enhancement projects
completed each year to improve
access, safety and comfort for
visitors

62

2018-2019 progress Status

The Redlands Coast Waterways Recavery Report 2018 was released in November 2018 and
can be viewed at Council's website. This report outlined that the overall water quality

in Upper Tingalpa Creek remained in good condition, however a gradual decline in the
condition of Coolnwynpin Creek and the island wetlands was apparent. Dry climatic
conditions were observed across Redlands Coast for the 2017-2018 manitoring period,
which may impact water guality results.

During 2018-2019, actions were undertaken to:

+ improve the native vegetation around waterways through Council land management v
programs (waterweed removal and riparian planting) and landholder extension
programs

» collaborate with industry professionals to facilitate workshops and directly engage
with the construction industry on erosion and sediment control best practice.

Worl is currently underway for the 2019 waterways reporting, which is due to be
released in October for 2018-2019.

Volunteers continued to engage with the Community Bushcare Program during

2018-2019 conducting three major community plantings, in addition to monthly

maintenance and planting of established bushcare sites, and ane corporate planting. v
This involved a community investment of more than 5,426 hours, provided by

772 program volunteers.

The Redlands Wildlife Ambulance is staffed after-hours by two volunteers, 15 hours per
day, 365 days per year equating to 10,950 volunteer hours per year, with a rotating roster
of 12 volunteers for 2018-2019. In addition, the North Stradbroke Island Urban Koala
Survey, the Coochie Curlew Count and Glossy Block Cockatoo Survey were undertaken with
the support of over 80 volunteers. This is up from 8,820 volunteer hours in 2017-2018,

Eleven projects were completed in 2018-2019:

» Construction of a shared-use trail as part of trailcare for the Bayview Conservation
Area (BCA)

+ Construction of a shared-use trail as part of trailcare for the Redland Track Park

» Installation of culvert over Native Dog Creek to connect multi-use Gramzow Road
Regional Trail-Hardwood Drive and Peart Parade section, Mount Cotton

» Construction and upgrades of multi-use trails, installation of new horse stiles and
entrances

« Delivery of 18 formal and 12 informal trail care days at Bayview Conservation Area
(BCA) and Redlands Track Park

+ BCA hosted the Bayview Blast as a combined national series and national v
championships event, BCA also hosted the SEQ trail runner series

» Redland Track Park hosted Chicks in the Sticks women-only mountain bike event

+ Redland City Council facilitated RATS Cycling Club Summer Sprints at a new temparary
event area behind Redland Animal Shelter, Cleveland

= Installation of canoe launch points, furniture and markers

+ Development and installation of new path way finding markings on the Cleveland to
Capalaba Cycleway

« Installation of half of Kidd Street, Redland Bay fencing to reduce unlawful use of
reserves to protect the safety of visitars and environment
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Operational Plan 2018-2019 scorecard

In addition to Perfarmance Indicators (previous page), the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets more
specific five-year outcomes. These outcomes highlight key areas of focus. They are deliverad through

significant activities identified in Council's annual Operational Plan.

Additional information on each of the 2018-2019 significant activities is on the following pages.

Targeted outcomes and significant activities scorecard

2018-2023 Targeted outcomes

1.1 Redlands Coast's natural
assets including flara,

fauna, habitats, biodiversity,
ecosystems and waterways
are managed, maintained and
manitored

1.2 Threatened species are
maintained and protected,
including the vulnerable koala
species

1.3 Community and private
landholder stewardship of
natural assets increases

2018-2019 Significant activities

1.1.1 Plan and implement a program of works to restore

native vegetation

1.1.2 Plan and deliver conservation restoration
activities

1.1.3 Engage and deliver restoration through
partnership with community and external groups

1.1.4 Implement programs to monitor sediments
and nutrients and enforce the requirements of the
Environmental Protection Act 1994

1.1.5 Continue implementing a program to plant one
million native plants in Redlands Coast by 2026

1.2.1 Implement the Natural Environment Palicy

1.2.2 Enhance community understanding of wildlife
management issues

1.3.1 Achieve improved environmental outcomes
through extension programs

Status

»

1.4 Visitors experience our
natural assets through high
standard facilities, trails,
interpretation and low-impact
commercial ventures

1.4.1 Enhance the visitor experience of Redlands
Coast’s natural assets

1.4.2 Continue to improve the customer experience
at [ndigiScapes

* % *» *» % % ¥ *» »

These scorecards
summarise progre
achieving the outcomes

of the Corporate Plan
2018-2023. This is central
to achieving Council's
long-term community
plan. Performance is
determined by measuring
our annual progress against
Performance Indicators
and significant activities.

* Delivered

 Ontrack

(%) Monitor
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Vision Outcome 1 @

1.1.1 Restoring

native vegetation

Weed contral, revegetation,
fire management and erosion
control works were completed
across the mainland and
Southern Moreton Bay [slands
Lo restare native vegetation.

1.1.2 Delivering
conservation activities

Works including targeted

weed control and revegetation
works were completed across
priority catchment areas on
the Southern Mareton Bay
Islands and mainland including
Hilliards.

1.1.3 Restoration
through partnerships
More than 10,000 native
plants were planted across

the city in partnership with
bushcare volunteers. Two new
groups were also established
at Thornlands and Victaria
Point. Implementation of
Rediands Coast Biasecurity Plan
continued.

1.1.4 Monitoring
sediment

[n October 2018 Council
endorsed the final Lower
Brisbane - Redlands Coastal
Catchment Action Plan prepared
under the Resilient Rivers
program, coordinated by the
Council of Mayors (SEQ).

Council continued to work
with the construction industry
to minimise the release of
sediment through compliance
action and education. This
included responding to

132 customer requests and
conducting mare than 1,000
development site inspections.

1.1.5 One million

native plants

The One Million Plants project
for 2018-2019 has resulted in
103,069 plants being planted

across the city by Council and

volunteers. This contributed to
the 250,000 plants milestone
being reached in 2018-2019.

1.2.1 Natural
Environment Policy
Wildlife Connection Plan 2018
implementation advanced

with additional mapping
available to assist in city-

wide environmental planning.
Under the Koola Conservation
Action Plan 2016-2021,
monitoring programs have been
estahlished to continue the
haseline work undertaken on
North Stradbroke Island and in
Ormiston. Extensive community
engagement campaigns also
commenced.

1.2.2 Community
environmental education

Six dog training companies
participated in and continued
to implement the ‘Leave It'
practices for denning and
wildlife aversion.

Mare than 5,000 calls were
received by the Redlands
Wildlife Rescue Service, with
approximately 8,000 volunteer
hours to the Redlands Wildlife
Ambulance and Redlands
Wildlife Call Network. The
North Stradbroke Island annual
koala count sighted 63 koalas
in one day.

A Kpala Safe Neighbourhood
Community event in Ormiston
was attended by approximately
100 people.
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1.3.1 Extension 1.4.1 Enhancing natural
program success visitor experiences
Approximately 500 properties Council invested in enhancing
are enrolled in environmental the visitor experience

extension programs. | than on Redlands Coast by
12,000 plants were planted improvements 1o f:
during the year through the and trails. These incl
environmental partnership the installation of aquatic
programs. Free environmenta fety signage on North
workshops including Fire oke Island, fencing at
Management, Native Be key conservation areas and
Native Botanical Artw installing canoe trail markers
Plant Identification, Float along our foreshore. Council
Wetland Construction and adopted the Enh 4
Wildlife in your Backyard were Experience Progra
well attended.

1.4.2 IndigiScapes
customer experience
fthe

construction, extension
programs, external bushland
maintenance, weed
management warks and
improvement to the gardens
continued.

-

,?‘_rl Pentan Bushland National Park,
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Vision Outcome 2 @

GREEN LIVING

Overview

4/t

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
ON TRACK

5/5

TARGETED
OUTCOMES
DELIVERED

DELIVERED VIA

7/7

SIGNIFICANT
ACTIVITIES
COMPLETED
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GREEN LIVING

Our green living choices will improve our quality of life and our children’s lives, through our sustainable
and energy-efficient use of resources, transport and infrastructure and our well-informed responses to
risks such as climate change.

Corporate Plan 2018-2023 scorecard

Council's Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets five-year Performance Indicators for each Vision Outcome. Progress against these is measured
annually, as below.

Performance Indicators and progress scorecard

2018-2023 Performance Indicator ~ 2018-2019 progress Status
Annual corporate greenhouse In 2018-2019 Council reduced the overall kilowatt per hour consumption and
emissions greenhouse gas emissions by 0.66% at the Cleveland Administration Building, Cleveland

Library, Capalaba Place and South Street Depot. Greenhouse emissions totalled 1,649

tannes of CO2e (Carbon Dioxide equivalent) at these facilities for 2018-2019. Through

the development and continual improvement of the Carbon and Energy Dashboard,

Council is able to monitor and repart on emissions from a much wider scope of sources. v
Council will be able to measure its total carbon footprint, which includes all Council-

operated activities, including wastewater treatment plants and community facilities

(such as barbecues) and fleet fuel consumption. For 2018-2019, this footprint was

13,578 tonnes of CO2e, reflecting an increase due to an expansion in the breadth of

monitoring and clarifying Council’s carbon footprint.

Number of activities that In 2018-2019 Council laid the groundwork for consideration of the next phase of energy
educate, provide information and  efficiency and generation projects. A feasibility study for a 300kW ground-mounted

advocate sustainable building solar panel system at the Cleveland Wastewater Treatment Plant was completed to

design for the community enable further assessment. Council commissioned an Integrated Energy Management Plan v

which is Council's first energy efficiency evaluation in nearly a decade. This will provide
insight into potential long-term cost savings through modification of existing Council
buildings and energy supply options.

Council's resource recavery rate The domestic resource recovery rate (total domestic waste recovered or recycled) for
(percentage recycled) 2018-2019 was 44.9% against a target of 45.8%. This was an increase in the recovery

rate of 44.7% in 2017-2018. [n 2018-2019 there was a reduction in the total amount

of waste presented at our waste transfer stations and collected kerbside. This may be

due to the year being a dry one, with less green waste, which is recycled into compost v

for the landscaping industry. Specifically there were 100,840 tonnes of total landfill

and recycled waste handled in 2018-2019. This represents a reduction of 6.2% or 6,741

tonnes compared with the 107,581 tonnes handled in 2017-2018.

Kilometres of pedestrian In 2018-2019 Council constructed 783 m (total length) of pedestrian pathways and
pathways and cycleways cycleways (1,302 m? total area). v
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Operational Plan 2018-2019 scorecard

In addition to Perfarmance Indicators (previous page), the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets more
specific five-year outcomes. These outcomes highlight key areas of focus. They are delivered through
significant activities identified in Council’s annual Operational Plan.

Additional information on each of the 2018-2019 significant activities is on the following pages.

Targeted outcomes and significant activities scorecard

2018-2023 Targeted outcomes

2.1 Council's policies and
plans support ecologically
sustainable development and
respand to climate change
issues

2.2 Sustainable building design
(for example, solar panels

and water tanks) is supported
through education and
advocacy

2.3 Council's waste
management plans address
current and future needs and
include plans for closed landfills
and regional collaboration

2.4 Council and the community
actively recycle and reduce
waste

2.5 Transport planning reflects
a desire to maximise ecanomic,
environmental and liveability
outcomes through quality

road design, public transport,
pedestrian and cycling
strategies

2018-2019 Significant activities

3.1.1 Continue to reduce Council emissions and
carbon footprint

2.2.1 Provide information to raise community
awareness and education

2.3.1 Plan and deliver waste management services
ta meet current and future needs of the city

2.4.1 Provide kerbside recycling bins and encourage
the community to increase their recycling

2.5.1 Manage planning for transport initiatives and
services across the city

2.5.2 Manage planning for transport connectivity for
the Southern Moreton Bay Islands (SMBI)

2.5.3 Expand the footpath and cycle network

Status

*» % *» »

These scorecards
summarise progre

achieving the outcomes

of the Corporate Plan

2018-2023. This is central
to achieving Council’s
long-term community

plan. Performance is

determined by measuring
our annual progress against
Performance Indicators
and significant activities.

o Delivered
 Ontrack

(%) Monitor
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2.1.1 Monitoring energy
The Carbon Energy Monitoring
Dashboard continued to be
implemented across Council's
business units. Monitoring

of Council's large, small and
remote sites continued,
enabling consideration of
energy consumption and
reduction methods. A review
was completed of fuel

and energy consumption
reduction opportunities at
large sites.

Redlands

Livin

2.2.1 Community
awareness

Opportunities for green living
via sustainable building design
and waste reduction were
included in IndigiScapes’
popular event and workshop
program.

2.3.1 Waste management
planning

Council participated in warking
groups to identify operational
requirements in preparation
for the introduction of a new
waste disposal levy. Council
resolved to participate in a
regional Expression of Interest
(EOI) process for new waste
and resource recovery services
as part of identifying future
opportunities to align with

a new direction from the
Queensland Government.

Environmental monitoring,
leachate collection and

site maintenance warks

were undertaken across 11
closed landfill sites to ensure
compliance with environmental
and safety compliance
requirements.

2.4.1 Recycling increases
In 2018-2019 Council managed
100,840 tonnes of waste

and recyclable material. Of
this 44.9% was recovered

for recycling or reuse. Total
household waste sent to landfill
decreased by 2,508 tonnes
from 2017-2018. Individual
waste to landfill decreased
from 377 kg per capita in
2017-2018 to 355 kg per capita
in 2018-2019. This trend
continued across all waste
streams. Council expanded the
kerbside green waste collection
service by an additional 2,356
services,

2.5.1 Transport
initiatives

The Oraft Redlands Coast
Transport Strategy continued
to be prepared and is in the
final stages of review. During
the 2018-2019 year, Council
endorsed the Cleveland Centre
Traffic and Transport Action
Plan.

2.5.2 SMBI connectivity
Council secured a permit to
operate an extended trial of
an autonomaus vehicle on the
Southern Moreton Bay Island
of Karragarra and engagement
with the local community

and ather key stakeholders
commenced.

2.5.3 Pathways

and cycleways

All foatpaths in the 2018-2019
financial year footpath program
planned for construction have
been completed.
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Autonomous bus event, Cleveland (Nandeebie/Indillie)

71

Item 13.4- Attachment 1 Page 109



GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

Cleveland Point, Clevel}and (Nandeebie/Indillie)

Item 13.4- Attachment 1 Page 110




GENERAL MEETING AGENDA

Item 13.4- Attachment 1

20 NOVEMBER 2019

Vision Outcome 3 @

EMBRACING THE BAY
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The benefits of the unigue ecosystems, visual beauty, spiritual nourishment and coastal lifestyle

provided by the islands, beaches, foreshores and water catchments of Moreton Bay will be valued,

protected and celebrated.

Council's Corporate Plan 2018-2027 sets five-year Performance Indicators for each Vision Outcome. Progress against these is measured

annually, as below.

Performance Indicators and progress scorecard

2018-2023 Performance Indicator

Annual Healthy Land and Water
Report Card rating

Implementation of the Redland
City Disaster Management Plan

Number of new bay access points
for low impact recreational
activities

Implementation of Priority
Development Areas (PDAs)

74

2018-2019 progress

In 2019 Redland Catchment achieved an overall C+ rating and a waterways benefit
rating of 312 stars. This compares to an overall C rating in 2018 and a waterways
benefits rating of 312 stars.

The focus in 2018-2019 was on the development of island-based disaster management
plan information to complement existing disaster management planning. Information
flyers were developed to better inform the island communities of processes to prepare
for disaster events and evacuation. The plan was assessed against the Emergency
Management Assurance Framework standards as outlined by the Office of the Inspectar
General Emergency Management and was found to perform to a strong level.

Projects completed during 2018-2019 included:

« A new boat ramp at Brighton Road, Macleay Island

« Three combined barge/boat ramp renewals at Karragarra and Coochiemudlo islands
and Masters Avenue, Victoria Point

+ A boat ramp renewal at Banana Street, Redland Bay

- A kayak ramp at Raby Esplanade, Ormiston.

In July 2018 the Australian Government made the decision that the proposed Toondah
Harbour Priarity Development Area project was a ‘controlled action’, allowing the project
to proceed to the Environmental Impact Statement (E1S) stage.

Walker Group updated the proposed master plan, incorparating a number of initiatives
that had considered feedback from leading environmental and wetland experts, public
submissions and the Australian Government.

In April 2019 the Minister for the federal Department of Environment and Energy issued
the final guidelines for the EIS. Preparation of the EIS has started and is expected to take
12 to 18 months.

Planning of Stage 1 of the Weinam Creek PDA commenced. A parcel of land on Moores
Road was subdivided into a one hectare Lot and nine residential lots. Redland Investment
Corporation (RIC) settled on the sale of the one hectare lot and the nine residential lots
were released for sale. Planning for the car park and feotbridge commenced.
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Operational Plan 2018-2019 scorecard

In addition to Performance Indicators (previous page), the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets more
specific five-year outcomes. These outcomes highlight key areas of focus. They are delivered through
significant activities identified in Council’s annual Operational Plan.

Additional information on each of the significant activities is on the following pages.

Targeted outcomes and significant activities scorecard

2018-2023 Targeted outcomes 2018-2019 Significant activities Status
3.1 Council collaborates with 3.1.1 Partner with Healthy Land and Water to manitor

partners to understand, nurture  and improve the values of waterways and the *
and protect Moreton Bay's bay and enhance the community’s experience

marine health and values. of the bay

3.2 Communities on the islands
and foreshores enjoy equitable  3.2.1 Partner with Education Queensland in activating

access to development the community use of schools for sport and recreation x«
apportunities and community purposes
services.

3.3 Our community is ready

for and adapting to changing 3.3.1 Continue to develop and implement the Rediond
coastlines, storm tide and City Council Coastal Adaptation Strategy *
severe weather,

3.4 Redland City's residents and

visitars can easily access the

foreshare and use recreation 3.4.1 Improve access provisions to Moreton Bay *
infrastructure for boating and

non-boating activities.

3.5 Priority Development
Areas (PDAs) support equitable
outcomes for island residents,
such as access to transport and
facilities.

3.5.1 Progress development of Priority Development

Area (PDAs) activities with a focus on ensuring *
island residents have equal access to transpart and
community facilities

These scorecards
summarise progress in
achieving the outcomes

of the Corporate Plan
2018-2023. This is central
to achieving Council’s
long-term community
plan. Performance is
determined by measuring
our annual progress against
Performance Indicators
and significant activities.

o Delivered
 Ontrack

(%) Monitor
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2018-2019 significant activity highlights

3.1.1 Water quality
monitoring

Council continued to partner
with Healthy Land and Water
for the annual Water Quality
Manitaring Program and
supparted the Lower Brishane
and Redlands Cotchment Action
Plan 2018-2021 in partnership
with Brisbane City Council and
the Resilient Rivers program.
The internal Redland City
Council Ambient Water Quality

Monitoring program continued.

3.2.1 Shared

community resources

In 2018-2019 Council and
Education Queensland
continued discussions
regarding the community use
of school facilities, with Council
communicating directly with
individual school principals
regarding the use of facilities.
One arrangement has been
made between a community
Rugby League Club and Victoria
Point State High School. Each
request for activity space will
be discussed and negotiated
with the schoaols.

3.3.1 Coastal hazards
Work continued on the
development of the eight-
phase Coastal Hozard
Adaptation Strategy with
Phase 1 (Communication and
Engagement Plan) and Phase
2 (Scoping Study) completed.
Significant work was also
undertaken to refine the future
erosion-prone area mapping
for the city. Council secured
funding of $238,603 from the
Local Government Association
of Queensland under the
QCoast 2100 program to
supporl Lhese activities.
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3.4.1 Water access

The 2018-2019 year saw the
renewal of the barge ramp,
seawall and foreshore access
ramp at Masters Avenue,
Victoria Point, completed.

It is now fully operational.

3.5.1 Priority
Development Areas

The Toondah Harbour Priority
Development Area project
progressed to the Environmental
Impact Statement (EIS) phase.
The federal government issued
EIS assessment guidelines for
public comment, which closed
6 March 2019. The EIS phase
will take approximately 12 to
18 months. Redland [nvestment
Corporation (RIC) continued

to work with Walker Group

and Economic Development
Queensland to progress the
project.

Stage 1 of the Weinam Creek
Priority Development Area
project, which comprises a
car park, residential lots and
the footbridge commenced.
RIC continued to progress the
master plan in preparation for
submission to the Queensland
Government.

Annual Report 2018-2019 | REDLAND CITY COUNCIL

Macleay Island (Jencoomercha)

77
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Vision Outcome 4

QUANDAMOOKA COUNTRY

The rich Aboriginal heritage of the Redlands (Quandamooka) and the Traditional Owners’ ongoing
custodianship of Quandamooka land and waters will be widely understood and respected and we will
work together for the future of Quandamooka Country.

Corporate Plan 2018-2023 scorecard

Council's Corporate Plan 2018-2027 sets five-year Performance Indicators for each Vision Outcome. Progress against these is measured

annually, as below.

Performance Indicators and progress scorecard

2018-2023 Performance Indicator

Attendance at Council's cultural
awareness and heritage training

Community understanding of

the Quandamooka People's
relationship with their traditional
land and waters

2018-2019 progress Status

Cultural awareness information was included in all employee inductions. A total of

125 employees attended training at the monthly Quandamooka Cultural Day sessions.

The Quandamooka Yoolooburrabee Aboriginal Corporation (QYAC) continued to offer v
Aboriginal cultural heritage training to Council employees throughout the year.

Council's biennial Customer Satisfaction Survey undertaken in February and March 2019
showed that 83% of Redlands Coast community had strong knowledge (16%) or were
aware (67%) of the local Aboriginal community, the Quandamooka People. This is a
significant improvement on the previous survey results and continues to show a trend
towards increased knowledge of Quandamooka People since 2010. [n comparison, in
2016 a total of 76% of Redlands Coast community had a strong level of knowledge (6%)
or were aware (70%) of the Aboriginal community, [n 2014 a total of 77% had strong
knowledge or were aware. In 2012 a total of 72% had strong knowledge or were aware,
while in 2010 a total of 50% had strong knowledge or were aware.

In 2018-2019 Council promoted Quandamooka culture to the public through inclusion v
of acknowledgement on all pages of Council’s wehsite, all Council events and weekly
‘Snapshot’ advertisements in the Redland City Bulletin. Quandamooka articles were
included in editions of Council's Our Redlands Coast magazine, Council arranged
promation of the Quandamooka Festival including television coverage and promoted
Yalinghila Tours - Australia’s first Aboriginal-owned whale watching cruise. Council
managed a project to develop Quandamooka public art-style place markers at Point
Lookaout and Amity Paint on North Stradbroke Island as part of the Minjerribah Futures
program, funded by the Queensland Government, with the artwork set to be in place
in late 2019. Council also funded community groups to include Quandamooka cultural
dance at events.

Council’s progress with
implementing the Indigenous
Land Use Agreement (ILLIA)

80

The Indigenous Land Use Agreement (ILUA) Capital Works Forum met in December 2018,

The Indigenous Land Use Agreement Consultative Committee met in June 2019. Internal
sub-committees met quarterly during 2018-2019 to progress the [LUA commitments

and other related Aboriginal projects and activities and reports were presented on the v
activities. Council held three Business Day meetings with Quandamooka Yoolooburrabee
Aboriginal Corporation (QYAC) to progress commitments and projects.

Item 13.4- Attachment 1

Page 118



GENERAL MEETING AGENDA

20 NOVEMBER 2019

Operational Plan 2018-2019 scorecard

[n addition to Performance Indicators (previous page), the Corporate Plon 2018-2023 sets more
specific five-year outcomes, These outcomes highlight key areas of focus. They are delivered through
significant activities identified in Council's annual Operational Plan.

Additional information on each of the significant activities is on the following pages.

Highlights of Council’s collaborations with Traditional Owners and projects undertaken in Redlands
Coast on Quandamooka Country are also featured on pages 54-57.

Targeted outcomes and significant activities scorecard

2018-2023 Targeted outcomes

4.1 Council's organisational
and employees’ capacity to
deliver positive outcomes
for Abariginal communities,
including the Quandamooka
People, is improved through
policy, cultural awareness
training and cultural heritage
training for elected members
and Council employees

4.2 Council's and the
community's respect and
understanding of the
Quandamooka People’s
relationship with their
traditional land and waters
continue to improve,

£.3 Council continues to
support and resource the
delivery of commitments
under the Indigenous Land
Use Agreement (ILUA) with the
Quandamooka People

4.4 Council works with the
Quandamooka Traditional
Owners to help them achieve
their goal of establishing Narth
Stradbroke Island (Minjerribah)
as a global eco-cultural tourism
destination

2018-2019 Significant activities

4.1.1 Council is committed to continuing its
collabarative work with Quandamooka Yoolooburrabee
Aboriginal Corporation (QYAC)

In Council's Operational Plan 2019-2020, this activity
will be re-aligned to sit as a significant activity under
outcome 4.3

4.1.2 Implement culturally appropriate pratocols

4.21 Promote awareness and understanding of

Quandamooka culture

4.2.2 Promote traditional knowledge

4.2.3 Maintain and further develop partnerships
with the Quandamnoka Peaple

4.3.1 Support delivery of Indigenous Land Use
Agreement (ILUA) commitments

4.4.1 Contribution to implementation of North
Stradbroke Island Economic Transition Strategy [NST ETS)

4.4.2 Promote Quandamooka tourism initiatives

Status

These scorecards

summarise progress i
achieving the outcom
of the Corporate Plan

n
es

2018-2023 . This is central
to achieving Council’s

long-term community
plan. Performance is

determined by measuring
our annual progress against
Performance Indicators
and significant activities.

W Delivered
 Ontrack

(%) Monitor
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Vision Outcome 4

4.1.1 Collaboration
in training

Planning for Council’s first
internal Reconciliation Action
Plan (endorsed August 2019)
included creating specific
actions under the plan relating
to employment opportunities
and fostering a culturally
inclusive workplace. Council
engaged Quandamonka
providers for internal training.
This saw 125 employees
attending Quandamonka
Cultural Awareness training
days during 2018-2019.
Council continued promoting
Quandamooka Yoolooburrabee
Aboriginal Corporation (QYAC)
Cultural Heritage training.

4.1.2 Promoting
cultural protocols
Council continued to observe
Welcome to Country and
Acknowledgement of Country
as per Council's Indigenous
Community Palicy. Employees
were offered information
sessians during National
Reconciliation Week

Council held public
reconciliation events such as
the annual NAIDOC showcase
at Redland Perfarming Arts
Centre (RPAC) in celebration of
MAIDOC Week 2018.

2018-2019 significant activity highlights

4.2.1 Promoting
Quandamooka Country
Council promoted Quandamooka
culture through Our Redlands
Coast magazine, media releases,
street banners and tourism
promotion. Council's new city
hrand *Redlands Coast” video
featured Quandamaooka Elder

Dr Robert Anderson QAM

‘Uncle Bob' (pictured above).

A range of events were delivered
through libraries, Redland
Performing Arts Centre (RPAC)
and Redland Art Gallery (RAG).

Welcome to Country was held

at official events, Council
continued to pay respect

to Quandamooka Country

and Elders on regular print
advertising and also provided
funding for community events to
include Quandamooka culture.

4.2.2 Cultural awareness
Council continued to promote
cultural awareness. Uncle
Norm Enoch presented the
Welcome to Country at the
Redland City Council National
Recanciliation Week launch
where Joshua Walker's artwork
Kanara Malara - One Peaple
was unveiled. International
Women's Day and ather public
events including authors’ talks,
children's activities and public
information sessions were held.

4.2.3 Promoting arts
Council partnered with
Quandamooka artists to develop
quality exhibitions, programs
and performances for inclusion
in Redland Art Gallery (RAG)
and Redland Performing Arts
Centre (RPAC) programs. Public
art banners at two mainland
and one island location were
installed in May 2019 exhibiting
works from Libby Harword:
Seeing Country. Filming was
undertaken in April for the
Place of Abundance 2019 video.
The RAG-edited film features
contributions from Sandra
Delaney, Sonja Carmichael,
Joshua Walker and Keiran
Anderson.

The Seeing Country exhibition,
curated by Freja Carmichael,
aofficially opened in June 2019
at RAG Cleveland. Dr Robert
Anderson 0AM “Uncle Bob®
presented the Welcome to
Country and the Yulu-Burri-Ba
Dancers performed.

Council received financial
assistance from the Queensland
Government through Arts
Queensland's Backing
Indigenous Arts initiative to
support this exhibition.
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4.3.1 ILUA progress
Council continued to manage
the Indigenous Land Use
Agreement (ILUA) sub-
committees and their meetings
and monitor progress an 1LUA
activities. Three Business Day
meetings were held in 2018-
2019. The [LUA Consultative
Committee Meeting was held
inJune 2019. The guarter three
ILLIA report was presented

to the Executive Leadership
Team in April 2019 and the
quarter four report prepared for

presentation to ELT.

4.4.1 Place markers
tell cultural story
Council is lead for Project 13:
Location and Interpretive
Signage in the Minjerribah
Futures program under

the North Strodbroke Islond

Economic Transition Strategy
(NSIETS) and worked in
support of a further 17

of 23 projects under the
Queensland Government’s
NSI ETS. Council contracted
the Quandamooka
Yoolooburrabee Aboriginal
Corporation (QYAC) to
deliver two Quandamooka-
inspired place markers
designed by Quandamooka
artists. Council undertook
community engagement to
inform the artists’ concepts
for the place markers at
Point Lookout (Mulumba)
and Amity Point (Pulan).

4.4.2 Cultural tourism
Council worked with the
Quandamooka Traditional
Owners to develop the new
Redlands Coast website

that includes promotion

of Quandamaooka cultural
experiences. Council developed
marketing campaigns to support
tourism on North Stradbroke
[sland including promotion

of Quandamooka cultural

tours, the Quandamooka
Festival and the new Yalingbila
whale watching tour. Council
continued to incorporate
Quandamooka Jandai dual place
naming on all Redlands Coast
communications.

<
Ouandamooka
cting-a cultufal av
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WISE PLANNING AND DESIGN

We will carefully manage population pressures and use land sustainably while advocating and

taking steps to determine the limits of growth and carrying capacity on a local and national basis,
recognising environmental sensitivities and the distinctive character, heritage and atmosphere of local
communities. A well-planned network of urban, rural and bushland areas and responsive infrastructure
and transport systems will support strong, healthy communities.

Corporate Plan 2018-2023 scorecard

Council's Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets five-year Performance Indicators for each Vision Outcome. Progress against these is measured
annually, as below.

Performance Indicators and progress scorecard

2018-2023 Performance Indicotor |~ 2018-2019 progress Status

Implementation of the Redland

City Plon and Local Government Redland City Plan and Local Government Infrastructure Plan commenced on 8 October 2018.

ncil al mmen n ongoin m of major and minor amendmen h

Infrastructure Plan (and Counci also comme ced an ongoing program of major and minor amendments to the v
. . Redland City Plan.

subsequent twice-year reviews)
Development consistent with
legislation, best practice and All development applications were assessed in accordance with the Planning Act and
community expectations, associated regulation and measured against relevant assessment benchmarks, including v
guided by relevant plans and the Redland City Plan.

strategies

Council meets or improves . . . L. S i
prov Council achieved 99% compliance for determining development applications within

on Integrated Deuelopmem legislative timeframes. v
Assessment System timeframes
Levels of participation in Council was represented on the following groups:
regional collaboration and - South East Queensland Development Assessment Managers Group
advisory groups - Urban Development Institute of Australia Redlands Advisory Panel working group
» Local Government Association of Queensland working groups - Planning and v

Development Advisory Group and Regional Ecanomic Development Advisory Group
« Logan Redlands Regional Development Australia Committee
» Queensland Government steering committees and working groups (various).

86
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Operational Plan 2018-2019 scorecard

In addition to Perfarmance Indicators (previous page), the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets more
specific five-year outcomes. These outcomes highlight key areas of focus. They are delivered through
significant activities identified in Council’s annual Operational Plan.

Additional information on each of the significant activities is on the following pages.

Targeted outcomes and significant activities scorecard

2018-2023 Targeted outcomes

2018-2019 Significant activities

5.1 Growth and development in
the city is sustainably managed
through the adoption and
implementation of the Redland
City Plan and Local Government
Infrastructure Plan

5.2 Redland City's character
and liveability are enhanced
through a program of master
planning, place-making and
centre improvement strategies,
including maximising
opportunities through the
catalyst Toondah Harbour
Priority Development Area
(PDA) and Redlands Health and
Wellbeing Precinct projects to
build a strong and connected
Cleveland

5.3 An effective and efficient
development assessment
process delivers quality
development that is consistent
with legislation, best practice
and community expectations

5.1.1 Commence the Redland City Plan

5.1.2 Ensure that infrastructure necessary to support
growth in the city is provided through the development
assessment process and capital works program

5.2.1 Coordinate a place management program for
key activity centres in Redland City and contribute to
master planning for precincts in Redland City

5.2.2 Coordinate planning and guidance for future
development and infrastructure delivery for local areas
in the city

5.2.3 Identify and protect places of European heritage
significance

5.2.4 Develop master plan for Redland Aquatic
Redevelopment

5.3.1 Maintain effective systems and processes that
underpin guality and timely decision making for
development applications

5.4 Regional collaboration

and targeted advocacy drives
external funding for key
infrastructure upgrades and
enhanced community outcomes

5.4.1 Contribute to establishing a South East
Queensland City Deal

* All targeted cutcome significant octivities in the 2018-2019 Operational Plan were compleled. A carry-over project
from the 2017-2018 Operational Plan (significant activity 5.2.3 in 2017-2018) remains a monitor. During 2018-2019
purchase negotiotions for the acquisition of surplus land owned by the Australion Communications and Media
Authority ot Birkdale continued. Negotiotions with Air Services Australio reqarding potentiol surplus land continued.

These scorecards
summarise
achieving t

of the Corpo
2018-20

long-term community
plan. Performance is
determined by measuring
our annual progr
Performance Indi

and significant activities.

* Delivered

 Ontrack

(%) Monitor
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Vision Outcome 5 '@'

f e

5.1.1 City Plan

Redland City Plan sets the
planning direction of Redlands
Coast until 2041, guiding
decisions on land use and
development. Version 1 of the
Redlond City Plan came into
effect on & October 2018. Two

version updates were also
approved during 2018-2019,
with Version 3 adopted by
Councilon 5 June 2019 to come
into effect on 17 July 2019,

5.1.2 Infrastructure
plan projects
Projects identified in Council's
Local Gavernment Infrastructure
Plan have been delivered

by Council as part of the
annual capital works pragram
or through infrastructure
agreements and conditions of
development permit approvals
for developer-contributed
dssels.

5.2.1 Planning

and place-making
Preliminary work to scope the
investment attraction plan
continued, including liaison
with key stakeholders to
explore centre improvement
initiatives.

2018-2019 signific

&

ant activity highlights

Council endorsed the Cleveland
Centre Troffic and Tronsport
Action Plan that outlines short-

term low-cost actions to improve

walkability, connectivity and
pedestrian safety within the
Cleveland Centre.

The Redlands Health and
Wellness Precinct Stoge 3
Conceptual Land Use Plan
and Strategy was presented
to project partners and
stakeholders.

5.2.2 Planning for growth
Work was undertaken to
prepare the draft Victoria
Point Structure Plan. The
proposed structure plan and
consequential amendment
will remain confidential

until approved for public
consultation by the Minister
for State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure
and Planning.

The planning investigation
aver the Southern Thornlands
area, identified in the South
Fast Queensiand Regional Plan
as a Potential Future Growth
Area, was deferred to allow
consideration of the outcomes
of the Rural Enterprise Industry
Sector Strategy and Action Plan
2019-2024,

Council continued to
progress with an Expression
of Interest process for the
proposed redevelopment of
Capalaba Place in partnership
with Redland Investment
Corporation (RIC).

5.2.3 European heritage
A proposed major amendment
to the Redland City Plan to
address local European heritage
protection in the city has

been prepared and is awaiting
finalisation of state interest
review, a formal process to
ensure the proposed changes
are in State Government's
interests, When the state
interest review has been
completed, Council will consider
when public consultation on the
amendment should commence,
subject to budget allocation.

I

5.2.4 Redland
Aquatic Redevelopment
The preliminary master plan

for the Redland Aquatic
Redevelopment was completed.

5.3.1 Development
assessment

Council's systems and processes
continued to be further
improved and amended to
ensure effective implementation
of planning instruments.
Council responded to more

than 4,000 general planning
and development enguiries and
assessed and decided more than
900 development applications.
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5.4.1 South East
Queensland City Deal
Council contributed to the
joint pitch by the Queensland
Government and the Council
of Mayors (SEQ) to the
Commonwealth Government
fora SEQ City Deal. The

SEQ City Deal Proposition:
Transforming SEQ was released
on 12 February 2019 .

L

T i ot B N
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Vision Outcome 6

SUPPORTIVE AND
VIBRANT ECONOMY

Overview

4/t

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
ON TRACK

6/6

TARGETED
OUTCOMES
DELIVERED

DELIVERED VIA

13/13

SIGNIFICANT
ACTIVITIES
COMPLETED
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SUPPORTIVE AND VIBRANT ECONOMY

Businesses will thrive and jobs will grow from opportunities generated by low-impact industries, cultural
and outdoor lifestyle activities, eco-tourism and quality educational experiences. Transport systems will

support strong, healthy communities.

Corporate Plan 2018-2023 scorecard

Council's Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets five-year Performance Indicators for each Vision Outcome. Progress against these is measured

annually, as below.

Performance Indicators and progress scorecard

2018-2023 Performance Indicator

Successful implementation
of the Redland City Economic
Development Framewaork
2014-2041.

Manitor grawth targets:
population growth, Gross
Regional Product growth, joh
growth and tourism growth

Number of sites developed
by Redland Investment
Corporation (RIC) for
commercial and community
benefits

Support negotiations with
stakeholders on environment
and development approvals for
PDAs

Finalise the development
program for Weinam Creek PDA

2018-2019 progress

The Redland City Economic Development Framework 2014-2041 identified eight key industry
sectors as drivers of future economic growth. In 2018-2019 Council endorsed two industry
sector plans that will enhance the local economic capacity of the city, namely:

+ Education and Training Industry Sector Plan 2018-2023; and

+ Health Care and Sociol Assistance Industry Sector Plan 2018-2023.

Implementation of the industry sector plans commenced with six of the key initiatives and
actions completed.

The draft Rural Enterprise Industry Sector Plan 2019-2024 was also completed.

Redlands Coast's unemployment rate slightly increased from 5.3% (March quarter 2018) to
5.8% (March quarter 2019) (Source: Department of Employment, Skills, Small ond Family Business).
The headline Gross Regional Product (GRP) of the city was valued at $5.7 hillion (as of 30 June
2018), which was slightly higher than previous year’s GRP valued at $5.5 billion

(Source: National Institute of Economic and Industry Research as compiled by economy id).

Total tourism employment in 2017-2018 was 2,175, or 5.1% of the city's total employment. In
2017-2018 tourism accounted for 3.3% of the city's total output, or 3408 million. In terms of value,
tourism output increased compared ta the previous year (from $382 million to $408 million).

In terms of share with city total output, tourism’s contribution remained the same (3.3%)

(Source: REMPLAN Economy generated data sourced from ABS June 2017 GSP and ABS 2014/ 2015 National
Input Output Tables).

In 2018-2019 Redland [nvestment Carporation (RIC) commenced work on the Weinam
Creek Priority Development Area. The carpark and foatbridge application for stage 1 was
lodged and work commenced on the Moores Road subdivision. An Expression of [nterest
campaign was held for the Capalaba Town Centre Revitalisation Project and development
approval was lodged for a 13-townhouse development, located at 521 Old Cleveland Road
East. Birkdale.

In April 2019 the federal Minister for the Department of the Environment and Energy
issued the final guidelines for the preparation of extensive environmental impact studies
called an Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) for the Toondah Harbour Priority
Development Area. The preparation of the EIS started and is expected to take 12 to 18
manths (July 2019-December 2020).

Redland Investment Corporation (RIC) continued to liaise and negotiate with stakeholders
for the Weinam Creek PDA development project. In 2018-2019 RIC negotiated the
purchase of a parcel of land on Auster Street, Redland Bay, required for the future boat
ramp. Liaison with community groups commenced in 2018-2019 and is ongoing.

During 2018-2019 RIC continued to work closely with Redland City Council to ensure
population and servicing provisioning is planned for the Weinam Creek PDA. This work will
be included in the master plan and assist in infrastructure upgrades.

The master plan for the Weinam Creek Priority Development Area development was
finalised in 2018-2019 with construction sequencing, timeframes and estimates
prepared,

RIC also progressed private work within the area at the residential lots on Moores Road,
Redland Bay. Civil works and construction commenced in 2018-2019, as did the sale of
the balance lot on Moores Road. Meissner Street, Redland Bay, development approval also
commenced,

92
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Operational Plan 2018-2019 scorecard

In addition to Performance Indicators (previous page), the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets more
specific five-year outcomes. These outcomes highlight key areas of focus. They are delivered through

significant activities identified in Council’s annual Operational Plan.

Additional information on each of the significant activities is on the following pages.

Targeted outcomes and significant activities scorecard

2018-2023 Targeted outcomes

6.1 Council supports
infrastructure that encourages
business and tourism growth

6.2 Redland City delivers
events, activities and
performances that bring
economic and social benefits
to the community

6.3 Council’s involvement in
the State Government's North
Stradbroke Island Econamic
Transition Committee supports
and aligns with Council's
strategic objectives, which help
deliver lang-term economic
sustainability for North
Stradbroke Island (Minjerribah)

6.4 Council receives a return
on the community's investment
in land to enhance economic
and community outcomes

6.5 Growth in key sectors
identified in Council's
Economic Development
Framework is supported
thraugh the development and
implementation of action plans
by the Industry Economic
Development Advisory Board

6.6 Development will be
facilitated specifically in the
Toondah Harbour Priority
Development Area and Weinam
Creek Priority Development
Area with a focus on economic
growth

2018-2019 Significant activities

6.1.1 Lead the implementation of actions in the Redland
City Tourism Strategy and Action Plan 2015-2020

6.1.2 Contribute to potential development of a Smart

and Connected Cities Framewaork

6.2.1 Lead the implementation of actions in the
Redland City Events Strategy ond Action Plon 2017-2022

6.2.2 Deliver events, activities and workshops that
contribute to bringing economic and social benefits to

the community

6.2.3 Contribute to economic and social impacts across

the city

6.2.4 Deliver a destination brand for Redland City

6.3.1 Coordination of Council's involvement in the
Morth Stradbroke Island Economic Transition Strategy

(NSIETS)

6.4.1 [dentify and develop strategic apportunities for

Redland City Council landholdings

6.5.1 Provide secretariat support to the Redlands
Economic Development Advisory Board

6.5.2 Deliver industry-enabling action plans and a
targeted investment attraction strategy

6.6.1 Facilitate the development of the Toondah
Harbour Priarity Development Area in partnership with
Econamic Development Queensland

6.6.2 Facilitate the development of the Weinam
Creek Priority Development Area in partnership with
Economic Development Queensland

6.6.3 Collaborate with stakeholders on planning for
Priarity Development Areas (PDAs)

Status

*» % % % *» »

*

These scorecards
summarise progress in
achieving the outcomes

of the Corporate Plan
2018-2023 . This is central
to achieving Council's
long-term community
plan. Performance is
determined by measuring
our annual progress against
Performance Indicators
and significant activities.

o Delivered

' Ontrack

(i) Monitor
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2018-2019 significant activity highlights

6.1.1 Tourism Strategy
Council continued to complete
actions of the Tourism Strategy
and Action Plan 2015-2020.
Council launched two Redlands
Coast websites, new Redlands
Coast Facebook and Instagram
accounts, Redlands Coast
tourism videos and the new
Redlands Coast holiday guide,
Council relocated the Visitor
Information Centre from the
IndigiScapes Centre at Capalaba
to Cleveland town centre, Raby
Bay, to better serve visitors and
locals.

Council assisted the
Queensland Tourism Industry
to deliver two digital-ready
programs that focused on
building the capability of

the local tourism industry.
The Redlands Coast tourism
sub-committee, chaired by
Council and comprising tourism
industry representatives and
Council, met five times.

6.1.2 Smart Cities
progress

Council continued to lead

the delivery of the Advancing
Regional Innavation Program

in partnership with Logan City
Council and Griffith University.
The program enhances the
innovation and entrepreneurial
ecosystem across the region and
builds connections to create a
smart city into the future,

Aclivities and initiatives
targeted husiness start-

ups, young people, seniors,
established businesses, schools
and universities.

Activities included delivery of
Startup Redlands, monthly pitch
nights, business mentaring,
workshops for senior
entrepreneurs and businesses
and an ‘Innovation in Aged
Care' Summit.

6.2.1 Implementing
events strategy
Council continued to complete
the actions of the Redlond City
Events Strategy and Action Plan
2017-2022.

Council delivered an online
events portal on Council’s
website and established a pool
of event equipment available at
no charge lo event organisers.

Council delivered industry
development events, including
the annual Redlands Coast
Tourism and Events Forum
attended by more than

170 people and an event
management masterclass
attended by more than

40 people.

Council delivered 23 events
and supported 84 community
events.

6.2.2 Delivering events
Council delivered events,
activities, workshops and
community safety initiatives
throughout the year targeting
young peaple, seniors, people
with disabilities, the community
services sector, schools and
the business community across
Redlands Coast. Highlights
included the Redlands Coast
Innovation and Aged Care
Summit, Seniors Week and Youth
Week celebrations, Redlands
Coast Amazing Race and a
number of Youth Adventure
Day Out events. These events
have contributed positively

to community wellbeing and
delivered social, economic and
community safety outcomes.

6.2.3 Creating social
impacts

Redland Perfarming Arts Centre
(RPAC) and Redland Art Gallery
(RAG) presented a program

of performances, exhibitians,
arts workshops and community
arts events that attracted an
audience of more than 115,000
peaple to the Cleveland central
business district.

Artworks and performances,
including national touring
theatre, contemporary and
classical music, comedy,
children’s theatre, physical
theatre and circus activities were
programmed to offer diversity
and guality to the Redlands
Coast community. A program of
Public Artworks was installed
across the city including works
at Cleveland, Wellington Point,
Coochiemudlo Island and North
Stradbroke Island.

Item 13.4- Attachment 1

Page 132



GENERAL MEETING AGENDA

20 NOVEMBER 2019

Redlands

c o asltL
6.2.4 Destination
Redlands Coast
The new city brand, Redlands
Coast, was ralled out. Council
delivered two websites, 10
Redlands Coast videos, social
media platforms and four
marketing campaigns. These
included a launch campaign that
resulted in 55% awareness of
the brand after four months in
market, a campaign focused on
encouraging locals to explare
their own backyards, a shop
local campaign and a winter
campaign to increase visitation
during the low season.

6.3.1 NSI ETS
collaboration

The North Stradbroke [sland
Economic Transition Strategy
(MSI ETS) working group,
established by Council, includes
representatives from the
Department of Innovation,
Tourism Industry Development
and the Commonwealth Games.
The NSIETS working group
continued to meet throughout
the year. Council also attended
bi-monthly N5 ETS
Implementation Committee
meetings.

6.4.1 Strategic land
opportunities

Redland Investment Corporation
(RIC) in partnership with
Redland City Council held an
Expression of [nterest campaign
to source proponents to deliver
an innovative and landmark
development to support the
revitalisation of Capalaba.

6.5.1 Economic
development support
The Redlands Economic
Development Advisory Board
met quarterly throughout

the year. The Board provided
strategic advice to Council on
implementation of the Redland
City Economic Development
Framework 2014-2041

and the development and
implementation of industry
sector plans, with all
performance measures for
economic graowth on target.

6.5.2 Action plan delivery
Implementation continued an
the 2018-2019 actions under
the Education and Training
Industry Sector Plan 2018~
2023. The second Education
Roundtable was successfully

Annual Report 2018-2019 | REDLAND CITY COUNCIL

held. Council participated ina
Redlands Youth Jobs Festival
event that highlighted training
and career pathways for young
people. Engagement with key
stakeholders on the findings
of the Rediands Health and
Wellness Precinct Master Plan
project continued as part of
the Health Core and Sociol

6.6.3 PDA planning
Council-appointed
representatives attended Local
Representative Commitlee
meetings and made decisions
on applications relating to the
Toondah Harbour and Weinam
Creek Priority Development
Areas under delegation of,
and on behalf of, the Minister
for Economic Development
Queensland.

Assistance [ndustry Sector Plan
2018-2023. Work continued
on the development of the
investment attraction plan
aligned to the key industry
sectors.

6.6.1 Toondah
Harbour PDA
Redland Investment Carporation
(RIC) and Walker Group
cantinued to work closely in
consultation with Economic
Development Queensland.

The Toondah Harbour Priority
Development Area project has
progressed to the Environmental
Impact Statement (EIS)

phase, This phase will take
approximately 12 to 18 months.

6.6.2 Weinam Creek PDA

Redland Investment Corporation
(RIC) continued to work closely
with Redland City Council to
progress the Weinam Creek
Priority Development Area
project. Civil and earthworks
commenced on slage one of
the project, which includes the
car park and residential lots on
Maores Road. Development of
the master plan commenced.

95
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Vision Outcome 7

STRONG AND
CONNECTED
COMMUNITIES

Overview

5/5

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
ON TRACK

5/5

TARGETED
OUTCOMES
DELIVERED

DELIVERED VIA

10/10

SIGNIFICANT
ACTIVITIES
COMPLETED
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STRONG AND CONNECTED COMMUNITIES

Our health, wellbeing and strong community spirit will be supported by a full range of services,

programs, organisations and facilities and our values of caring and respect will extend to people

of all ages, cultures, abilities and needs.

Corporate Plan 2018-2023 scorecard

Council's Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets five-year Performance Indicators for each Vision Outcome. Progress against these is measured

annually, as below.

Performance Indicators and progress scorecard

2018-2023 Performance Indicator

Number of community activities
deliverad

Number of community groups
with leases/permits for Council
facilities

Number of volunteers and hours
donated towards Council projects

Implementation of Redland City
Disaster Monagement Plan

Amaount of land that is available
for sport to meet current and
future needs

o8

2018-2019 progress

Council's Communication, Engagement and Tourism Group delivered 23 community
and corporate events attended by approximately 26,600 peaple, including Christmas
By Starlight that attracted approximately 10,000 people. Council also assisted groups
ta deliver 84 community events attended by approximately 237,000 people. In
addition, the Redland Art Gallery (RAG) delivered a total of 122 activities, including 23
exhibitions, seven exhibition openings, 64 workshops, 14 gallery tours, 10 floor talks
and four volunteer events with total averall attendances of 46,451 patrons.

The Redland Performing Arts Centre (RPAC) delivered 318 activities including 53
entrepreneurial, 23 commercial, 26 internal and 216 community events with 34,059
tickets sold and overall attendances of 55,745 patrons.

Redland Libraries delivered a total of 1,478 events and activities engaging 41,702
attendees, The overall attendance for Redland libraries was 539,484,

The Strengthening Communities Unit delivered Redlands Coast Amazing Race attended
by 160 people and seniors events attended by more than 400 peaple,

There are 125 existing tenure arrangements (Leases and Licences to Occupy). These
arrangements cover both freehold (Council-owned) and Trust (state-owned) properties.
Of these, 88 are on freehold land and the remaining 37 on Trust land.

During 2018-2019, around 1,034 volunteers contributed approximately 27,860 hours
of service across various Council programs. Volunteers participated in restoring
conservation areas by planting local native species, removing weeds and rubbish and
manitoring flora, fauna and water quality as part of Council's bushcare programs.
Volunteers also rescued and cared for native wildlife through the Wildlife Care Netwark
and Wildlife Rescue Ambulance as well as helping out at the Animal Shelter.

Volunteers were involved in environmental planning research programs, assisting in
the nursery, café and events at IndigiScapes Centre along with involvement in the
glossy black cockatoo survey and Coochiemudlo Island curlew count. Volunteers also
complemented the adult literacy program at Redland libraries, provided assistance
at the Redland Art Gallery (RAG) and contributed community support through the
strengthening communities program.

Council’s focus in 2018-2019 was on the development of island-based disaster
management plan information to complement existing disaster management planning.
The plan was assessed against the Emergency Management Assurance Framework
standards as outlined by the Office of the Inspector-General Emergency Management
and was found to perform to a strong level.

Council's community education program continued, with focus on bushfire-prone areas
and isolated communities. Information flyers were developed and distributed to better

inform island communities of disaster preparedness actions residents should undertake.

Master planning commenced on Redlands Coast Regional Spart and Recreation Precinct
at Heinemann Road, Mount Cotton. Initial studies indicated that this site could provide
up to 25 hectares of future sporting land,

Status

Item 13.4- Attachment 1

Page 136



GENERAL MEETING AGENDA

20 NOVEMBER 2019

Operational Plan 2018-2019 scorecard

In addition to Perfarmance Indicators (previous page), the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets more
specific five-year outcomes. These outcomes highlight key areas of focus. They are delivered through

significant activities identified in Council's annual Operational Plan.

Additional information on each of the significant activities is on the following pages.

Targeted outcomes and significant activities scorecard

2018-2023 Targeted outcomes

7.1 Festivals, events and
activities bring together and
suppaort greater connectivity
between cross-sections of the
community.

7.2 Council maximises
community benefit from

the use of ils parklands and
facilities by improving access
to, and the quality and shared
use of, public spaces and

facilities by groups for sporting,

recreational and community
activities

7.3 Council's assessment of
community issues and needs
provides timely opportunities
to pursue grants and
partnerships that realise
long-term benefits

7.4 Council supports
volunteerism and participation
in civic projects through

clear and supportive Council
processes to reduce red-tape and
engage and recruit volunteers
for Council projects

7.5 The community’s
preparedness for disasters is
improved through community
education, training and strong
partnerships between Council
and ather agencies

2018-2019 Significant activities

7.1.1 Celebrate the cultural life of the region

7.2.1 Plan, provide and advocate for essential social
infrastructure for community activities

7.2.2 Develop innovative and accessible library services
as part of the implementation of the Library Services
Strategy 2017-2022

7.2.3 Plan for effective sport and recreation at
Heinemann Road, Redland Bay

7.2.4 Manage community access of Council sport and
recreation facilities

7.2.5 Encourage community use and participation

7.3.1 Deliver Council's Grants and Sponsorship Program

7.3.2 Develop programs to encourage reading and all
forms of literacy as part of the implementation of the
Library Services Strategy 2017-2022

7.4.1 Provide volunteering and work experience
opportunities for the community

7.5.1 Improve disaster preparedness

* % % * * *» »

These scorecards
summarise progress in
achieving the outcomes

of the Corporate Plan
2018-2023. This is central
to achieving Council’s
long-term community
plan. Performance is
determined by measuring
our annual progress against
Performance Indicators
and significant activities.

o Delivered

 Ontrack

(£) Monitor
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7.1.1 Celebrating
cultural life

Council assisted the delivery

of more than 84 community-
organised events attended

by approximately 237,000
people. Council also delivered
23 community or corporate
events, attended by 26,600
penple. These events included
Christmas by Starlight, Redlands
Coast Australia Day Awards,
five citizenship ceremonies,
Lighting of the Christmas Tree,
Diner en Rouge, Redlands Coast
Volunteers’ celebration and the
Redland City Mayoral Prayer
Breakfast.

7.2.1 Advocating for
social infrastructure

Council undertook planning and
advocacy activities to address
community needs. A review

of the Social Infrastructure
Strategy 2009 was completed
and research and consultation
was undertaken to inform

the development of the Age
Friendly City Strategy in
2019-2020. Council adopted
the homelessness policy and
advocacy continued to address
the homelessness service
response in the city. A range
of potential options for a
community hub were explored,
with a viable outcome still to
be identified. A concentrated
advacacy and collaboration
approach on the Southern
Moreton Bay Islands (SMBI)
focused on addressing service
gaps and resulted in improved
community service delivery to
the island communities.

2018-2019 significant a

7.2.2 Accessible

library services

Recland Libraries successfully
implemented radio frequency
identification (RFID) technology
across three of its libraries. This
involved tagging every item and
adding self-service check in and
check out equipment. The new
system provides a user-friendly
customer experience, reduced
manual handling for employees
and has created additional
space for customers within each
library. The team continued to
support customers to use the
new system and is continuing to
review processes.

7.2.3 Sports planning

The master planning process for
Redlands Coast Regional Sport
and Recreation Precinct is well
underway, with assistance from
the Queensland Government
and in consultation with the
community. [nitial technical
studies on cultural heritage
and the environment were
completed. Needs analysis to
understand trends and emerging
issues, as well as supply and
demand investigations and
detailed site planning studies,
commenced. [n 2018-2019
Council also commenced
geo-technical studies for the
precinct and developed a
project plan which will inform
and guide future delivery.

ctivity highlights

7.2.4 Sport and
recreation facilities

To streamline existing
arrangements and provide
clarity to sports and recreation
clubs, Council has reviewed

a number of arrangements
when clubs seek to undertake
work or projects on Council
facilities. This includes a review
of land owners’ consent and
the process for implementing
sports field lighting. Council's
wehsite has been updated with
improved mapping of sport and
recreation facilities, sport and
recreation clubs, popular parks
and exercise equipment and
playgrounds to provide visibility
and information on the available
facilities for the community.

7.2.5 Encouraging
community participation
The Reclands Healthy and
Active Program (RHAP)
provided 115 programs aver
the year. Council partnered
with local health and fitness
providers to deliver low-cost
activities to more than 9,500
attendees, which was an
average participation rate

of eight people per session.
Council also supported
community organised events
such as Redlands Coast Fun
Run, a new event to Redlands
Coast, which attracted more
than 1,100 participants. Other
community events such as
RedFest and the Cleveland
Caravan, Camping, Boating
and 4x4 Expo attracled
significant interest.
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7.3.1 Grants and
sponsorship

Council successfully
administered the Grants
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rded 69 grants
and sponsorships totalling
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year, Council a
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A wide range of program
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Vision Outcome 8

INCLUSIVE AND
ETHICAL GOVERNANCE

Overview

6/6

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS
ON TRACK

5/5

TARGETED
OUTCOMES
DELIVERED

DELIVERED VIA

9/9

SIGNIFICANT
ACTIVITIES
COMPLETED

Item 13.4- Attachment 1 Page 141




GENERAL MEETING AGENDA

20 NOVEMBER 2019

Vision Outcome 8
INCLUSIVE AND ETHICAL GOVERNANCE

Deep engagement, quality leadership at all levels, transparent and accountable democratic processes
and a spirit of partnership between the community and Council will enrich residents’ participation in
local decision-making to achieve the community’s Redlands 2030 vision and goals.

Corporate Plan 2018-2023 scorecard

Council's Corporate Plan 2018-2027 sets five-year Performance Indicators for each Vision Outcome. Progress against these is measured

annually, as below.

Performance Indicators and progress scorecard

2018-2023 Performance Indicator

Financial Strategy Key
Performance [ndicators including
measures of sustainability

Effective implementation and
performance reporting on the
Corporate Plan

All Council employees have clear,
achievable goals aligned to corporate
objectives and managed via the
MyGoals Performance Framewark

Community satisfaction with
engagement activities

Monitor and govern asset
management maturity and
capacity

Strategic alignment and delivery of
Council's project portfolio

104

2018-2019 progress

Performance on these indicators can be found in the Community Financial Report an
pages 14-21.

The annual Operational Plan 2018-2019 identifies the 70 significant activities that
Council planned to undertake to progress the eight Vision Outcomes articulated in
the Corporate Plon 2018-2023. Progress of the significant aclivities was reported on a
quarterly basis in the Operational Plan Performance Reports. [n 2018-2019 Council
completed all 70 significant activities identified in the Operational Plan 2018-2019.
Council also progressed four carried forward activities fram the Operational Plan
2017-2018. Three of the four carried forward activities were completed in 2018-2019
and the progress of one carried forward activity is being monitored. Council’s annual
performance of significant activities is published in this annual repart.

MyGoals performance management conversations occurred between July and September
2018, cascading through the organisation from executive and senior leaders to
employees. Overall, 695 MyGoals conversations were recorded (an increase from 548
completed in 2017) to improve line of sight between individual and Council performance.

Cauncil’s biennial Customer Satisfaction Survey tested community perception of
importance and performance in 37 Council activity areas. Undertaken in February and
March 2018, it showed that 84% of Redlands Coast community believed Council did

a very good, good or fair job of informing the community, while 64% of respondents
thought Council did a very good, good or fair job of consulting with the community.

Overall participation by community members on Council's “Your Say’ digital community
engagement site increased by 64% to 1,800 active participants. This improvement
aligns with changes made to participation requirements that allow those interested in
having their say to do so without first having to register. There were around 33,600
visits to Council’s "Your Say” page.

Community engagement projects used innovative feedback methods. The draft Redlands
Coast Transport Strategy used interactive mapping that allowed participants to drop virtual
pins onto a map and upload commentary, photos or video. This project also saw our first
delivery of engagement activities through Instagram. Conducting engagement activities

on digital platforms also encouraged participation by younger demographics. Social media
continued to grow in importance as both engagement and awareness mechanisms.

Council adopted the Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) in compliance with the
150 55001 standard. The SAMP specifies how organisational objectives are converted
into asset management objectives, the approach for developing Asset and Service
Management Plans (ASMPs) and the role of the Asset Management System (AMS).
Council completed an update of all ASMPs and planned the 10-year capital portfolio,
which was prioritised for the annual budget.

Council’s financial year 2018-2019 program and project portfolio was defined

through a structured prioritisation process, with alignment to strategic objectives and
incorporating the outcomes of comprehensive Strategic Asset Planning.

Delivery of the partfolio has been undertaken through service units and delivery teams,
with the Portfalio Management Office providing governance oversight.

Status

v

v

v
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Operational Plan 2018-2019 scorecard

In addition to Performance Indicators (previous page), the Corporate Plan 2018-2023 sets mare
specific five-year outcomes. These outcomes highlight key areas of focus. They are delivered through

significant activities identified in Council’s annual Operational Plan

Additional information on each of the significant activities is on the following pages.

Targeted outcomes and significant activities scorecard

2018-2023 Targeled outcomes

2018-2019 Significant activities

Status

8.1 Council’s Infarmation
Management Strategy and
technology systems are
engineered to increase efficiency
and provide excellent customer
service outcomes

8.2 Council produces and
delivers against sustainable
financial forecasts as a result of
best practice capital and asset
management plans that guide
project planning and service
delivery across the city

8.3 [mplementation of

| the Corporate Plan is well
coordinated across Council and
through a delivery mechanism

| that provides clear line of sight,
accountability and performance
measurement for all employees

8.4 A continuous improvement
focus underpins the
organisation, creating a

| supportive environment for
ideas and positive, well-
managed change that enhances
internal and external outcomes

8.5 Council uses meaningful
tools to engage with the
community on diverse issues
so that the community is well
informed and can contribute to
decision making

8.1.1 Transition hardware to a new data centre

8.1.2 Transition hardware to a new disaster recovery site

8.2.1 Improve whole-of-Council asset management

8.3.1 Improve strategic alignment
8.3.2 Prioritise Council's portfolio of projects

8.3.3 Improve alignment between individual and Council
perfarmance

8.4.1 Continue to build change management capability

8.4.2 Drive improvements in efficiency and effectiveness

8.5.1 Conduct community engagement on a diverse
range of issues

*

*

* * * % »

»

long-term community
plan. Performance is
determined by measuring
our annual progres
Perform

and sign

* Delivered
 Ontrack

(%) Monitor
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Vision Outcome 8 @

2018-2019 significant activ

8.1.1 Data centre
hardware migration
Council progressed transition
of hardware to the new data
centre, delivered in 2017, that
houses Council’s data. Technical
components were completed.
The data centre contains
hardware module racks, a new
server program and contains
environmental controls
including integral inhalation
and fire protection systems, The
new data centre has been built
to accommodate rapid growth
in technalogy and to ensure
Council stores its data in a safe
and efficient way.

8.1.2 New disaster
recovery site

Council has refurbished an
existing data centre facility that
is now fully functional to ensure
when disasters hit the city,
systems and communication
will keep running to support
the community. Council has
been able ta retire ageing
information technology
infrastructure and implement

a resilient facility to house
critical information technology
disaster recovery infrastructure.
Utilising modern power and
cooling technology, Council has
lowered the carbon footprint
and provided significant
reduction in operational costs.

8.2.1 Strategic Asset
Management Plan (SAMP)

Council developed the
Strategic Asset Management
Plan (SAMP). The SAMP was
developed through engagement
with internal stakeholders

and Council’s Capital and
Operational Advisory Board.
Council completed the annual
ASMPs update and planned
10-year capital portfolio
investrment, which was
prioritised for the annual
budget. The Asset Management
Project has procured asset
management technology,
which will support our asset
management maturity.

ity highlights

8.3.1 Improving
strategic alignment
Council has seen an
impravement in strategic
alignment through the
implementation of the
Integrated Strategic Plonning
Framework. The framewark,
along with supporting tools
and templates, has reinforced
a consistent approach to our
strategic planning governance
processes. Aninternal
integrated planning working
group has helped strengthen
the connections through the
annual planning cycle to
ensure planning processes are
connected and there is a strong
line of sight between strategic,
tactical and operational
planning,

8.3.2 Prioritising
projects
Prioritisation of Council's
capital investment portfalio
was completed. The Executive
Leadership Team endorsed the
prioritised capital portfolio,
which Council adopted at
Council's Special Budget
Meeting on 27 June 2019.
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8.3.3 Aligning
performance
Executive and senior

the Council's MyG
perfarmance a ppra
for all employees,
stronger focus this year on
leaders coaching individuals.
Management performance
conversations occurred during
July 2018 and were
throughout the organi
through MyGoals conversations
with all employees.

8.4.1 Change
management capability

This year change management
was implemented in Council's
practice through delivery

of a structured centre-led
methodology, employee
training and alignment with

the Portfolio Management
Office. A key achievement

was the formation of a change
management portfolio and ‘heat
map, promoting a Council vie
of the people-related changes
taking place and theirimpact an
s. This view informed
jons about the timing of
tion-wide projects to
ise adoption and use of
the projects’ change outcomes
Change management training
was also delivered to support
projects enhancing internal and
external outcomes.

8.4.2 Driving efficiencies
Th iness Transformation
Prog efined, and the

the argan 1sati
strategic transformat
cross-functional service
improvements and continuous
improvement. Two new training
courses were rolled out over
four sessions with 51 attendees
nnovative thinking

ss improvement.

I ort the
innovation process across the
arganisation was developed,
released and further refined.

e 48 for more on the
Business Transformation
Program,

8.5.1 Engaging with
our community
Community consultation

vities utilised a range of
methods including information-
rich ‘Talk to a Planner” activities,
user intercept surveys and
digital tools including Council’s
Your Say’ platform and socia
media. See page 50 for more
details on Council's community
engagement.
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REDLAND INVESTMENT CORPORATION
BUSINESS UNIT STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

AND ANNUAL REPORT

Beneficial enterprise
statement of operations

Redland Investment Corporation (RIC) was established by Redland
City Council in 2014 to identify alternate revenue sources, new
business opportunities and realise value for Council and the
Redlands Coast community.

Key Projects 2018-2019

In the 2018-2019 financial year, RIC continued to focus on
unlocking value from Council assets, to generate value and
benefit the Redlands Coast community.

One of RIC's key achievements included the sale and settlement of
13 townhouses at Ava Terraces, located at 9-11 Oaklands Street in
Alexandra Hills. A Development Approval was also received for

13 townhouses at 521 0ld Cleveland Road East, Birkdale.

RIC provided property project management and professional

and administration services for the Capalaba Town Centre
Revitalisation Project and Toondah Harbour and Weinam Creek
Priority Development Areas (PDAs). This included facilitating the
sub-division of 3-11 Moores Road, Redland Bay within the Weinam
Creel PDA. The land was sub-divided into a one hectare lot and
nine improved residential land parcels. RIC settled on the sale of
the one hectare lot and embarked on selling the residential lats in
2018-2019.

Additionally, RIC also managed an Expression of [nterest
Campaign to source proponents to deliver the Capalaba Town
Centre Revitalisation Project, which has since progressed to the
Request for Detailed Proposal stage.

Vision

RIC strives to be an innovative, responsible and financially
sustainable company that achieves its business objectives and
creates value for the Redlands Coast community and Council.

Mission

- Grow the economy through facilitating development and

husiness opportunities, while supporting local jobs.

« Deliver high-guality, exemplary projects that consider the

environment, community and best practice industry principles.

« Balance the long-term impacts of investment decisions with

financial returns and consideration of the community's broader
needs, including social and environmental aspects.

« Manage and achieve Council outcomes.

+ Negotiate nominated commercial negotiations on behalf of
Council and provide a better financial return for the Redlands
Coast community.

« Focus on delivering place-making and city building projects
providing economic growth and community benefit for Redlands
Coast.

« Build profitable, successful projects and respected relationships
with business groups and the community.

Our Values

« Safety first - we ensure our own safety and the safety of athers.

« Ethical and responsible decision making - we honour our
commitments and are open, honest and transparent.

- Safeguard perpetual financial success - we maintain
profitability and control costs and pursue innovation and
revenue diversification.

« Earn the trust and respect of the customers and the
community — we are customer service-oriented and take care
to understand Council's and the community’s needs.

- Promote a positive workplace - we encourage engagement,
creativity and acknowledge achievements.

RIC produces its own annual report which can be found on
Council's website.
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REDWASTE STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Business Unit Statement of

Operations and Annual Report

RedWaste, a commercial business unit of Redland City Council,

is Council's waste management unit. It is responsible for:
collecting kerbside waste, recycling and green waste bins
collecting waste and recycling from park and street bins
reducing waste to landfill through recycling and resource
recovery activities

operating two mainland and six island waste handling facilities
including Council’s reuse shop RecycleWorld

maintaining existing and planning for future waste and recycling
infrastructure

providing waste and recycling education and extension programs
delivering programs and initiatives to meet Council’s waste
strategy targets for waste reduction and resource recovery.

RedWaste provided services to Council and the community in
accordance with the RedWaste Annual Performance Plan (APP)
2018-2019. In 2018-2019 RedWaste provided essential waste and
recycling collection services to 61,204 households and managed
100,840 tonnes of salid waste from domestic sources. Of this
amount, 44.9% was recycled or recovered, which was an increase
of 0.2% from the previous financial year.

Our statutory duties

This annual report has been provided to meet the requirements
of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government
Regulation 2012. This legislation requires RedWaste to report
annually on its operations and performance and includes
infarmation on:
» changes made to the annual performance plan during the year
- impacts of the annual performance plan, including:

- financial position

- operating surplus or deficit

- prospects
» details of Council's direction to the unit.

Redland City Council’s Waste Strategy

Council's waste management strategy, the Waste Reduction and
Recycling Plan 2015-2020, was adopted in December 2015, The
plan sets the direction for increasing recycling and resource
recovery and builds on the previous 10-year waste plan. It sets
objectives and targets and an implementation plan for 2015 to
2020. A review of this Plan did not occur in 2018-2019 as the
Queensland Government delivered significant waste reform by
drafting a new Waste Strategy to 2050 and introducing a waste
disposal levy. Council's waste strategy will be reviewed in
2019-2020.

Highlights and achievements delivered

under the Waste Reduction and Recycling

Plan 2015-2020

+ Council continued to plan its waste and recycling services and
identify regional collaboration initiatives by participating in
working groups with key partners across south-east Queensland
and the Local Government Association of Queensland (LGAQ).

+ A Council response was prepared in respanse to the draft
Queensiand Waste Management and Resource Recovery Strategy.
Stronger targets and a new direction were set to increase
resource recovery and reduce waste to landfll which will require
greater action by local government and the Redlands Coast
community aver the next few decades.

Council resolved to participate in a regional Expression of
Interest (EOI) process for new waste and resource recovery
services as part of identifying future opportunities to align

with new direction from the Queensland Government. Progress
was made in scoping the specification for a new interim waste
disposal tender until the EOIl outcomes are known.

Council participated in working groups to identify operational
requirements in preparation for the introduction of a new State
Government waste disposal levy. Communication about the levy
was published on Council's website.

Specific highlights for 2018-2019

- Domestic kerbside recycling performance increased slightly by
0.9% to 26.9% in 2018-2019 compared to 2017-2018.
Diversion of domestic waste to recycling, resource recovery or
reuse at Council’s eight waste transfer stations declined by 1%
to 66.7% in 2018-2019 compared to 2017-2018.

Total domestic waste diverted from landfill (resource recovery)
was 44.9% in 2018-2019, a decrease of 0.2% from 2017-2018,
The kerbside green organics wheelie bin collection service
continued to grow and was accessed by 13,874 households,

or 23% of eligible (mainland) properties, in 2018-2019. This
compares to 11,518 househalds in 2017-2018 and 10,348
households in 2016-2017.

4,207 tonnes of scrap metal and 258 tonnes of e-waste were
recovered at Council waste transfer stations in 2018-2019.
This is less than the 4,648 tonnes of scrap metal recovered in
2017-2018 and the 4,382 tonnes recoverad in 2016-2017

The gas extraction system was expanded to install more wells
and 25,959 tonnes of carbon dioxide (CO2e) emissions were
reduced through Cauncil’s landfill gas renewable energy facility
at the Birkdale closed landfill. This is less than the reduction

of 30,140 tonnes equivalent in 2017-2018 and 30,734 tonnes
equivalent in 2016-2017 at the facility. The decrease in landfll
gas extraction reflects the ageing nature of the waste deposited
in the landfill and the decline in landfill gas production over time.
Redlands Coast residents participated in Garage 5ale Trail 2018
with a total of 50 garage sales held across the weekend of 20-21
October 2018, resulting in approximately 18 tonnes of waste
diverted from landfll.

Three contracts commenced in 2018-2019 including a new
12-year Waste, Recycling and Green Waste Collection Services
contract awarded to )] Richards & Sans Pty Ltd; Collection,
Transport and Processing of Green Waste and Timber awarded
to Wood Mulching Industries and the Home Assist Bulky Waste
Collection Service awarded to STAR Community Services.

The Queensland Government introduced the Container Refund
Scheme on 1 November 2018. There are nine drop off points in
Redlands Coast including Capalaba, Cleveland, Victoria Point and
Mount Cottaon.

A recycling bin promotion for National Recycling Week 2018
resulted in more than 1,100 larger 340L recycling bins being
issued to Redlands Coast househalds.

113

Item 13.4- Attachment 1

Page 151



GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

What we did
2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019
Number of domestic waste collections
Waste and recycling 57,080 57.669 59,843 61,204

Green waste 9,361 10.348 11,518 13,874

Recyclable material diverted from kerbside waste stream

Total kerbside domestic waste (lonnes) 56,243 59,098 60,679 57,569
Total kerbside co-mingled recycling (tonnes) 11,814 12,176 12,136 11,223
Total kerbside green waste (tonnes) 2,677 3,072 3,654 3,985
Percentage of kerbside material diverted from landfll (%) 25.8% 25.9% 26.0% 26.9%

Recoverable material diverted from landfill at waste transfer stations

Total domestic waste received at transfer stations (tonnes) 47,650 46,395 47,010 45,948
Materials diverted for recycling/reuse at transfer stations (tonnes) 34,687 33,140 32,553 30,658
Material diverted from landfill at transfer stations (%) 73% 71% 67.7% 66.7%

Kilograms per household per week

Kerbside domestic collection (waste, recycling and green waste) 18.9 19.7 19.5 18.1
Kerbside waste collection 13.8 14.6 14.4 13.3
Kerbside recycling collection (recycling and green waste) 4.9 51 51 5.2

Resource recovery rate - total domestic waste material diverted for reuse and recycling

Total domestic waste handled (tonnes) 103,893 104,363 107.581 100,840
Total waste diverted from landfill (tonnes) 49,178 48135 48,089 45,322
Waste recycled (% of total waste) 47.3% 46.1% 44.7% 44.9%

Complaints and compliments

Percentage of missed service complaints (%) 0.028% 0.024% 0.029% 0.022%
Percentage of ather camplaints (%) 0.003% 0.002% 0.002% 0.001%
Number of compliments 24 24 42 30

Annual Performance Plan (APP) - Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Key Performance Indicator APP yearly target Actual Achieved
Green living Municipal solid waste resource recovery rate Min 45.8% 44.9% @
Healthy % compliance with Department of Environment
and natural and Science waste licence requirements for waste Min 98% 99% O
environment management facilities

Waste operating revenue +/-5% 1.98% .
An efficient Waste operating goods and services +/-5% 32% )
and effective Waste capital expenditure +/- 5% -13% .
organisation Lost time injury* Max 20 0 .

Missed service complaints <0.035% 0.022% .

. Target achieved . Target not achieved
114
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Four-year trends

Municipal solid waste resource recovery rate
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RedWaste Financial Performance
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per cent (%)
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-60 -62.59%
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Waste capital expenditure

APP yearly farget
& Waste operating goods and services

for these KPIs
was +{- 5%

B Waste operating revenue

*Last time injuries were zero over the four-year period.

Explanation of trends

Municipal solid waste resource recovery rate

The municipal solid waste resource recovery rate has steadily
declined from 47.3% in 2015-2016 to 44.9% in 2018-2019
primarily due to the reduction in green waste and recyclable
materials being received at Council’s waste transfer stations as a
proportion of the total waste managed.

Missed Services

Complaints for missed waste, recycling and green waste collection
services have steadily decreased due to the utilisation of GPS and
CCTV fitted to the collection vehicles. This data allows Council
customer service officers to determine whether the service was
missed due to the contractor or the resident. Missed services
complaints spiked in 2017-2018 due to the commencement of the
new waste, recycling and green waste collection contract which
saw some changes to collection times catching residents who had
not placed their bins out by Gam as required.

% compliance with Department of Environment and Science (DES)
waste licence requirements for waste management facilities

100 ®I9.7% W90.7%
o m99.5% 99%
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Missed service complaints
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0025
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WO024%
= W0.022%
0,020
=
=¥}
S 0.015
=4
0.010
0.005

0.000

2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019

Waste Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure for RedWaste is determined by the need
Lo maintain or replace assets at the waste transfer stations,
or through the provision of Mobile Garbage Bins (MGBs) to
householders.

Waste Operating Revenue

Waste operating revenue spiked in 2017-2018 due to an increase
in scrap metal sale prices and total volume of scrap metal
recovered at waste transfer stations.

Waste Operating Goods and Services

Waste operating goods and services were higher than the KPLin
2017-2018 due to expenditure higher than budgeted for expanded
services including kerbside green waste collection, waste transfer
station waste transport and timber disposal
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REDLAND WATER
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Redland Water high[]ghts Redland Water contributes to preserving the city's quality of
life by servicing the Redlands population through 68,759 water

connections and 54,274 wastewater connections. In 2018-2019,
Redland Water purchased 13,443 megalitres of drinking water
to supply to its customers and treated 9,859 megalitres of
wastewater.

Redland Water is a commercial business unit of Redland City
Council, responsible for water supply and wastewater collection
and treatment. Redland Water's mission is to meet or exceed
agreed standards of water and wastewater services while managing
the business for long-term success.

How did we do operationally?

Percentage of water samples complying with Australian Drinking Water Guidelines
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Number of water main breaks and leaks
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Overall number of dry weather overflows
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Percentage service interruptions restored within 5 hours (wastewater)
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Number of non-conformances with Department of Environment and Science (DES) licence
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Average response time to water main breaks (in minutes)
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Water supply
Project Description Budget Expenditure to date | Comments
Complete annual water A rolling program aof $112,646 $76,282 | 2,326 meters were replaced as at
meter replacement program  replacing water meters 30 June 2019. The meter management
occurs each year program is being carried out in
accordance with AS 3565.4
Scott Street Cleveland AC Replaced aged and $105,226 £54,483 | Approximately 275 m of AC main
water main replacement failing AC main replaced in Scott Street following
numerous bursts
Water
Reservoirs 5
Length of water main 1,309 km
Mumber of active meters 59,839
Number connected residential properties (including vacant land 7,016) 66,409
Mumber connected non-residential properties 2,350
Total number connected (charged access fees 1 July 2019) 68,750
Water purchased 13,443 ML
Water supplied (estimated) 13,028 ML
Total assets £288m
122
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Wastewater
Project Description Budget  Expenditure to date | Comments
64177 Victoria Point WWTP Repair the hioreactor $150,000 $39,522 | This project was delivered
Structural Improvements structure to ensure significantly under-budget due
structural integrity will be to an engineering solution that
maintained into the future significantly reduced the scope
of works required
64005 Sewerage Pump One new pump installed $42,684 $37,636 | Works completed successfully
Station No.5 and associated internal
pipework
64172 Point Lookout Backlog Construction of sewerage $4,600,000 $11,000 | Design, stakeholder
Sewer and Water Main reticulation for some of the engagement and project
unsewered parts of Point planning underway for
Lookout township construction in 2019-2020
63120 Switchboards Pump Design and ordered $104,304 $91,304 | Saving of $13k was
Stations switchboard for sewerage redistributed to critical asset
pump station No. replacement at Cleveland
72 located on Morth Waste Water Treatment Plant
Stradbroke Island
64092 Sewerage Pump Station Upgrade of pump station $536,590 $111,564 | Design, stakeholder
No. 92 and Rising Main and rising main to handle engagement and project
growth in Redland Bay planning completed.
catchment
63067 Pumps Sewerage pump $270,613 $207,043 | Identified, specified and
replacement program purchased critical pumps for
sewerage pump stations across
the network
Wastewater
Treatment plants 7
Pumping stations 138
Length of sewer main 1,207 km
Active residential services (including vacant land 787) 52,409
Number of active services non-residential 1,865
Total number of connected properties (including vacant land) 54,274
Wastewater treated (effluent) 9,859 ML

Sludge for re-use

59% (18,671 tonnes)

Recycled effluent for reuse >34 ML
Trade waste generators 812

Trade waste discharged to sewer 317 ML
Total assets $504m
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Our statutory duties

Under the SEQ Water (Distribution and Retail Restructuring) Act

2009, Redland Water is required to prepare a Water Netserv Plan.

A revised Netserv Plan Part A has been adopted by Council that is
aligned to the new Redland City Plan. The revised Netserv Plan Part
A came into effect with the commencement of the Local Government
Infrastructure Plan

Redland Water continues to maintain close liaison and regional
collaboration with south-east Queensland water service providers
and Seqgwater, as required under the Bulk Water Supply Code.

Currently, Redland Water is required to repart against its Drinking
Water Quality Management Plan, which was reviewed on 31 May
2018 and submitted to the Regulator for approval on 14 June 2018,
Further reviews are required to be completed every two years, the
next review is due June 2020. The first regular audit of the plan was
conducted on 9 and 10 March 2016. Further audits are required to
be completed every four years, with the next external audit due by
30 June 2020. Redland Water provided the Regulator with regular
audit reports on 19 April 2016 in accordance with section 108 of
the Water Supply (Safety & Reliability) Act 2008,

Redland Water is required to provide the Regulator with an annual
report, in accordance with sections 141 and 142 of the Water Supply
(Safety & Reliability) Act 2008 in each financial year and this report
must be made available to the public.

This report details Redland Water’s performance for the
2018-2019 financial year and fulfils the business unit’s duties
under the Local Government Act 2009, the Water Act 2000 and the
South East Queensland Water (Distribution and Retail Restructuring)
Act 2009,

Financial report and community
service obligations

Details of Recland Water's financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2019 are contained in the Financial Statements on pages
140-181.

Environmental initiatives

Redland Water continued its focus on improving the environmental
performance of its wastewater treatment plants, pump stations and
water and wastewater reticulation mains. Activities for 2018-2019
included:

Wastewater

- There was a continued focus on preventative maintenance of
wastewater treatment plant and pump station assets, including
updating of asset management plans for these facilities.

99.1% of all biosolids produced from the wastewater treatment
plants were reused via land application.

Ongoing monitoring and improvements to dechlorination system
to improve effluent guality and environmental outcomes in
Hilliards Creek.

Works were carried out on the bioreactor at Victoria Point
Wastewater Treatment Plant to maintain its structural integrity
into the future. The works should ensure it can continue to be
used at its design treatment capacity without the risk of loss

of containment to the environment and subsequent loss of
treatment capacity.

Document preparation for tendering of a facility options
assessment study far Capalaba Wastewater Treatment Plant

to ensure it will continue to maintain compliance with
environmental licence requirements into the future.
Commissioned an upgrade study of the Victoria Point Wastewater
Treatment Plant to reduce nitrogen discharge to the environment
and to ensure it can maintain compliance with licence
requirements into the future.

Commissioned a review of the guality of biosolids generated by
wastewater treatment plants, with recommendations to improve
stabilisation quality.

Document preparation and tendering far Point Lookout
Wastewater Treatment Plant Dewatering Improvement, which
aims to reduce the quantity of biosolids that need to be disposed
of. This should reduce the amount of waste sent to landfill,

as well as carbon emissions.
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Annual Performance Plan (APP) - Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

Customer service standards delivery

Customer service standards describe and define the levels of service Redland Water commits to provide to its customers for water and
wastewater services, Below is a summary of Redland Water's water and wastewater service standard Key Performance Indicators (KPIs),
targets and performance for 2018-2019 in the Redlond Water Annual Performance Plan for water and waslewater services, as adopted by

Council on 25 June 2018.

Key Performance Indicator APP yearly target Actual Achieved
Operating revenue (actual to budget) +[-5% -1.78% O
Operating goods and services expenditure (actual to budget) +(-5% -2.32% [ ]
Capital expenditure (actual to budget) +-5% -72.18% .
Treatment costs per property serviced (wastewater) e $170.94 .
per property $172.70 per year ’
Maintenance costs per property serviced (water) $4.03 per month $51.71 .
per property $48.30 per year ’
) . $9.69 per month/
Maintenance costs per property serviced (wastewater) $116.22 per year $88.23 [ ]
Number of wastewater treatment plant non-conformances with DES licence :;};?Yi;er menth/ 2 .
% compliance with Australian Drinking Water Guidelines (ADWG) within
distribution system. Does not include non-compliant water received at the . *
point of transfer ta the distribution system, i.e. from the bulk water authority R 99:9% o
or the bulk transpart authority
Number of lost time injuries 0 o] [ ]

* KPI achieved every month with 100% result for 10 months and 99.5% complionce in March 2019 and 99 6% compliance in May 2019

Managing our assets

Operational performance 2018-2019

In fulfilling the duties of its performance plan, Redland Water
provided all stated services and roles for:

= water supply to customers

+ wastewater collection and treatment

+ trade waste.

Redland Water also:

+ reported manthly on water and effluent quality and financial
and capital project status

+ complied with Council's corporate plan, policies and procedures
and integrated enviranmental management system.

. Target achieved . Target not achieved

Drinking water quality monitoring

Drinking water quality monitoring is undertaken through a
verification monitoring program approved by the Regulator.

Under the Water Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008 Section 102
and the Public Health Act 2005, Redland Water must report to the
Regulator any non-compliance with health guidelines or report

an event that may impact public health. 99.9% compliance with
Australian Drinking Water Guidelines was achieved in 2018-2019,
with no incident reported to the Regulator.

Redland Water is required to provide the Queensland Department
of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy with annual reports within
120 business days of the end of the financial year.
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GOVERNANCE

Right to information and privacy

The Right to [nformation Act 2009 and the Information Privacy Act
2009 provide the community with access to information, balanced
by appropriate protection for individuals' privacy. The public

can apply for access to documents held by a Council, unless it

is contrary Lo the public interest to provide that information.

The legislation also allows individuals to apply for amendments to
be made to documents concerning their personal affairs, where it
is believed the information is incomplete, out of date, inaccurate
ar misleading.

Applications received under the 45
Right ta Information Act 2009
Applications received under the 8
Information Privacy Act 2009
Applications received under the
Information Privacy Act 2009 to amend personal 0
information
Total Right to Information and Information 53
Privacy applications received
Total Right to Information and Information

. 5,686
Privacy pages processed
Applications received for internal review 1
Applications for external review with the @
Office of the Information Commissioner

Council received a tolal of 53 Right to Information and
Information Privacy applications during 2018-2019 and there
were four applications on hand at 1 July 2018. A total of 51
decisions were issued to applicants within legislative timeframes.
Twao applications were withdrawn by the applicants.

One internal review application was received and finalised under
the Right to Information Act 2009 and the decision was varied.

The Office of the Infarmation Commissioner Queensland (OIC)
received four requests for external review of decisions by Council.
The OIC upheld two external reviews, both affirming Council's
decision. One application lodged by a third party was withdrawn.
Two external review applications are yet to be finalised.

There were three Right to Information applications on hand at
30 June 2019,

Risk assessment

Council is committed to an enterprise-wide risk management
system through the application of its Enferprise Risk Management
Framework and accompanying Risk Assessment Handbook which
outline Council’s methodologies and how it manages its risks in
line with laws, regulations, policies and standards.

Council follows the principles and guidelines set out in the
Australian Standard AS IS0 31000.

Formal risk registers cover strategic, aperational and project risks.
Regular reviews of the registers take place to ensure the currency
and management of identified risks. Council's Operational Risk
Management Cammittee (ORMC) cantinues to review and endorse
the risk registers.

Over the past 12 months, Council’s Risk and Liability team has
undertaken a complete review of the fisk Management Framework
to align its approach with the updated Australian Standard AS
IS0 31000. All risks across Council have been reviewed and an
intense education and engagement piece undertaken to raise
awareness of fraud and corruption risk exposures.

Risk and Liability are actively engaged on key strategic projects
such as Redlands Coast Sports and Recreational Precinct,
IndigiScapes redevelopment and the autonomous vehicle trial,
as well as various operational projects.

Council's Audit committee has now added a full agenda item for
risk management within these meetings which enforces Council’s
commitment to best risk management practices,

For Self-Insurance for Workers Compensation Redland City Council
has been identified as a low risk Self-Insurer by the Regulator and

its performance is at a high level compared to the scheme for key

KPI measures.

Fraud and corruption prevention

Council's Froud and Corruption Prevention Palicy (POL-3060) farms

part of our overall approach to transparent corporate governance

Council is committed to:

+ a zero-tolerance approach to fraud and corruption

+ corruption and fraud control and management as an integral
component of effective carporate governance

+ transparent and accountable processes consistent with sound
business practices and organisational standards of compliance

« preventing fraud and corruption and investigating all suspected
incidents and taking appropriate action

+ maintaining an integrated Fraud and Corruption Prevention
Framework to minimise the impact and reduce the risk of fraud
and corruption within the work environment.
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Administrative action complaints

Council is committed to the fair management of administrative
action complaints. This commitment is underpinned by our
Complaints Manogement Process Policy (POL-3037), which supports
Council's priority to deliver inclusive and ethical governance for
the community. The policy includes clear accountabilities, ethical
standards of behaviour and a commitment to act in accordance
with the principles contained in the Local Government Act 2009
(‘the Act’)

The policy outlines a clear administrative method of handling and
resolving complaints made by community members about various
issues, including:

- a decision, or failure to make a decision

» an act, or failure to do an act

+ the formulation of proposal or intention

« the making of a recommendation.

During 2018-2019, the following internal review complaint
statistics were reported:

Number of complaints outstanding at 1 July 2018 3
Number of complaints opened for the reporting period 36

Number of complaints resolved in the reporting period 33

Number of complaints outstanding at 30 June 2019 3

The full Complaints Process Policy is available on Council's website,

Internal Audit

Internal Audit provides Councillors and management with
assurance that internal control systems are efficient, effective and
economical and that risk is appropriately addressed so objectives
can be achieved. Internal Audit operates in accordance with
Council's Internal Audit Charter, which sets out the mandate,
roles and responsibilities of the function

Internal Audit reviews and provides advice on:

= legislative and policy compliance

- operational cost-effectiveness and efficiency

« reliability of financial and related management information
= use of public funds and assets under Council’s control

+ adequacy and accuracy of information systems.

Internal Audit is an independent function within Council,
reporting to the CEQ and the Audit Committee about audit and
investigation findings.

For administrative, financial and employee management, Internal
Audit reports to the Group Manager Corporate Governance.
PricewaterhouseCoopers was Council's co-source audit partner
during 2018-2019.

In 2018-2019, Internal Audit's findings confirmed that a
satisfactory internal control environment exists within Council.

Audit committee

The objective of the Audit Committee is to promate good
corporate governance through independent oversight and
advice in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009,
the Local Gavernment Regulation 2012 and Council's Audit
Committee Charter.

The Audit Committee complements the relationship between
Internal Audit and the wider organisation, safeguarding Internal
Audit's independence and further increasing the Internal Audit
function's effectiveness and value to Council.

The Audit Committee comprised Mayor Karen Williams,

Cr Paul Gleeson, Mr Peter Dowling and Mr Virendra Dua,

with Cr Gleeson appointed by Council in 2016 as the Chairperson
of the Committes.

The Audit Committee meets four times a year, of which ane
meeting is for the purpose of reviewing the draft annual
financial statements prior to submission to the Queensland
Audit Office.

External Audit

Council is audited annually by the Queensland Audit Office, which
reports to Queensland Parliament as part of its role to enhance
public sector accountability. It continuously reviews and assesses
the internal contral environment surrounding Council's financial
and related systems and practices.

This pravides a statutory mechanism for external review of
Council's financial operations and other carporate matters
affecting the sound management of the organisation.
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DISCLOSURES

Business activities subject to the code
of competitive conduct (includes any

investigation notices for competitive
neutrality complaints)

Under the Local Government Act 2008, Council must provide specific
information about its operations and key policies. This section
includes a large portion of the information required under the Act,
with the remaining information in other sections of this annual
report. A full list of annual reparting requirements for Councils
required under the Act is provided from page 183 and where to find
the relevant infarmation in this repart.

Business activities subject to the
Code of Competitive Conduct

Significant business activities

Redland Water is a commercial business unit of Council,
responsible for water supply and wastewater treatment. You can
find more information on Redland Water's activities in 2018-2019
on pages 116-125,

RedWaste, which looks after Council's waste management

activities, is also a significant business activity. You can find

more information on RedWaste's activities in 2018-2019 on

pages 112-115.

The competitive neutrality principle has been applied to both

husiness activities above. There were no investigation notices given

in 2018-2019 under section 48 of the Local Government Regulation

2012 for competitive neutrality complaints.

Under section 190(1)(c) of the Local Government Regulation 2012:

+ a local government's annual report for a financial year must
include an annual operations report for each commercial
business unit.

Section 190(2) of the Local Government Requlation 2012 states:

+ an annual operations report for a commercial business unit
means a document that contains the following information for
the previous financial year:

- information that allows an informed assessment of the unit's
operations, including a comparison with the unit's annual
performance plan

- particulars of any changes made to the unit's annual
performance plan

- particulars of the impact the changes had on the unit's:
* financial position
* operating surplus or deficit
* prospects

- particulars of any directions the local government
gave the unit.

Beneficial enterprises

Under section 41 of the Local Government Act 2009, a local
government's annual report for each financial year must contain
a list of all the beneficial enterprises conducted during the
financial year.

Council’s beneficial enterprises include the Redland Investment
Carporation (RIC) as well as its subsidiary companies that are local
government-controlled entities: RIC Toondah Pty Ltd, Ava Terraces
Pty Ltd and Cleveland Plaza Pty Ltd.

Please note that as at 19 April 2019, Ava Terraces Pty Ltd changed
its entity name to Redland Developments Pty Ltd pursuant to
section 157 of the Corporations Act 2001.

Executive Leadership Team remuneration

Remuneration range Number of Executive
(total package) Leadership Team paid
$400,000 to $500,000 1
$300,000 to $400,000 3
$200,000 to $300,000 3
Total amount paid $1,761,501

during reporting period
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Councillor remuneration

In accordance with section 186(1)(a) of the Local Gavernment
Regulation 2012, the annual report of the local government

must contain particulars of the total remuneration, including
superannuation contributions paid to each Councillor during the

financial year.

Councillor remuneration is set by the independent Local
Government Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal, established
under the Local Government Act 2009, The Tribunal is responsible
for determining the maximum remuneration payment to

the Mayar, Deputy Mayor and Councillors.

The 2017 Local Government Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal
Report determined that remuneration to be paid for 2018-2019,

as follows:

Mayor: $175,859
Deputy Mayar: .. $119,903
Councillors ... ... %$103,918

Division  Name Gross salary* Council superannuation contributions
Mayor Williams $175,783.61 $20,568.34

1 Cr Boglary $103,873.34 $12,464.84
2 Cr Mitchell £103,873.34 $12,464.84
3 Cr Golle $103,873.34 $12,464.84
4 Cr Hewlett (Deputy Mayor) $119,851.65 $14,382.06
5 Cr Edwards $103,873.34 $12,464.84
6 Cr Talty $103,873.34 $12,464.84
7 Cr Elliott $103.873.34 $12.464.84
8 Cr Huges $103,873.34 $12,464.84
9 CrGleeson $103,873.34 $12,464.84
10 Cr Bishap $103,873.34 $12,464.84
$1,230,495.32 $147,133.96

* Gross salaries paid to Councillors were slightly lower than the remuneration figures determined by the Local Government Remuneration ond Discipline Tribunal.

This was due to pays including five doys at 2017-2018 rates.

Expenses reimbursement and provision of facilities for Councillors
In accordance with section 250 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, Council must have an Expenses Reimbursement Policy for Council.

In November 2018, this policy was reviewed.

The objective of this policy is to ensure the payment of legitimate and reasonable expenses incurred by Councillors for discharging their
duties and responsibilities as Councillors and to provide facilities to Councillors for those purposes. This is to ensure Councillors are not
financially disadvantaged as a result of carrying out their official duties.

The policy is also aimed at reflecting the community's expectations about the extent of a Councillor's duties and responsibilities and
its expectations aboul the resources and reimbursement provided to Councillors from public funds. This policy does not deal with
the pravision of remuneration, nor does it cover non-business-related expenses or facilities incurred by other people, including a
Councillor's partner,

The full policy is available on Council’s website.
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Mayor and Councillor expenses and facilities

Under section 186(b) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, the following expenses were incurred by, and the facilities provided to, each
Councillor for conference, training, travel, hospitality and other expenses incurred in accordance with Council’s Expenses Reimbursement
and Provision of Facilities for Councillors Policy (POL-3076).

Conferences, training and

Division  Name community events *~ Transport* Total
Mayor Williams $3,001.83 $12,530.72 $15,532.55
1 Cr Boglary $3,380.28 $2,431.29 $5,811.57
2 Cr Mitchell $6.171.83 $10.839.62 $17,011.45
3 Cr Goll& $4,457.28 $9,791.68 $14,248.96
I Cr Hewlett (Deputy Mayor) $4,864.79 $13,756.36 $18,621.15
5 Cr Edwards $2,765.15 $12,986.06 $15,751.21
6 Cr Talty $7.636.48 $8,111.69 $15,748.17
7 Cr Elliott $181.82 $7.513.52 $7,695.34
8 Cr Huges $5,094.21 £12,105.43 $17,199.64
El Cr Gleeson £4,221.82 $10,011.62 $14,233.44
10 Cr Bishap $6,734.28 $9,788.12 $16,522.40
Total $48,509.77 $109,866.11 $158,375.88
* Vehicles, travel, ferries, parking and fares.
" Ineludes travel costs associoted with events whether attended in o discretionary copacity or as o delegate on behalf of Council

Councillor attendance at meetings

As required under section 186(d) of the Local Government Regulation 2012, the table below details the number of local government meetings
each Councillor attended during the financial year.

Totals of Statutory Meetings Attended — July 2018-fune 2019

> 3 & = s a
= [} = — wr
2 = = < = g = 5 & i £
= 2 = 8 2 Z = = - S| &
= —~ 5 ~ 5 M5 T+ 5 w5 o 5 ~ 5 w 5 o5 =5
g c = c = c = c = c = c = cC = cC = c = c =
= 2735 20 =g [=hw] =i} 2T 2 g 825G 2735 235
< =g 2 g a 5 2 S 2 g 2 g 2 g 25 =g &g
o Z o Z o Z 5 Z o 2 5 Z 5 Z 5 Z 5 Z 3 Z o
= a oW o o w o o [ L [ R [ [ R
General Meetings
(19 held) 17 19 18 18 19 18 19 19 19 18 18
Special Meetings
(2 held) 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Totals 19 21 20 20 21 20 21 21 21 20 20
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Overseas travel

Under section 188(1) & (2) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 Council must include information about any overseas travel made
by a Councillor or local government employee in an official capacity during the financial year.

132

Name Destination Purpose Cost* (ex. GST)

Mayor Karen Williams London LGMS Board of Management (LGAQ). Mayor attended Nil #
meetings and presentations to London Underwriters
(2-8 March 2019)

Mayor Karen Williams Taipei Attend 2019 Taiwan Smart Cities Summit & Expo $148.48*
(25-30 March 2019)

Kim Kerwin, Group Manager Community | Taipei Attend 2019 Taiwan Smart Cities Summit & Expo $1,649.11"

& Economic Development (25-30 March 2019)

Laurena Reissman, Principal Advisor France Attend a course at Grenoble Ecole de Management to $2,153.51

Strategy & Performance

obtain ‘Certificate in [nnovation, Design Thinking &

Intrapreneurship’ (30 May to 20 June 2019)

# Costs covered by Loco! Government Mutuol Services (LGMS) Boord of Manogement (LGAQ)

* Flight charges were reimbursed by Taipei Computer Assaciation
*Includes airfare, taxi and accommaodation

Mayor and Councillor conduct

The Act provides a framework for assessing complaints about
the conduct and performance of Councillors. Under the Act, each
complaint is required to be assessed to determine whether it

is about inappropriate conduct, misconduct, corrupt conduct
under the Crime and Corruption Act 2001 or another matter. If the
complaint is not frivolous, vexatious or lacking in substance, it is
referred to the appropriate individual or office for investigation.

Council received two Councillor complaints for the period 1 July
2018 - 2 December 2018, and 13 Councillor complaints for the
period 3 December 2018 - 30 June 2019. This figure does not
include complaints made in the previous reparting period for which
outcomes from external agencies were determined in the current
reporting period.

In accordance with the requirements of the former section 186(d)
of the Local Government Regulation 2012, Council advises that for
the period 1 July 2018 - 2 December 2018 the following statistics
were reported:

Number of orders and recommendations made under the 1
former section 180 (2) and (4) of the Act

Orders made under the former section 181 of the Act 1

In accordance with the requirements of section 186(d) and (1)

of the current Local Government Regulation 2012, Council advises
that far the period 3 December 2018 - 30 June 2019 the following
statistics were reported:

Orders made under section 1501(2) of the Act; 0
Unsuitable Meeting Conduct

Orders made under section 150AH(1) of the Act; 0
Inappropriate Conduct

Decisions, orders and recommendations made under Q
section 150AR(1) of the Act; Disciplinary Action made by
conduct tribunal

Complaints referred to the assessor under section 4]
150P(2)(a) of the Act by local government entities far
the local government

Matters, mentioned in section 150P(3) of the Act, 0
notified to the Crime and Corruption Commission

Motices given under section 150R(2) of the Act 0
Notices given under section 1505(2)(a) of the Act o]
Decisions made under section 150W(a), (h) and (d) 13
of the Act

Referral notices accompanied by a recommendation Q

mentioned in section 150AC(3)(a) of the Act

Occasions information was given under section 0
150AF(4)(a) of the Act
Occasions the local government asked another entity o}

to invesligate, under chapter 5A, parl 3, division 5
of the Act for the local government, the suspected
inappropriate conduct of a Councillor

Applications heard by the conduct tribunal about the 0
alleged misconduct of a Councillor
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In accordance with the requirements of the former section 180 and 181of the Act, Council advises that for the period 1 July 2018 -

2 December 2018, the following statistics were reported:

The name of each Councillor for
whom an order or recommendation
was made under section 180 of the
Act or an order was made under
section 181 of the Act

A description of the misconduct
or inappropriate conduct
engaged in by each of the
Councillors

A summary of the recommendation made for each Councillor

[nappropriate comments
in email to Councillors
and Council officers

Councillor Paul Gleeson

Misconduct for more
than three substantiated
complaints in one year

Councillor Paul Gleeson

Councillor reprimanded by Mayor for inappropriate conduct,
for failing to comply with Council’s Code of Conduct for
Councillors

That Councillor Paul Gleeson attend monthly counselling for
a period of six (6) months, to be conducted by Departmental
Capacity Building officers, addressing both an understanding
of the "inappropriate conduct’ sections of the Act and how
such matters will be dealt with, as well as focusing on the
appropriate use of social media by Councillors.

Further orders, that the Department’s Chief Executive monitor
the Councillor's compliance with the Local Government Act
2009 for a further six (6) months, commencing from the
conclusion of the six (6) month

period of counselling.

Misconduct for failure

to declare a conflict of
interest at General Meeting
on 21 February 2018

Mayor Karen Williams

In accordance with section 186(e) of the current Local Government
Regulation 2012, Council must report on the following during the
financial year:
(i) the name of each councillor for whom a decision, order
or recommendation mentioned in paragraph (d) was
made;
(ii) a description of the unsuitable meeting conduct,
inappropriate conduct or misconduct engaged in by
each af the councillors; and
(iii)a summary of the decision, order or recommendation
made for each councillar.

Council has na information to report for section 186(g) of the
Local Government Regulation 2012.

The full register of Councillor conduct complaint outcomes is
available on Council's website.

The Local Government Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal
made orders pursuant to section 180(5)(d) that Mayar
Williams make an admission of error at an Ordinary Meeting
of Council. This was completed at the Council meeting dated
24 QOctober 2018.

[n accordance with the requirements of the former section
1760 of the Act, Council advises that for the period 1 July 2018
- 2 December 2018, the following statistics were reported:

Complaints about the conduct or performance of 3
Councillors for which no action was taken under
section 176C(2) of the Act

Complaints referred to the Department's Chief 1
Executive under section 176C(3)(a)(i) of the Act

Complaints referred to the Mayor under section 1
176C(3)()(1i) or (b)(1) of the Act

Complaints referred to the Department’s Chief 0
Executive under section 176C(4)(a) of the Act

Complaints assessed by the Council's Chief Executive 0
Officer as being about corrupt conduct under the Crime
and Corruption Act 2001

Complaints heard by a Regional Conduct Review Panel 0
Complaints heard by the Tribunal 5
Complaints to which 176C(6) of the Act applied 0
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GRANTS

Councillors’ small grants

Grants are available to individuals and organisations that are a Division  Councillor Amount
not-for-profit incorporated association (or sponsored by one).
Mayor Cr Karen Williams $48,166.69
Funding provides financial assistance to organisations with items
such as equipment or incidental costs. Individuals are supported in Div1 CrWendy Boglary $17,318.45
their pursuit of excellence at a high level. Div 2 Cr Peter Mitchell $19,214.63
Over a 12-manth period, a total of $250,000 is available to ) .
organisations and individuals as Councillors’ Small Grants: Div3 Cr Paul Golle $14,849.00
+ Up to $3,000 is available for organisations. A grant may be Div & Cr Lance Hewlett $19,984.00
increased where an initiative provides a community benefit
across more than one Council division. Divs Cr Mark Edwards $12,749.91
= Upto $.SD.D is alvallablel for |nd|v1duall§ selected to represent Divé CrJulie Talty $18.675.01
Australia in an international competition.
+ Up to $250 is available for individuals selected to represent Div 7 Cr Murray Elliott $17.069.80
Queensland in a national competition, or who have won at state
level and are competing in a national competition. Div & Cr Tracey Huges $19,996.93
During 2018-2019 financial year, a total of $223,340.50 was Div o Cr Paul Gleesan $13,718.18
distributed to various organisations and individuals. Funds . )
unspent by applicants and returned back to Council were Divio Cr Paul Bishop $16,705.34
$4,392.56 (meaning Council provided $218,447.94 ta the Total $218,447.94

community and individuals in 2018-2019).

Community grants/regional arts development fund/sponsorship (including in-kind)
2018-2019 Grants and Sponsorship successful applications

Applicant Funding round Category Application no. Amount
Ms Desley Cook Round 12018-2019  Conservation €5-191-002 $344.60
Catherine Pruss £5-191-005 $1.653.74
Coochiemudlo Island Heritage Society Inc. (5-191-007 $9,088.00
Mr Michael Wilsan Round 2 2018-2019 (5-192-001 $4,891.00
Australian Trust for Conservation Volunteers (5-192-004 $9,875.00
BirdLife Australia Ltd £5-192-005 $9,929.00
Wildcare Australia Inc. C5-192-007 $9.650.00
Number of applications 7 Sub-Total $46,331.34 ‘
Applicant Funding round Category Application no. Amount
Australian Trust for Conservation Volunteers Round 12018-2019  Project Support P5-191-006 $9,020.00
Redlands Quilt Extravaganza Inc. PS-191-007 $4,722.00
Morth Stradbroke Island Aboriginal And Islanders PS00R-191-001 $9,639.25
Housing Co-operative Society Ltd

rotzons | Sao0000
Redlands Community Centre Inc. P5-192-014 $10,000.00
Number of applications 5 Sub-Total $39,381.25 ‘
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Applicant Funding round Category Application no. Amount
Night Ninjas [nc. Round 12018-2019 | Organisation 05-191-002 $3,000.00
Southern Bay Cyclones Junior Rugby Union Club Inc. Support 05-191-005 $3,000.00
Red Tent Australia Ltd 05-191-008 $2,050.00
Redlands United Football Club Inc. 05-191-009 $3,000.00
Wellingtan Paint Bowls Club Inc. 05-191-012 $3,000.00
Victoria Point Sharks Sporting Club Inc 05-191-016 $3,000.00
Redlands Touch Association Inc. Round 2 2018-2019 05-192-007 $3,000.00
Army Cadets - Redlands Suppart Association Inc. 05-192-008 $2,384.00
Redlands Sporting Club Inc. 05-192-013 $2,975.00
Redlands Place Makers - Cleveland 05-192-014 £1,506.77
Victoria Point Sharks Sporting Club Inc. 05-192-016 $3,000.00
Redland City Gymsports Inc. 05-192-017 $3,000.00
Isle Of Coochie Golf Club Inc. 05-192-019 $455.00
Cleveland Air Magic Association Inc. 05-192-020 $3,000.00
Redlands Montessori 05-192-021 $3,000.00
Yictoria Point - Redland Bay Meals On Wheels 05-192-022 $3,000.00
Association Inc.

COOEE Indigenous Family & Community Education 05-192-023 $3,000.00
Resource Centre Ltd

Number of applications 17 Sub-Total $45,370.77 |
Applicant Funding round Category Application no. Amount
Bayside District Amateur Radio Society Inc. Round 12018-2019  Capital CAP-191-001 $3,784.00
Lamb Island Residents Association Inc. Infrastructure | ¢2p.101.002 $10,000.00
North Stradbroke Island Golf Club Inc. CAP-191-003 £9,080.00
Russell Island Bowls Club Inc. CAP-191-004 $10,000.00
Russell Island Community Arts Asssocation Inc. CAP-191-005 $6,000.00
Multicap Ltd CAP-191-006 $50,000.00
North Stradbroke Historical Museum Asssocation Inc. CAP-191-007 $14,500.00
Cleveland District Girl Guides CAP-191-008 $10,000.00
Amity Point Social Cricket and Sporting Club Inc. CAP-191-011 £3,940.00
Redlands Sea Dragons Inc. CAP-191-012 $10,000.00
Bay [sland Children's Inclusion Association Inc. CAP-191-013 $10,000.00
Redland Bay Tennis Club Inc. CAP-191-014 $31,375.50
Minjerribah Moargumpin (Elders-in-Council) CAP-191-015 $2,480.00
Aboriginal Corp

Ratary Club of Wellington Paint Inc. CAP-191-017 $3,680.00
Volunteer Marine Rescue North Stradbroke Inc. CAP-191-015 $13,155.00
Wellington Point Bowls Club Inc. OO0R-CAP-191-001 $6,440.00
Redlands Cricket Inc. Q0R-CAP-191-001 $7.230.12
Number of applications 17 Sub-Total $201,664.62
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Applicant Funding round Category Application no. Amount
Integrity Pictures Pty Ltd Round 12018-2019 | Sponsorship 519-R1-002 $15,000.00
Icon Events & Marketing Pty Ltd 519-R1-003 $13,500.00
Robot Productions Pty Ltd 519-R1-004 $30,000.00
Tingira Boat Club Inc. 519-R1-005 $6,000.00
Redland Spring Festival Inc. S19-R1-007 $30,000.00
?gttll;rennjai?ﬂrg:ae:cl{'l?aé::s;Jrjf:;;tlrtihsaub-hranch Inc. S19-R1-008 $4.178.60
Redlands Easter Family Festival Inc. 518-R1-013 $13,000.00
Island Vibe Pty Ltd Round 2 2018-2019 519-R2-001 $5,000.00
Teorina Development Pty Ltd S19-R2-002 $5,000.00
Returned Services League of Australia (Queensland S19-R2-004 $10,000.00
Branch) Redlands Sub-branch Inc.

Surf Lifesaving Queensland Inc. 519-R2-007 $3,000.00
Quandamooka Yoolooburrabee Aboriginal S19-R2-008 $15,000.00
Corporation RNTBC

Stradbroke Chamber Music Festival Inc. 519-R2-009 $3,828.00
Bayside Runners and Walkers [ncorporated S19-R2-012 $10,000.00
Wynnum Manly Seagulls Rugby League Football Club 519-R2-016 $10,350.00
Yulu-Burri-Ba Aboriginal Corporation for Community 519-R2-017 $10,000.00
Health

Bayside Vehicle Restorers Club Inc. S19-R2-020 $1,000.00
Paint Loakout Surfriders Club Inc. 519-R2-024 $5,000.00
Those Guys Events Pty Ltd 519-R2-027 $2,500.00
Club Laverda Queensland Inc. 519-R2-028 $10,000.00
The Event Crew Pty Ltd S19-R2-029 $9,000.00
MG Car Club of Queensland Inc. S19-R2-032 $5,000.00
Australian Events Marketing Pty Ltd 519-R2-033 $10,954.28
Number of applications 23 Sub-Total $227,310.88
TOTAL APPLICATIONS 69 $560,058.86
2018-2019 Quandamooka Dancers funding | Funding round Category Application no. Amount
Icon Events & Marketing Pty Ltd Round 12018-2019  Sponsarship 519-R1-003 $1,500.00
Redland Spring Festival Inc. 519-R1-007 £1,500.00
Redlands Easter Family Festival Inc. 519-R1-013 $1,500.00
Yulu-Burri-Ba Aboriginal Corporation Round 2 2018-2019 519-R2-017 $1,500.00
for Community Health

Paint Lookout Surfriders Club Inc. S19-R2-024 £1,500.00
Surf Lifesaving Queensland Inc. 519-R2-007 $1,500.00
Wynnum Manly Seagulls Rugby League Football Club 519-R2-016 $1,500.00
Carolyn Brammer (Come ta Coochie Day) 2018-2019 One-off NJA $1,500.00
Rotary Club of Cleveland $1,500.00
TOTAL APPLICATIONS 9 $13,500.00

A total of $227.310.88 was provided to 23 organisations in 2018-2019 to deliver projects and events including the Redlands Easter Family
Festival, Stradbrake Chamber Music Festival, GreazeFest, Redlands Coast Fun Run, Straddie Salute Triathlon Festival, Macleay Island

Classic and Quandamaoka Festival.

Council provided in-kind support of marketing and equipment to 18 events.

Full details of grants and sponsorship recipients are available on Council’s website,
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External grant funding received
Federal government grants and subsidies
The following Commonwealth Government grants and subsidies were provided to Council in the 2018-2019 financial year:
Commonwealth Government Department and Grant Total $
Department of Environment and Energy Parks and Environment Improvement £90,000
Department of Infrastructure, Regional Development Financial Assistance Grant $5,7058,242
and Cities Roads to Recovery 41,135,801
Total $6,931,043
State Government grants and subsidies
The following State Government grants and subsidies were provided to Council in the 2018-2019 financial year:
State Government Department and Grant Total §
Advance Queensland Advancing Regional Innovation Program $171,936
Arts Queensland Regional Arts Development Fund $£40,000
Arts Showcase Program: Arts Ignite $15.364
Department of Employment, Small Business and Training First Start Program $52,000
Department of Housing and Public Works Get Planning Spaces $29,760
(Sport and Recreation Services) Get in the Game $50,000
Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and Planning | [nnovation and Improvement Fund £36,927
Department of Local Government, Racing and Local Government Grants and Subsidies $270,131
Multicultural Affairs Program
Department of the Premier and Cabinet Lasting Legacies Grant $32,200
Department of State Development, Manufacturing, Narth Stradbroke Island Entry $300,000
Infrastructure and Planning Statement Signage
Maturing the Infrastructure Pipeline £30,600
Program
Department of Transport and Main Roads Transport Infrastructure Development $842.477
(including TransLink Division) Scheme
Public Transport Accessible $306,284
Infrastructure Program
Cycle Network Local Government Grant $104,048
Pontoon Upgrade Russell Island $9,920
Toondah Harbour Dredging $1,492,320
William Street Breakwater Upgrade $247,157
Victoria Point Southern Ramp and Ferry $56,708
Landing Dredging
Emmett Drive Boat Ramp Toondah $£20,006
Harbour Dredging
Macleay [sland Boat Launching Facility $394,000
Queensland Fire and Emergency Services State Emergency Services $18,299
Queensland Reconstruction Authority Get Ready Queensland 458,200
Natural Disaster Resilience Program $105,213
State Library of Queensland First 5 Forever $49,073
Public Library Services Grant $681.998
Deadly Digital Communities $10,000
Total $5,424,620
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Other Grants and Subsidies

The following grants and subsidies were provided to Council in the
2018-2019 financial year:

Organisation and Grant Total §

Qsuper Queen's Baton Relay $10,000
Community Prize

Total $10,000

External grants and subsidies highlights

IndigiScapes Environment Education Centre Expansion
[n 2019 construction commenced on the highly anticipated
IndigiScapes Environmental Education Centre expansion which
includes major refurbishments to the centre’s popular Bush Tucker
Café, new environmental interpretation space, education spaces
and conference facilities.

Significant elements of this expansion are co-funded under the
Local Government Grants and Subsidies Program (2017-2019
Round) and the Department of Local Government, Racing and
Multicultural Affairs has committed a total of $917,137 towards
this multi-million-dollar upgrade.

Waorks are due to complete in the latter half of 2019 and when
re-opened to the public will cement the centre’s place among
the unigue and popular environmental education centres in
Queensland.

Road Flooded Smart Warning Signs

In early 2019 Council completed the installation of smart solar-
powered illuminated road flooded warning signs at four key
locations in Redlands Coast that experience flash flooding during
rainfall events and severe weather.

These automated signs now provide an early warning system
to motorists who come across flooded roads prior to Council
operations closing the road. This signage will help reduce the
number of vehicles being driven into flooded waters and also
reduce the risk to Emergency Services and Council officers wha
otherwise have to erect temporary signage in often hazardous
weather conditions.

This project was successful in obtaining $58,500 towards the
installation of the signage from the Queensland Reconstruction
Authority under the Natural Disaster Resilience Program
2018-2019.
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Regional Arts Development Fund

The Regional Arts Development Fund (RADF) is an annual
partnership between the Queensland Government and local
governments, including Redland City Council. RADF promotes the
value of arts, culture and heritage as key drivers of diverse and
inclusive communities and strong regions. RADF objectives are

to support arts and culture activities that provide public value for
Queensland communities, build local cultural capacity, cultural
innovation and community pride. Redland City Council contributed
$57,269 towards these grants for 13 individuals and organisations.
The Queensland Government through Arts Queensland contributed
$40,000.

Services provided by

another government

Under section 190(1)(d) of the Local Government Regulation 2012,
Council must include details of any services, facility or activity
supplied by another local government {under an agreement for
conducting a joint government activity), where special rates or
charges were levied.

There were no services provided by another government in
2018-2019.

Tenders

During 2018-2019 there were changes to four tenders:

« Park Renewal - David Parr Park, Alexandra Hills
(reduction in scope of works)

» Streetscape Upgrade - Village Green and Main Road,
Wellington Point (reduction in scope of works)

+ 2018-2019 Bus Shelter Renewal, Redland City
(increase in scope of works)

+ Landfill environmental Monitoring Program
(increase in scope of works)

Shareholder delegates

There were no shareholder delegates for corporate entities
in 2018-2019.

Registers

Council maintains a number of registers that are available to
the public:

+ Adopted Committee and Council Meeting Dates
« Assets

« Authorised Persons

- Beneficial Enterprise

« Business Activities

+ Catand Dog

« Complaints

« Corporate Gifts

- Cost Recovery Fees

« Council Policies

+ Delegations

« Contact with Lobbyists

+ Local Laws and Subordinate Local Laws

« Mayar to CEQ Directions

« Minutes of Local Government Meetings

« Personal [dentification (in relation to animals)
- Regulated Dogs

+ Regulatory Fees

« Roads

Concessians for rates and charges

In 2018-2019, Council provided general rate concessions to
supporl cultural and economic development, not-for-profil
organisations and pensioners on Centrelink ar DVA Gold Card
benefits, Pensioners who lived in homes where the roofline
extended over an adjoining boundary in the same ownership

name also received concessions on separate and special charges.
A concession on separate and special charges was also provided
for parcels of contiguous land in the same ownership name, for
farmers carrying on a business of primary production. Concessions
in the form of payment arrangement agreements were provided to
ratepayers suffering hardship, to enable rates and charges to be
recovered aver a longer period. Council also accepted concessional
agreements for the voluntary transfer of unencumbered land in full
or part payment of rates or charges. Further details are available in
the 2018-2019 Budget documentation and associated policies on
Council’s website.
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
GONSQLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2019
Consolidated Council
2019 2018 2018 2018
Note $00C $000 $000 $000
Income
Recurrent revenue
Rates, levies and charges 4(a) 239,774 228,560 230,774 228,960
Fess o) 13,802 13,109 13,430 12,891
Interest received 4(c) 4,814 4,460 4,810 4,502
Dividend income - - - 2,000
Sales revenue 4(:d) 10,100 10,717 3733 3,405
Other income 2,335 3,635 2,174 1,876
Grants, subsidies and contrizutions 5(a) 10,835 10,846 10,838 10,846
Total recurrent revenue 281,663 271,627 274,759 264,480
Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies and contricutions 5(o) 15,824 20,838 15,824 21,204
Non-caeh contributions 7,370 13,840 7,370 13,840
Total capital revenue 23,194 - 34,879 23184 35,144
Total income 304,857 306,506 297,953 299,624
Expenscs
Recurrent expenses
Employes benefits 6 (89,141) (86,151) (87,720) (84,838)
Materials and services T (136,941) (135,430) (130,879) (128,153)
Finance costs (3.130) (3,108) (3.126) (3,326)
Depreciaticn and amortisation 8 (62,825) (83,108) (62,794) (63,084)
Total recurrent expenses (292,037) (288,098) (284,519) (279,471)
Capital expenses
Loss on disposal of non-current assels (3,800} (2,199} (3,600) (2,189)
Total capital expenses (3.800) (2,198) (3,800) {2,199)
Total expenses (295,837) (290,297) {288,319) (281,670)
Net result 9,020 16,208 9,634 17,954
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to net result
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 13 4 952 (23,330} 4,052 (23,330)
Total comprehensive incomei(loss) for the year 13,972 {7,121) 14,586 (5,376)

The above statement should be read in corjunction with the accompanying noles and significant accounting policies.
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FOSITION

As at 30 June 2018

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade znd other receivables
Invertaries

Non-current assets held-for-sals
Other current assets

Total current assets

Nan-current assets

Investmant progerty

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Other financial assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payahles
Borrowings with QTG
Provigions

Other current liabilites
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings with QTC
Provisions.

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net community assets

Community equity
Assel revalualion surplus
Retained surplus

‘Total community equity

Notes

14
15()
18(2)

7

Consolidated Council

2019 2018 2019 2018

3000 $000 $0C0 $0CO
166,153 141 6718 162,096 138,562
32,188 35,156 34,010 40,744
13,925 18,388 855 1,103
8080 - 11,113 11,113
2322 2,032 4,975 2,033
222,645 197,090 213,149 193,555
65118 13,413 1,091 1,091
2,541,995 2,537,545 2,541,881 2,637,638
1,663 1,987 1,663 1,887
73 73 13,174 14,864
2,548,845 2,553,018 2,557,800 2,555,580
2,771,491 2,750,108 2,770,958 2,749,136
34,007 30,565 33,742 30,387
7,845 7,728 7845 T.728
16,350 13,567 15,350 13,558
10,293 5,804 9,152 4,654
- 67,585 57,664 66,089 56,325
20,421 32,451 29421 32.451
13459 12,939 13.408 12,905
42,880 45,390 42,829 45,356
110,465 103,054 108,918 101,681
2,661,026 2,647,054 __ 2,662,040 2,647,454
1,008,120 1,003,168 1,008,120 1,003,168
1652 806 1,643,886 1,653,920 1,644,286
2,661,026 2,647,054 2,662,040 2,647,454

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and significant accounting policies.
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Assct Retained Total

Consolidated Revaluation Surplus Community

Surplus P Equity

$000 $000 $000

Note 12,18

Balance as at 1 July 2017 1,070,839 1,584,735 2,655,574

Met result - 16,209 16,209
Other comprehensive income for the year:

Increzse/(decreass) in assel revaluation surplus (23,330) - (23,330)
Total comprehensive income for the year (23,330) 16,209 {7,121)
Other adjustments:

Reclazslification to retained surplus (44,341) 44,341 -

Prior period adjustment 28 - (1,329) (1,399)
Balance as at 30 June 2018 1,003,168 1,643,886 2,647,054
Nel resull - 9,020 9,020
Other comprehensive income for the year:

Increase/(decrease] in assai revaluation surplus 4,952 : - 4,552
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,952 9,020 13,972
Balance as at 30 June 2019 1,008,120 1,652,906 2,661,026
Coungil
Balance as at 1 July 2017 1,070,839 1,583,390 2,854,229
Met result - 17,654 17.854
Other comprehensive income for the year:

Incregse)/(decrease) in assel revalualion surplus (23,330) - (23.330)
Total comprehensive income for the year (23,330) 17,954 (5,3786)
Other zdjustments:

Reclassification to retained surplus (44,341) 44,341 -

Prior period adjustment 25 - (1,399) (1,399)
Balance as at 30 June 2018 : 1,003,168 1,644,286 2,647, 454
Met result - 9,634 9,634
Other comprehensive income for lhe year:

Increasei{decreasa) in asset revaluation surplus 4 052 - 4 952
Total comprehensive Income for the year 4,852 9,634 14,586
Balance as at 30 June 2019 _ 1008120 1,653,920 _ 2,662,040

The abuve slalement should be read in corjunction with the accompanying nofes and significant accouriting policies.
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Faor the year ended 30 June 2019 . .
Consolidated Council
2019 2018 2019 2018
MNote 3000 000 §000 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 276,486 255,614 266,326 246 530
Payments to supplisre and employzes (221,895) (226,133} (217,890) (220,545)
Interest received 4,812 4,449 4,810 4,502
Dividend received - - 1,500 500
Non-capital grants and contributions 9,832 14,048 9,832 14,048
Borrowing costs 150t} {2,809) (3.187) (2,809) (3,187)
Net cash influwﬂoutﬂom from operating activities 23 66,426 44,792 61,769 41,849
Cash flows from investing activities
Payrments for property, plant and equipment (58,539) (89,928) (58,588) (62,929)
Payment for investment property - (4,474) - -
Payments far intangible assets (540) (242) (540) {242)
Proceeds from sale of property, clant and equipment 2,789 1,148 2,789 1,146
Capitzal grants, subsidies and contricutions 17,137 17,480 17,137 17,480
Cther Cashflow from investing activities - - 3,500 (3,500)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (39,253) {56,019) {35,700) (55,045)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 15(5) 2,500 - 2,500 -
Repayment of borrowings 15(k) (5,035) (4,857) (5,085) (4,657)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities - (2,535) (4,65T) (2,535) (4,65T)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held 24,638 (15,884) 23,534 (17,853)
Cash and cash equivalents at bzginning of the financial yesar 141,515 157,399 138,662 156,415
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 8 166,153 141,515 162,096 138,562

The zbove statement shouid be read in confunction with the accompanying nofcs and significant accounting poiicies,
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2018

1

Basis of preparation and compliance

1(a) Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

These cansolidated general purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 in compliance with the
roquircments of the Loos Government Aol 2008 and the Local Government Regulation 2012. Consequently, they have been prepared
in accordance with all effective Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (AASE).

The consalidated entity is a not-for-profit entity and the Australian Accounting Standards include requirements for Not-for-Profit entities
which are inconsistent with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Therefore in some instances these financial statements
do not comply with IFRS. The main impacts are the offsetting of revaluation gains and losses within a class of assets and the timing of
recognition of non-recipracal grant revenue.

Thase financial statements are for the group consisting of Redland City Council (RCC) and its subsidiaries (refer to Note 1(b)) and have
been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain non-current assets, financial assels and financial
liabilities.

1{b} Principles of consolidation

Couneil and its controlied entities together form the economic entity which is referred to in these financial statements as ‘the group'. The
financial statements of the controlled enfities are included in the consolidated financial statemants whare material by size or nature, from
the date when control commences until the date when conirol ceases.

Transactions with entities. controlled by Council have been eliminated when preparing consolidated financial statements and accounting
palicies of controlled entities adjusted where necessary o ensure congistency with the policies adopted by the group.

land Investment Corporation Lid {consolidated
Council has 100% ownership of Redland Investment Corporation Ply Lid (RIC) which is limited by shares. RIC was formed to enhance
the commercial activities of Council and oversess a diverse range of projects across the city, RIC has the following subsidiaries:

Redland Davalopments Pty Ltd {(cansoclidated o the RIC Group)
RIC has 100% ownership of Redland Develapments Ply Ltd (formerdy AVA Terraces Ply Ltd) which is limited by shares. Redland

Developments Pty Lid was formed to develop and manage land at 9-11 Oaklands Streat, Alexandra Hills during 2018 and 2019
financial years. During the current financial year, Redland Developments Pty Ltd was used for a new development project at 521
Old Cleveland Read, Capalaba.

Cleveland Plaza Id ic i
RIC has 100% ownership of Claveland Plaza Pty Ltd (Cleveland Plaza) which is limitad by shares. Cleveland Plaza was formed to

manage the property at 48 Bloomfield Street, Cleveland.

RIC Toondah Py Ltd (consolidated to the RIC Group)
RIC has 100% ownership of RIC Toondah Pty Lid (RICT), which is limited by shares. RICT was formed to provide the
administration services for the day-lo-day management of the joint operation between the Minister for State Development,
Manutactuning, Infrastructure and Planning, Gouncil and the develapar for the project in the Toandah Harbeur Priarity Develapment
Area. Council's interest in the joint operation is 50%. The project is pending a transfer of State land to MEDQ as well as an
environmental assessment; as such, nominal transactions have occurred in the entity during the current financial year,

Separate consolidated financial statements: for RIC have been prepaned for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 and are audited by the
Auditor-Ganaral of Queensland.

Lid consolidated as transactions in this entity are not material .
Council has 100% ownership of Redheart Pty Lid (Redheart) which is limited by shares. Redheart was formed to conduct a beneficial
enterprise by holding a mining lease and environmental authority and sell quarry material from Council's German Church Road quary
operations, s0 as to manage risks and increase commercial flexibility. As at 30 June 2019, the cofmpany had net assets of 52 and
remained dormant throughout the financial year,

1ic) Constitution

Redland City Council is constituted under the Qu land Local Government Regulation 200% and is domiciled in Australia. Counci''s
subsidiaries are constituted under the Corporations Acl 2007 and are domiciled in Australia.

1(xl) Date of authorisation

The consclidaled financial statements were authorised for issue on the date they wers submitted to the Auditor-General for final
signature. This is the date the management certificale was signed.

1(e) Currency

Council uses the Australian dollar (AUD) as its functional cumenay and its presentalion currency.

1(f) Rounding and comparatives

146

Amounts included in the consolidated financial statements have bean rounded o the nearest $1,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 Basls of preparation and compliance - contimued

1(g) New and amended standards adopted by Council
In the current year, the consolidated entity adoepted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the cument reporting period. The adaoption of the
new and revised Standards and Intorpretations has not resulted in any material changes to Gouneil's accounting policics.

Council applied AASE 9 Financial Instruments from 1 July 2018. Council's technical working group reviewed its financial assets and
financial liabilities with the new AASE 9 classification and measuremant reguiremeants. The transitional requirements permit restatemant
«of comparatives er an adjustment to equity to reflect the difference between the carrying amounts under AASE 139 Financial Instrumenis:
Recagnition and Measurement and camrying amounts under AASB 2. As there is no significant impact, Council has not restated
comparafives or made any adjustments to equity.

Certain new Standards and Interpretaiions have been issued that are not yet effective for the 30 June 2019 reporiing pericds and have
not been sarly adopted by Council. Council's assessment of those new Standards expected to have an impact on Council's future
repaorting periods is set out below.

Date Council|
Standard Nature of change Impact will apply the
standard
AASE 15 Revanue  |The AASE has issued a new standard for the  [Council assessed its revenue streams and has 1 July 2019
frami Contracts witlh  |recognition of revenus. It replaces existing identified the transactions that are within the:
\Custormers revenue racognition guidance, including AASE |scope of AASE 15.
118 which cowers contracts for goads and
services, The most significant change for Council will be to
defer income from grants and denations wherne
The new standard is based on the principhe that |the delivery of goods and services are
revenue is recognised as each performance enforceable and the performance cbligations are
obligation as stipulated in the confract with sufficiantly specific. The impact will be around
customers iz satisfied. It requires an $3,523,428. The majority of grants and donations
assessment of goods and services promised in [received by Council are curmently recognised on
a coniract and identification of each sufficiently |receipt under AASE 1004 Contributions.
specific performance obligation.
Council developed and maintains a cenlralised
Whare a contract with 2 custemer does not regicter 1o review current and future grant
exist, Council shall consider whether AASB agreements.
1058 iz applicable.
AASH 1058 Income  |AASE 1058 applies to Not-for-Profit enfities Transactions covered under AASE 1058 include 1 July 2018
of Not-for-Profit and replaces most of the income recognition | but are not limited te the following:
Enlilias requiramants in AASB 1004 Gontributions. - receipt of rates and feas including fines
- cash and other assets received by Council from
The naw standard clarifies and simplifies the  |grants
income recognition requirements of Council. It |- cash and ofher assets received by Coundll from
applics to transa ctions whorne the consideratien |developer contributions
to acquire an asset is significantly less than the |- assets acquired for nominal or low amounts .
fair walue principally te enable Council to
further its objectives. Council will eontinua lo recognise incoma fiam
grants, including the Financial Assistance Grant,
AASE 1058 is considered in conjunction with  |and donations upfront where AASE 15 does not
AASE 15. Under the new income recognition  |apply.
framewark, Council first considers whether
AASE 15 applies to a transaction orparfofa  |Under AASB 1058 Council will defer refundable
transaction in terms of an enforceable prepaid rates to the period they relate where
agreement and a sufficiently specific currently they are being recognised upon receipt
performance obligation. If the transaction does |in line with AASE 1004, Council's prapaid rates as
not meet the criteria, application of AASB 1058 |at 20 June 2019 of $197 422 will be adjusted in
is considered. opening retained eamings as at 1 July 2019.
Council has assessed there is no impact Lo its
revenue recognition practices in relation to
|developer contributions.
AASE 1059 Service  |The standard applies to arangements that Preliminary assessment shows this standand will 1 July 2020
Congassion public sectar enfities anter into with a private  |not have a material impact on Council's financial
Arrangements: secter operater for the delivery of public statements.
Grantors sarvices related to a service concession asset
on behalf of a public sector grantor for a
specified period of time and managing at least
some of these services. An arrangameant within
the scope of this standard typically involves an
aperator constructing the assets used to
provide the public service or upgrading the
asgets (for example, by increasing their
capacity) and aperating and maintaining the
assets for a specified peried of ime,
Page 8 of 37
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1  Basis of preparation and compliance - continued
Date Council
Standard Nature of change Impact will apply the
standard
AASB 16 Leases  |AASR 16 introrures a single IkAse ancnunting | The standard will affect the accaunting for 1 July 2019
model for lesseas, Lessees will be required to  |Couneil's operating leases to bring these on o the
racognise a right-of-use asset (representing Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
right to use the underlying leased asset) and a |Council has assessed that applying AASE 16 o
liability (representing the obligation to make its current operafing leases has no significant
lzase paymients) for all leasas with a term of impact on the Cansolidated Statement of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying  |Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated
assets are of low value. Statement of Financial Position and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. Council
The right-of-use assat will give rise 1o a has assessed leases embedded in contracts that
depreciation expense. The lease liability will be |itis a party to and has determined there is na
initially recognised at an amount equal lothe  |significant impact of applying AASB 16.
|present value of the lease payments during the
lease term that are not yet paid. Current Based an Council's assasamant, il is expacted
operating leass rental payments will ne lenger |that the first-Ume adeption of AASE 16 will have
lbe expensed in the Consclidated Statement of |the following impacts:
Comprehensive Incomea, These paymants will |- lease assets and financial liabilities on the
be apporioned between a reduction in the balance sheet are expected to increase by
recagnised |ease liability and the implicit $9,491,302 and $9.490,302 respectively (based
finance charge (the effective rate of interest) in (on the facts available to Council at the date of
the lease. assessment).
- net result will be lower on initial application as
depreciation expense and the lease liability
interest expense will be inifially higher than
operating lease expansas previously recorded.
-as a Met-for-Profit entity, Council's leases that
are significantly below marke! value (also known
as peppercomn leases) are temporarily exempted
fromn the new requirements. Should this temperary
concassion be withdrawn, the above assessment
may change (refer AASB 2018-8),
AASBE 20184 The standard provides clarity for Not-for-Profit_|Council's revenue generated from licence fees are 1 July 2018
Amandmeants fa public sector licansors araund the application  |classified under this categery. These licences are
Australian of accounting standards for the revenue from  [low value or short term licence with no variable
Accounting licences ihey issue. Amendments include: consideration. Council electad not to adopt the
Standards — -gxpanding scope of AASE15 (o include non-  |requirements of AASB 15 for licences according to
Ausiralfan contractual licences tha AASB 2018-4 Amendments fo Avstralian
Implermantation providing recegnition exemptions for short- Accounting Standards — Ausiralian
Guidance for Nof-for- [term licences and licences issued for a low Implementalion Guidance for Not-for-Profif Public
Profit Public Secfor  [transaction price. Seator Licensors, Therafere, Council will centinue
Licensors The amendments to AASB 16 clarify that o recognise revenue at a point in time when the
licences that are in substanca leasaes or contain (licence Is issued,
leases, except licences of intellectual property,
fall within the scope of AASE 16.
AASB 2018-5 To assist implementation efferts, the AASE has [ Preliminary assesement shows this standard will 1 July 2020
Amendments ta deferred the effective date of AASB 10568 not have a material impact on Council's financial
Ausiralian Service Concession Arrangements; Grantors to |statements.
Accourting annual periads beginning onor after 1 January
Standards - Defsrral |2020, instead of 2018,
of AASR 1058
AASE 2016-8 This standard provides a temporary option for  [Council has land held in trust for Department of 1 July 2019
Amendments o Mot-for-Profit (NFP) lessees Lo elect (o Matural Resounces, Mines and Energy. Council
(Australia Accounting |measure a class (or classes) of right-of-use does not pay any consideration for the land held in
Standards — Right-of- |assets arising under ‘cencessionary leases' at  |trust and therefore will nat meet the definition of a
use Assels of Nol-for-|initial recognition at cost, rather than at fair concessionary lease. Following the notice of
Profit Entities value. amendment in AASE 2018-8, Council will
measure the lease liability at cost.
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1(h)

2(a)

Basis of preparation and compliance - eantinued

Gritical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of Council's acceunting policies, management is required to make judgements, eslimates and assumptions about
carrying values of assets and liabiliies that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associaled assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factars that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and ongoing assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Rewvisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised and in future perieds as relevant,

Judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are cutlined in the following financial statements notes;

Waluation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 2(e) and Moba 24)
Long-term employee benefit obligations (Mote 2(h), Note 14 and Nole 16)

Landfill rehabilitation provision (Nots 2(j) and Note 18)

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets {Note 20)

Transaclions wilh related parties (Mota 27)

Events after the reporting period (Note 28)

Significant accounting policies

Revenue

Rates, levies, grants and other revenue are recognised as revenua on receipt of funds, or on unconditional entitement to the funds, if
aarliar. Revanue is recognised for the major businass achivities as follows:

Rates and levies

Where prepayment is made toward rates and charges prior to a rating period, the prepayment is recognised as revenue in the period in
wihich it is received. Taking into conslderation prepayments, all other rates and charges revenus levied in advance is recognised at the
commencement of the rating period. Water consumption charges, which are levied in arrears, are recognised based on the period in
which they are censumed, except for the fixed component, which is recognised over the levying peried,

Fees
Fees are recognised upon unconditional entitlement to the funds. Generally thic is upon lodgement of the relevant applications or
decuments, issuing of the infringament netice ar when the service is provided.

Dividends received
Dividends are recognised when they are declared and are classified in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows as operating activities.

Grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as rewenue upon recelpt. Unspent, non-reciprocal
grante are held in reserves (restricted funds).

Where granis are received thal are reciprocal in nature, revenue is recagnised as the varicus performance and raturn obligations undar
the funding agreement are fulfilled.

Maon-cash sontributions

Physical assets contributed to Council by develepers in the ferm of water, wastewater, road works, stormwater and park squipment ars
recognised as revenus when it is probable that the assets will be recelved by Coundil, Generally this is when the developiment becomes
‘on-maintenance’, i.e. Council becomes responsible for the maintenance of the asset. The ravenua is recognisad when thers is sufficiant
data in the form of drawings and plans to determine the specificalions and value of such assete. At year end, where plans are nat yet
available, an accrual is recognised based on an average rate per lot. All nen-cash contributions are recagnisad at the fair value of tha
assets received on the date of acquisition,

Cash contributiens

Cash contributions are received by Council through infrastructure changes indicated in dacision noticas for developments such as
material change of use, reconfiguration of a lot, plan sealing andfor new construction. The cash received is generally used for
augmentation of infrastructure head works. Council recognises revenue upon completion of the legislative trigger for payment.

Recurrent’oparating and ital

Grants and contributions are to be classified as operating or capital depending on the purposa for which they were received. Capital
reyenue includes grants and contributions received, which are tied o specific projects for the replacement or upgrade of exieting non
current assets and/or investment in few assels. It also includes non-cash contributions that are usually infrastructure assets recelved
from developers as well as gains associated with disposal of fixed assets, All other revenue is classified as recurrent/cperating,
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2(b)

2(c]

e

2(d)

150

Signilicant accounting policies - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities

Council recognises a financial asset or financial liabllity when, and only when, Council becomes a party to the contractual provisians of
the instrument.

Council's financial assets and financial liabilities are limited to:

Financial assefs

Cash and cash equivalents (Mote 2{c) and Note &)

Trade and other receivables - measurad at amartised cost (Note 2(d) and Note 10)
Other financial assets such as investments in other companies.

Financial liabilifies

Trade and other payables - measured at amortised cost (Nete 2(g) and Note 14)
Rarrowings - measurad at amortised cnst (Note 15)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately from each other and cffsetting has not been applied, except for Goods
and Servicas Tax (GST), refer to Note 2(j). Refer to Note 24 for fair value measurement considerations in relation to financial assets
and financlal llzblides,

Redland City Council is exposed o various financial risks including credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. Exposure to financial
rigks iz managed in aceordance with Councils approved Enterprize Risk Management Framework and related policies, guidelines and
procedures,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at the year end, and deposits held at
call with financial institutions.

Councll's eash and cash equlvalents are subject to a number of internal restrictisns that limit amcunts avallable for discretienary or future
use. Council accounts for these restrictions intemally using a system of reserves as follows:

Constrained works ressrve

This reserve includes all confributions of monetary revenue received during the reported and previeus periods which are constrained for
the purpose of funding specific expenditure. The closing balance reported al the year end represents amounts not yet expended and
must be retained until expended in the manner spacified by the contributor or relevant legislation,

Special projects reserve :
This reserve holds funds identified fer various projects and for funding specific expenditure.

Scparate charge rescrve

This reserve was established to hold funds levied for the Environment Separate Charge for engoing maintenance and future capital
expenditure for conservafion maintenance and environmental land -acquisitions. This reserve also holds funds levied for State
Emergancey Servicas.

Special charge reserve - other
This reserve was established to hold funds collected for the Rural Fire Brigade Levy Special Charge and are distributed to the respective
Rural Fire Service Southern Moreton Bay Islands Local Area Finance Committeés. This reserve also held funds levied for Southern

Moreton Bay Islands Translink Special Charge that were distributed to the State Government to assist with transport service on the bay
islands. This arrangement ended 31 December 2018.

Special charge reserve - canals
This reserve was established o hold funds levied for the Canal Special Charges and the Sovereign Waters Lake Special Charge.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivablee are recognised at the amounte due at the time of zale or service delivery, i.e, the agreed purchase price/contract price,
at trade date. Settlement of these amounts is generally within 30 days from the invoics date.

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically and based on life time expected credit losses and any objective evidence of
possible default, the carrying amount is reduced for iImpairment.

All known bad debts werne written-off or provided far at 30 June 2019,

Counicil is empewered under the provisione of the Local Govermnment Regulation 2012 1o sell an owner's property to recover outstanding
rate debts, therefere Council generally does not impair rate receivables,
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2 Significant accounting policies - continued

2{e) Fixed and intangible assets

Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair valus |ess, where applicable, accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impzairment losses.

Mon-current asset thresholds for recognition purposes are as follows:

Land $1
Buildings 1
Plant & equipment (vehicles; plant) $5,000
Plant & eqguipment (office equipment, fumilure) $5,000
Plant & equipment (compliter hardware) $5,000
Plant & equipment (heritage & arts; library beoks) $5,000
Roads $5,000
Stormwater drainage . $5,000
Water & wastewater $5,000
Parks $5,000
Other infrastructure $5,000
Waste $5,000
Intangibles $5,000

Acquisition and/or construction of assefs

Acquisitions of asseds are inilially recorded at cost. Historical cost includes expenditure that s directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Wages and matarial costs incurred in the acquisition or construction of assets are treated as capital expenditure. Routine
operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity of nen-current asseizs are expensed as
incurred. Expenditure ihat relates io the replacement of a major component of an asset lo maintain its service potential is capitalised.

Assets received in the form of contributions are recognised as assels and revenue at fair value (by Council valuation) where that value
gxceeds the reuogni!fan threshalds for the IB-EPQ!‘.'[WQ assat class. Fair valua is the pmlhﬂ‘l would be recaived to sall an asset or pair:! o
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market pariicipants at the measurement date,

Valuation
All assel categeries are measured under the revaluation medel, at fair value, excepl for waste, parks, plant and equipment and werk in
pragress which are measured under the cost modal.

Non-currant physical assets maasursd at fair valus ara revalord whars redquiren, snthat the cammying amount of each class of assat doas
not materially differ from ils fair value at the reporting date. The valualion methedology maximises cbservable inpuls where available,
This is achieved by comprehensively revaluing these assels at least once every five years by engaging either independent exdernal
valuers or suitably qualified internal staff, In interim years, valuations are performed with reference to a suitable index.

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the assat revaluation surplus,
except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense. A decrease in the carrying
amount on revaluation is charged as an expense, to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus of that asset
class,

Cn revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the canrying amount of the asset and any change
in the estimate of remaining useful life.

Separately identified components of assels are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate.
Details of valuers and methods of valuations are disclosed in Mote 24.

Depreciation and amortisation

Land, earthworks, artwork and heritage assets are net depreciated as they have an unlimited wseful life. Depreciation on other fixed
assets is calculated on a stralght-line basis so as to write-off the net cost or revalued amount of each depreciable asset, less its
estimated residual value, prograssively over ite ectimated useful life to Council. Management believes that the straight-line basis
appropriately reflects the pattern of consumption of all Council assats.

Asszats are depreciated from the date of acquisition, or in respect of internally constructed assats, from the date an asset is completed
and commissicned ready for use.

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned useful
lives distinct from the asset to which they relate. Any expenditure that increases. the originally assessed capacity or service potential of
an assel is capitalised and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining usetul life of the asset to the Council.
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Significant accounting pelicies - continued

Fixed and intangible assets - continued
Major spares purchased specifically for particular assets that are above the asset recognition threshold are capitalised and depreciated
on the same basis as the assel to which they relate.

Depreciation methods and estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment aszets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
penod and adjusted, where necessary, to reflect any changes in the palfern of consumption, physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obselescence, or management intentions. Details of the range of estimated useful lives for each class of asset are shown in
Mate 13.

Software has a finite life between 3 and 10 years. Straight line amortisation is used with no residual value.

Land under raads

Land undear the road netwark within tha Counsil area that has been dedicatad and opanad for public use under the Land Act 1994 or the
Land Title Act 1884 Is not controlled by Council but is controlled by the State pursuant to the relevant legislation. Therefore this land is
not recognised in these financial stataments.

Leases
All Council leases are of an operating nature where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor. Payments made under
oeperating leases are expensed inequal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured al the agreed purchase or
contract price. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally sattled within 30 days.

Employee benefits obligations

Liabilities for long service leave and annual leave that are not expected to be seltled wholly within 12 monthe after the end of the period
in which the employess render the related service, are measured as a long-term benefit. The liabilities represent the present value of the
estimated fulure cash oulflows to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporling period.
Consideration is given to projested future increases in the current pay rates including oncosts, the probability of the employee remaining
in Council's employment or other associated employment as well as the timing of leave payouts. The payments are discounted using
markat yields of Commanwaalth Govarnmant bonds at the end of the reporting pariod with terms and currancies that match, as closely
as possible, the esiimated future cash outflows.

Where Council does not have an uncondiional right to defer this liability beyond 12 months, i.e. the employee has become enfitled fo
annual leave or long service leava, the liability is presented as a currant liability.

The liability for long service leave is reported in Note 16 as a provision and re-measurements as a result of changes in assumptions are
recognisad in profit or loss. The liability for annual leave is reportad in Mote 14 as a payable.

Rehabilitation provisions
A provigion is made for the cost of restorafion in respect of landfills and repraesents the present value of the anticipated future costs
associated with the closure of the landfill, decontamination and maonitoring of historical residues and leaching on these sites.

A provision is also made for the cost of restoration of the German Church Road quarry and represents the present value of the
anticipated future costs associated with the clesure of the quarry and the rehabilitation of this site.

The calculation of these provisions requires assumptions such as application of environmental legislation, awvailable technologies and
engineering cost estimaies. These uncerainties may result in fulure actual expenditure differing from amounts cumrently provided. Due
1o the long-term nature of the labilities, the most sigruhcant uncerainty in estimating the provision is the cost that wall be incurred. The
provisions recognised for landfill and quarry sites are reviewed at least annually and updated based on the facts and circumstances
available at tha tima.

Taxation

Income of local authorifies and public authorities is exempt from Commonwealth taxation except for Fringe Benefits Tax and GST. The
net amount of 351 recoverable trom the Ausiralian laxation Ottice (A10) or payable to the ATO is shown as an asset or liability
respectively, Council pays Payroll Tax to the Queensland Government on certain activities.

Cach flows are included in the Coneclidated Statement of Caeh Flows on a groes basie. The GST compenents of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities, which are recoverable from or payable fo the ATO, are classified as operating cash flows.
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3 Statement of functons and activities

3{a) Functions of the consolidated entity

Council's functions and activities have been determined based on service delivery, The activiies of Council are categorised into the
following broad functions:

Community and Customer Sarvices

Community and Customer Services provides operational support and manages ithe cily's community services through the following
functisns:

Customer and Cultural Services

« Customer and Cultural Services supporis the health and wellbeing of our community, prometes strong community spirit and extends to
people of all ages, cultures, abilities and needs.

Planning, Development and Environment

» City Planning and Assessment delivers strategic planning, development assessment, and the management of infrastructure charging
and planning.

» Community and Economic Development supports Council's commitment to increasing the city's economic capacity through business
growth and retention, employment generation and sustained economic growth as arliculated in the Economic Development Framework
2014-2041.

» Environment and Regulation is focused on the protection, management, promotion and enhancement of biodiversity.

Infrastructure and Operations
Infrastructure, Recreation and Facilities Servicas
« This functien is responsible for the sustainable management, maintenance and cperation of Council's infrastructure assets, It includes
the identification, planning and delivery of infrastructure 1o suppor the community by way of roads, parks and conservation, community
halls and swimming peols; and ensures a high standard of infrastruciure in the Redlands.

Water and Wastewater Services

« Council's Water and Wastewater Services business unitis a commercially focused business unit with the principal goals of providing
safe drinking water and the collection, treatment and disposal of wastewater.

Waste Servicas
= The Waste function is responsible for the collection and disposal of waste within the city through its kerbside collection service,

household hazardous waste services, disposals at landfills and the operation and maintenance of its transfer stations. It also includes
maintenance of closed landfill and snvironmantal monitaring of currant and former waste disposal faciities.

Organisational Sarvices
Organisaticnal Sarvicas provides an internal support function to Council frem a complianca and provision of service perepective.

« Gensral Counsel manages all legal matters, risk, procuremient, warshousing and Redland WorkGover, advising on all lagal aspects of
Council's operations, and providing procurement advice including conducting tender and quotation processes. Redland WorkCover is
Council's licensed workers' compensation self-insurer providing management of claims and working with employees with respect to
rehabilitation.

Comporate Governance manages 8 diverse range of organisational functions such as Sirategy and Gowvernance, Indigenous
Partnerships, Office of the Mayor and Councillars, Disaster Managemeant and Internal Audit.

Communication, Engagement and Towrism is respensible for & broad range of communication, communily engagement, evenls,
graphic design, web management, social media services and tourism development for Council.

« Corporate Services manages |nformaticn Management and Fleet Management to enable produetivity through technalogy solutions,

and enhancing efficiency and effectiveness across the erganisation,

Financial Services is respensible for rating and water billing, cellections, payment of suppliers, corporate financial and assel repoarting,
tax and treasury, budget and forecasting, business parinering and customer services. The group provides accurate, timely and
appropriate Intofmatien o SUPPON SOURd dedision making and mast stalutony requirements.

« Corporate Strategy and Performance leads and enables a whole of Council approach to portfolio management, strategic planning,
transformation and sirategic asset management to suppert decision making In delivering the agreed level of services, a sustainable
financial position, legislative compliance and acceplable risk exposure.

Department of the Chief Executive Officer (CED)
Office of the CED and People and Culiure provide support fo all of Council, creating a safe, rewarding, equitable and productive workplace.

Redland Investment Corporation Pty Ltd (RIG)

RICs business objective is to investigate allemative revenue sireams and investment opportunitics for the Redlands community. The
Corporation also manages some of Council's underutilised assets with an objective to improve their use or value. RIC also has a Service
Level Agreement with Cauncil to act as the preferred commercial consultants for the Redlands' Priodity Development Areas.

Page 14 of 37
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 20118

4 Revenue analysis

4(a) Rates, levies and changes
General rates

Special and other charges.

Environment and |andfill remediation charges
Water access

Watar consumption

Wastewater

Trade waste

Waste collection charges

Total rates and ulility charges

Less: Pensianer remissions and rebates

4{b) Fees

Fines and penalties

Maaring and parking fees

Search fees

Development and related application fees
License fees

Commercal collection fees

Operational works application fees

Othar feas and C-I'IETQBS

4(c) Interest received

Interest received from invesiments

Interest from overdue rates and ulility charges
Interest from loan to subsidiary

Other interest income:

4(d) Sales reveniie

Naote

Gonsolidated Gouneil

2019 2018 2019 2018

S000 SO0O0 3000 5000
100,352 92,516 100,352 92,516
1,205 4415 1,205 4415
11,270 10,573 11,270 10,573
18,571 18,425 18,571 18,425
43276 40,903 43,278 40,903
42,565 41,840 42,565 41.940
1,504 1,699 1,504 1,699
24,188 21,775 24 188 21775
243,021 232,246 243,021 232,246
(3,247) {3.256) (3,247 (3,286)
239,774 228 960 239,774 228,960
1,088 717 1,088 77
597 578 587 578
654 723 654 723
4727 4,931 4,727 4931
2,588 2,837 2,556 2337
430 310 430 310
848 B37 843 837
2,802 2 676 2530 2458
13,802 13,109 13,430 12,891
3,833 3,663 3,833 3627
939 805 939 808
38 - 38 B3
7 2 3 z
4,814 4,450 4,810 4,502

Sales revenue includes the sale of units of AVA Terraces, 8-11 Oaklands Street, Alexandra Hills, and sales proceeds of 3-11 Moores Road

5 Grants, subsidies and contributions
5(a) Recurrent
rinancial assistance grant

Govemment grants and subsidies
Conlrikuticns

5{b) Capital
Gaovemment grants and subsidies
Contritutions

Conditions over contributions

5,706 5,429 5,705 5,429
4,368 4,591 4,368 4,891
765 428 765 426
10,838 10,846 10,838 10,846
2,203 2,500 2,203 2,900
13,531 18,039 13,531 18,304
15,824 20,939 15,824 21,204

Contributions and non-reciprocal grants recegnised as inceme which were oblained on the condifion that they be expended in a manner
zpecified by the contributor but had not been expended at the reporiing date;

Unexpended grants and contributions held in reserve 1 July
Prior period grants and centributions spent in year
Grants and contributions recognised as revenue in year

Infrastructure charges for the augmentation of water supply headworks. 25

Current period grants and contributions spent in year
Unexpended grants and contributions held in reserve 30 June

Page 16 of 37

86,003 78,792 86,003 76,792
{10,587) (8,195) (10,587) (9,195)
26,651 32,050 26,661 32,060
3,767 . 3,767 -
(12,888) {13.554) {12.888) {13,554)
93,046 86,093 93,046 Smi
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MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2019

6 Employee benefits

Total staff wages and salarias

Councillors' remuneration

Annual leave and long service leave entitiements
Superannuation

Other employee related expenses

Less: Capitalised employes expensas

Councillor remuneration represents salary and superannuation expenses incurred in respect of carrying out their duties,

7 Materials and services

Contractors

Consultants

Other Gouncil outsourcing costs
Purchase of materials

Qffice administration costs
Electricity charges

Plant aperations

InNarmation techndlogy resaurcas
Genaeral ingurance premiums
Community assistance

Audit of annual financial statemeants by Queansland Audit Office
Ofher material and service axpenses
Canal and lake charges refund
Remediation cosls for landfill

B Depreciation and amorlisation

Depreciation of nen-cunrant asseats
Amortisation of intangible assets.

Y L-ash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand
Deposits at call
Balance as per Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Gonsolidated Gouncil
2019 2018 2019 2018
HNote 3000 SODD 5000 3000
70,843 68,059 9,867 67,145
1,434 1422 1,434 1422
8,887 8,186 8,000 &.101
B.487 8,188 B,393 8,082
89,851 85,856 88,694 84,761
8,154 6,141 5,880 5,982
96,005 91,996 94,584 80,743
(6.864)  (5845) (6.854) _ (5845)
89,141 86,151 87,720 84,898
34,768 34,170 34,791 34,344
4,318 2,771 4,118 2,289
18,548 19,072 18,540 19,067
62,792 43,135 47,003 43,136
8,185 8,223 8,059 8,214
5,456 5,486 5,495 5,495
4,082 4,640 4,063 4,635
2 GOG 2,516 2,697 2,511
1,085 1,128 1,085 1,128
1,549 1,570 1,549 1,559
157 152 136 136
1,667 10,3585 1,667 3427
- 138 ; 138
1,574 2,083 1,574 2,063
136,941 135,430 130,878 128,153
1 61,827 61,068 81,798 61,064
08 1,140 998 1,140
62,825 63,108 62,794 63,004
4,508 3,931 541 478
161,555 137,584 161,568 137,584
166,153 141,515 162,096 138,562

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of internal and external restrictions that limit amounts available for discretionary

or future use. These include:

Restricted funds:
Special projects reserve
Caonstrained works reserve
Separate charge reserve - environment
Special charge resarve - othar
Special charge reserve - canals

Unrestricted funds
Total cash and cash equivalents

7,379 3632 7.378 3632
93,046 86,002 93,046 86,082
1,497 1,942 1,497 1,942

- (8) - (8)

850 1,648 850 1,648
102,772 93,306 102,772 93,306
63,381 48,209 59,324 45256
166,153 141,515 162,096 138,562

Council's cash at bank and on hand at 30 June 2019 includes $4, 619,843 received from the State government to mitigate the direct impacts
on househalds of the State Waste Levy, which comes into affact from 1 July 2019. This money has baen set asida to help fund Gouncils 2019

20 Levy expense,

156
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Gonsolidated Gouneil
2019 2018 2019 2018
Nota $000 S0 3000 5000

9 Cash and cash equivalents - continued

Cash is held with the Australia and New Zealand Banking Group in a normal business cheque account. The bank currently has a short-term
credit rating of A-1+ and a long term credit rating of AA from Standard & Poor's. Deposits at call are held with Quecnsiand Troasury
Corporation which has a short-term credit rating of A-1+ and a long-term credit rating of AA+ from Standard & Foor's.

Cash is held at a floating interest rate. The weighted average inferest rate is 2.63% (2018; 2.48%).

Couneil holds the fellowing facilities with the Australia and MNew Zealand Banking Group to facilitate its operational monetary requirements,
Unrestricled access was available at balance date fo these facilities and their associated values are:

Commercial Card $385,000
Electronic Payaway $5,000,000
Interchangeable Facility $2,550,000
RIC Overdraft Facllity £300,000

10 Trade and other receivables

Rates and utility charges 25,356 24,944 25,358 24 944
Trade and other debtors 5,935 9277 7,750 14,865
GST racove gife 1,849 1,521 1,549 1,821
Less: Allowance for impairment (645) (588) (B45) (586)

32,195 35,156 34,010 40,744

Inferest is charged on outstanding rates and charges applied to the land at a fixed rate of 11% per annum. No interest is charged on other
debtors. There is ne concentration of credit risk for rates and utility charges, fees and other receivables, Credit risk is measured and managed
usihg an ageing analysis.

Trade and ether receivables ageing analysis:

Fully performing 18,382 23,007 20,207 28 585

Past dua hut not impained:

31- 60 days 4,365 3.854 4,385 3,854

61 - 80 days 1,047 1,246 1,047 1,246

> G days. 8,301 7,000 8,391 7,009
32,195 35,156 34,010 40,744

11 Inventories

Inventories held for distribution - measured al cost a58 1,102 [+ 11 1,103

Land held for development and resale:
Opening balance at 1 July 17,283 8,560 = -
Acquisition and related costs 2,763 3,540 - -
Transfer te cost of geods sold (5.398) (5,930) - -
Transfer (te)/from other non-current asset class - 11,113 - -
Assels transferred toffrom investments {1,678) - - -
Closing balance at 30 June 12 870 17,283 - -
13,925 18,386 955 1,103

Invantories are valued at the lawer of cost and net realisable value. Cosls are assignad an the hasis of weightad avarage cnat

Met realisable value is determined on the basis of the market value or list price of similar assels available for sale, less the estimated selling
expenses.

Council resolved in its minutes of statutory meetings to fransfer properties to RIC at book value of $11,112,507. These properties were
reflected in Council's financial statements as mon-current assets held-for-sale. For purposes of the consolidated financial statements, these
properties are disclosed as part of inventories to reflect the change in intention of the group. :

12 Invesumant property

Opening balance at 1 July 13.413 7.148 1.091 1.081

Acguisition of invesiment properly (248) 4,524 - -

Rewvaluation adjustment - 1,740 - -

Tranafar to non-current assets held for sale (8,050) . - -

Closing balance al 30 June 5115 13&1 3 1,09 1,091
Page 12 of 37
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

REDLAND CITY COUNCIL :
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Consolidated Council
2018 2018 2019 2018
Note $000 5000 5000 5000
14 Trade and other payables
Creditors and accruals 26,881 23,379 26,588 23,283
Annual leave 7,208 7,188 TA43 7094
34,087 30,565 33,742 30,387

Craditars and aceruals are expected to be settled within 12 menths. Of the consolidsted annual leave balance, $8,272,404 (2018: $5,046,713)
is expected to be setfled within 12 months from balance date and §1,933 541 (2018: $2,138,8495) is expecled to be settled after 12 months.

15 Borrowings

15(a) Current
Leans - Queens|and Treasury Corporation (QTC) 7,845 T.728 7,845 7,728
7,845 7,728 7,845 7,728

15(b) Mon-current

Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) 28,42 32,451 25,421 32,451
28,421 32,451 29,421 32,451

Movement in loans: -

Opening balance at 1 July 40,178 45,189 40,179 45,188

Lean repayment - principal® (5,035) (4,657) (5,035) (4,657)

Loan repayment - interest (2,8089) (3,187) {2,809) (3,187)

Acecrued interest expanse 243 2,824 2431 2,824

Lean drawdown 2,500 = 2,500 -

Closing balance at 30 June 37,266 40,179 37,266 40,179

* Council's borrowing capacity |s constrained by the provisions of the Stafutory Bodiss Financial Arrangements Act 7982. All Ceuncil
borrowings are sourced from QTC.

The market value of QTC loang at the reperting date was $41,541,475 (2018: 344 815,543). This represents the debt value at the current
market interest rale if Council repaid it at that date. As it is the intention of Cauncil 1o hald tha dahbt for its tarm, na provisinn is raquired fo be
rmada in these accounts. No assets have been pledaed as securily by Council for any liabilities, however all [sans are ultimately guaranteed by
the Queensland Government. Expected final repayment dates vary from 15 July 2021 to 15 July 2038. There have been no defaulls or
breaches of the loan agreement during the year.

Borrowings are in AUD denominated amounts and carried at amortised cost. Interest is expensed as it is incurred. The weighted average
borrowing rate is 7.07% (2018: 7.51%). Borrowings are on a fixed rate. No borrowing costs were capitalised on qualifying assets.

Council measures and manages its exposure fo liquidity risk through a maturily analysis. The remaining contractual cash flows of financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period wera:

Less than 1 year 7,847 7,844 7,947 7,844
1 to 5 years 26,848 31,258 28 848 31,258
Qvear 5 yaars 8779 9,222 8,779 9,222
Total contractual cash flows 43574 48,324 43,574 48,324
Carrying amount 37,266 40,170 37,288 40,178

i6 Provisions

16{a) Current

Landfill rehabilitation 3,726 2,792 3,725 2,792
Workers compensation 458 543 458 543
Long service leawe 11,167 10,232 11,167 10,221
15,350 13,567 15,350 13,556
16({b) Non-current
Cruamry veslvabililalion 404 304 404 334
Landfill rehabilitation 10,527 10,209 10,527 10,209
Workers compensation 631 683 631 8a3
Long service leave 1,897 1,713 1,846 1,679
13,459 12,939 13,408 12,905
16(c) Long service leave
Gurrant long service |eave (axpectad settlament within 12 menths) 1,365 1,236 1,358 1,238
Current long service leave (expected settlement after 12 months) 9,812 8,886 8.812 8,886
Mon-current long service leave® 1,897 1,713 1,846 1,679
Total long service leave 13,064 11,945 13,013 11,900
* The non-current portion relates to employees who have not yet reached the required years of service to be entifled 1o take long service
leavi.
Page 21 of 37
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA

REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2019

20 NOVEMBER 2019

Consoclidated Counail
2019 2018 2019 2018

Note 3000 $000 $000 5000
16 Provisions - continued
Movemants in provisions:

uarn ilitation

Opening balancs at 1 July 334 339 334 .339
Increase/(decreasa) in provisian 70 (5) 70 (5}
Cloging balance at 30 Juna 404 334 404 334
This is the estimated present value cost of rastoring the quarry site to as near its original condition as possible at the end of its uzeful life.
Landfill rehabilitation .
Opening balance at 1 July 13,001 1A 13,001 11,121
Increase/(decrease) in pravision duc to change in discount rate and costs 2712 3,401 Zz2712 3481
Provision utilised during the peried {1,600) (1.858) (1,6800) {1,858)
Increase in provision due to passage of lime - borrowing cosls 139 257 139 257
Closing balance at 30 .Juna 14,252 13,001 14,252 13,001

This is the estimated present value cost of restoring closed landfill sites across the city and is based on Council's 10 year expenditure
program. The program is funded by a separate charge.

Workers compansation

Opening balance at 1 July 1,228 1,570 1,226 1,570
Adjustment for period (137) (344) (137) (344)
Closing balance at 30 June 1,088 1,228 1,083 1,226
Long sarvice laave
Opening balance at 1 July 11,845 11,540 11,800 11,607
Long service leave entitlement raised 2,534 1,781 2,514 1,789
Long service entitliement used/extinguished {1,019) {917) (1,019) (7
Long service entitlement paid (396) (459) (382) (459)
Closing balance at 30 June 13,084 11,945 13,013 11,900
17  Other current liabilities
Unearned revenue 2,249 2,230 1,108 1,080
Unearned grants 3424 3,574 3424 3,574
Wasle levy refund received in advance 4620 - 4 620 -
10,283 ﬂ 9,152 4,654

Tha State govarmment made an advance payment to Council in June 2019 o mitigate the impacie on households for 2018 20 of the State
Waste Levy, which takes effect from 1 July 2019 Council will be liable to the State for payment of the Levy on most forms of commercial and
housahold waste delivered fo its disposal sites from 1 July 2018, The State is required to make an annual payment to Council that essentially
refunds Council to the portion of the Levy that relates to houssholds. Council will fund the portion of the Levy that relates to commercial waste
through charges to commercial users of dispesal sites from 1 July 2019, As the receipt from tha State in June 2018 is for a refund of Council's
2019-20 Levy expansa, the full amount has baen resegnised as a liability at 30 June 2019,

18 Asset revaluation surplus

The closing balance of the assel revaluation surplus comprises the following assel calegories. Increases and decreases on revaluation are
offset within the same asset categories.

Land 88,188 81,410 A5 488 81.410
Buildings 53,768 53,758 53,759 53,759
Roads 269,740 269,740 269,740 268,740
Stormwater drainage 218,118 218,116 218,116 218,116
Water and wastewater 177,138 170,180 177,138 170,180
Other infrastructure 188,879 209,063 109,872 209,063

1,008,120 _ 1,003,168 1,008,120 _ 1,003,168
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20 NOVEMBER 2019

REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Consolidated Council
2019 2018 2019 2018
Nate $000 5000 3000 S0
19 Commitments
Operating leases
Futura minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable aperaling leases are payable as follows: :
Within 1 year 1,279 1,262 1,279 1,262
110 5 years. 5,107 5,158 8,197 5,156
Greater than 5 years 3,851 5,186 3,951 5,186
10,427 11,604 10,427 11.604
Operating contractual commitments
Conftractual commitments at end of financial year but net recegnised in the financial statements ara as follows:
Roadworks 984 1,844 594 1,844
\Water and wastewater 1,640 1,704 1,640 1,704
Waste 135,335 152,385 135,335 152,385
Other 25,762 14,859 25,762 14,959
163,731 170,892 163,731 170,892
These expenditures are payable:
Within 1 year 50,708 37,937 50,708 37,037
110 5 years 42,743 52,780 42,743 52,780
Greater than & years 70,280 80,175 70,280 80,175
163,731 170,892 183,731 170,892

Capital contractual commitments

GCommitments for the construction of the fallowing assets contracted for al year end but net recognised as liabilities are as fellews and are

payable within 1 year:

Roadworks 22
Water and wastewater 166
Wasle a
Other 6,323

6.519

111 22 111
848 186 848

13 8 13

16,001 6,323 16,001
16,973 6,519 16,873

Redland City Council has entered into a Development Agreement (DA) with the Minister of Economic Development Queensland (MEDQ) and
Walker Group (Walker) to develop land owned by Council and the State as part of the Teondah Harbour project. The DA was executed in
February 2016 and is currently in the environmental approvals phase of the project. In accordance with the DA, Council land to be developed
by Walker as part of this project, is included in property, plant and equipment and has a carrying value of §14,565,134 (2018: $13,978,056). A
portion of the land will be developed for community infrastructure and will ba transfarred (where not already owned) to Council.
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2019

20 Contingent llabilities and contingent azsels

Contingant liabilitias:
Details and estimates of contingent lizbilities as at 30 June 2019 ara as fallows:

Workers' compensation gglr-'n surer Ian] 1!
The estimated claims liability for Council as a self-insurer under the Workers' Compensation and Rehabilifation Act 2003 ("the Act) as at 30

June 2019 is $1,192,000 (2018 $1,172,000) where estimated claims liability is defined in Section 84 of the Act The Actuary has
recommended that a provision be recognised for $1,080,000 (2018 $1,225,000) for the letal eslimated claims liabiiity. Councli has in place a
bank guarantes with the ANZ Banking Group Ltd for $2,550,000 (2018: $5,000,000)

Other claims

The Quandamoocka-Redland City Council Indigenous Land Use Agreement (ILUA) sets out broad principles and machaniems for how parties
will work tegether and meet their respective responsibilities for mutual benefits in accordance with the Nafive Titie Ast 71993, Tha ILUA
establishes native title validation and consultation for Councils projects and a framewerk for other policies, programmes and initiatives for the
mutual benefit of parties and local community.

Council is a defendant in a number of claims including a class action claim that arise as a result of the operations of council and its ownership
of public assets. All liability claims are subject to review and are only provided for when genuine and mot contingent on a future event,
Liability and insurance claims not provided for are disclosed as contingant liabilities.

Information in respect of individual claims has not been disclosed on the basis that Council considers such disclosures would seriously
prejudice the outcome of these claims.

Landfill ramadiation

Council has historically racognised, and continues to recognise, a provision for the remediation of former landfill sites throughout the city to
ensure compliance with legal obligations. The legal obligation is broad and cowered in a range of legislation such as the Environmental
Protection Act 7894 , Pelroleum and Gas (Produciion and Safety) Act 2004, Planning Act 2016 and Work Healfl and Safety Act 2071, plus
suberdinate legisiation (such as various regulations and codes of practice) and other industry guidelines. '

Council is taking a risk-based approach to justify and prioritise expenditure for managing these landfills with aftercare management plans
under development for each site. Rigks will continue to be reviewed and updated in line with relevant information from site inspections,
detailed investigations, environmental monitoring results, asset owner feedback, site master plans and other service standards. Costs may

change over time and at least annually, this program will be reviewed to reflect the dynamic circumstances against Council prudency and
efficiency measures.

Contingent assets:
Council has no contingent assets at the date of this report.

21 Superannuation

Redland City Ceuncil contributes 1o the Local Government Suparannuation Scheme (QId) (the schame). The schama is a multi-employer plan
as defined in the Australian Accounting Standard AASE 119 Employee Benefits.

The Local Government Investment Australia Super (LGIA Super), the trustee of the scheme, advised that the local gowernment
superannuation scheme was a complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the Commeonweslth Superannuation Industry
(Supervision) legisiation.

The scheme has threa elements, refemred to as:
« Accumulation Benefits Fund (ABF};
» City Defined Benefits Fund (CDBF) which covers former members of the City Super Defined Benefils Fund; and
« Regicnal Defined Benefits Fund (Regional DBF ) which covers defined benefit fund members working for regional local governmants.

The ABF iz a defined confribution scheme as defined In AASE 119, Council has no lability 1o or interest in, the ABF other than the payment of
the statutory contributions as requirad by the Local Govamnment Act 2009 .

Council does not have any employees who are members of the COBF and, therefore is not exposed to the obligations, assels or costs
associated with this fund.

The Regional DBF is a defined benefit plan as defined in AASE 119. Council is not able to acceunt for the Regional DBF as a defined benefit
plan in accordance with AASB 119 because the scheme is unable to account to Council for its propertionate share of the defined benefit
obligatien, plan assats and costs. Tha funding policy adopled in respect of the Regional DBF s direcled at ensuring that the benefils ascruing
to members and beneficiaries are fully funded as they fall due.

To ensure the ongoing solvency of the Regional DBF, the scheme's trustee can vary the rate of conributions from relevant local governmant
employers subject fo advice from the scheme's actuary. As at the reporing date, no changes had been made to prescrived employer
contributions which remain at 12% of employee assets and thera ara no known requirements to change the rate of contributions.
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL
MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ded 1
Pt yian 50.Jups 2418 Consolidated ‘Council
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note 5000 S000 s000 5000

21 Superannuation - continued

Any amount by which the fund is over or under funded would only affect future benefits and contributions to the Regional DBF, and is not an
asset or liability of Council. Accordingly there is no recegnition in the financial statements of any over or under funding of the scheme.

Ag at the reporting date, the agsets of the scheme are sufficient to meet the vested benefits. The most recent actuarial assessment of the
scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2018, The acluary indicated that "At the valuation date of 1 July 2018, the net assets of the scheme
sxcasded the vested bensfits and tha schame was in a satlsfactory financial pasition as at the valuation dats".

In the 2018 actuarial report, the actuary has racommendad no changa te the employer contribufion lavals at this time. Under the Local
Governmen( Act 2009, the trusiee of the scheme has the power to levy addifional contributions on councils which have employees in the
Regional DBF when the actuary advises such additional contributions are payable - normally when the assets of the DBF are insufficient to
maeat membears’ benefits.

There are currently G2 entities contributing to the Regional DBF plan and any changes in contribution rates would apply equally to all G2
entities. Redland City Council mades |ess than 4% of the total contributions to the plan in the financial year ended 30 June 2019,

The next actuarial valuation will be conducted as at 1 July 2021,

The amount of superannuation contributions paid by Gouncil to the scheme
in this period for the benefit of Councillors was: 27 147 144 147 144

The amount of superannuation contributions paid by Council to the scheme
in this period for the benefit of the Executive Leadership Team was: 27 336 310 278 254

The amount of supsrannuation contributions paid by Gouncil to the schemsa
in this period for the benefit of all other employees was: 8,159 7.8768 8,115 7,836

22  Trust funds

Manies collected or held on bahalf of cthor anfities 5 514 8,178 5,514 B 182

These funds relate to monies yet to be paid out to or on behalf of those enlities and Council performs only a custodial role in respect of these
menies. Council separately accounts for all trust funds through a dedicated trust ledger and within a separate account whereby balances are
excluded from the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,

For the year ended 30 June 2019, Council resolvad iIn its minutes of ganaral mesatings to transfer $3,766,625 from funds hald in trust to tha
general account. Thie represents infrastructure charges collected for the augmentation of water supply headworks (refer Note 25).

23  Reconchliation of net result for the year to nel cash flows from operating activities

Net result 9,020 16,200 9,634 17,954
Non-cash iterms:
Depreciation and amortisation g 62,826 63,108 62,784 63,084
Prior year errers corected in-year 138) 98 (135) 19
Net acerued interest (378) (363) (378) (363)
Mon-gcash contributions (7,370) (13,840) {7,370) (13,840)
Bad and doubliul debis 59 (118) 59 (118)
Cost of land sold - aoquired for nil consideration - 6,724 - -
Land acquired in ligu of rates (29} - {29) -
Fair value adjustment - investment property - (1,740) - -
54,971 53,788 54,940 48,691
Investing and development activities
Net loss on disposal of non-current assets 3,800 2,189 3,800 2,199
Capital grants and confributions 5(b) (15,824) (20,939) (15,824) {21,204)
(12,024) [16,740) (12,024) (18,005)
a 1] and liabilifies
(Increase)decrease in trade and other receivables 2,411 (4,883) 2,718 (1,991)
(Increase) decrease in land held for resale - - - -
{Increase)decraasa in other current assets and inventories 232 1,166 (2,794) (512)
Inereasa{dacraasa) in trade and ather payablas 5,725 (7,258) 3355 (7,798)
Increasef{decrease) in provisions 2,304 1,823 2,298 1.923
Increasef{decraase) in other current liabilitiss 3,787 2,587 3642 2,587
14,459 (6,445) 2,219 (8,791)
Net cash inflowi{outflow) from operating activities 66,426 44792 61,769

164
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For tha year ended 30 Juna 2019

24  Fair value measurements

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables end payablea i3 assumed 1o approximate the value of the original transaction, less any
allowance for impairment where relevant, The carrying value of cash and cash equivalenis is a reasonable approximation of fair value and
therafore separate disclosures of the fair values are not required.

Investments in 100% centrolled entities and invesimients in other entities do not have a quoted market price in an active market and ars valuad
at cost less any impairment. Shares in controlled entifies have been eliminated on consclidation.

Redland City Council meseures land, buildings, infrastructure azsels and invesiment properly at fair value on a recuming basis.

In accordance with AASB 13, fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis:
Fair value based on guoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for identical assels or liabilities (Level 1)
Fair valwe based on inpuls (hal are direclly or indireclly observabile for (e assed o liability (Level 2)
Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the: asset and liability (Laval 3)

All fair value measurements are recurrent and categorised as either Level 2 or Level 3. Gouncil doas not held any assets valued using Level 1
inputs. Where all significant inputs used lo valua the asset are observable, the asset is valued at Level 2. However, if one or more of the
significant inputs are unobservable, the asset is valued as Level 3.

The following table represenis the material aszet clasees measured and recognised al fair value af 30 June 2018,

2018 Gross value| Written down value Level 2 Level 3]
3000 F00D 300 F000
Land 258,748 258,748 30,445 228,303
Buildings 135,397 79,588 - 79,586
Roads ~ Bo0g3s 622,520 I 522,529
Starmwater drainage 581,590 428,502 - 428,502
Waler and wastewater 1,333,154 792,401 - ) 792401
Other infrastructure 289 005 251,021 - 251,021
3,508,730 2,432,787 30,445 2,402,342

* The following table represents the material asset classes measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2018. ’
2018 Gross value Written down value Lavel 2 Level 3
F000 $000 000 5000
Land 246,597 248,597 27,325 215272
Buildings - 132,871 80,535 1 Bps3s
Roads 872,425 614,319 - 614,318
Stormwater drainage 586 456 431 835 = 431 835
Water and was bewater 1,331,318 803,848 - 803 848
Other infrastructure 293.114 248,394 - 248,354
3,464,779 2,425,428 27,326 2,308,103

Council's policy is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels (if any) at the end of the reporting period and is consistent
with the previcus year, Details of valuation movements are shown in Mete 13, The additienal in year movements for land assets held at Leve!
2 and Level 3 are reflected in the table below.

2019 Land Level 2 Level 3] Total
5000 5030] S000)
Opening balance 1 July 2018 27,3285 219,272 246,597
Additions and contributions 3,936 - 3938
Disposals (1,524) (81) ~ (1,605)
Transfer Level 3 to Level 2 - - -
Transfer Level 2 to Level 3 o - ] ]
Transfers beween asset classes 52 - 52
Asset transfers to firom investments - A 1,690 1,680
Revaluation 656 7422 B, 078
Closing balance 30 June 2018 30,445) 228,303 258,748
25 Lo Level _EI Lewel 3 Total
5000 §000 $000)
Opening balance 1 July 2017 20,587 221,202 241,789
Additions and contributions - 5783 158 5941
Disposals: g B B
Transfer Level 3 to Level 2 - = E -
Transfer Level 2 to Leval 3 - - - o -
Asset transfars - {11,131} {11,131)
Rewaluation a55) 9,043 9,998
Closing balance 30 June 2018 27,325] 219,272| 246,597
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24 Fair value measursmeants - continued

Valuation technigques used to derive fair values

Thie specific valuation techniques. used to value Council's assels are documented below. Fair value represents the highest and best use of the
assats having regard to the optimal financial, physical and legal use of the asset. Residual values have not been applied to any asset
category.

Land
All Councll freehold land was compranans.’r\dely valued a8 at 30 June 2016 D}l‘ quali'ﬂa-d |r|dependent external valuer, Assstval F’l}( Ltd
(Assatval).

Tha valuations ware based on publicly avallable data on sales of similar land in nearby localities applying a direct comparnson method. Whera
an active markef exists and there are no unreasonable resirictions as to use andfor sale, the land was deemed to be walued as Level 2.

Where no aclive market existed, or there were restricions on the use andfor sale, the land was assessed as Level 3. Land carrying a parkland
zone, or land wtilised for footpath or access restriction purposes, or due to its general characteristics, land that has no cbservable active
market, hag been assessed as Level 3, The most significant input to the determination of fair value is the value per square metre,

Qualificd external valuer, AssetVal, was commissioned to undertake an independent indexation analyeis at 30 June 2047, 30 June 2018 and
30 June 2018. Recent land sales trends and other market evidence were considerad to derive a suitable indexation rate.

Buildings

All bulldings were comprehansively valued as at 30 April 2016 by independantly qualified external valuer, Cardno (Qld) Ply Ltd (Cardna). The
waluation was applied to the accounts as at 30 June 2016 as no material movement since valuation was identified. Due to the specialist nature
of these assels and the absence of an active markel, fair value was assessed by using the current replacement cost methodology, however
has been informed by praperty sales data where relevant and available.

Replacament cost was detarmined with reference to construction costing data contained in Rawlinsons Ausfralia Construction Handbook and
databases built from research by external waluer, Cardno. Major buildings have been split into compeonents, and these components were
valued separately to reflect differing expectations of condition and usaful lives. Assesement of aconomic and remaining lives was bazed on
histerical assessment of similar assets and drawing on experience of the valuer, and this was the basis for determining the depreciated value.

Physical site inspections were camied out by Cardno on a sample of buildings. The purpose was to confirm the existence and aszsess the
condition of the buildings. Tha condition assessmeant was used as an indication of how the assets are contributing to the current performance
and lo determine fair value accordingly, For buildings not assessed as part of the revaluatfion exercise, Cardne utilised the recent condition
assessment data prepared by the FCT Management Group as a basis to derive fair values.

Allhough some inpils would be consideied as Level 2 (feplacament cost valuation), significant assumptions were applied in the assessment of
condition. sxpacted useful life and remaining life and therefors thase assels are considered to be valued as Level 3.

Qualified external valuer, Cardno, was commiggionad 1o undertake an II'II:IBPBI'ICI-EH( indexation analysis at 30 Juna 2017, 30 June 2018 and 30
June 2019, Warious published indices were used fo identify cost frends and the valuation took into consideration the effects of price,
technological change, asset types and assat location to derive a suitable indaxatian rate.

The proposed indexation rate for buildings as at 30 June 2019 is 2.5%. As the cumulative change in index for buildings is less than 5%,
Counicil will not account for the indexation impact

Road infrastructure assats

Road assets were comprehensively valued as at 30 June 2018 by Cardno. As these are specialist public service assets that are rarely
indepandently sold, current replacement cost was detarmined as the most appropriate valuation method. These assets wers considersd to
have been valued using Level 3 inputs, .

Unit rates were determined with reference to recent Council construction data, Cardno developed databases and cost curves, Rawlinsons
Austialia Conslruction Handbook, and other published bulding indices. These rates were applied to the asset specifications including dapth,
lemgth and width. - Unit rates take into consideration material, labouwr, service and overhead costs (survey 6%, design 5%, engineering
supervision 3%, project management 8%). All roads are divided Into segments and componentised info earthworks, base, sub-base and
surface to reflect different lives to each component.

Useful lives were daveloped by Cardno with refarence to common anginaaring and industry practice standards and Council's historical
evidence. The expacted lives of roads assets were determined with reference to material types and construction methods and allowance was
made for assets located on the islands.

The remaining useful lives were defermined on an aged basis with réference to the total expected life of the asset and as a result the
accumulated depreciation was caloulalcd on a straight line basis. The significant unobservable inputs used in the waluation of road
infrastruciure assets were: expected useful life and remaining life.

The propesed indexation rate for read infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2019 is 3%. As the cumulative change in index for road infrastructure
is less than 5%, Council will not accaunt for the indexation impact.
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24 Fair value measurements - continued

Stormwater drainage infrastruclure assels

Stermwater drainage assets were independantly valuad as al 30 June 2018 by qualified external valuer, Cardno. As these are specialist public
service assets that are rarely independently sold, current replacement cost was determined as the most appropriate valuation method. These
assels ware considared to have been valuad using Level 3 inputs. Linit rates and replacement costs wane determined with reference to recent
Council construction data, Cardno developed databases and cost curves, Rawiingons Australia Censtruction Handbook, and other building
indices. Thesa rates were applied to the asset specifications including depth, length and width. Unit rates take into consideration material,
labour, service and overhead costs (survey 6%, design 5%, engineering supervision 3%, project managemant 6%).

Other cost factors censiderad when developing replacement costs for passive assets wers soil and development type, aconomias of scale and
asset depth. These factors together with the expected useful life and remaining life are considered the significant unobservable inpuls used in
the valuation.

Useful lives were developed by Cardno with reference to common engineering and industry practice standards and Council's historical
evidence. Where appropriate the lives of assats located within 50m of the coast or in poor ecile were adjusted to reflect a varied life
axpeclancy.

The remaining useful lives were determined on an aged basis with reference fo the total expected life of the asset and as a result, the
accumulated depreciation was calculated on a straight line basis. Assels are componentised 1o reflect varying expected lives and
consumplion patterns.

The proposed indexation rate for stormwater drainage infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2019 is 3%. As the cumulative change in index for
stormwater drainage infrastructure is less than 5%, Council will not account for the indexation impact.

Watnr and wastawatar infrastructure assets

Water and Wastewater assets were comprehensively valued as at 30 June 2017 by registered valuer, Cardno. Current replacement cost was
determined as the most appropriate valuation method as these are specialist public service assats that are raraly independently sold and as
such were classified as being valued using Level 3 inputs, Significant components with differing expected useful lives and replacemant costs
were valued separately,

Replacement costs were based on the replacement of the assets with a modern, engineering equivalent with cost factor adjustments applied to
reflact the location and site conditions likely on replacement. The costs have been resourced with reference to researcied cost data for recent
Redland City Council projects and industry cesting data and include 20% oncosle (survey 6%, design 5%, censtruction supsrvision 3%, and
project management 6%).

Cost factors taken into consideration when determining replacement cost of underground assete were soil and development type. An
additional cost faclor was applied to all assels located inisland locations.

Remaining lives of the assets were determined with consideration 1o the age and condition where assessed, with reference io useful lives
developed by Cardno using commen engineering and industry pracice standards and assessed against Rediand City Council data,

The condilion of passive assets was determined with reference to the age of the assels, while the condition of active assets was determined by
Cardne through sampled visual inspection against predetermined condition crileria. Condition inspections were conductad on an additional
sample of wastewater pump stations during the 2018-19 financial year and thesa informed the remaining life assessments of these assels.

Condition assessments were assessed against expected useful lives to determine indicative remaining useful lives and determine accumulated
depraciation and fair value.

The significant unobsarvable inputs used in the valuation were soil, develepment and island faclors; asset condition (active asseis); and tolal
expected life and remaining life.

Qualifled external valuer, Cardne, was commissioned to undertake an independent indexation analysis at 30 June 2074 and 30 June 2019 and
also to undertake condiion assessments on the remaining one third of the sewage pump stations. Various published indices were used to
identify cost trends and the analysis took into consideration the effects of price, technological change, asset types and asset lacation to darive
a suitable indexation rate,

The proposed indexation rate for water and wastewater infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2019 is 3%. As the cumulative change in index for
water and wastewate infrastructure Is less than 5%, Council will not account for the indexation impact.
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24  Fair value measurements - continued

Other infrastructure assets

These assets include marine, jetty facilities and seawalls and were comprehensively valued as al 30 June 2019 by independent qualified
external valuer, Cardno. Current replacement cost was determined ag the most appropriate valuation method as these are specialist public
seivice assels thal are rarely independently sold.

The condition assessment inspections were conducted on all marine beacons, ramps, jetties, piles, foreshores access stairs, and swimming
enclosures. The purpose of the inspections was to cenfirm the existence of the assets, its attributes and measurements and determine current
conditien, The fair value calculation was based primarily on condifion, where condition data was not available age was used.

Replacement cost wag determined with reference to Council's historical construction records, Cardno's own database of construction costs
and other published cost guides. Transportation and other costs unique to work completed on the islands has been taken into consideration
by applying an island factor to these assets.

Remaining lives were assigned based on physical assessment of the condition of the asesete ae noted by the valuer during inepeclion including
factors such as the age of the asset, overall condition, economic andfor functional cbsolescence. The assets were depreciated with reference
to expected useful lives determined through application of industry standards, including the Institute of Public ‘Works Engineering Australia
(IPWEA), historic assessment of similar assets, and experience gained from similar valuations by Cardno.

Other infrastructure assets have no market due 1o their spacialisad nature. As a result, their current uss is their highast and bast use. As thiare
is a significant |evel of professional judgement used in determining the valuation due to the level of unobservable data it has been determined
that the overall data level applying to the valuation of Council's assets is Level 3.

The significant uncbservable inputs used in the valuation were asset condition, total expected life and remaining life.

25 Prior period adjustments.

For comparative purposes, the adjustments relating to the year ended 30 June 2018 are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity. Details of these adjustments are provided below:

20 NOVEMBER 2019

168

Accumulated Relained eamings
Grogs value depreciation Increase f (decrease)
3000 $D00 S000
Property, plant and equipment
Water and Wasiewater
Disposal of water assets not awned by Councll and idantifisd (2,310) 937 (1,373},
Stormwater drainage
Reduction in value of stormwater pipes to carrect the
application of depth factor (3,793) - (3,793)
Sundry Debtors
Infragtructure charges for the augmentation of watsr supply
headworks 3,767 - 3,767
Taital adjustmant fa rataingd farnings 12,336) 937 (1,398)

There is no prior period adjustment relating to the year ended 30 June 2019.
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26 National Competition Policy

Business activities to which the Code of Competitive Conduct (CCC) is applied

A government business aclivity is ene which competes with private businesses and exceeds thresholds under Local Govermment
Reguiation 2012 . In arder to remove any advantages or disadvantages, the competitive neutrality principle must be applied.

Council applied the CCC 1o the following significant business activities during the financial year ended 30 June 2018:
s Redland Water
» RedWaste

Financial performance of activities subject to the CCC;

Significant
businesses
Business activities - 2019 Rediand Waiar Rediiasts
»
$000 3000
Revenue for services provided to Council 2,183 716
Revenue for services provided o external clients: 108,843 26,284
Community service abligations 421 130
111,483 27,130
Less: Expenditure 105,107 20,849
Operating surplus/{deficit) 6,346 6,281
Description of Community Service Qbligations (CS0s):
Activities CS0 description Actual
L 000/
Redland Waler CS0s
Water concession Mot-for-Profit (138)
Wastewater concession Not-for-Profit (283)
(421)
RedWaste CE0s
Clean Up Australia Day (1)
Birkdale Sanitary Landfill - Gale Waiver Fees (42}
Redland Bay Transfer Station ()
Morth Stradbroke Island Transfer Station -
Kerbside Recycling (24}
Kerbside Waste Collection (47)
Kerbside Greanwaste Collection (2)
Bulky Item Collaction for HAS slients (8)
Russall Island Transtar Station -
Macleay lsland Transfer Station -
Lamb Island Transfer Station -
Karragarta |sland Transter Station -
Coochiemudla Island Transfar Station -
(130))

Anticipated changes to business activities

Itis expecled thal there will be no new business eclivilies to which the CCC will be applied for the financial year ending 30 June 2020.
Roads activity continues to net meet the definition to which the CCC will be applied as it does not involve iteelf in competitive bids,
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27 Transactions with relsted parties

27(a) Subsidiaries

The group consists of the parent entity Redland City Council and two first tier subsidiaries, Redland Investmen! Corporation Pty Ltd &
Redheart Pty Ltd. Redland City Council also has three second fier subsidiaries, Redland Developments Pty Lid (formerly AWA Terraces Ply
Ltd), Cleveland Plaza Pty Lid and RIC Toecndah Pty Lid (Note 1(b)).

The following transactions occumed betwean Council and its subsidiaries and related antities for year endad 30 June 2078:
Redland Investment ration Pty Ltd (RIC

28 2018
Details of transaction 3000 3000
Asset contribution by Council* - 78|
Retransfer of land aszets from RIC te Counei** 1,690 -
Land sold ta RIC** 1,500 -
Managing fee paid to RIC for Weinam Creak Project™™™ 1656 -
Services provided by Council to RICY* 85 100
Recoveries from RIC for the development applications submiited for Redland Developments B 200
Ply Ltd :
Services provided by RIC to Coungil**+* gy | @i
Dividend received from RIG 1,500 500
Dividend receivabls from RIC - 1,500
Loan to RICH*==* - 3,500
Loan repayment by RIC 3,500 -
Interest received from RIC 34 B8
GST paid by Council and subsequently received from RIC 321 B25
GST refunds claimed by Council and subsequently paid to RIC - 69

" Assel conlibution consisits of transfer of land at boek value by Council resolution. Based on cument valuation methodolagy the book
value reflects fhe fair value of the properly. Rates charges on properties transferred to RIC are walved according o Council
résalution.

- Rotransior of land asscis from RIC mainly consists of land fransfer of 61Mamillan Read Alaxandra Hills (refer Nolte 13(a))

**  During the year Council sold Lot 100 at 3 Moores Road and Lot 101 at 5-13 Moores Road to RIC for $1,500,000.

**  The Weinam Creek Prionly Development Area Project aims to transform the waterfront of Redfand Bay, improve the usabilily of the
transport hub, altract visilors, Create jobs aivd drive economic daveiopment in the area. Radiand Invastmant Carperation fs working
with Council fo develop stage one of the project, which will provide valuable infrastruciure for the cormmunily, includimg ground-feve!
car parks and a foothridge comiecting the Moores Road site fo the Rediand Bay Marina. OF the tofal amount paid for this project,
32,688,134 fs inclrded in the prepayment balanse as at 30 June 2078,

= Recovery of overheads and other costs fn the provision of faciliies, administratfon and orgenisafional services, which include renfing
of affica space, legal sorvices, financial ssrvices, infarmation management services and feel services. Cosls of these services ars
based on the Senvce Lewel Agresment (SLA).

s RIC s conducting werk in certain prionfy davelopment areas on Council’s behalf. RIC's invoices fo Council for the work undertaken
are based on the Service Level Agresmant (SLA).

"""" Refar Note 27(s) befow.

| Ltd
RIC Teondah Pty Ltd manages the RIC Toondah joint operation (refer Mote 1(b)}. Transactions with RIC Toondah include an accrual of
$13,354 (2018 $1,966) in jelation (o joint operalion costs.
27(b) Transactions with key management personnel (KMP)

Key management personnel include the Mayor, Goundillors and Excoutive Leadership Team (ELT) as well as those thal have acted as ELT
members in the year, The compensation earned by key management personned for year ended 30 June 2019 comprises:

2019 2018
Eat:]lls of transaction Y00 i
Short-term employee benefits* 3,242 3,124
Pest-employment benefis™ 0 425 388
Long-lerm emplayes benafits™* ) 187 185
Total 3,854 3,707

- Short-tarm employee benefifs include sslaries, peid sick leave, allowances and any nen-monefery benefits provided such as
Council vehicles.

“*  Postemployment benefits include employer superannuation contribulions.

| ong-term employee benafits includs annual leave and long senvice [eave acerued during the year,

Detailed remuneration disclosures are provided in the annual report.
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27 Transactions with related parties - continued

27(c) Transactions with other related parties
Other related parlies include the KMP, close family members of KMP and any entities controlied or jointly controlied by KMP or their close

family members.
Details of transaction 2018 2018
$000 $000
IElﬂblﬂyE‘eexpenses for elose family members of key management personnel* 122 211

* All closs family members of KMP were employed fhrough an arm's length process and are paid in accordance with the Award or
Certified Agreement relevant to the job they perform.

Council employs 1,068 (2018: 1,007) staff of which onlly 2 (2018: 3) are close family members of KMP.
27(d) Qutstanding balances
The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parfies:

Current receivables

Name of the person / entity 2018 2018

: $000 $0D0

Redland Investment Gorporation Py Ltd 1,604 5,030
Current payables

Name of the person f entity 2019 2018

. 5000 S0

Redland Investment Corporation Py Lid 296 108

27({e) Loans and guarantees to/from related parties

RCC has executed a Loan Facility Agraement with RIC on 30 April 2018 1o fund the development of tawnhouses at 521 Old Cleveland Road,
Birkdale, QLD. At reporting date, the loan had not been draw down therefore is not reflected in the financial staterments,

Council did not make any other loans to, or receive loans from, related parties in the financial year ended 30 June 2018, No guarantees were
provided.

27(f) Commitments to / from related parties
Refer Mote 13 and Note 18 for the restristed land.

27(g) Transactions with LGIA Super
Refer Mote 21 for the transactions with LGIA Super.

27(h) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed

Most of the entities and people that are related pariies of Council live and operate within the Redland City area. Therefore, on a regular basis
ordinary citizen transactions ooccur between Council and its related parties. Some examples include:

- payment of rates

- uga of Council owned facililies such as swimming posls
- animal registration

- borrowing books from a Council liorary

= parking ﬁna:;

Council has not included these types of transaction in its disclosure where they are made on the same terms and conditiens available to the
genaral public.
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28 Events after the reporling period

The Redland City Council Employee Agreement 2019 was voted on favourably by Council's external work force on 1 August 2019. Wages and
other corresponding changes will apply from 1 July 2018,

No other matler ar circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2019 that has significantly affected the consclidated entity's cperations
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MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE
For the year ended 30 June 2019

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to Sections 176 and 177 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements.

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that:

{i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012 for the
establishment and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(i) the general purpose financial statements present a true and fair view, in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, of Council and consolidated entity transactions for the financial year and financial pesition at the end of
the year,

D0 £ 0. 3 A——

Mayor Chief Executive Officer
Karen Williams Andrew Chesterman

Date: X 6 . 1 9 pate: <6, T 19
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Councillors of Redland City Council

Report on the audit of the financial report
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial report of Redland City Council (the Council) and
its controlled entities (the Group).

In my opinion, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the Council's and Group’s financial position as at
30 June 2019, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended

b) complies with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 2012
and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at

30 June 2019, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes
to the financial statements including significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and the certificate given by the Mayor and Chief Executive.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensiand Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial report section of my report.

| am independent of the council and group in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’'s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Other information

Other information comprises the information included in Redland City Council’s annual report
for the year ended 30 June 2019, but does not include the financial report and my auditor’s
report thereon. At the date of this auditor's report, the other information was the current year
financial sustainability statement, the long-term financial sustainability statement, and the
annual report.

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as required by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a separate opinion on the current year
financial sustainability statement.
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In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Council for the financial report

The council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation
2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The council is also responsible for assessing the council's and group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the council or to otherwise
cease operations of the group.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Council's or Group'’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the council's and group’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
council's or group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. | base my conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the council or group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the financial
report. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the group. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal cantrol that | identify during my audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2019:
a) | received all the information and explanations | required.

b)  In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping
of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

-<f’b( Kok 8 October 2019

Melissa Read Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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REDLAND CITY COUNCIL

CURRENT-YEAR FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Measures of Financial Sustainabil ity

Council's consolidated performance at

Operating surplus ratio

Agsel sustainability ratie

Net financial labilities ratio

Council's parformance at 30 June 2019 against key financial ratios and targats:

Qperating surplus rafic

Aszet sustainability ratio

Nel financial liabilities ratio

Note 1 - Basis of Preparation

How the measure is calculated Artual Tanget
30 June 2019 against key financial ralies and fargets:

Net result (excluding capital items) divided by total operating -3.68% Between 0% and
revenue (excluding capital itams) 10%
Capital expenditure an raplacemeant of infrastructura assats 42.35% Greater than
(renewals) divided by depreciation expense on infrastructure 80%
assels

Total liakilities |ess current assets divided by total oparating -39.83% Below 60%
revenue {(excluding capital items)

Net resull (excluding capital items) divided by total operating .355%  Between 0% and
revenue (excluding capital items) 10%
Capital expenditure on replacement of infrastructure assels 42.3T% Greatar than
(renewals) divided by depreciation expense on infrastructure 90%
assels

Total liabilities less current assets divided by total operating -37.84% Below 80%

revanue (excluding capital items)

The current year financial sustainability statement is a spacial purpose statement prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management (Susiainabilify) Guideline: 2013, The amounts used lo calculate the
three reported measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn fram Council's audited consolidated general purpose financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2018,

Certificate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 June 2019

This current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant fo Section 178 of the Lecal Government Regulation 2012

(the Regulaticn).

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we cartify that this curment-year financial sustainability statement has been accurately

calculated.

Mayor
Karen Willams

ot 6, 9 4 19

A

Chief Executive Officer
Andrew Chesterman

o 26, 7, 19
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Councillors of Redland City Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement
Opinion
| have audited the accompanying current year financial sustainability statement of Redland City

Council for the year ended 30 June 2019, comprising the statement, explanatory notes, and the
certificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer.

In accordance with section 212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all
material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of Redland City Council for
the year ended 30 June 2019 has been accurately calculated.

Basis of opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensiand Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the current year
financial sustainability statement section of my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in Australia. | have also
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the Auditor-General of
Queensland Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter — basis of accounting

| draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current year financial
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fulfilling the council’s reporting responsibilities
under the Local Government Regulation 2012. As a result, the statement may not be suitable
for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

Other information comprises the information included in Redland City Council's annual report
for the year ended 30 June 2019, but does not include the current year financial sustainability
statement and my auditor’'s report thereon. At the date of this auditor’s report, the other
information was the general purpose financial statements, the long-term financial sustainability
statement, and the Annual Report.

My opinion on the current year financial sustainability statement does not cover the other
information and accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
However, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a separate
opinion on the general purpose financial report.
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In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the council for the current year financial sustainability statement

The council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year financial
sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012, The
council’s responsibility also includes such internal control as the council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability
statement

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the current year financial
sustainability statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the
Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of this statement.

My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance of
the reported ratios, nor on the council's future sustainability.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the statement represents the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.
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® Queensland
® ® Audit Office

Better public services

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal cantrol
that | identify during my audit.

Lt Ky o
4 8 October 2019

Melissa Read Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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INDEX OF STATUTORY INFORMATION

Queensland Government legislation requires Councils to include specific information in an annual report each year. Division 3 of the

Local Government Regulation 2012 explains what an annual report for a local government must contain, The table below provides an index
of where you can find that information throughout this report. In some instances, the “provision’ column summarises the relevant Act
requirements, For the full wording for each provision, please refer to the source legislation.

Local Government Act 2009 - provisions
Requirement Chapter | Section Page
Identifying beneficial enterprises 3 41 129
A local government report for each Anancial year must contain a list of all the beneficial enterprises that the
lacal government conducted during the financial year.
Identifying significant business activities 3 45 129
Alocal government report for each financial year must:
(a) contain a list of all the business activities that the local government conducted during the financial year;
and
(b) identify the business activities that are significant business activities; and
(c) state whether or not the competitive neutrality principle was applied to the significant business activities,
and if the principle was not applied, the reason why it was not applied; and
(d) state whether any of the significant business activities were not conducted in the preceding financial year,
i.e. whether there are any new significant business activities.
Annual report must detail remuneration 6 201 129
(1) The annual report of a local government must state:
(a) the total of all remuneration packages that are payable (in the year to which the annual report relates)
to the senior management of the local government; and
(B) the number of employees in senior management who are being paid each band of remuneration. 129
(2] The senior management of a local government consists of the Chief Executive Officer and all seniar
executive employees of the local government.
(3) Each band of remuneration is an increment of $100,000
(4) To remove any doubt, it is declared that nothing in this section requires the exact salary of any employee
in senior management to be separately stated in the annual report.
Local Government Regulation 2012 - provisions
Requirement Chapter | Section Page
Financial sustainability statements 5 178 140
(1) A local government's current-year financial sustainability statement must state the relevant measures of
financial sustainability for the financial year to which the statement relates.
(2] A local government's lang-term financial sustainability statement must state:
(a) the relevant measures of financial sustainability for the nine financial years following the year to
which the statement relates; and
() an explanation of the local government's financial management strategy that is consistent with the
long-term financial forecast.
Community financial report 5 179 14-21
(1) A local government must prepare a community financial report for each financial year.
(2) The community financial report for a financial year must:
(a) contain a summary and an analysis of the local government’s financial performance and position for
the financial year; and
(b) be consistent with the general purpose financial statement for the financial year; and
(c) include the relevant measures of financial sustainahbility for the financial year; and
(d) be written in a way that can be easily understood by the community.
Preparation of annual report 5 182 nfa
(1) A local government must prepare an annual report for each financial year.
(2) The lacal government must adopt its annual report within one month after the day the Auditor-General
gives the Auditor-General's audit report about the local government’s financial statements for the financial
year Lo the local government.
(3) However, the Minister for Local Government may, by notice to the local government, extend the time by
which the annual report must be adopted.
(4) The local government must publish its annual report an its website within two weeks of adopting the
annual report.
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Financial statements 5 183 140
The annual report for a financial year must contain:
(a) the general purpose financial statement for the financial year, audited by the Auditor-General; and
(b) the current-year financial sustainability staterment for the financial year, audited by the Auditor-General; and
(c) the long-term financial sustainability statement for the financial year; and
(d) the Auditor-General's audit reports about the general purpose financial statement and the current-year
financial sustainability statement.

Community financial report 5 184 | 14-21
The annual report for a financial year must contain the community financial report for the financial year.
Particular resolutions 5 185

The annual report for a financial year must contain:
(a) a copy of the resolutions made during the financial year under section 250(1); and
(b) a list of any resolutions made during the financial year under section 206(2).
Local Government Regulation 2012 - provisions
Requirement Chapter | Section | Page
Councillors 5 186 131
The annual report for a financial year must contain particulars of:
(a) for each Councillor, the total remuneration, including superannuation contributions, paid to the Councillor
during the financial year; and
(b) the expenses incurred by, and the facilities provided to, each Councillor during the financial year under
the local government's expenses reimbursement policy; and
{c) the number of local government meetings that each Councillor attended during the financial year; and
(d) the total number of the following during the financial year:
(i} orders made under section 1501(2) of the Act;
(ii) aorders made under section 150AH(1) of the Act;(h)
(iii) decisions, orders and recommendations made under section 150AR(1) of the Act;
(&) each of the following during the financial year:
(i) the name of each Councillor for whom a decision, order or recommendation mentioned in
paragraph (d) was made;
(ii) adescription of the unsuitable meeting conduct, inappropriate conduct or misconduct engaged in by
each of the Councillors;
(iii) asummary of the order or recommendation made for each Councillor; and
(f) the number of each of the following during the financial year:
(i) complaints referred to the assessor under sections 150P(2)(a) of the Act by local government entities
for the local government;
(ii) matters, mentioned in section 150P(3) of the Act, notified to the Crime and Corruption Commission;
(iii) notices given under section 150R(2) of the Act;
{iv) notices given under section 1505(2)(a) of the Act;
(v) decisions made under section 150W(a),(b) and (d) of the Acl;
(vi) referral notices accompanied by a recommendation mentioned in section 150AC(3)(a) of the Act;
(vii) occasions information was given under section 150AF(4)(a) of the Act;
(viii) occasions the local government asked another entity to investigate, under chapter SA, part 3,
division 5 of the Act for the local government, the suspected inappropriate conduct of a Councillor;
(ix) applications heard by the conduct tribunal about the alleged misconduct of a Councillor.

Administrative action complaints 5 187 128
(1) The annual report for a financial year must contain:
(a) a statement about the local government's commitment to dealing fairly with administrative action
complaints; and
(b) a statement about how the local government has implemented its complaints management process,
including an assessment of the local government’s performance in resolving complaints under the
process.
(2) The annual report must also contain particulars of:
(a) the number of the following during the financial year:
(i) administrative action complaints made to the local government
(i) administrative action complaints resolved by the local government under the complaints
management process
(iii) administrative action complaints not resolved by the local government under the complaints
management process; and
(b) the number of administrative action complaints under paragraph (a) (iii) that were made in a previous
financial year.
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Local Government Regulation 2012 - provisions
Requirement
Overseas travel

(1) The annual report for a financial year must contain the following information about any overseas travel
made by a Councillor or local government employee in an official capacity during the financial year:

(a) for a Councillor — the name af the Councillor

(b) for a local government employee — the name of, and position held by, the local government employee
(c) the destination of the overseas travel

{d) the purpose of the overseas travel

(e) the cost of the overseas travel.

(2) The annual report may also contain any other information about the overseas travel the local government
considers relevant,

Expenditure on grants to community organisations

The annual report for a financial year must contain a summary of:
(&) the local government’s expenditure for the financial year on grants to community organisations; and
(b) expenditure from each Councillor’s discretionary fund, including:
(i) the name of each community organisation to which an amount was allocated from the fund; and
(ii) the amount and purpase of the allocation.
Other contents
(1) The annual report for a financial year must contain the following information:
(a) the Chief Executive Officer’s assessment of the local government's progress towards implementing its
five-year corporate plan and annual operational plan
(b) particulars of other issues relevant to making an informed assessment of the local gavernment's
operations and perfarmance in the financial year

{c) an annual operations report for each commercial business unit

(d) details of any action taken for, and expenditure on, a service, facility or activity:

(i} supplied by another local government under an agreement for conducting a joint government
activity; and

(i1) for which the local government levied special rates or charges for the financial year

() the number of invitations to change tenders under section 228(7) during the financial year

(f) a list of the registers kept by the local government

(g) a summary of all concessions for rates and charges granted by the local government

(h) the report on the internal audit for the financial year

(i) a summary of investigation notices given in the financial year under section 49 for competitive
neutrality complaints

(i) the local government’s respanses in the financial year an the Queensland Competition Authority's
recommendations on any com petitive neutrality complaints under section 52(3).

(2) In this section, an ‘annual operations report for a commercial business unit’ means a document that
contains the following information for the previous financial year:

(a) infarmation that allows an informed assessment of the unit's operations, including a comparisan with
the unit's annual performance plan

(b) particulars of any changes made to the unit's annual performance plan for the previous financial year
(c) particulars of the impact the changes had on the unit's:

(i) financial position; and

(ii) operating surplus ar deficit; and

(iii) prospects.

Chapter | Section
5 188

5 189

Page
132

134-
136

59-
107

108-
125

139

139
135
135
135
128

nfa

nfa

108-
125
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SUBJECT INDEX

Page numbers

Acknowledgement of Traditional Owners and Country 3

Ageing 22

Arts 20, 54-57, 82-83, 98-101, 139
Assets 11, 14-21, 22, 34-41, 104-107, 125
Attendance, Councillors 131

Audit, Audit committee 128

Awards and recognition 46-47

B

Beneficial enterprises 129

Biographies 29-33

Branding identity 11, 20, 24, 36-37, 46, 54, 93, 95
Business 7,10, 11, 20, 24, 40-41, 50, 91-95
Business activities subject to code of competitive conduct - disclosures 129

Business Transfarmation 21, 48-49, 107

C

Challenges 22-25

Community and Customer Services Department 32,35, 40-41

Community Engagement 50-51, 80, 104, 107

Community Financial Report 14-21

Community grants 134-136

Community Plan 9,19

Complaints = governance 128

Concessions - disclosures 139

Conduct - Mayor and Councillor - disclosures 132-133

Consolidated Financial Statements 140

Contacts 2

Corparate Plan 9, 61, 62, 67, 68, 73,74, 79, 80, 85, 86, 91, 92, 97, 98, 103, 104
Corruption preventation — governance 127
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D
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Development assessment 40-41, 85-89
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Diversity 42-43

Divisions - electoral 28
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Executive Leadership Team (ELT) 32-33,129

Executive Leadership Team remuneration 129
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External Audit 128
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GLOSSARY

Annual report - Council's report on its annual performance,
including statements about annual performance, financial
statements and disclosures required under legislation.

Asset - A resource controlled by Council which is used to deliver
services to the community. This includes tangible assets such as
roads, drains, parks and buildings and intangible assets such as

software systems.

Capital works program - Program of scheduled works generally
encompassing infrastructure works for road, drainage and building
assets.

Corporate Plan - 4 strategic document that sets out Council's
plans over five years, It outlines the strategies to be undertaken to
achieve the vision and outcomes in the Redlonds 2030 Community
Plan. It is a legal requirement under the Local Government Act 2009
for Council to adopt a Corporate Plan.

Councillors - Elected members of Council.

Diversity - Understanding that each individual is unique and
recognising our individual differences.

Executive Leadership Team (ELT) - The executive leadership of
Council, comprising of Chief Executive Officer, General Council,
Chief Financial Officer, Head of People and Culture and the General
Managers of three departments: Infrastructure and Operations,
Organisational Services, Community and Customer Services.

External Audit - An official inspection of an organisation’s
accounts, internal controls, processes and procedures, typically by
an independent body.

Financial year - The 12 months hetween 1 July of one year and
30 June of the next year. This annual report is for the 2018-2019
financial year, which spans 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2018.

Full-time equivalent (FTE) - The hours worked by one or more
employees that are the equivalent of a full-time employee. For
example, this may involve a full-time employee working 36.25
hours per week or two part-time employees each working 18.13
hours per week.

Governance - How decisions are made and implemented and how
organisations are managed and controlled to achieve objectives,
Governance also describes the ways an organisation can be held
accountable.

Group, the - [n this annual report Council and its controlled
entities (Redland Investment Carporation and its subsidiaries)
form the economic entity *the Group’ for the purposes of the
Community Financial Report (pages 14-21) and Consolidated
Financial Statements (pages 140-181).

Indigenous Land Use Agreement (ILUA) - Council's ILUA with the
Quandamooka People was signed on 4 July 2011. It is a confidential
legal agreement outlining how both parties will work together

on a number of significant projects and issues on Quandamooka
Country.

Infrastructure - Physical networks that are essential to running a
local government area, including the road network, water supply
and wastewater and stormwater networks.

Key Performance Indicator - Evidence of the degree to which
Council's actions are achieving intended objectives, for the
purposes of monitoring progress.

Local laws — The laws adopted by Council that prohibit, regulate
and control activities, events, practices and behaviours within
Redlands Coast.

Mayor - The head of Council elected across all divisions at local
government elections. Mayaral duties include running the Council
meetings, warking with the Council Chief Executive Officer on
Council business, being the spokesperson for Council and carrying
out ceremonial duties.

Operational Plan - A one-year plan that sets out activities to be
undertaken in that particular year to achieve the Corporate Plan.
An Operational Plan is a legal requirement for Queensland Councils
under the Local Government Act 2009.

Priority Development Area (PDA) - Parcels of land within
Queensland that have been identified by the State Government for
specific accelerated development with a focus on economic growth
and community development. There are two PDAs in Redlands
Coast - Toondah Harbour and Weinam Creek

Quandamooka Yoolooburrabee Aboriginal Corporation (QYAC) -
The registered Prescribed Body Corparate (PBC) managing Native
Title rights of the Quandamooka People, as well as Aboriginal
cultural heritage and other Quandamooka Country interests.

Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP) - Council has been working
towards developing its first internal Reconciliation Plan for
endarsement in August 2019, Qur first RAP promates an internal,
inward-facing set of principles and actions for 2019-2020.

Redland Art Gallery (RAG) - An initiative of Redland City Council
opened in 2003, RAG has two galleries, one in Cleveland and one

in Capalaba, as well engaging in public space and collaborative art
projects.

Redland Investment Corporation (RIC) - Council established a
proprietary company, Redland Investment Corporation (RIC), to
identify alternative revenue sources for Council and new business
opportunities for the Redlands community. This business is wholly
awned by Council and operates under the Corporations Act 2001,
Auditor-General Act 2009, and applicable sections of the Local
Government Act 2009 and Regulation.

Redland Performing Arts Centre (RPAC) - Recland City Council's
performing arts complex, providing local opportunities for
community participation in arts and cultural life. [t alse aims to
encourage |ocal creative industries and cultural entrepreneurship.

RedWaste - Council’s waste management and a commercial
business unit of Redland City Council.

Redland Water - Commercial business unit of Redland City Council
responsible for water supply and wastewater collection and
treatment.

Statutory - Required under a law or legislation.
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14 REPORTS FROM COMMUNITY & CUSTOMER SERVICES

14.1 DECISIONS MADE UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY FOR CATEGORY 1, 2 AND 3
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

Objective Reference:

Authorising Officer:  Louise Rusan, General Manager Community & Customer Services

Responsible Officer: David Jeanes, Group Manager City Planning & Assessment

Report Author: Jill Driscoll, Group Support Officer

Attachments: 1. Decisions Made Under Delegated Authority 29.09.2019 to
12.10.2019 [

PURPOSE

For Council to note that the decisions listed below were made under delegated authority for
Category 1, 2 and 3 development applications only.

This information is provided for public interest.

BACKGROUND

At the General Meeting of 21 June 2017, Council resolved that development assessments be
classified into the following four categories:

Category 1 — minor code and referral agency assessments;
Category 2 — moderately complex code and impact assessments;
Category 3 — complex code and impact assessments; and
Category 4 — major assessments (not included in this report)

The applications detailed in this report have been assessed under:

Category 1 - Minor code assessable applications, concurrence agency referral, minor operational
works and minor compliance works; and minor change requests and extension to currency period
where the original application was Category 1.

Delegation Level: Chief Executive Officer, General Manager, Group Managers, Service Managers,
Team Leaders and Principal Planners as identified in the officer’s instrument of delegation.

Category 2 - In addition to Category 1, moderately complex code assessable applications, including
operational works and compliance works and impact assessable applications without objecting
submissions; other change requests and variation requests where the original application was
Category 1, 2, 3 or 4%,

*Provided the requests do not affect the reason(s) for the call in by the Councillor (or that there is
agreement from the Councillor that it can be dealt with under delegation).

Delegation Level: Chief Executive Officer, General Manager, Group Managers and Service
Managers as identified in the officer’s instrument of delegation.

Category 3 - In addition to Category 1 and 2, applications for code or impact assessment with a
higher level of complexity. They may have minor level aspects outside a stated policy position that
are subject to discretionary provisions of the planning scheme. Impact applications may involve
submissions objecting to the proposal readily addressable by reasonable and relevant conditions.
Assessing superseded planning scheme requests and approving a plan of subdivision.
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Delegation Level: Chief Executive Officer, General Manager and Group Managers as identified in
the officer’s instrument of delegation.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

That Council resolves to note this report.
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14.2 LIST OF DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING RELATED COURT MATTERS AS AT 29 OCTOBER
2019

Objective Reference:
Authorising Officer:  Louise Rusan, General Manager Community & Customer Services

Responsible Officer: David Jeanes, Group Manager City Planning & Assessment

Report Author: Christy Englezakis, Senior Appeals Planner
Attachments: Nil
PURPOSE

For Council to note the current development and planning related appeals and other related
matters/proceedings.

BACKGROUND

Information on appeals and other related matters may be found as follows:

1. Planning and Environment Court

a) Information on current appeals and applications with the Planning and Environment
Court involving Redland City Council can be found at the District Court web site using the
“Search civil files (eCourts) Party Search” service:
http://www.courts.qld.gov.au/services/search-for-a-court-file/search-civil-files-ecourts

b) Judgments of the Planning and Environment Court can be viewed via the Supreme Court
of Queensland Library web site under the Planning and Environment Court link:
http://www.sclqld.org.au/qjudgment/

2.  Court of Appeal

Information on the process and how to search for a copy of Court of Appeal documents can
be found at the Supreme Court (Court of Appeal) website:
http://www.courts.qld.gov.au/courts/court-of-appeal/the-appeal-process

3. Department of State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning (DSDMIP)

The DSDMIP provides a Database of Appeals that may be searched for past appeals and
applications heard by the Planning and Environment Court.
https://planning.dsdmip.gld.gov.au/planning/spa-system/dispute-resolution-under-
spa/planning-and-environment-court/planning-and-environment-court-appeals-database

The database contains:

a) A consolidated list of all appeals and applications lodged in the Planning and Environment
Courts across Queensland of which the Chief Executive has been notified.

b) Information about the appeal or application, including the file number, name and year,
the site address and local government.
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4. Department of Housing and Public Works (DHPW)

Information on the process and remit of development tribunals can be found at the DHPW
website:
http://www.hpw.qld.gov.au/construction/BuildingPlumbing/DisputeResolution/Pages/defau
[t.aspx

PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT COURT APPEALS & APPLICATIONS

. . CA11075/17
1. File Number: (MCU013296)
Lipoma Pty Ltd
Appellants: Lanrex Pty Ltd

Victoria Point Lakeside Pty Ltd

Co-respondent (Applicant) Nerinda Pty Ltd

Preliminary Approval for Material Change of Use for Mixed Use Development and
Development Permit for Reconfiguring a Lot (1 into 2 lots)

128-144 Boundary Road, Thornlands

(Lot 3 on SP117065)

Appeal Details: Submitter appeal against Council approval.

A directions hearing was held on 1 August 2018. A further directions hearing was
held on 5 October 2018 to confirm the matters to be determined by the Court.
The matter was heard before the Court over four days, commencing 4 March

Proposed Development:

Current Status: 2019. The Court handed down its decision on 4 October 2019. The appeal was
dismissed and the development application was approved. The appellant has
until 18 November 2019 to appeal the decision.

) 2171 of 2018

2. File Number: (ROL006209)

Applicant: Lorette Margaret Wigan
Reconfiguring a Lot for 1 into 29 lots and road

Proposed Development: 84-122 Taylor Road, Thornlands
(Lot 1 on RP123222)

Appeal Details: Appeal against Council decision to issue Preliminary Approval.

Appeal filed on 13 June 2018. Mediation was held on 29 June 2018. A second
mediation was held on 2 October 2018. A third mediation was held on 22
Current Status: October 2018. A fourth mediation was held on 8 April 2019. Reviews were held
on 12 April 2019, 19 July 2019, 23 August 2019 and 9 October 2019. A further
review is set down for 14 November 2019.

. 2959 of 2019
3. File Number: (MCU013688)
Applicant: Quin Enterprises Pty Ltd

Material Change of Use for the extension of the existing Extractive Industry and
Heavy Industry (office, truck weighbridge, car parking, storage area for materials
Proposed Development: with associated landscape buffers)

684-712 Mount Cotton Road, Sheldon

(Lot 1 on RP109322 and 3 on SP238067)

Appeal Details: Appeal against Council refusal.

Appeal filed 19 August 2019. The Appellant filed an application in pending
proceeding on 4 September 2019, for orders to progress the appeal. A review

Current Status: was held on 11 September 2019. A site inspection was carried out on 18
September 2019. The matter has been listed for further review on 8 November
2019.

Item 14.2 Page 236



GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019
4, File Number: 3450 of 2019
Appellant: S. & S. Lambourne Investments Pty Ltd

Proposed Development:

Application made under Subordinate Local Law No 1.4 (Installation of
Advertising Devices) 2017 and Local Law No 1 (Administration) 2015 for two
Permanent Signs — Electronic Display Component High Impact Billboard.

58-68 Delancey Street, Ormiston

(Lot 1 on RP213631)

Appeal Details:

Appeal against Council refusal or in the alternative, appeal against a condition of
approval.

Current Status:

Appeal filed 24 September 2019. A review was held on 18 October 2019.

5. | File Number:

3742 of 2019

Appellant:

Angela Brinkworth v Redland City Council

Proposed Development:

Material Change of Use for a Cemetery (Pet Crematorium)
592-602 Redland Bay Road, Alexandra Hills
(Lot 2 on SP194117)

Appeal Details:

Appeal against Council refusal.

Current Status:

Appeal filed 16 October 2019.

6. File Number:

3797 of 2019

Appellant:

Matzin Capital Pty Ltd v Redland City Council

Proposed Development:

Application made under Subordinate Local Law No 1.4 (Installation of
Advertising Devices) 2017 and Local Law No 1 (Administration) 2015 for a
Permanent Sign — Electronic display component — high impact sign on an existing
pylon sign

80 — 82 Finucane Road, Alexandra Hills

(Lot 3 on RP81387)

Appeal Details:

Appeal against Council refusal.

Current Status: Appeal filed 22 October 2019.
7. File Number: 3829 of 2019
Appellant: Sutgold Pty Ltd v Redland City Council

Proposed Development:

Reconfiguring a Lot (8 lots into 176 lots and new roads)

72, 74, 78, 80, 82 Double Jump Road, 158-166, 168-172 and 174-178 Bunker
Road, Victoria Point

(Lots 12, 13, 15, 22 and 21 on RP86773, Lots 16 and 20 on SP293877 and Lot 12
on RP898198)

Appeal Details:

Appeal against deemed refusal by Council.

Current Status:

Appeal filed 23 October 2019.

APPEALS TO THE QUEENSLAND COURT OF APPEAL

8 File Number: 8114 of 2018
. : (MCU012812)/ (QPEC Appeal 3641 of 2015)
Appellant: Redland City Council

Respondent (applicant):

King of Gifts Pty Ltd and HTC Consulting Pty Ltd

Proposed Development:

Material Change of Use for Service Station (including car wash) and Drive
Through Restaurant
604-612 Redland Bay Road, Alexandra Hills

Appeal Details:

Appeal against the decision of the Planning and Environment Court to allow the
appeal and approve the development.

Current Status:

Appeal filed by Council on 30 July 2018. Council’s outline of argument was
filed on 28 August 2018. The appellant’s outline of argument was filed on 20
September 2018. The matter was heard before the Court on 12 March 2019.
The Court has reserved its decision.
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DEVELOPMENT TRIBUNAL APPEALS AND OTHER MATTERS

. . Appeal 19-033
9. File Number: (CAR19/0135)
Appellant: Robert Reynolds
Assessment Manager: Luke Jones

Co-Respondent

Redland City Council

Proposed Development:

Building Work for Carport (Boatport) (including car wash)
6 Dinton Court, Alexandra Hills

Appeal Details:

Appeal against the decision of the assessment manager to refuse the
development application, as directed by Redland City Council, in its role as
concurrence agency.

Current Status:

Appeal filed by the Appellant on 26 July 2019. Council was notified of the
appeal on 30 July 2019. A Development Tribunal was established on 9 October
2019. The tribunal hearing is set down for 30 October 2019.

. . Appeal 19-034
10. File Number: (PD236994)
Appellant: Gregory Thomas Hayes

Assessment Manager:

Redland City Council

Proposed Development:

Plumbing and Drainage Works for a composting toilet
17 Kennedy Avenue, Russell Island

Appeal Details:

Appeal against the decision of the Redland City Council to refuse a plumbing
application for the installation of a composting toilet.

Current Status:

Appeal filed on 26 July 2019. Council was notified of the appeal on 30 July
2019. A Development Tribunal was established on 9 October 2019. A hearing
was held on 25 October 2019. The Development Tribunal reserved its decision.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

That Council resolves to note this report.
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14.3 AMENDMENTS TO REGISTER OF FEES FOR INDIGISCAPES CENTRE
Objective Reference:
Authorising Officer:  Louise Rusan, General Manager Community & Customer Services

Responsible Officer: Graham Simpson, Group Manager Environment & Regulation

Report Author: Pippa Donaldson, Service Manager Environment & Education
Attachments: 1. Revised Register of Fees for IndigiScapes Centre [
PURPOSE

To seek Council adoption of a revised Register of Fees associated with the new Indigiscapes
Centre.

BACKGROUND

The IndigiScapes Centre has been closed for refurbishment and expansion, incorporating a
theatrette/conference centre with advanced technological capabilities, a dedicated environment
education interpretation area and other facilities for school education and tour groups.

The IndigiScapes Centre’s Register of Fees are reviewed annually under the budget process, with
the fees typically adjusted in accordance with Council’s adopted consumer price index rate and
benchmarking of services.

In January 2019, Council’s Internal Audit team conducted a review of Indigiscapes Revenue Cycle,
Cash Handling and Inventory Management Processes. This audit formed part of the internal audit
plan for the 2018/2019 financial year.

The findings from the audit resulted in a review of the existing operational model and service
provision to align with existing Council requirements. Based on internal and external service
benchmarking, it is recommended that suggested amendments to the fees and charges schedule
are implemented prior to publication of new marketing materials, and re-opening of the centre in
February 2020.

ISSUES

With the IndigiScapes Centre expected to re-open to the community in February 2020, Council
approval of new fees and charges will enable the preparation of promotional material, forms,
terms and conditions, website information and training of employees.

Benchmarking against similar Council operations, including the Redland Performing Arts Centre,
identified an opportunity to revise the Indigiscapes Centre Register of Fees to include costs that
ensure the Centre is consistent with operational costs to deliver similar services, ensure employee
costs are recoverable and align with all standard Council operational requirements.

Attached to the report is the proposed amended Register of Fees to apply to the Indigiscapes
Centre upon re-opening (Attachment 1).

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

Legislative Requirements

In developing a Register of Fees, Council is bound by the requirements of the Local Government
Act 2009, Council Policy POL-1837 Revenue and Council Guideline GL-1837-002 Register of Fees.
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Under the Local Government Act 2009, section 262(3) and Guideline GL-1837-002, Council can
amend and/or add to its Register of Fees during a financial year.

Risk Management

There is a risk that Council will not appropriately recover cost of service should the Register of
Fees not be adjusted to take into account the cost of providing services and upgraded facilities,
including appropriate market factors.

Financial

The proposed Register of Fees have been set following consultation and benchmarking across
Council, other local authorities and similar commercial operators.

It is not anticipated that there will be a significant revenue increase as a result of the amended
Register of Fees during 2019/2020 as the Centre re-establishes clients and bookings. However, the
resetting of fees to align with recovering the cost of providing services and facilities will assist with
future revenue to off-set the new cost base and commercial appeal of the Centre.

People
There are no specific impacts to staffing as a result of adoption of the proposed fees and charges.
Environmental

There are no specific impacts on the environment as a result of adoption of the proposed fees and
charges.

Social

There are no specific social impacts noting that not for profit groups will remain eligible for
discounts in accordance with Council’s adopted discounts process under Council Policy POL-3120
Discounts and Waivers of Fees and Infringements and associated Guideline GL-3120-002 Fees and
Charges Discounts Guideline.

Alignment with Council’s Policy and Plans

The proposed Register of Fees align with Council’s Policy POL-1837 Revenue and Guideline GL-
1837-002 Register of Fees.

CONSULTATION
Consulted Consultation Date Comments/Actions
Senior Management Accountant July-November 2019 Discuss and finalise proposed Register of Fees

in accordance with Local Government Act

M tA tant
anagement Accountan 2009 and Council Policies and Guidelines.

Finance Officer

Financial Services Business
Partnering Unit

Project Coordinator City Sports and August 2019 Discuss booking processes and comparison of
Venues Register of Fees.
Operations Manager Redland July — October 2019 Comparison of Register of Fees.

Performing Arts Centre
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OPTIONS
Option One

That Council resolves to formally adopt the revised Register of Fees for implementation when the
IndigiScapes Centre re-opens in February 2020.

Option Two

That Council resolves to not adopt the amended Register of Fees for the Indigiscapes Centre.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

That Council resolves to formally adopt the revised Register of Fees for implementation when
the IndigiScapes Centre re-opens in February 2020.
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14.4 RESPONSE TO PETITION REGARDING MORETON BAY RAMSAR SITE WITHIN REDLAND
CITY

Objective Reference:

Authorising Officer:  Louise Rusan, General Manager Community & Customer Services
Responsible Officer: Louise Rusan, General Manager Community & Customer Services
Report Author: Kristen Banks, Executive Officer Community and Customer Services

Attachments: 1. Map indicating Toondah Harbour PDA boundary and Moreton Bay
Ramsar site

PURPOSE

To provide information to Redland City Council (Council) relating to a petition received by Council
on 14 August 2019 regarding the Moreton Bay Ramsar Site.

| “"

The petition requests that Council “implement [sic] a range of measures to improve its
stewardship of those parts of the Moreton Bay Ramsar site which are located within Redland
City.”

BACKGROUND
Moreton Bay Ramsar Site

The Moreton Bay Ramsar site is located in and around Moreton Bay and has a total area of
approximately 120,000 hectares. The site was designated as a Ramsar site by the Australian
Government on 22 October 1993. Ramsar Wetlands are managed under federal legislation, the
Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act).

Areas subject to historical disturbance such as the Port of Brisbane and Manly Boat Harbour have
exclusion zones from the Moreton Bay Ramsar site.

Toondah Harbour has an exclusion zone from the Ramsar site, however the exclusion zone does
not include some of the regularly dredged areas of the public channel. The dredging activity is
undertaken by Council on behalf of the State Government.

Toondah Harbour

Toondah Harbour operates as a working port and is the main point of departure and arrival for
vehicular ferry and water taxi services between the mainland and North Stradbroke Island.

More than one million passengers and 200,000 vehicles on barges move through the port each
year.

The site also includes a public boat ramp, swing basin and a navigation channel that is 2.55km long
and 45 metres wide.

The Toondah Harbour site has undergone historical disturbance with a portion of the existing land
reclaimed from the 1960s onwards, and has continued daily use and ongoing dredging of the
navigation channel.

The channel and swing basin must continue to be dredged to ensure that the critical public
navigation channel remains open.
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Toondah Harbour PDA Declaration

On 21 June 2013, Toondah Harbour was declared a Priority Development Area (PDA) under the
Economic Development Act 2012 (Qld).

On 29 May 2014, the Toondah Harbour PDA Development Scheme was adopted by the
Queensland Government. The PDA has a total area of 67.4 hectares with 17.9 hectares of existing
land. The Toondah Harbour PDA overlaps with the Moreton Bay Ramsar site by 42 hectares, which
equates to approximately 0.035% of the Moreton Bay Ramsar site (refer to Attachment 1).

Public consultation on the draft development scheme included 10 community forums, an online
submission process which attracted 583 submissions, distribution of five community mail outs,
advertisements and public displays.

Amendments were made to the final development scheme to reflect community feedback,
including a reduction in building heights from 15 to 10 stories, reduction of marina berths from
800 to 400, and reinforcing the protection of existing parks to ensure there is no net loss of public
open space.

All of the submissions received were carefully assessed by the State Government and responses
summarised in the submissions report which is publicly available on the State Government
website.

On 23 July 2018, the Australian Government made the decision that the proposed Toondah
Harbour PDA development is a ‘controlled action’, allowing the project to proceed to the
environmental impact statement (EIS) stage.

A 20-day public notification period inviting comment on the draft EIS guidelines for the Toondah
Harbour PDA development closed on 6 March 2019.

On 3 April 2019, the Federal Minister for the Environment issued guidelines for an EIS.

The preparation of the EIS has started and is expected to take 12 to 18 months (completed
between July—December 2020). The draft EIS will released by the Federal Government for public
comment for 28 business days as part this process.

The EIS phase assesses all potential social, economic and environmental impacts of the proposed
development during its construction and operational phases.

Moreton Bay Marine Park

The Moreton Bay Marine Park was declared in 1993 and covers 340,000 hectares including all of
the Moreton Bay Ramsar site of approximately 120,000 hectares. It is protected by State
legislation and contains a number of zones.

The Queensland Government Moreton Bay Marine Park user guide states that the Marine Park is
zoned to allow a range of recreational and commercial activities to occur while also setting aside
some areas for higher protection.

ISSUES

PDA Boundary

The petition requests that Council makes a request to the State Government to revise the
boundaries of the Toondah Harbour PDA to exclude wetlands, which are part of the Moreton Bay
Ramsar site.
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It is recommended that the Principal Petitioner refer the petition to the State Government as the
State is the lead authority on:

e the PDA framework;
e the Toondah Harbour tenure as a functioning port with jetties and barge ramps; and
e Moreton Bay Marine Park protection and assessment framework.

The State Parliament has responded to five previous petitions related to the PDA.
Prepare plans, policies and procedures

The petition requests that Council prepare plans, policies and procedures to conserve and protect
Redland City’s Ramsar wetlands and ensure they are used within the Ramsar Convention’s
definition of “wise use”.

The Ramsar Parties defined “wise use” of wetlands as “the maintenance of their ecological
character, achieved through the implementation of ecosystem approaches, within the context of
sustainable development”.

Ramsar Information Paper No. 7 elaborates on the concept of “wise use” and states that the
Convention continues to emphasise that human use on a sustainable basis is entirely compatible
with Ramsar principles and wetland conservation in general.

Council has limited jurisdiction over the Moreton Bay Ramsar Wetlands. The Council planning
scheme (City Plan) can regulate limited works in a tidal area that are prescribed in the State
Planning legislation outside of PDAs.

All other works are required to be authorised by the State and Federal Government. The “wise
use” principles are considered through environmental impact assessment processes under Federal
legislation.

In drafting the City Plan, Council was required to include provisions in the State Planning Policy
relating to the development in coastal environments and protecting and enhancing water quality.

Tourism Strategy

The petition requests that Council review the Council’s tourism strategy to ensure that it fully
embraces the values of Redland City’s Ramsar wetlands and the wildlife and ecosystems which
these wetlands sustain.

Redland City Council was an active contributor to the development of the recently released vision
for tourism development for the Greater Brisbane Region, which includes the Redlands Coast area.

For tourism purposes, the Greater Brisbane Region extends from the local government area of
Moreton Bay in the north to Redlands Coast, and also takes in Brisbane, Ipswich, Logan, Scenic Rim
and Lockyer Valley and Somerset.

The Visitor Economy 2031: Vision for Brisbane Region document, released by Brisbane Marketing
in September 2019, is a guide for tourism development that includes the importance of
sustainable tourism.

The 2031 vision for the region is to be:

A globally recognised destination known for connecting visitors and the community with its
enviable lifestyle, accessible nature, remarkable experiences, authentic culture and events, and
renowned for being sustainable, creative and respectful.

This is a vision that any new Council tourism strategy would be likely to align with.
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It is important to note that Council’s current Redland City Tourism Strategy and Action Plan 2015-
2020 also highlights the importance of nature-based tourism.

Site Management Plan for the Moreton Bay Ramsar Site

The petition requests that Council initiate action, in concert with other local authorities and the
State Government to expedite the preparation and implementation of a fully resourced site
management plan for the Moreton Bay Ramsar site.

The Ramsar Convention encourages the development of three key documents for each Ramsar
site:

1. Ramsar Information Sheet (RIS);
2. Ecological Character Description; and
3. Management plan.

A RIS is the key document used in decision making under the EPBC Act and describes the ecological
character of the site. The RIS for Moreton Bay was updated by the Queensland Government
Department of Environment and Science (DES) and submitted to the Australian Government in
December 2018. It was endorsed by all site managers including Queensland Government
departments, Quandamooka Yoolooburrabee Aboriginal Corporation, Port of Brisbane, Gold Coast
Waterways Authority and local governments including Redland City Council endorsement.

A draft Ecological Character Description has been prepared by the Australian Government in
cooperation with Queensland Government, for approval and endorsement by the Australian
Government.

Ramsar Management Plans are typically only produced where there is no other management
documents for the area. The Marine Parks (Moreton Bay) Zoning Plan 2019, a management plan
that encompasses Ramsar values and recently remade by DES (see Moreton Bay Marine Park), is in
effect over the site.

Redland City Council is required to included Ramsar values and principles in its management plans
that included Ramsar areas.

Moreton Bay Marine Park

The petition requests that Council request the State Government ensure greater protection of
Ramsar areas when the Moreton Bay Marine Park zoning plan is next reviewed.

The DES has remade the zoning plan for the Moreton Bay Marine Park. The Marine Parks (Moreton
Bay) Zoning Plan 2019 is subordinate legislation to the Marine Parks Act 2004 and replaces the
previous Marine Parks (Moreton Bay) Zoning Plan 2008. It was published to the Queensland
Legislation website (www.legislation.qgld.gov.au/view/html/inforce/current/s|-2019-0175) on 30
August 2019.

The commencement of the remade zoning plan completes phase 1 of the remake and review
process, and allows existing marine park management arrangements to continue as the
Department proceeds to phase 2.

Phase 1 involved the statutory remake and renewal of the zoning plan in its current form, without
notable amendment, to ensure it did not expire and the conservation and use values of the
Moreton Bay Marine Park were not placed at risk.

No changes have been made to zones, designated areas or entry and use requirements.
Administrative changes have been made to improve clarity and to reflect contemporary legislative
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drafting standards. The completion of this stage ensures the continuation of the existing
management arrangements for the marine park while Stage 2 review of the zoning plan is
undertaken by the State.

Phase 2 will be commenced by the State after finalisation of the Great Sandy Marine Park Zoning
Plan review. This phase will involve public consultation, with the release of a Discussion Paper
seeking input on the future directions and management of the marine park, including zoning;
designated areas; values; and use. Feedback from the Discussion Paper will help determine what
amendments are needed in the zoning plan to support the long-term conservation and use of the
marine park. Any proposed amendments will be subject to further public input.

The renewal process will result in an updated zoning plan that will support management of the
marine park for a further 10 years based on available science and community input.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

Legislative Requirements

The following legislation was considered in the drafting of the report:

o Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (Cth)
o Economic Development Act 2012 (Qld)

J Marine Parks Act 2004 (Qld)

. Marine Parks (Moreton Bay) Zoning Plan 2019 (Qld)

o Planning Act 2016 (Qld)

Risk Management

The resolution does not have any risk implications.
Financial

The resolution does not require any expenditure by Council.
People

There are no staff implications from the resolution.
Environmental

The environmental implications have been outlined in the report.
Social

There are no social implications from the resolution.
Alignment with Council's Policy and Plans

The recommendation is in accordance with previous resolutions by Council.

CONSULTATION
Consulted Consultation Date Comments/Actions
Redland Investment Corporation September and October | Input sought on Toondah Harbour Priority
2019 Development Area.
Group Manager City Planning and September and October | Input sought on information relating to the City
Assessment 2019 Plan and planning considerations.
Group Manager Environment and September and October | Input sought on information relating to
Regulation 2019 environment matters.
Group Manager Communication, September and October | Input sought on tourism including Redland City
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Consulted Consultation Date Comments/Actions
Engagement and Tourism 2019 Tourism Strategy and Action 2015-2020.
Coastal Infrastructure Advisor, Input sought on information relating to marine
Marine Infrastructure Asset October 2019 . P & g

infrastructure asset management.
Management

October and November | Input sought on information relating to

General Counsel . .
2019 legislative requirements.

OPTIONS

Option One

That Council resolves as follows:
1. To note this report.

2. To write to the Principal Petitioner providing them a copy of this report together with contact
details of where they should advocate matters of interest to the State Government and
Federal Government.

Option Two

That Council resolves to seek further information from officers.
OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

That Council resolves as follows:

1. To note this report.

2. To write to the Principal Petitioner providing them a copy of this report together with
contact details of where they should advocate matters of interest to the State Government
and Federal Government.
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Attachment 1 Map indicating 'lToondah Harbour PDA boundary and Moreton Bay Ramsar site
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14.5 RESPONSE TO PETITION REGARDING CONTRACTING ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE
TOONDAH HARBOUR PRIORITY DEVELOPMENT AREA

Objective Reference:
Authorising Officer:  Louise Rusan, General Manager Community & Customer Services

Responsible Officer: Andrew Ross, General Counsel

Report Author: Andrew Ross, General Counsel
Attachments: Nil
PURPOSE

To provide information to Council regarding the petition received on 6 November 2019 on the
Toondah Harbour contractual arrangements.

BACKGROUND

On 6 November 2019 Council received a petition from Redlands 2030 Inc. requesting Council:

1. ‘make publicly available a comprehensive and truthful explanation of all contractual
arrangements agreed between the Council and other parties relating to plans for residential
and other development by the Walker Group Pty Ltd in the Toondah Harbour Priority
Development Area’;

2. ‘make this information available to the community well before the commencement of the next
local government election period, so that voters are able to consider:
a) The competence of Councillors who voted to enter into these contractual arrangements;

b) Whether or not these contractual arrangements are in the public interest; and

c) The prospects of a newly elected Council being able to take actions aimed at ensuring that
development does not proceed in the form currently proposed by Walker Group Pty Ltd’.

The Toondah Harbour contractual arrangements are generally described in the Office of the
Information Commissioner (OIC) decision available at www.oic.gld.gov.au and include specific
reference to the Toondah Harbour Masterplan, Infrastructure Agreement and Development
Agreement. Those Agreements are binding on the parties including the current and future elected
governments for the Queensland Government and Council such as to allow the environmental
assessment of the proposal to progress and retain the confidentiality of the Development
Agreement subject to the orders of the Qld Civil and Administrative Tribunal (QCAT).

Toondah Harbour Development and PDA

The Toondah Harbour development is currently at an early design stage shown by a Masterplan
that is subject to an independent environmental assessment by the Commonwealth Government
under national provisions of the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999
(EPBC Act). The assessment is a scientific merit-based assessment involving community
consultation to assess the nature, extent and potential impacts from the Masterplan, which could
be refused, approved or changed subject to that assessment, which is expected to be completed in
December 2020.

The Toondah Harbour development is proposed in a Priority Development Area (PDA) comprising
67 hectares, with more than 90% of the area owned or controlled by the Queensland Government.
The harbour development has been the subject of various public comments over the past decade
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and in 2016, after a public expression of interest, the State Government and Council selected the
Walker Group Holdings Pty Ltd as a development partner for the Masterplan.

Toondah Harbour Masterplan:

The Masterplan is published on the Council website and describes the public and private features
of the mixed use harbour development. The State Government, Council and the Walker Group
have signed a Development Agreement (DA) and Infrastructure Agreement (IA) to give effect to
the Masterplan for the Toondah Harbour PDA.

Toondah Harbour Infrastructure Agreement:

The Infrastructure Agreement is published on the Council website and describes the key
infrastructure including nearly $116 million worth of community improvements. The Infrastructure
Agreement may be amended following the environmental assessment and development
assessment phases of the project.

Toondah Harbour Development Agreement — QCAT Tribunal Proceedings:

The Development Agreement remains confidential based on its terms and containing the Walker
Group’s private business affairs, however the effect of the agreement is generally described in the
Office of Information Commissioner decision dated 21 November 2018.

In addition to the Petition, the Redlands 2030 Inc. has made a similar request for contractual
documents, namely the Toondah Harbour Development Agreement that is currently the subject of
proceedings before QCAT. The QCAT issued Orders on 17 September 2019 refusing publication of
the contractual arrangements so that the active parties to the proceedings including the Walker
Group Holdings Pty Ltd, Minister for Economic Development Qld, Redlands 2030 Inc. and the OIC
can make written submissions on the proceedings.

Council has not lodged an objection to the OIC decision or appeal to QCAT and is a statutory party
in the proceedings to abide by the Tribunal. The Tribunal has ordered the active parties to make
their submissions to the Tribunal during November and December 2019, prior to the matter being
listed for review before the Tribunal on 28 January 2020.

The publication of the Toondah Harbour Development Agreement is contrary to the QCAT Orders
representing contempt of such Orders. The contempt would also represent a breach of contract
terms, exposing Council to potential contractual damages and loss.

Toondah Harbour Development - Public Information Sources:

There are various sources of information about the Toondah Harbour arrangements including:
e Commonwealth Department of Environment website on the Toondah Harbour assessment
e Queensland Government website information about the PDA and Development Scheme

e Redland City Council website on Toondah Harbour Infrastructure Agreement and FAQs

e Walker Group Holdings website, FAQs and Cleveland shopfront office

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS
Legislative Requirements

In making the resolution, Council is acting in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009 (Qld)
noting the independent environmental assessment is in accordance with the EPBC Act and the
contractual disclosure provisions in accordance with QCAT. Risk Management

Council decisions, both currently and newly elected, must be made in accordance with the local
government principles of good governance by balancing transparency with the legal obligations to

Item 14.5 Page 252



GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

comply with QCAT Orders and contractual terms particularly in circumstances where they are
subject to ongoing independent environmental assessment processes and tribunal proceedings.

Financial

There are potential financial implications for contempt of QCAT orders and contractual breach.
People

There are no direct staffing issues.

Environmental

There are no direct environmental issues.

Social

The social and community issues are detailed in the report.

Alignment with Council's Policy and Plans

This report has a relationship with Council’s 2018-2023 Corporate Plan Vision Outcome 8.
‘Inclusive and ethical governance’.

CONSULTATION
Consulted Consultation Date Comments/Actions
Council General Meeting 6 Nov 2019 Petition received
Right To Information Team 7 Nov 2019 Request for Information
Council General Meeting 20 Nov 2019 Petition Response
OPTIONS
Option One

That Council resolves as follows:

1. Note the publicly available information and continuing sources of information on the Toondah
Harbour Development Proposal and contracting arrangements.

2. Note the limitations on the release of the Toondah Harbour Development Proposal and
contractual information is subject to the Queensland Civil and Administrative Tribunal Orders.

3. Note the Toondah Harbour Development Proposal is at an early master plan stage that is
subject to a Commonwealth Government Environmental Impact Assessment that provides for
community consultation and an independent merits assessment.

4. Note the Toondah Harbour Development Proposal is predominantly covering an area of
Queensland State Government Interest, particularly and wholly the areas of the Moreton Bay
Marine Park.

5. Write to the Principal Petitioner providing a copy of this report as a response to the Petition.
Option Two

The Council resolve to require further information to assist their response to this report.
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OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION
That Council resolves as follows:

1. Note the publicly available information and continuing sources of information on the
Toondah Harbour Development Proposal and contracting arrangements.

2. Note the limitations on the release of the Toondah Harbour Development Proposal and
contractual information is subject to the Queensland Civil and Administrative Tribunal
Orders.

3. Note the Toondah Harbour Development Proposal is at an early master plan stage that is
subject to a Commonwealth Government Environmental Impact Assessment that provides
for community consultation and an independent merits assessment.

4. Note the Toondah Harbour Development Proposal is predominantly covering an area of
Queensland State Government Interest, particularly and wholly the areas of the Moreton
Bay Marine Park.

5. Write to the Principal Petitioner providing a copy of this report as a response to the Petition.
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15 REPORTS FROM INFRASTRUCTURE & OPERATIONS

15.1 DRINKING WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN ANNUAL REPORT
Objective Reference:
Authorising Officer:  Peter Best, General Manager Infrastructure & Operations

Responsible Officer: Matthew Ingerman, Acting Group Manager Water and Waste

Infrastructure
Report Author: Lara Harland, Service Manager Scientific Service
Attachments: 1.  Drinking Water Quality Management Plan Annual Report

PURPOSE

To seek Redland City Council (Council) approval of Council’s Drinking Water Quality Management
Plan (DWQMP) Annual Report — FY 2018/2019.

BACKGROUND

The Redland City Council DWQMP was submitted to the Queensland Water Supply Regulator (the
Regulator) on 14 June 2018 and was subsequently approved by the Regulator on 27 August 2018.

The DWQMP annual report documents the performance of Redland City Council’s drinking water
service with respect to water quality and performance in implementing the actions detailed in the
DWQMP, as required under sections 141 and 142 of the Queensland Water Supply (Safety and
Reliability) Act 2008 (the WSSR Act).

The WSSR Act requires Council to submit its DWQMP annual report to the Queensland Water
Supply Regulator, Department of Natural Resources, Mines and Energy (DNRME) within 120
business days following the end of the financial year to which it relates, that date being 18
December 2019. This report was prepared in accordance with the “Drinking Water Quality
Management Plan Report, Guidance Note, September 2018” published by DNRME.

ISSUES

The purpose of the DWQMP annual report is to;

o report on the performance of Council’s drinking water service with respect to water quality;

o report on the performance in implementation of the actions detailed in the DWQMP;

o assist the Regulator to determine if the approved DWQMP and any approved conditions
have been complied with; and

] provide a mechanism for Council to report publicly on their performance in managing
drinking water quality.

The DWQMP Annual Report states that drinking water supplied by Council achieved 100%
compliance with the Australian Drinking Water Guidelines for the parameters that were tested.
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STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS
Legislative Requirements

Section 142(2)(b) of the WSSR Act requires Council to submit the DWQMP Annual Report in
accordance with the guidelines made by the Regulator, which is currently the “Drinking Water
Quality Management Plan Report, Guidance Note, September 2018”, published by DNRME.

Risk Management

The Council Water and Waste Operations Group and Water and Waste Infrastructure Group risk
register includes the following risk:

There is a risk that drinking water does not meet health parameters of Australian Drinking Water
Guidelines, due to process failure or contamination, resulting in damage to public health or loss of

supply.
The DWQMP addresses this risk and includes a more detailed risk assessment.

Financial

There is no direct impact on Council’s budget from the approval of the FY2018/2019 DWQMP
Annual Report, however future DWQMP Annual Reports may be used to develop future budgets.

People

There is no direct impact on staff. The implementation of the DWQMP Annual Report is part of
the duties of relevant Council staff.

Environmental
There are no known environmental implications.
Social

The DWQMP Annual Report demonstrates that Council supports transparency, accountability and
further will build confidence in the quality of drinking water supplied to the community of Redland
City.

Alignment with Council's Policy and Plans

The DWQMP Annual Report supports Council’s Corporate Plan, in respect to providing essential
physical infrastructure that supports community well-being and manages Council’s existing
infrastructure assets, to ensure current service standards are maintained or improved.

The DWQMP Annual Report is consistent with other Council strategic documents such as Redland
City Council’s annual water performance plan and the Redland City Council’s Netserv plan.

CONSULTATION
Consulted Consultation Date Comments/Actions
Officers have consulted with all relevant 23/10/19 No amendments required.
Redland City Council stakeholders.
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OPTIONS
Option One

That Redland City Council resolves to approve the Drinking Water Quality Management Plan
Annual Report FY2018/2019 as attached to this report, for submission to the Department of
Natural Resources, Mines and Energy, by 18 December 2019.

Option Two

That Redland City Council resolves to not approve the Drinking Water Quality Management
Plan Annual Report FY2018/2019.

OFFICER’S RECOMMENDATION

That Redland City Council resolves to approve the Drinking Water Quality Management Plan
Annual Report FY2018/2019 as attached to this report, for submission to the Department of
Natural Resources, Mines and Energy by 18 December 2019.
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Redland

CITY COUNCIL

SPID No. 541

Drinking Water Quality Management Plan (DWQMP)

Annual Report
2018/19

Redland City council
PO Box 21
Cleveland QLD 4163
07 3829 8999
rec@redland.gld.gov.au

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Drinking Water Quality

Management Plan Report Guidance Note.
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. . Jrinking Water Quality Management Plan (DWQMP) Annual Report 201819
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Jrinking Water Quality Management Plan (DWQMP) Annual Report 201819

Notation and Abbreviations

<
=
ADWG 2004

ADWG 2011

ALS

CFU/M00mL
E. coli

mg/L
NTU
QUU SAS
SMBI

Less than
Greater than

Australian Drinking Water Guidelines (2004). Published by the National
Health and Medical Research Council of Australia

Australian Drinking Water Guidelines (2011). Published by the National
Health and Medical Research Council of Australia

Australian Laboratory Services Laboratory Group

Colony forming units per 100 millilitres

Escherichia coli, a bacterium which is considered to indicate the
presence of faecal contamination and therefore potential health risk

Milligrams per litre
Nephelometric Turbidity Units
Queensland Urban Utilities Scientific Analytical Services

Southern Moreton Bay Islands
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I . . Jrinking Walter Quality Management Plan (DWOMP) Annual Report 2018/19

1 Introduction

This report documents the performance of Redland City Council's (Service Provider
Identification 541) drinking water service with respect to water quality and performance in
implementing the actions detailed in the DWQMP as required under the Water
Supply (Safety and Reliability) Act 2008 (the Act) for the 2018-19 financial year.

The report assists the Regulator to determine whether the approved DWQMP and any
approval conditions have been complied with and provides a mechanism for providers to
report publicly on their performance in managing drinking water quality.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the DWQMP report guidance note 2018
published by the Department of Natural Resource, Mines and Energy, Queensland,
accessible at www.dnrme.gld.gov.au.

2 Summary of schemes operated

Redland City Council covers an area of approximately 537 square kilometres and has a
population of approximately 155,000 people. Redland City Council provides drinking water to
Redland City residents through four water supply schemes:

Table 2.1 — Summary of Schemes (owned and operated by Seqwater)

Scheme Water Source*
Redland City and Southern + Eastern Pipeline Interconnector
Moreton Bay Islands e North Stradbroke Island WTP
» Capalaba WTP
Dunwich ¢  Dunwich WTP
Amity Point e Amity Point WTP
Point Lookout ¢ Point Lookout WTP

*Refer to Seqwater annual report for details of WTFP process and capacity

Redland City Council is responsible for receiving bulk water from Seqwater and delivering it
to residents through its distribution network. This is done whilst ensuring that the water
meets the Australian Drinking Water Guidelines (ADWG).

Redland City Council manages drinking water quality through an approved Drinking Water
Quality Management Plan (DWQMP) which protects public health by ensuring the provision
of a safe water supply.
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Redland City Council manages, operates and maintains pumping stations and mains as part
of its distribution network. Redland City Council manages, operates and maintains reservoirs
in each of the North Stradbroke Island (NSI) township schemes. Seqwater owns and
operates all mainland reservoirs. Redland City Council does not operate any re-chlorination
facilities in its network.

3 DWAQMP Implementation

3.1 Progress in implementing the risk management improvement program
During the reporting period, a new acting Water Quality and Environmental Compliance
Manager was recruited. Her role in relation to implementing the DWQMP was discussed
during the handover from the previous Water Quality and Environmental Compliance
Manager.

The risk management improvement program implementation status is included in Appendix
A

3.2 Revisions made to the operational monitoring program

Verification moenitoring is the only available option to monitor drinking water quality in the
Redland City Council area. Seqwater owns, operates and monitors all chlorine dosing
systems at the treatment plants and reservoirs and is responsible for operational monitoring
of the system.

The sample collection and field analysis for the verification monitoring program for the entire
financial year was contracted out to Queensland Urban Utilities Scientific Analytical Services
Laboratory.

3.3 Amendments made to the DWQMP

DWQMP was reviewed on 4 June 2018 and was submitted for approval to the Regulator on
14 June 2018. The next internal review is due to be completed before 1 July 2020.

4 Verification monitoring - water quality information and summary

The results from the verification monitoring program for E. coli have been compared against
the water quality criteria specified in the DNRME Drinking Water Quality Management Plan
Report, Guidance Note, 2018.

The results from the verification monitoring program for all other parameters have been
compared against the National Water Quality Strategy, Australian Drinking Water Guidelines
6 2011, Version 3.5 updated August 2018.

The reported statistics do not include results derived from repeat samples, or from
emergency or investigative samples undertaken in response to an elevated result or incident
such as a main break.
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The verification monitoring summaries are included in Appendix B.

5 Incidents reported to the regulator

This financial year there was no instance where the Regulator was notified under sections
102 or 102A of the Act.

6 Customer complaints related to water quality

Redland City Council is required to report on the number of complaints, general details of
complaints, and the responses undertaken.

Throughout the year the following complaints about water quality were received:

Table 6.1- Complaints about water quality (total per 1000 connections)

Water Supply Scheme Connections™ C:?::I;?n Dis:\?;::el.:‘red Taos;izrd Total
Redland City Mainland 66 737 0.03 1.93 0.66 262
Dunwich 465 0.00 2.15 0.00 2.15
Point Lookout 1155 0.00 0.87 0.87 1.73
Amity Point 402 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total* 68 759 0.00 1.91 0.65 256

* Total connected properties including vacant land

6.1 Suspected illness

Complaints are sometimes received from customers who suspect their water may be
associated with an illness they are experiencing. Redland City Council investigates each
complaint relating to alleged illness from our water supply, typically by taking samples at the
customer’'s water meter and closest verification sampling point and testing them for the
presence of E. coli, Total coliforms and free chlorine concentration.

During 2018/19 there were no confirmed cases of illness arising from the water supply
system.

6.2 Discoloured water

As a response to any discoloured water customer complaints, various water mains were
flushed in the vicinity of the complaint.

A regular mains flush program is in place to address this issue.
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Dirty water complaints were related to dead-end mains and distribution system areas with
low consumption. Associated areas were flushed to remove the dirty water,

6.3 Taste and odour
The taste and odour complaints received are usually related to the taste of chlorine in the
water supply. Investigation of each complaint found no public health risks. Where there was
a complaint of an unusual taste or odour that could not be explained, samples were collected
and checked using an internal water taste and odour panel to assist in determining the
veracity of the complaints.

All samples tested complied with ADWG for parameter tested.

Staff explained to all customers the importance of free chlorine in drinking water.

7 DWQMP Review Outcomes

There were no new hazards or hazardous events identified during the year that were not
addressed in the approved DWQMP. Therefore there was no formal review of the DWQMP
during 2018/19. The next internal review is due to be completed before 1 July 2020.

8 DWAQMP audit findings

No external DWQMP audit was carried out in 2018/19. As per the Drinking Water Quality
Management Plan Amendment Application — Infarmation Notice for the Decision dated 27
August 2018, the next external DWQMP audit is due by 1 July 2021.
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

16 NOTICES OF INTENTION TO REPEAL OR AMEND A RESOLUTION
In accordance with s.262 Local Government Regulation 2012.

17 NOTICES OF MOTION

In accordance with 5.6.16 POL-3127 Council Meeting Standing Orders.

18 URGENT BUSINESS WITHOUT NOTICE

In accordance with s.6.17 of POL-3127 Council Meeting Standing Orders, a Councillor may bring
forward an item of urgent business if the meeting resolves that the matter is urgent.

Urgent Business Checklist YES | NO

To achieve an outcome, does this matter have to be dealt with at a
general meeting of Council?

Does this matter require a decision that only Council make?

Can the matter wait to be placed on the agenda for the next Council
Meeting?

Is it in the public interest to raise this matter at this meeting?

Can the matter be dealt with administravely?

If the matter relates to a request for information, has the request been
made to the CEO or a General Manager Previously?
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GENERAL MEETING AGENDA 20 NOVEMBER 2019

19 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS

COUNCIL MOTION

That Council considers the confidential report(s) listed below in a meeting closed to the public in
accordance with Section 275(1) of the Local Government Regulation 2012:

19.1 Sale of Land for Overdue Rate and Charges

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 275(1)(h) of the Local Government
Regulation 2012, and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting
would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest as it deals with other business for which a
public discussion would be likely to prejudice the interests of the local government or someone
else, or enable a person to gain a financial advantage.

19.2 Rating Exemption

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 275(1)(d) of the Local Government
Regulation 2012, and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting
would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest as it deals with rating concessions.

19.3 City Plan Major Amendment: South West Victoria Point Structure Plan

This matter is considered to be confidential under Section 275(1)(h) of the Local Government
Regulation 2012, and the Council is satisfied that discussion of this matter in an open meeting
would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest as it deals with other business for which a
public discussion would be likely to prejudice the interests of the local government or someone
else, or enable a person to gain a financial advantage.

20 MEETING CLOSURE
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